
The YouTube channel "City ofFranklin WI" will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityotFranklinWIGov

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA*
TUESDAY OCTOBER 1, 2024 AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order, Roll Call and Pledge ofAllegiance.

B. 1.
2.

Citizen Comment Period.
A Proclamation in Recognition ofLeary C. Peterson.

C. Approval ofMinutes: Regular Common Council Meeting of September 17, 2024.

D. Hearings.

E. Organizational: Mayoral Commission Appointments: Amanda Pound, 8255 W. Forest Hill
Ave., Franklin Public Schools, Director of Teaching and Leaming-Library Board (3 year
unexpired term expiring 06/30/26).

F. Letters.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. Authorization for Municipal Judge to Execute a Contract with Language Line

Services, Inc.
2. Franklin Public School District information presentation with regard to a referendum

question to be on the November 5, 2024 election ballot: Shall the Franklin Public
School District, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin be authorized to issue pursuant to
Chapter 67 of the Wisconsin Statutes, general obligation bonds in an amount not to
exceed $145,000,000 for the public purpose of paying the cost of a school facility
improvement project consisting of: Americans with Disabilities Act compliance
updates, capital maintenance, building systems, safety, security and site
improvements at the Elementary Schools and Franklin High School; construction of
additions and renovations at Franklin High School, including for technical education
space improvements, classroom and special education areas, science lab
improvements, new indoor physical education spaces and a field house, a pool, and
tennis courts; and acquisition of furnishings, fixtures and equipment?

3. Request to enter into a Professional Services Agreement between City of Franklin
and EPLEX, LLC (DBA E-Plan Exam) for Building Permit Plan Review Services.



Common Council Meeting Agenda
October 1, 2024
Page 2

4. Standards, Findings and Decision of the City of Franklin Common Council Upon the
Application of John Spitz, Fox Glen Corporate Centre, LLC, Applicant, for a Special
Exception to Certain Natural Resource Provisions of the City of Franklin Unified
Development Ordinance.

5. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2023-2569, an Ordinance Adopting the 2024
Annual Budget for the Street Improvement Fund and Capital Outlay Fund to Re­
Appropriate $61,000 of Street Improvement Appropriations for the Purchase of a
Shouldering Machine.

6. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2023-2569, an Ordinance Adopting the 2024
Annual Budget for the Capital Improvement Fund to Provide Additional $8,000
Appropriations and Resources for the School Traffic Signal Project.

7. Acceptance of the 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the City of
Franklin.

8. A Resolution Approving a Partial Property Tax Rescission and Refund for 8463 S.
Deerwood Lane, TKN 841-0155-000.

9. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2023-2569, an Ordinance Adopting the 2024
Annual Budget for the General Fund to Provide Additional $340,000 Appropriations
for Assessor Contractual Services.

10. Approval of Pay Application 1 and Change Order 1 for the 2024 PPII Sump Pump
Project - Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District Funding Agreement
M10005FR01.

11. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2023-2569, an Ordinance Adopting the 2024
Annual Budget for the Capital Improvement Fund to Provide Additional $445,550
Appropriations for the WISDOT Project on S. Lovers Lane from W. Rawson Ave. to
W. College Ave.

12. Engineering Department - October 2024 Update.
13. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2023-2569, an Ordinance Adopting the 2024

Annual Budget for the General Fund to Provide Additional $22,500 Appropriations
for the Elections Department.

14. An Ordinance to Amend $158-8C. of the Municipal Code to Allow for the Sale by
"Class B" License Holders oflntoxicating Liquor for Off Premises Consumption.

15. April-June, 2024 Monthly Financial Report.

H. Licenses and Permits: License Committee Meeting ofOctober 1, 2024.

I. Bills.
Request for Approval ofVouchers and Payroll.

J. Adjournment.
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Supporting documentation and details of these agenda Items are available at Caty Hall during normal business hours

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts wIll be made to accommodate the needs of disabled mndrvduals through appropr1ate aids and
services For additional information, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500 ]

REMINDERS:

October 3
October 15
October 17
October 28
November 5
November 6

Plan Commission
Common Council
Plan Commission
Committee of the Whole
General Election
Common Council

6:00 p.m.
6:30p.m.
6:00 p.m.
6:30p.m.
7:00 a.m.-8:00 p.m.
6:30 p.m.
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€it of franklin
to(amation

>
A PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF AND GRATITUDE TO LEARY C. PETERSON

FOR HIS OVER 30 YEARS OF PUBLIC SERVICE AS A MEMBER OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN
BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS

WHEREAS, Leary C. Peterson was appointed to serve as a member of the City of Franklin Board
of Water Commissioners by the City of Franklin Common Council on December 21, 1993, and has
substantially served all with his work efforts, research, knowledge, and experience; and

WHEREAS, after the recent finalization and approval of a public water supply agreement to serve
the City for the next 40 years, following the completion this year of a 30 year public water supply
agreement serving the City, both of which Leary worked upon with the Board of Water Commissioners,
Leary determined it was time for his position of service on the Board to end, and he recently submitted his
resignation; and

WHEREAS, Leary has been a Franklin resident for over three decades, and after establishing his
residence in a new development area in one of the fastest growing cities in Wisconsin, he read an article
asking for people that would be interested in volunteering to serve on local government boards, and Leary
applied to his home City to serve; and

WHEREAS, Leary spent his working career in an engineering capacity, starting at what was
originally Nordberg Manufacturing Company and continuing with its successors for 44 years, designing
maintenance equipment for the major United States and Canadian railroads; and

WHEREAS, all of Leary's years of public service were based upon doing what was right and
volunteering those efforts for the People.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED, that I, John R. Nelson, Mayor of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, on behalf of all of the Citizens of Franklin, hereby provide the recognition of and
express our gratitude for the years of public service and benefits therefrom to our public health, safety and
welfare received from and upon the work of Leary C. Peterson, which benefits shall exist for years and
years to come. Good Luck and Godspeed, Leary.

Presented to the City of Franklin Common Council this l_ Day ofoc.-r: , 2024.

\-========================1@)
n
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CITY OF FRANKLIN

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING
SEPTEMBER 17, 2024

MINUTES

CIVIC CELEBRATION G.1.

THE HILL HAS EYES G.3.

IT SECURITY G.2.

MINUTES C.
SEPTEMBER 3, 2024

The regular meeting of the Franklin Common Council was held on
September 17, 2024, and was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor
John R. Nelson in the Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W.
Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were
present: Alderman Peccarelli, Alderman Hasan, Alderwoman Day,
Alderman Barber and Alderman Craig. Also, in attendance were
Director of Administration Kelly Hersh, City Attorney Jesse A.
Wesolowski and City Clerk Shirley Roberts.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:31 p.m. and was closed at
7:00 p.m.

Alderwoman Eichmann arrived at 6:32 p.m.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the minutes of the Common
Council meeting of September 3, 2024, as presented. Seconded by
Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to accept and place on file the summary from
the 2024 Civic Celebrations event, and allow John Bergner to execute
contracts and agreements for the 2025 Franklin Civic Celebration event.
Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye, motion carried.

No action was taken regarding the discussion of Information
Technology Security by Director of Information Technology, James
Matelski.

Alderman Barber moved to approve The Hills Has Eyes 2024 and
establish a sound decibel level of a limit of 55 with the exception of the
north monitor which would be set at 65 with a ten minute correction
period. Seconded by Alderwoman Day. On roll call, Alderman
Peccarelli, Alderman Hasan, Alderwoman Day, and Alderman Barber
voted Aye, Alderwoman Eichmann and Alderman Craig voted no,
motion carried (4-2-0).

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to keep the sound decibel level limit of
55 for the last date for the Summer Concert Series of 2024. Seconded
by Alderman Peccarelli. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann left her seat at 8:57 p.m.
Alderwoman Eichmann returned to her seat at 9:02p.m.

Alderwoman Day moved to approve the following licenses of the
License Committee Meeting of September 17, 2024:

H.

B.

A.

MISCELLANEOUS
LICENSES

ROCK SUMMER G.4.
CONCERT SERIES

CITIZEN COMMENT

ROLL CALL
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SPEICAL EXCEPTION G.5.
FOX GLEN
CORPORATE CENTRE,
LLC

RES. 2024-8210 G.6.
AMEND
REFORESTATION
AND WESTLAND
RESTORATION

Grant New 2024-2025 Operator License to: Ashley Christen, Pedro
Mata Jr., Oscar Cobian, Ava Pesch, & Chrisstine Reich;
Grant 2024-2025 Class A Combination License Change of Agent to
DBA CVS Pharmacy #5390, Wisconsin CVS Pharmacy LLC, Mattie
Washington-Agent, 5220 W. Rawson Ave.;
Grant Temporary Class "B" Beer & Wine License to Franklin Public
Library Foundation-Milwaukee on Tap: a fundraiser with John Gurda,
Jennifer Loeffel, Franklin Public Library-9151 W. Loomis Rd.,
10/3/24;
Grant Extraordinary Entertainment & Special Event to: Zombie 5K/l
Mile Fun Run/Walk, Rachel Simon, Start & End at Dog Haus
Biergarten in Ballpark Commons & through Oak Leaf Trail, 10/12/24;
Buffalo Bill's Pumpkin Farm, Jennifer Hinkel, 9612 W. Oakwood Rd.,
Franklin WI, Friday, Saturday, & Sunday's 9/27-10/27/24; and
Buffalo Bill's Haunted Trail, Jennifer Hinkel, 9612 W. Oakwood Rd.,
Franklin WI, Friday & Saturday's-10/4/24-10/26/24, at 55 Decibel.

Seconded by Alderman Craig. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion
carried.

Alderwoman Day moved to approve the Snowglobe Holiday Festival
event with a set up date of October 21, 2024 through November 21,
2024 running on select dates from November 22, 2024 thru January 5,
2025 with take down occurring by January 20, 2025 with the
amendment that the applicant can operate more than four consecutive
days, if weather or ticket sales warrant that activity and a decibel limit
of 65. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. On roll call, Alderman
Peccarelli, Alderwoman Eichmann, Alderman Hasan, Alderwoman
Day and Alderman Barber voted Aye, Alderman Craig voted no.
Motion carried (5-1-0).

Mayor Nelson called a recess at 9: 19 p.m.
Mayor Nelson reconvened at 9:27 p.m.

Applicant requested to table to a later date.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adopt Resolution No. 2024-8210, A
RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE 2024 REFORESTATION AND
WETLAND RESTORATION AGREEMENT WITH MILWAUKEE
METROPOLITAN SEWAGE DISTRICT FOR MUNICIPAL TREE
PLANTING TO EXTEND THROUGH 2025 AND ALLOCATE
ADDITIONAL FUNDING OF $30,000.00 TO BE REIMBURSED AT
THE COMPLETION OF THE AGREEMENT. Seconded by
Alderman Craig. All voted Aye; motion carried.
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M3 CONSULTING
LLC, VOLITION
FRANKLIN
CONTRACT

PUBLIC HEALTH
CONSOLIDATED
CONTRACT

MAYOR'S 2025
RECOMMENDED
BUDGET

RES. 2024-8211
PROPERTY TAX
REFUND 7832 W.
DREXEL AVE.

Res. 2024-8212
EQUIPMENT LEASE
AND PURCHASE
AGREEMENT BANC
OF AMERICA

G.7. Alderman Barber moved to allow the Director of Health and Human
Services to execute the M3 Consulting, LLC, Volition Franklin
Contract. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

G.8. Alderman Craig moved to approve the Director of Health and Human
Services to accept the updated 2024 Division of Public Health
Consolidated Contract. Seconded by Alderwoman Day. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

G.9. Alderwoman Eichmann moved to forward the Mayor's 2025
Recommended Budget to the Finance Committee for review and to
submit its recommended changes to the Common Council at the special
meeting on October 15, 2024. Additionally, provide any necessary
direction to staff regarding additional materials or information for the
October 15, 2024, Common Council Meeting budget discussions.
Seconded by Alderman Craig. On roll call, all vote Aye. Motion
carried.

Alderman Barber vacated his seat at 9:50 p.m.
Alderman Barber returned to his seat at 9:53 p.m.

G.10. Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2024-8211, A
RESOLUTION APPROVING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX
RESCISSION AND REFUND FOR TKN 792-9995-001, and direct
staff to file the chargeback request with the Department of Revenue to
seek compensation from the other taxing authorities. Seconded by
Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

G.11. Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2024-8212, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
EXECUTE AN EQUIPMENT LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT
WITH BANC OF AMERICA PUBLIC CAPITAL CORP AND AN
ESCROW AND ACCOUNT CONTROL AGREEMENT WITH
BANC OF AMERICA PUBLIC CAPITAL CORP AND BOKF, NA,
IN FURTHERANCE OF THE MASTER ENERGY SERVICES
AGREEMENT AND THE PERFORMANCE CONTRACT
PREVIOUSLY ENTERED INTO WITH JOHNSON CONTROLS,
INC., TO IMPLEMENT ENERGY EFFICIENCY, SAFETY,
SECURITY AND RENEWABLE ENERGY MEASURES AT
VARIOUS CITY BUILDINGS AND INFRASTRUCTURE.
Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.
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OFF PREMISES
CONSUMPTION BY
CLASS B LICENSE
HOLDERS

SERVER AND
INFRASTRUCTURE
ENGINEER

TEMPORARY
ASSIGNMENT PAY
FOR IT DIRECTOR

G .12. Alderwoman Eichmann moved to table to the October 1, 2024 Common
Council meeting. Seconded by Alderman Peccarelli. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

G.13. Alderman Barber moved to approve the promotion of Ryan Boos from
Desktop & User Support Administrator (Level 3) to Server and
Infrastructure Engineer (Level 8) and revised job description, effective
immediately, with the associated salary adjustment, and to grant the
necessary exceptions to City policy to facilitate this promotion subject
to technical changes by the Director of Information Technology,
Director ofAdministration, and Human Resources Manager. Seconded
by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

G.14. Alderwoman Eichmann moved to go into closed session, seconded by
Alderman Craig. On roll call Alderman Craig and Alderwoman
Eichmann voted Aye; Alderman Barber, Alderwoman Day, Alderman
Hasan and Alderman Peccarelli vote No; motion failed.

Alderman Barber moved to approve a Temporary Assignment Pay
adjustment for Information Technology Director James Matelski due to
his extraordinary commitment to the City. (Option C) a lump sum
payment of $27,567.20 for three months of additional hours, calculated
at 176 hours/month x 3 months x $52.2106/hour and to have the
Information Technology Director's pay be reviewed in the 2025 budget.
Seconded by Alderman Hasan. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion
carried.

VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

ADJOURNMENT

I.

J.

Alderman Barber moved to approve City vouchers with an ending date
of September 12, 2024, in the amount of $2,568,042.67, and payroll
dated September 6, 2024 in the amount of $463,307.41 and payments
of the various payroll deductions in the amount of $250,702.18 plus
City matching payments, and estimated payroll dated September 20,
2024 in the amount of $492,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $519,000, plus City matching payments.
Seconded by Alderman Craig. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion
carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adjourn the meeting of the Common
Council at 10:50 p.m. Seconded by Alderman Peccarelli. All voted
Aye; motion carried.



APPROVAL

ORGANIZATIONAL
BUSINESS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Mayoral Appointment

. MEETING
DATE
10-01-24

ITEM NUMBER

E.
The Mayor has made the following appointments for Council confirmation:

Amanda Pound, 8255 W. Forest Hill Ave., Franklin Public Schools, Director of Teaching and Learning
- Library Board (3 year unexpired term expiring 06/30/26).

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to confirm the following Mayoral appointments:

Amanda Pound, 8255 W. Forest Hill Ave., Franklin Public Schools, Director of Teaching and Learning
- Library Board (3 year unexpired term expiring 06/30/26).

ROLL CALL VOTE

CLERKDEPT



Maggie Poplar

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Follow Up Flag:
Flag Status:

volunteerfactsheet@franklinwi.info
Sunday, September 15, 2024 9.51 AM
Lisa Huenmng; Shurley Roberts; Maggie Poplar
Volunteer Fact Sheet

Follow up
Flagged

Name:
PhoneNumber:
EmailAddress:
YearsasResident:

Alderman:

ArchitecturalBoard:

CivicCelebrations:
CommunityDevelopmentAuthority:
EconomicDevelopmentCommission:
EnvironmentalCommission:
FinanceCommittee:
FairCommission:
BoardofHealth:
FirePoliceCommission:
ParksCommission:
LibraryBoard:
PlanCommission:
PersonnelCommittee:
BoardofReview:

BoardofPublicWorks:
QuarryMonitoringCommittee:
TechnologyCommission:
TourismCommission:
BoardofZoning:

WasteFacilitiesMonitoringCommittee:

Amanda Pound

amanda.pound@franklin.k12.wi.us
0

on

BoardWaterCommissioners:
CompanyNameJob1:
CompanyAddress.Job1:
TelephoneJob1:
StartDateandPositionJob1:
EndDateandPositionJob1:
CompanyNameJob2:
AddressJob2:

Franklin Public School District
8255West Forest Hill Avenue
414-525-7631
July 1- Director of Teaching and Learning

1



TelephoneJob2:
StartDateandPositionJob2:
EndDateandPositionJob2:
CompanyNameJob3:
AddressJob3:
TelephoneJob3:
StartDateandPositionJob3:
EndDateandPositionJob3:
Signature:
Date:
Signature2:
Date2:
SourceDoclD:
SourceNavName:
Address:
Prioritylisting:

Whyl nterested:

DescriptionofDutiesJobl:

DescriptionofDutiesJob2:

DescriptionofDutiesJob3:

Additional Experience:

See Current Results

Amanda Pound
September 15, 2024
Amanda Pound
September 15, 2024
9278
Volunteer Fact Sheet
125 Ellenbecker Rd. Thiensville, WI 53092

I am the new director of teaching and learning for the Franklin Public School
District. I am would like to become the designated school representative for
the school district replacing Annalee Bennin. Thank you for this opportunity!

Prior to coming to Franklin, I was the director of curriculum and instruction for
the School District of Sheboygan Falls. I have been in education as a teacher,
principal and director for 27 years.

2
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APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Authorization for Municipal Judge to Execute a
Contract with Language Line Services, Inc.

MEETING
DATE

0-1-34
ITEM NUMBER

B. I.

Background:
Municipal Courts are required to provide interpreters to defendants in accordance with
Wisconsin State Statute 885.37. The municipal judge "shall make a factual
determination" as to whether an interpreter is necessary. The statute also determines
whether the cost of the interpreter is the responsibility of the defendant or the
municipality.

Analysis:
Language Line Services, Inc. provides on-demand translation services via phone for
court proceedings. Language Line Services, Inc. is currently used in multiple local
municipal courts - including Greenfield, Shorewood, Hales Corners, Muskego,
Glendale, Brookfield, Wauwatosa and West Milwaukee.

The municipal court would utilize Language Line Services, Inc. as required by and in
accordance with the Wisconsin State Statutes.

Options:
Accept or reject the Statement of Work & Master Service Agreement with Language
Line Services, Inc.

Fiscal Note:
If the municipality is required to pay the translation expense, the municipality would
be billed at a rate of $0.72 per minute. The municipal court anticipates that the overall
cost will not have an impact on the current City budget.

Council Action Requested:
Authorize the municipal judge to sign the Statement of Work & Master Service
Agreement with Language Line Services Inc.

Municipal Court: Judge Georgia L. Konstantakis



Language Line
Services, Inc. Statement of Work

Languageline® Phone8M and lnSight Video Interpreting®

Client Name ("Customer"): Franklin Munlclpal Court - OPI Client # (if applicable):

This Statement of Work is subject to the Master Service Agreement between Customer and Language Line
Services, Inc. ("LanguageLine"). This document is the sole document that reflects pricing for these services
and must be signed by an authorized representative from the Customer. Pricing is only approved upon a
signature by an authorized officer of LanguageLine. Pricing changes, if any, will be reflected on next
month's invoice.

1. LANGUAGELINE PHONE INTERPRETING

1.1. SCOPE OF WORK
(a) DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES. LanguageLine will provide qualified and trained interpreters

for Phone Interpreting to facilitate effective communication between Customer's service
providers and Limited English Proficient (LEP) individuals by converting spoken language
statements between English and another language.

(b) SERVICE DELIVERY. Services are delivered on-demand via telephone, as initiated by
Customer's service providers and invoiced monthly following service delivery. Services are
available twenty-four (24) hours a day; seven (7) days a week; 365 days a year, including
holidays, in over 240 spoken languages.

1.2. PHONE INTERPRETING FEES
(a) INITIAL ENROLLMENT including Client Identification ("CID") service accounts Waived
(b) ADDITIONAL SERVICE ACCOUNTS after initial enrollment, per CID Waived
(c) MONTHLY MINIMUM per CID Waived
(d) PLATFORM ACCESS FEE per call Waived
(e) THIRD PARTY DIAL OUT FEE per call Waived
(f) TELECOMMUNICATION SURCHARGE in accordance with the Telecommunications Act of

1996..... .. . . . .. . .. Waived
(g) OPTIONAL INTERPRETER APPOINTMENT AT SPECIFIC TIME. See 1.2(h) for Per

Minute Usage Fees. No additional fees apply to schedule an interpreter appointment.
Cancellation fee for any cancelled or missed appointment..... . ... ... ... .. . .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. Waived

(h) PER MINUTE USAGE FEES for LanguageLine Phone and lnSight Audio Interpreting
. # . .,,

Language Languages PerMinute ChargeTiers
, _¢,

1 Spanish $0.72

2 Chinese (Mandarin and Cantonese), French, Japanese, Korean, $0.72Russian, and Vietnamese

3 Armenian, German, Haitian Creole, Italian, Cambodian (Khmer), $0.72Polish, and Portuguese

4 Farsi, Tagalog, Thai, Urdu, and all other languages $0.72

1.3. PHONE INTERPRETING EQUIPMENT
(a) OPTIONS AND DEFINITIONS. Equipment purchase and lease options are available for the

equipment identified below for use with the Phone Interpreting services. All Equipment
requests must be submitted i writing over the term of this Agreement and the appropriate
fees will apply.

(b) PHONE INTERPRETING EQUIPMENT LEASE FEES. A monthly lease fee per unit applies,
and the Equipment remains the property of LanguageLine. The monthly fee covers the cost
of equipment programming and providing any necessary replacements and maintenance.
1Solution"M Analog Dual Handset Phone $4.50
1Solution Dual Handset IP Phone....................................... . $12.50

02023 LanguageLine Services, Inc. • 1 Lower Ragsdale Drive, Bldg. 2 •Monterey, CA93940 •yy. Laquage.lgI• CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION· REV 3,1.23- 1



Language Line
Services, inc. Statement of Work

LanguageL.ine@ Phone"and Insight Video Interpreting

Panasonic® Cordless Phone with Dual Handsets $10.50
(c) PHONE INTERPRETING LEASED EQUIPMENT ADDITIONAL TERMS. Upon the

termination of the Agreement, Customer shall, at its cost, return the Equipment to Language
Line Services within thirty (30) days following the termination date. Customer acknowledges
that ownership of the Equipment remains with Language Line Services, and that the
Equipment must be returned upon the termination of the Agreement. If Customer fails to
return the Equipment to Language Line Services within the 30-day period, Language Line
Services may Invoice Customer $175.00 per each equipment item not returned and
Customer agrees to pay that Invoice within thirty (30) days of the invoice date.

(d) PHONE INTERPRETINGEQUIPMENT PURCHASES. The following Equipment is available
for purchase from Languageline during the life of the agreement. Upon depletion of current
Equipment models and release of new Equipment models, updated pricing will automatically
apply Purchased equipment is covered by a one-year replacement warranty from the
manufacturer. Standard rates at the time of purchase will apply. If applicable, proof of sales
tax exemption must be provided to TaxDepartment@languageline.com and
Activations@languageline.com. Details will be available from yourAccount Executive.
1Solution Analog Dual Handset Phone $60.00
1Solution Dual Handset IP Phone $150.00
Panasonic Cordless Phone with Dual Handsets $85.00
Panasonic Headset $25.00
Handsets $10.00
Handset Splitters (price per unit) $6.00
Wall Splitters (price per unit) .. . . $6.00

2. LANGUAGELINE INSIGHT VIDEO INTERPRETING
2.1. SCOPE OF WORK

(a) DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES. Languagel.ine will provide qualified and trained interpreters
for lnSight Video Interpreting to facilitate effective communication between Customer's
service providers and Limited English Proficient (LEP) individuals by converting spoken or
signed language statements between English and another language. Equipment purchases
are optional.

(b) SERVICE DELIVERY. Services are delivered on-demand via a native iOS or Android
Application (the "App") or a Mac/PC using a Chrome, Edge, or Firefox browser. Each call
has full end-to-end encryption ensuring privacy. Services are available 24/7 for ASL,
Spanish, Mandarin, Arabic, Polish, Cantonese, French, Korean, Portuguese, Vietnamese
and Russian, and during business or extended business hours for 30 or more additional
languages of lesser diffusion.

2.2. INSIGHT VIDEO INTERPRETING FEES
(a) ACTIVATION Waived

Monthly Service Fee applied per Client Identification ("CID") service account based on the
total number of activated devices:
Up to 10 Activated Devices ........ ......... ............. ........................ .........$30.00/month
Up to 100Activated Devices $75.00/month
101+ Activated Devices $200.00/month
OR□ One-time Activation Fee applied per Customer for unlimited activated devices .
......................... .. .......•....... . .$2,500.00/one-time fee

(b) PER MINUTE USAGE FEES for Languageline InSight Video Interpreting

1

2

Sign Language

Spanish

Languages PerMinute Charge

$2.50

$1.85

2023 Language Line Serv lces, Inc. • 1 Lower Ragsdale Drive , Bldg. 2 • Monterey CA 93940 •www.Lapuag@lineom • CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION· REV3.1.23. 2



Language Line
Services, Inc. Statement of Work

LanguageLine@ Phoneand Insight Video Interpreting

Language
Tiers
3

•
Other Spoken Languages $1.95

2.3. INSIGHT VIDEO INTERPRETING EQUIPMENT
(a) OPTIONS AND DEFINITIONS. Equipment purchase ("Customer-Owned") and lease

("Languageline-Owned") options are available for the equipment identified below for use
with lnSight Services (collectively, the "Equipment"). Al Equipment requests must be
submitted in writing over the term of this Agreement and the appropriate fees will apply.
Languageline-Owned: Leased by the Customer from LanguageLine.
Customer-Supplied: Purchased by the Customer from a supplier other than Languageline.
Customer-Owned: Purchased by the Customer from Languageline.

(b) INSIGHT EQUIPMENT LEASE FEES. A monthly lease fee per unit applies, and the
Equipment remains the property of Languageline ("LanguageL.ine-Owned").
iPad and Languageline Rolling Cart $75.00/month
iPad and Table Top Stand $45.00/month

(c) INSIGHT EQUIPMENT PURCHASES. The following Equipment is available for purchase
from Languageline during the life of the agreement ("Customer-Owned"). Upon depletion
of current Equipment models and release of new Equipment models, updated pricing will
automatically apply. Purchased Equipment is covered by the following replacement
warranties from the manufacturers: (i} iPads: 1-year; (ii) Languageline Rolling Cart' 3 years
standard warranty, plus an additional 1 year on all mechanical items except wheels; and (ii)
Table Top Stands: 1-year. Standard rates at the time of purchase will apply. If applicable,
proof of sales tax exemption must be provided to TaxDepartment@languageline.com and
Activations@languageline.com. Details will be available from your Account Executive.
32GB 8th Generation iPad (10.2-inch, Wi-Fi Only) with Screen Protector (iPad Model:

MHNG3LLIA or MYLA2VC/A) $425.00
128GB iPad Pro (12.9-inch, Wi-Fi Only) with Screen Protector (iPad Model: MY2J2LL/A)

......................................................... .. . $1,250.00
10.2-inch Screen Protector (Model: SP-AGF-APL-ID2019-2 or AWV102GL)..........$15.00
12 9-inch Screen Protector (Model: AWV330GL) .. $40.00
LanguageLine Rolling Cart with 10.2-mnch Languageline TrueSound(Model: 478-00197)

................................................................................................................... $1,195.00
Table Top Stand with Enclosure (Models: 303W75-LL/185-01065, 303W299PSENW-LL or

303W290SENW-LL)....... .. . $275.00
Table Top Stand without Enclosure (Models: 303W-LL or 303W75-LL). ......... ........$145.00
Languageline TrueSound Enclosure for 10.2-inch iPad (Models: 185-00999 or 185­

01064) $195.00
12 9-inch Non-TrueSound iPad Enclosure (Models: 290SENW-LL or 299PSENW-LL)

.......................................................................................................................... $130.00
2.4. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR INSIGHT VIDEO INTERPRETING

(a) TERMS REGARDING SOFTWARE APPLICATION. The lnSight video interpretation
Services (the "Services") are provided by Languageline through a proprietary desktop and/or
tablet Application owned by Languageline (the App"). The App must be downloaded by
Customer to Customer-Supplied or Customer-Owned devices to use the Services (see
Subsection (g) below for additional terms). The App Is pre-installed and configured on
Languageline-provded leased Equipment (see Subsection (h} below for additional terms).
Customer agrees (a) that it will not make any copies of the App or attempt to reverse engineer
rt or make any changes to it; (b) that it will only download the App onto any iPad, tablet, or
other digital computer device that is (i) Customer-Owned, (ii) Languageline-Owned, or (iii)
purchased by Customer from an authorized seller of such devices, excluding other language
services providers Further, Customer wll not use any iPad, tablet, or other digital computer
device on which the lnSight App is installed with any equipment provided by other language
service providers; and (c) that the following uses of the Services are prohibited: the

02023 Language Line Services, Inc. • 1 LowerRagsdale Drive, Bldg. 2 • Monterey, CA 93940 •, aqua8l.igI• CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION· REV 3,1.23- 3



Language Line
Services, inc. Statement of Work

LanguageLine@ Phone"and InSight Video Interpreting@

transmission of any message or other material which constitutes an infringement of any third
party copyright or trademark; an unauthorized disclosure of a trade secret; the transfer of
information or technology abroad in violation of any applicable export law or regulation; a
violation of Section 223 of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. Section
223, or other criminal prohibitions regarding the useof telephonic orvideodevices to transmit
obscene, threatening, harassing or other messages specified therein; a libelous or
slanderous statement; or a violation of any other applicable statute or government regulation.

(b) INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY. Customer acknowledges and agrees that all rights including
copyright throughout the world in the App, in the Languageline TrueSound, Notepad™,
lnSight, and Interpreter on Wheels trademarks (collectively, the "Trademarks"), and in the
issued patents and pending patents relating to the Equipment, are exclusively owned by
Languageline, and that neither this Agreement, nor Customer's use of theServices, the App
or the Equipment grants to Customer any right, title, or interest in or to the Services, the
Equipment, the App, the Trademarks, or any of the other technology, systems, processes or
other aspect of the Services, including but not limited to any intellectual property rights
therein (collectively, the "LanguageLine Properties"). Customer expressly agrees that it shall
not assert any rights in any of the Languageline Properties, or challenge Languageline's
rights in or the validity of any of the languageline Properties in any country, nation, or
jurisdiction in theworld, and Customeragrees that it shall not directly or through others copy,
decompile, reverse engineer, disassemble, modify, or create derivative works of the App, or
any aspect thereof. Customer agrees that this Paragraph shall survive the expiration of this
Agreement and will continue to apply after the Agreement ends.

(c) ENCRYPTION. Encryption is built into the App and the Services platform, ensuring the
security of the live video as it traverses the Internet This encryption allows Languageline to
fulfill its obligation under any Customer Business AssociateAgreement ("BAA") with respect
to the Services. Languageline does not record any phone or video calls and therefore has
no record of the call content. With respect to theApp's electronic Notepad™ function, written
information relayed during the call is encrypted. As with the live video, no recording or storing
is made of information written on the Notepad™ and therefore this information cannot be
retrieved after the call's completion.

(d) RESPONSIBILITY FOR UNAUTHORIZED USE. Customer wll safeguard its use of the
Services against use by unauthorized persons and will be responsible for charges resulting
from use of its Services, whether or not such use is authorized.

(e) AVAILABILITY OF SERVICES. The Services may not be available at all times due to
interruptions, technical problems, and/or system upgrades and maintenance. All interpreters
provided in conjunction with the Services may not be available at all times and interpreters
will be assigned solely by Languageline.

(f) QUALITY CONTROL. Customer acknowledges that Languageline from time to time will
monitor calls made through the Service for purposes of quality control.

(g) PURCHASED EQUIPMENT ADDITIONAL TERMS (applies to the Insight App wth
Customer-Owned Equipment option only): Customeragrees that (a) theTrueSound patented
technology and related audio equipment will not be used with any non-Languageline
equipment/devices, and (b) the Equipment purchased from Languageline will not be used
with or for any non-LanguageLine language interpretation services (including software and
Apps).

(h) LEASED EQUIPMENT ADDITIONAL TERMS: Under this option, Languageline will lease
Equipment mutually agreed upon by Languageline and Customer for the duration of this
Agreement for a monthly fee. The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Equipment
remains the sole property of LanguageLine and will be returned to LanguageLine,
undamaged, upon termination of this Agreement, unless superseded by a purchasing
agreement. The Parties agree that the Equipment will be used for the sole and exclusive
purpose of the Services and may not be configured, fixed and/or altered for any other
purpose without express prior written consent from Languageline. Customer may not use
any leased Equipment or the lnSight App with any equipment, app, software or language
services provided (through purchase, lease or otherwise) by a language services provider
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other than LanguageLine. LanguageLine will enroll LanguageLine-Owned iPads in
Languageline's MOM (Mobile Device Management) system. As a condition of the lease on
Languagel.ine-Owned Equipment, location services must be enabled "on" at all times, with
"Always Allow Location Access" selected within the Hub application. Customer agrees that
Equipment will be kept only at the Customer locations listed in this Agreement, or as
otherwise mutually agreed by Languageline and Customer in writing. From time to time,
upon twenty-four (24) hours' notice to Customer, Languageline, during a Customer's regular
business hours, may enter the Customer's premises where the Equipment is located to
inspect and maintain Equipment Customer hereby agrees to such inspection by
Languagellne and agrees to provide such support and cooperation as is requested by
Languagellne. Customer assumes and bears all risk of loss and/or damage of Equipment,
other than normal wear and tear, from the time that Equipment is delivered until returned to
Languageline following the expiration of this Agreement. Customer will be charged and
agrees to pay for any lost, stolen, or damaged Equipment. languageline reserves all rights
and remedies to re-take possession of the Equipment If Customer fails to pay any undisputed
invoiced amounts owed hereunder.

(i) LIMITED WARRANTIES FOR EQUIPMENT. Languagellne warrants that Equipment shall
be free from defects in materials and workmanship, except that all warranties are waived if
(i) the Equipment has been altered or modified or theApp, Equipment or components thereof
are used other than as authorized under this Agreement, or (ii) the Equipment has been used
by a person or entity other than the Customer or other permitted users. LANGUAGELINE
DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, INCLUDING ALL IMPLIED AND
EXPRESSWARRANTIES OF EVERY KIND AND NATURE. Customer agrees that the sole
and exclusive remedy for breach of warranty, damages or loss relating to Equipment is
limited to the repair or replacement of the Equipment. Customer waives any and all legal
claims for damages in connection with the Equipment.

3. OTHER FEES
3.1. FINANCE FEE. Finance fee is applied to any past due balance. Interest will accrue from the date

on which payment is dueat a rateequal to the lesserof 1 5% per month or the maximum permitted
by applicable law.

3.2. OPTIONAL PAPER INVOICE. Electronic invoices are provided at no charge. Paper invoice fee Is
applied if a paper invoice is required by the Customer....... . Waived

3.3. OPTIONAL CUSTOMIZATIONS
(a) Report configuration per hour
(b) Report maintenance per month
(c) Training assistance on site per day per training
(d) Training materials development per hour
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The person signing this SOW on behalf of Customer certifies that such person has read, acknowledges,
and understands all of the terms and conditions, and Is fully authorized to execute this SOW on behalf of
and bind the Customer to all its terms and conditions. Both Parties agree the delivery of the signed SOW
by facsimile or e-mail or use of a facsimile signature or electronic signature or other similar electronic
reproduction of a signature shall have the same force and effect of execution and delivery as the original
signature, and In the absence of an original signature, shall constitute the original signature.

Customer Languageline

Date: Date:

Signature: Signature:

Name: Name: Bonaventura A Cavaliere

Title: Title: CFO
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Customer Name ("Customer"): Franklin Municipal Court Client # (if applicable}

Language Line Services, Inc. ("LanguageLine") and Customer (together, the "Parties" and each a "Party")
agree that the terms and conditions below apply to the Services selected by Customer under this
Agreement.

TERMS OF SERVICE
1. TERM OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement is the Master Services Agreement for all the services

currently offered by Languageline as individually identified below (the "Services") This Master
Services Agreement will apply to Services requested now or in the future by Customer. For each
Service requested now or in the future by Customer, the fees and additional terms and conditions for
the Service are set out in the applicable Statement ofWork for the Service, which, when fully executed,
is made a part of this Agreement. If Customer continues to request and receive Services after this
Agreement has expired or has been terminated for any reason, this Agreement and the applicable
Statement(s) of Work will continue In full force and effect until terminated as provided in Section 12 of
this Agreement.

Available Languageline Services:
On-demand interpretation LanguageLine InSight Video Interpreting
240+ languages 24/7/365, in seconds LanguageLine Phones interpreting
Via phone, video and mobile LanguageLine Mobiles

Languageline Direct Response
Click for On Demand lnteroretina Services Telehealth and Virtual Meetings
Face-to-face interpretation Onsite Interpreting130+ languages via onsite or video Virtual Onsite Interpreting
Click for Onsite lnteroretina Services
Translation and Localization
380+ languages Translation
Via human, machine translation, automation and Localization
other technologies Transcription

Clarity®
Click for Translation Services
Testing and Training Testing57 languages Training
Click for Testina & Trainina
Please note that by signing this Agreement, Customer is not agreeing to receive all of the above
Service(s), but is only agreeing to receive the specific Service(s) that have been requested from its
Languageline account executive and made a part of this Agreement in an applicable Statement of
Work.

2. PAYMENT TERMS. Customer agrees to pay all undisputed invoiced charges for Services in full within
thirty (30) days of the invoice date Payment can be made by check, ACH, wire, debit card or credit
card. Any fees charged by a credit card provider for use of the card will be paid for by Customer. Any
disputed charges in an invoice must be identified to Languageline within thirty (30) days of the invoice
issue date or the right to dispute will be waived by Customer. Amounts subject to dispute once resolved
will be (i) credited to Customer on the next invoice (if resolved in favor of Customer) or added to the
next invoice (if resolved in favor of Languageline) or (ii) as otherwise mutually agreed upon. Invoices
will be sent to the most current address or e-mail provided by Customer to Languageline, which may
be updated by Customer upon written request to CustomerCare@languageline.com.

3. USE OF SERVICES. Customer warrants that it will not (i) resell the Services to any third Parties,
however, Customer may charge its own customers, clients or patients for the Services; or (ii) use the
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Services in any manner that may violate any applicable law, rule or regulation. Customer and each
affiliate will be assigned a Client Identification Number ("CID") for use in ordering Services. Customer
shall be solely and fully responsible for charges resulting from the use of these CIDs, whether or not
such use is authorized by Customer.

4. CONFIDENTIALITY AND PRIVACY. The Parties agree that during the term of this Agreement and
thereafter, neither Party will disclose any of the other's Confidential Information to any third Party and
each Party will use the other's Confidential Information only for purposes specifically contemplated by
this Agreement. These obligations do not apply to information that is expressly identified by a Party as
not being confidential or that Is in the public domain. If either Party has been requested to disclose or
is required by discovery request in a litigation, subpoena, civil investigative demand or similar process
to disclose any such Information then that Party so compelled may disclose such information without
liability aftergiving reasonable notice to theotherParty promptly to assertwhateverobjections the other
Party desires to prevent such disclosure within such deadlines as are required by the governing
statutes, rules or regulations. For purpose of this Agreement, the term "Confidentlal Information"
includes (a) information (including data) Identified by a Party as being Confidential Information, (b)
personally identifiable personal, financial, health or other personal information protected under a law or
regulation, including without limitation HIPAA, Gramm-Leach-Bliley, US federal and state privacy laws,
the General Data Protection Regulation (EU) 2016/679 (the "GDPR"), and the UK Data Protection Act,
(c) the terms and conditions of this Agreement, (d) LanguageLine pricing for its Services, and (e) all of
the information provided in any invoices or other non-public documents or in oral communications
between the Parties relating to the Services. Languagelinewill not record or monitor any interpretation
calls except that some calls may be monitored for training and quality assurance purposes.

5. LANGUAGELINE PERSONNEL. Customer understands and acknowledges that in providing the
Services, Languageline's linguist workforce consists of its own employees, individual independent
contractor linguists and linguists provided through trusted professional linguist staffing agencies
(collectively, "Languageline Personnel"). All LanguageLine Personnel are subject to LanguageLine's
stringent quality control standards, confidentiality and privacy obligations and certification criteria, and
LanguageLine is solely responsible for ensuring that the terms and conditions of this Agreement are
met by Languageline Personnel. Customerhereby consents to the use of all Languageline Personnel
by LanguageLine.

6. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES. The Parties are independent contractors, and nothing in this
Agreement will be deemed to place the Parties in the relationship of employer-employee, principal­
agent, partners or joint venturers. Each Party will be responsible for paying its own payroll taxes,
disability insurance payments, unemployment taxes, employee benefits (if applicable) and other similar
taxes, benefits or charges.

7. LIMITED WARRANTIES AND LIABILITY. (a) LANGUAGELINE WILL PERFORM ALL OF THE
SERVICES IN A PROFESSIONAL MANNER CONSISTENT WITH INDUSTRY STANDARDS.
LANGUAGELINE MAKES NO OTHER REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY OR GUARANTEE,
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, OF ANY KIND, AND LANGUAGELINE SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY
WARRANTY OR CONDITION OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT INTERPRETATIONS, TRANSLATIONS, AND
LOCALIZATIONS MAY NOT BE ENTIRELY ACCURATE IN ALL CASES AND THAT EVENTS
OUTSIDE OF THE CONTROL OF LANGUAGE LINE MAY RESULT IN UNCOMPLETED OR
INTERRUPTED SERVICE. (b) EXCEPT FOR THE PARTIES' OBLIGATIONS UNDER SECTIONS 4
(CONFIDENTIALITY), 8 (INDEMNIFICATION) ANDCUSTOMER'SOBLIGATIONS UNDER SECTION
2 (PAYMENT TERMS), AND TO THE EXTENT NOT PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW, EACH
PARTY'S AGGREGATE LIABILITY TO THE OTHER FOR CLAIMS RELATING TO THIS
AGREEMENT, WHETHER FOR BREACH OR IN TORT AND INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO
NEGLIGENCE, SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE GREATER OF THE AMOUNT INVOICED TO
CUSTOMER BY LANGUAGELINEWITHIN THE PREVIOUS 12 MONTHS, AND (c) EXCEPT AS IS
PROHIBITED BY LAW AND SUBJECT TO A PARTY'S OBLIGATIONS UNDER SECTION 8
(INDEMNIFICATION), NEITHER PARTY WILL BE LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, PUNITIVE,
SPECIAL, INCIDENTALOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGE IN CONNECTIONWITH OR ARISINGOUT
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OF THIS AGREEMENT (INCLUDING LOSS OF BUSINESS, REVENUE, PROFITS, USE, DATA OR
OTHER ECONOMIC ADVANTAGE), HOWEVER ITARISES, WHETHER FOR BREACH OR IN TORT,
EVEN IF THAT PARTY HAS BEEN PREVIOUSLY ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH
DAMAGE.

8. INDEMNIFICATION. The Parties each agree to hold harmless and indemnify the other Party and their
respective officers, directors, employees, affiliates and agents from and against any claims, causes of
action, damages, costs, fees, expenses, settlement or any other form of damage or expense relating
to (a) a third Party clamm for an intellectual property violation or a breach of Section 4 of this Agreement
("Confidentiality"), (b) a claim by an employee, vendor or agent of one Party asserted against the other
Party, or (c) the grossly negligent, fraudulent, or intentionally wrongful act of any kind by an employee
or agent of one Party resulting in damages to the other Party. Languageline will not be liable for
intellectual property infringement arising merely from Languageline's interpretation or translation of
Customer communications or documents, respectively. Languageline maintains extensive global
insurance coverage for all its Services and all of its personnel. A copy of the Certificate of Insurance
will be supplied to Customer upon request.

9. PUBLICITY. Customer agrees that LanguageLine may use Customer's name and/or corporate logo on
Languageline's website and marketing materials and upon Languageline's reasonable request will
provide a testimonial regarding Languageline's Services for use in Languageline's marketing of its
Services.

10. ASSIGNMENT. Neither Party may assign this Agreement without the priorwritten consent of the other
Party, except that Languageline may assign its right to payment to an affiliated company and, either
Party may assign this Agreement to a successor company without consent, provided that the successor
company ratifies and assumes this Agreement in its entirety and provides notice of the assignment to
the other Party, provided, however, that Customer may not assign this Agreement to any other
language services company or portfolio company that owns a 5% or more interest in a language
services company.

11. ACQUISITION OR MERGER OF CUSTOMER. If Customer is (a) acquired by or merged into or with
an existing Languageline customer, or (b) acquires an existing Languageline customer, the terms and
conditions of this Agreement and that of the other LanguageLine customer, including pricing as set out
In the applicable Statements of Work, shall remamn unaffected unless the Parties otherwise agree in a
signed, written amendment to this Agreement.

12. TERMINATION. Either Party may terminate this Agreement (a) on one hundred twenty (120) days'
notice for any reason, or (b)(i) on thirty (30) days' written notice of breach if the other Party has not
cured the breach in thirty (30) days from receipt of the notice of breach, or (ii) if the breach cannot be
cured in thirty (30) days, on the date agreed to by the Parties for cure to be completed. Upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason, Customer shall pay the final invoice from Languageline within thirty
(30) days of its receipt of the final invoice (the "30-day period"). Any disputed charges must be identified
by Customerwithin the 30-day period and the Parties shall use good faith efforts to resolve any disputed
charges within the 30-day period and any adjustment paid or credited will be made within thirty (30)
days after the dispute has been resolved.

13. ADDITIONAL TERMS.
(a) WAIVER OR DELAY. Any express waiver or failure to exercise promptly any right under this Agreement
will not create a continuing waiver or any expectation of non-enforcement.

(b) SURVIVAL OF OBLIGATIONS. The obligations of the Party under this Agreement which by their
nature should continue beyond the termination or expiration of this Agreement will remain in effect after
termination or expiration.

(c) NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES. Neither this Agreement nor the provision of Services shall be
construed to create any duty or obligation on the part of Languageline to any third parties, including,
without limitation, any persons participating in or the subject of communications for which Services are
provided, and except as provided by law, does not provide any third party with any right, privilege,
remedy, claim or cause of action against Languageline, its affiliates or their respective successors

(d) CHOICE OF LAW. Any action arising out of this Agreement, as well as the validity, construction and
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interpretation of this Agreement, will be govemed by California law relating to contracts made in the
State of California and controlling U.S. federal law. No choice of law rules of any jurisdiction will apply.

(e) BINDING EFFECT. This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties hereto, their successors, or
assigns, and upon any and all others acting by or through them, or in privity with them, or under their
direction.

() CONSTRUCTION. This Agreement is deemed to have been drafted jointly by the Parties. Any
uncertainty or ambiguity shall not be construed against either Party based on the attribution of drafting
by either Party.

{g) COUNTERPARTS; HEADINGS.ThisAgreementmay be executed in counterparts and as so executed
shall constitute one agreement, binding on all Parties. The Headings have no substantive effect and
are used merely for convenience.

(h) FORCE MAJEURE. A Party is not liable under this Agreement for non-performance or delayed or
interrupted performance caused by events or conditions beyond that Party's control if the Party makes
reasonable efforts to perform. This provision does not relieve Customer of its obligation to make all
payments when due.

{i) NOTICES. All notices to be given under this Agreement must be in writing and addressed as follows:
(a) to Languageline at One Lower Ragsdale Drive, Bldg. 2, Monterey, CA 94930 Attn: Contract
Administration, or by e-mail to CustomerCare@languageline.com with a copy to
Contracts@languageline.com, and (b) to Customer at the most current address or e-mail provided by
Customer to Languageline. Any notices sent by overnight courier (such as FedEx, DHL, USPS, etc.),
or by first class mail, postage prepaid, is effective upon deposit with the post office or the overnight
courier and any notice sent by e-mail shall be effective on the date the e-mail is sent except that any
e-mail sent on a weekend or holiday shall be effective on the next business day.

0) COMPLIANCE. Language Line Services, Inc. is an equal opportunity employer and federal contractor.
Consequently, as and if applicable, the Parties will abide by the requirements of Title 41 of the United
States Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) $S$ 60-1.4(a), 60-300.5(a) and 60-741.5(a), which are
incorporated herein by reference. These regulations prohibitdiscrimination against qualified individuals
based on their status as protected veterans or individuals with disabilities and prohibit discrimination
against all individuals based on their race, color, creed, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or
national origin. These regulations require that covered prime contractors and subcontractors take
affirmative action to employ and advance in employment individuals without regard to race, color,
religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, protected veteran status or disability.
If and as applicable, the Partieswill abide by the requirements of Executive Order 13496 (29 CFR Part
471, Appendix A to SubpartA), relating to the notice of employee rights under federal labor laws.

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, including all addenda, Schedules and Statements of Work,
constitute the Parties' entire agreement relating to its subject matter. It supersedes all prior or
contemporaneous oral or written communications, proposals, conditions, representations and
warranties and prevails over any conflicting or additional terms of any quote, order, acknowledgment,
or other communication between the Parties relating to its subject matter during the term of this
Agreement. No modification to this Agreement will be binding unless in writing and signed by an
authorized representative of each Party. If any provision, or part thereof, in this Agreement is held to
be invalid, void or Illegal, it shall be severed from this Agreement and shall not affect, impair, or
invalidate any other provision, or part thereof, and it shall be replaced by a provision which comes
closest to the severed provision, or part thereof, in language and intent, without being invalid, void, or
illegal.

The person signing this Agreement on behalf of Customer certifies that such person has read,
acknowledges, and understands all of the terms and conditions, and is fully authorized to execute this
Agreement on behalf of and bind the Customer to all its terms and conditions. Both Parties agree the
delivery of the signed Agreement by facsimileor e-mail or useofa facsimile signature or electronic signature
or other similar electronic reproduction of a signature shall have the same force and effect of execution and
delivery as the original signature, and in the absence of an original signature, shall constitute the original
signature.

Customer LanguageLine
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Date: Date:

Signature: Signature:

Name: Name: Bonaventura A Cavaliere

Title: Title:CFO
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Qualified Court Interpreting from Languageline Solutions
At Languageline Solutions we understand that each Interpretation session
is of paramount importance to you and the public you serve. That Is why we
invest millions of dollars each year to recruit, train, and maintain the quality of our
interpreter workforce. For over 36 years, LanguageLine Solutions has supported
government agencies with the highest quality Interpreting to support compliance
and allow agencies to focus on their main mission.

Languageline court-qualified interpreters have the essential skills needed to help
busy courthouses overcome language barriers and ensure meaningful access
to Justice. On demand interpreting Is available from any phone In more than 240
languages and in video In 36 languages (including American Sign Language) on
iPads and Smartphones via our lnSight mobile app. That's Immediate, secure
access to the industry's best trained interpreters.

INTERPRETING FOR THE COURTS

In addition to Languageline's rigorous screening, testing and new hire training,
Languageline court qualified interpreters complete a 12hour Court Interpreting
Training program developed by Holly Mikkelson, a world renowned expert on
interpreting in the courts. The program covers the essentials necessary to improve
communication between court personnel and limited English proficient communities,
Including:

The U.S. Court System and Proceedings
Legal Terms and Code of Professional Responsibility for Court Interpreters

s Professional Ethics and the Role of the Court Interpreter
a Municipal Court Advisement of Rights
a Juvenile and Criminal Law Motions

Glossary of Legal Terms

To find out more about how Languageline Solutions can support your court's
language access program, contact us today.
1-800-752-6096 / www.languageline.com

Improve language access where
you need It most:

B Arraignments
n Preliminary hearings
ta Ball/bond review

• Sentencing
LI Public Information areas
II Parole/probation
m Pre/post-trial services
a Clerk of the Court Offices
I Traffic offenses

• Legal aid

I
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APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING
COUNCIL ACTION DATE

October 1, 2024

REPORTS AND Franklin Public School District information ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS presentation with regard to a referendum question to be

on the November 5, 2024 election ballot: Shall the .a.Franklin Public School District, Milwaukee County,
Wisconsin be authorized to issue pursuant to Chapter

67 of the Wisconsin Statutes, general obligation bonds
in an amount not to exceed $145,000,000 for the

public purpose ofpaying the cost of a school facility
improvement project consisting of: Americans with

Disabilities Act compliance updates, capital
maintenance, building systems, safety, security and
site improvements at the Elementary Schools and

Franklin High School; construction of additions and
renovations at Franklin High School, including for
technical education space improvements, classroom

and special education areas, science lab improvements,
new indoor physical education spaces and a field

house, a pool, and tennis courts; and acquisition of
furnishings, fixtures and equipment?

Franklin Public School District representatives will be at this meeting to present information with regard to
the above referendum.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

This item is for information only. No action requested.
Mayor Nelson, Legal Services Dept.. jw
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APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Request to enter into a Professional Services
Agreement between City of Franklin and EPLEX,
LLC DBA E-Plan Exam) for Building Permit Plan

Review Services.

MEETING
DATE

October 1, 2024

Background

Plans for all commercial buildings greater than 1,000 sq. ft. need to be reviewed by the
Department of Safety and Professional Services (DSPS) or by the Municipality if given the
approval by DSPS. Currently, the City of Franklin is delegated to complete commercial plan
review for new commercial buildings up to 50,000 cubic feet and altering of existing
commercial buildings. The City of Franklin is not delegated to perform any Plumbing review.

Analyss

Allowing E-Plan Exam to review plans would expedite the Building Permit process for those
plans that require State review. The State plan review can often be a lengthy process (6-8
weeks or more depending on volume). E-Plan has indicated that their reviews will be
completed within 15 business days.

With this proposal, the contractor/developer would have the option to use the State or E-Plan
to complete their review. Either way will result in State approved plans that would be eligible
for the building permit process to begin with the City of Franklin Inspection Services.

When plans are reviewed by the State, the City sees zero plan review fees. With E-Plan, the
City would receive 10% of the plan review fee. Further, as a company, E-plan donates a
portion of the fees towards college scholarships in the communities they serve.

The Contract Agreement has been reviewed and approved for signature by the City
Administrator and City Attorney, pending Council approval.

Recommendaton

Staff is recommending approval to enter into a Professional Services Agreement between the
City of Franklin and EPLEX, LLC, (DBA E-Plan Exam). With that approve the E-Plan Review
Fee Schedule.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
Motion to approve to enter into a Professional Services Agreement between the City of
Franklin and EPLEX, LLC, (DBA E-Plan Exam), for Commercial Building, HVAC and
Plumbing Plan Reviews and approve attached E-Plan Review Fee Schedule.

Inspection Services - Ligocki
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PROPOSAL FOR SERVICESII Commercial Plan Review Services

OVERVIEW
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E-Plan Exam is pleased to submit this proposal for services to support your community in its pursuit to deliver better
customer service to your constituents and your internal team members through the plan review process!

It is our mission and goal at E-Plan Exam to assist municipalities in their effort to better serve the construction community by
working in partnership to deliver exceptional quality plan reviews within an expedited time frame, while maintaining low costs.
As code officials, who have served in high functional capacities, overseeing large building inspection and plan review
departments, we fully understand and appreciate the challenges that are encountered daily in construction. Our philosophy
and approach to better the communities we serve is to work in direct partnership with all stakeholders on all projects, from
the time it is simply an idea in the mind of the developer to the point where occupancy is granted. What we have found is
when we create and foster a positive experience with the communities we serve through integrity and passion, it improves
the safety and the quality of the projects we are privileged to work on.

The proposal contained herein is meant to serve as a starting point and establish a foundation from which we can continue
to build upon together. We sincerely look forward to supporting your community!

Our Main Objective
There are five main plan reviews that are required for any commercial building construction in Wisconsin: Building, HVAC,
Plumbing, Fire Alarm and Fire Sprinkler. Without delegated authority granted by the State of Wisconsin Department of Safety
and Professional Services, all projects would have to flow through them. This is where delegation comes in to handle some
or all these scopes at the local level - but in many communities these thresholds are often inconsistent.

After review with Wisconsin DSPS, only a handful of Communities out of more than 1,800 in the State have the capabilities
to do full-fledged plan review of Unlimited Size Structures for Building, HVAC, Fire Alarm, Fire Sprinkler, and Plumbing
plan reviews. At the time of this proposal, E-Plan Exam serves approximately 50% of them.

• Most Communities, if they are delegated, are only delegated for small-scale Building and HVAC for projects not
exceeding 50,000 cubic foot in volume for new construction.

• Most communities do not have any Plumbing Plan Review authority.
• Most communities are not delegated for Fire Alarm and Fire Sprinkler for projects at all.

Our goal would be to enhance your local capabilities by obtaining full-fledged delegation for Building, HVAC, Plumbing,
Fire Alarm and Fire Sprinkler projects of unlimited size for your community!

Once this program is up and running, at its heart it's a program of choice. Applicants would have the choice to submit to your
community, and in turn E-Plan Exam, or they could still submit to the State. Likewise, your community can request that a
submitter submit directly to the State for any reason. If you would like to proceed, would be joining a very select group of
communities as of today that would have full-fledged approval from DSPS to handle all commercial projects at the local level.
And once your community would be delegated by the State of Wisconsin, our goals would be simple:

• Reroute revenue never seen by your community from the State of Wisconsin.
• Guarantee 15 business days turn around for any commercial project.
• Provide full visibility to the entirety of the plan review process to all stakeholders.
• In partnership, serve as an extension to your municipal operations by offering free unlimited code consultations.

Much of these are relatively easy to achieve through our partnership, and while there are some prerequisites, our team will
gladly work with you to achieve these delegations and set a new standard for construction in your community!



About Us
We founded our company in Wisconsin where our primary goal is to transform and raise the standard for which plan reviews
are done in the state. In partnership with your community, we believe can provide exceptional service and effect positive
change! Through successful implementation of our program, we have shown that these four simple objectives differentiate
our operation from your current experience, and dramatically impact the communities we serve:

1. Integrity - At the heart of E-Plan Exam is our unwavering commitment to protecting the well-being, safety,
health, and assets of our community partners. This commitment is not just a corporate statement; it reflects our
founding values, guiding every interaction and decision we make.

2. Communication -We pride ourselves on our proactive approach to interactions. Instead of simply providing
straightforward plan approvals or rejections, we focus on collaborative solutions, ensuring everyone understands
the route to code compliance.

3. Knowledge - Our expertise has been honed through roles as advisors to the State of Wisconsin, participation
on regional and national code committees, leadership within major Wisconsin communities, and oversight of
diverse construction endeavors. Every project is distinct, and we are dedicated to liaising with local inspection
teams and the State of Wisconsin to ensure consistent and accurate code enforcement.

4. Passion -We recognize the vital importance of the permitting and plan review phase in project timelines. We
are fervently dedicated to minimizing delays by promising a review turnaround within 15 business days. The
industry standard of prolonged waiting periods for plan reviews is something we challenge daily. We believe
there is a better way, and we are here to prove it.

OUR PROPOSAL
Outlined in this proposal and contract language is our promise to ensure the service offering we provide is at its best. We
are prepared to guarantee that not only will all plan reviews be done within 15 business days, but all reviews will be done by
individuals who either live or work in the State of Wisconsin. This allows us the capability to utilize plan examiners who have
intimate knowledge of not only the current codes and our "Wisconsinisims", but also our historical state building codes. All of
which are still very much enforced today by state statues and administrative code.

Additionally, our ability to communicate and coordinate our code efforts with not only the local inspection team but also the
community, will result in fewer issues encountered during construction. This will allow for community development to occur
with ease. To continuously improve our service, we ask that we have the opportunity to meet with community leadership,
and those most impacted by our work regularly to review and improve our processes.

Proposed Fee Structure
Our fee structure outlined below operates on a percent fee split. However, as this program is a path of choice, we do offer a
couple of ways to approach this:

For all buildings and structures within your community:

Option A:
• 95% of plan review fees are retained by E-Plan Exam and 5% are retained by your community.

o Out of E-Plan Exam's retained plan review fees, we shall be responsible for fees due to the State of
Wisconsin as applicable for reviews we perform as specified in Wisconsin Administrative Code.

Option B:
• 90% of plan review fees are retained by E-Plan Exam and 10% are retained by your community.

o Out of E-Plan Exam's retained plan review fees, we shall be responsible for fees due to the State of
Wisconsin as applicable for reviews we perform as specified in Wisconsin Administrative Code.

You may be asking, why not just go with option B? The reality is that this is a path of choice. Both options are based upon
the State of Wisconsin's fee schedules that they utilize - however there is a difference. If you would like to be competitive
with what DSPS will charge for anyone in your community for when we go live, Option A may be the best for you. However,
if you want to look at some additional revenue while having a baseline of support, Option B is based on another State fee
schedule as a baseline - but could be modified to suit your community.

You can set your own fee schedule as you launch this program. We can make this work or look at what you would
propose and modify our splits accordingly.



COMMERCIAL PLAN REVIEW FEE SCHEDULE-BUILDING/HVAC/FIRE ALARM/FIRE SUPPRESSION
"- e - ·~" ~···----~

1. New construction, additions, alterations, and parking lots fees are computed per this table.
2. New construction and additions are calculated based on total gross floor area of the structure.

3. A separate plan review fee is charged for each type of plan review.

Option A Option B

FireAlarm Fire
Fire Alarm Fire

Area Building HVAC Suppression Building HVAC Suppression
(Square Feet) Plans Plans System

System Plans Plans System
SystemPlans PlansPlans Plans

Less than 500 sf $250 $150 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100
501- 2,500 $250 $150 $100 $100 $300 $180 $100 $100

2,500 - 5,000 $300 $200 $100 $100 $350 $250 $100 $100
5,001 - 10,000 $500 $300 $100 $100 $600 $350 $150 $150
10,001 - 20,000 $700 $400 $150 $150 $800 $450 $200 $200
20,001 - 30,000 $1,100 $500 $200 $200 $1,200 $600 $250 $250
30,001 - 40,000 $1,400 $800 $350 $350 $1,600 $900 $400 $400
40,001 - 50,000 $1,900 $1,100 $500 $500 $2,100 $1,200 $550 $550
50,001 - 75,000 $2,600 $1,400 $700 $700 $2,900 $1,600 $800 $800
75,001 - 100,000 $3,300 $2,000 $1,000 $1,000 $3,600 $2,200 $1,100 $1,100
100,001 - 200,000 $5,400 $2,600 $1,200 $1,200 $6,000 $2,900 $1,400 $1,400
200,001 - 300,000 $9,500 $6,100 $3,000 $3,000 $10,500 $6,700 $3,300 $3,300
300,001 - 400,000 $14,000 $8,800 $4,400 $4,400 $15,500 $9,800 $4,800 $4,800
400,001 - 500,000 $16,700 $10,800 $5,600 $5,600 $18,500 $12,000 $6,300 $6,300
Over 500,000 $18,000 $12,100 $6,400 $6,400 $20,000 $13,500 $7,100 $7,100

1. A Plan Entry Fee of $100.00 shall be submitted with each submittal of plans in addrtion to the plan
review and inspection fees.

Note:
2. At the Sole discretion of the Supervisor of Building Inspection and Plans Examiner; Fees may be
modified, reduced, or waived based on scope of services, project type, or other relevant factors.

The area of a floor is the area bounded by the exterior surface of the building walls or the outside face of
Determination of columns where there 1s no wall. Area includes all floor levels such as subbasements, basements, ground floors,

Area mezzanines, balconies, lofts, all stones, and all roofed areas including porches and garages, except for
cantilevered canopies on the building wall. Use the roof area for free standing canopies.

Structural Plans When submitted separately from the general building plans, the review fee for structural plans, precast
and other concrete, laminate wood, beams, cladding elements, other facade features or other structural elements, the
Component review fee 1s $250.00 per plan with an additional $100.00 plan entry fee per each plan set.
Submrttals

Accessory The plan review fee for accessory buildings less than 500 square feet shall be $125.00 with the plan entry fee
Buildings waived.

The plan review fee for permission to start construction shall be $75.00 for all structures less than 2,500 sf . All
Early Start other structures shall be $150.00. The square footage shall be computed as the first floor of the building or

structure.

Plan Examination The fee for the extension of an approved plan review shall be 50% of the original plan review fee, not to

Extensions
exceed $3,000.00.



Resubmittals & When deemed by the reviewer to be a minor revision from previously reviewed and/or approved plans, the

revisions to review fee shall be $75.00. Any sgnifcant changes or alterations beyond minor amendments as determined

approved plans by the Plans Examiner and Building Inspection Department may result in additional charges as appropriate.

Where plans are submitted after construction, the standard late submittal fee of $250.00 will be assessed per
Submittal of plans each review type that occurred after construction. This 1s in addition to any other plan entry fees, structural
after construction components and base fees applied to a proJect.

Expedited Priority
The fee for a priority plan review, which expedites completion of the plan review min less than the normal
processing time when the plan is considered ready for review, shall be 200% of the fees specified in these

Plan Review
provisions.

COMMERCIAL PLAN REVIEW FEE SCHEDULE- PLUMBING for Both Options A &B
1. New construction, alterations and remodeling fees are computed per the following table

2. New construction fee Is calculated based on square footage of the area constructed.

3. Alterations and remodeling fee is based on the number of plumbing fixtures.

Area (Square Feet) Number of Fixtures
Plumbing Plan (Site work for laterals is Plumbing Plan

(New Construction Review Fee based on Building Fixture Review Fee
& Additions) Counts)

Less than 3,000 $300 <15 $200

3,001- 4,000 $400 16-25 $300

4,001- 5,000 $550 26-35 $450

5,001 -6,000 $650 36-50 $550

6,001- 7,500 $700 51-75 $800

7,501-10,000 $850 76-100 $900

10,001 -15,000 $900 101-125 $1,050

15,001 - 20,000 $950 126-150 $1,150

20,001- 30,000 $1,100 >151 $1,150

30,001- 40,000 $1,250

40,001- 50,000 $1,550
Plus $160 for each additional 25 fixtures (rounded

up) beyond 150 Fxtures
50,001 - 75,000 $2,100

Over 75,000 $2,500

Plus $0.0072 per each additional sq. ft. over
75,000 sq. ft.

1. A Plan Entry Fee of $100.00 shall be submitted with each submittal of plans in
addrtion to the plan review and inspection fees.p

Note: 2. At the Sole discretion of the Supervisor of Building Inspection and Plans Examiner;
Fees may be modified, reduced, or waived based on scope of services, proJect type, or
other relevant factors.

The area of a floor is the area bounded by the exterior surface of the building walls or the
outside face of columns where there 1s no wall. Area includes all floor levels such as

Determination of Area subbasements, basements, ground floors, mezzanines, balconies, lofts, all stories, and all
roofed areas including porches and garages, except for cantilevered canopies on the
building wall. Use the roof area for free standing canopies.



When deemed by the reviewer to be a minor revision from previously reviewed and/or
Resubmittals & revisions approved plans, the review fee shall be $75.00. Any significant changes or alterations
to approved plans beyond minor amendments as determined by the Plans Examiner and Building Inspection

Department may result in additional charges as appropriate.

Submittal of plans after
Where plans are submitted after construction, the standard late submittal fee of $250.00
will be assessed per each review type that occurred after construction. This is in addition

construction to any other plan entry fees and base fees applied to a project.

Expedited Priority Plan
The fee for a priority plan review, which expedites completion of the plan review in less
than the normal processing time when the plan is considered ready for review, shall be

Review 200% of the fees specified in these provisions.

Initial review time for all plans shall not be longer than 15 business days to either Approve, Deny, or Request for Additional
Information/Place on Hold.

In addition to the outlined fees above, as a courtesy to our municipal partners, we also offer on-call hourly professional
engineering services of $200.00 per hour, when both your community and E-Plan Exam agree in writing prior to such
services.

Our initial proposed contract is for 36 months with all billing invoiced monthly with terms of Net 30 days.

And finally, there is no retainer or annual base fee required for our services. We are there when you need us, but when you
don't, there is no cost to the municipality. Our goal is to fit seamlessly into your operation, to serve as an extension of your
team and to work as your partner.

Insurance
E-Plan Exam carries a full complement of business insurance including errors and omissions, property, general and liability
insurance. Certificates of insurance in the following amounts will be provided upon request:

Type of Insurance Amount of Insurance

Commercial General • $1,000,000 Each Occurrence
Liability • $2,000,000 General Aggregate

Professional Liability • $1,000,000 Each Claim
• $2,000,000 Aggregate

Umbrella Liability • $5,000,000 Each Occurrence
• $5,000,000 Aggregate

Plan Review Process
Plan Intake
In construction, time is money and accuracy is critical. To that end, we have fully automated our procedures to streamline
plan review intake. In cooperation with our municipal partners, we have enabled online plan review submission. A sample of
our plan review intake forms can be found at eplanexam.com/submit-a-project. Once an applicant submits a project,
notifications are sent to all staff who wish to receive notice. This notification will include links to all pertinent contact
information, documents, and construction plans that were submitted.



As part of our service, your community will have full access to our system and
database. This will allow you to see not only where a project is in our plan review
queue, but also what issues may have been encountered and the status of the
review. This access is not only limited to you, but to all our clients. You can easily
see where everything stands as a whole and filter down to the plan reviews within
your municipal boundaries. If you are interested in learning more about our
services, we can give you temporary access to our live system and demonstrate it
for you.

Fee Collection Services

As part of our service, we offer to all our municipal partners the collection and handling of any plan review fees. This is
something that often takes up a significant amount of time to collect fees, ensure proper charges, and process invoices. To
simplify matters, E-Plan Exam collects any fees directly for the plan reviews we perform. Our team invoices for each project
received directly to the applicant and issues a payment to our municipal partners at the end of each month. This option
frees up significant amounts of administrative time for tracking down payments, as well as streamlines payments to the
State of Wisconsin. We take ownership for ensuring proper fee calculations and payment collections.

Plan Review

We love to talk about complex projects before they are ready to be submitted. This helps to clear up any potential code
issues and ensures a smooth plan review. Code consultations with our examiners and architects, designers, contractors,
and/or municipal partners are encouraged for complex projects.

Once the plan review is complete, we turn over all documents, specifications, and requests for additional information, to the
applicants as well as the municipality. Our goal is to do as thorough of a review as possible while giving as much information
to the municipality, so they can properly do their inspections. Additionally, for large scopes of work or complex projects, we
will do project kick off meetings with the local inspection team to make them aware of the intricacies of the project.

All the services mentioned above including code consultations, and code inquiries from our municipal partners, inspectors, or
applicants are included as part of our base plan review service.

Our goal is to make this program and our plan review experts an extension of your staff, give you more insight and
capabilities versus the State's current process, reroute previously unseen revenue to your community, and provide top
quality customer service to you and the constituents within your community.

CONCLUSION
We sincerely look forward to working with your community and supporting your efforts!

Should your community desire to speak with our references, municipal partners, or the developers we have worked with, we
will be more than happy to provide contact information. If you decide to proceed with our services, we are proud to say that
we will be able to serve your community immediately.

If you have any questions about this proposal or would like to discuss our services, please feel free to contact us at your
earliest convenience and we will be more than happy to discuss! We are also available for virtual meetings if preferred.

Thank you for your consideration and we sincerely look forward to working with you!

David Adam (DA) Mattox, P.E.

President
414-736-4721
damattox@eplanexam.com
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E-PLAN
EXAM

ACCELERATE DEVELOPMENT
IN YOUR COMMUNITY!

Learn how we can:

• Guarantee Plan Reviews in 15 days by launching a plan
review program to complement your inspection team.

• Introduce a new revenue stream to your community.

• Give you local control and visibility over the current
State Plan Review Process.

• Get businesses opened sooner!

Learn how we can support you today!
From start to finish. we help get the job done.

414.736.4721 I EPLANEXAM.COM
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STILL UNSURE ON HOW WE CAN HELP OR
HOW THIS WOULD MAKE AN IMPACT?

There are 1,852 Communities in Wisconsin. As of April 2024 there are
only approx 60 communities that have full approval for plan review
from the State of Wisconsin for all building, HVAC, plumbing, fire alarm
and fire sprinkler reviews. Come join the E-Plan Exam team today-

1!11 Village of Sister Bay- Pop. 1,160
1!11 .
pg Village of Lake Delton-Pop. 3,459
1!11 Village of Sauk City-Pop. 3,490
[El Town of Brookfield - Pop. 6,390
pg Village of Rib Mountain- Pop. 6,837
pg Village of PewaukeePop.8,164

pg City of Sturgeon Bay-Pop.8,885
[II City of Monroe - Pop. 10,537
1!11 Village of Greenville-Pop. 12,264
1!11 City of Pewaukee -Pop.14,431
[II City of Beaver Dam - Pop. 16,214
[II Vi II age ofAshwa u benon-Pop.16,913
[II City of Kaukauna - Pop. 16,070
!Ii City of Cudahy- Pop. 17,946
1!11·········

![II·········

~ City of Onalaska -Pop.18,824

[EI CityofMequon-Pop.23,132

p City of Neenah-Pop. 25,501

!II City of Fitchburg-Pop.30,674
!II City ofWest Bend - Pop. 31,727
1!11 City of Manitowoc-Pop.33,736
1!11 City of Beloit- Pop. 36,609
1!11 City of Greenfield-Pop.37,352
!II Village of Menomonee Falls -Pop.38,906
1!11 City ofWausau - Pop. 39,575
!II City ofWest Allis - Pop. 60,411
1!11 City of Janesville Pop. 65,942

FA City of Oshkosh Pop. 66,083

[u City ofWaukeshaPop.71,256

[A City ofAppleton-Pop.74,854

[HI City of Green Bay- Pop. 104,057

If your community isn't on this list,
reach out today and lets change that together!

414.736.4721 I EPLANEXAM.COM



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Professional Services Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into by and between the City of
Franklin ("City") and EPLEX, LLC (OBA as E-Plan Exam) ("Consultant"). City and Consultant shall be
jointly referred to as the "Parties".

RECITALS

WHEREAS City is seeking Consultant to perform services listed in Exhibit A- Plan Review Services
and Fee Schedule, ("Services");

NOW TH EREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, City and Consultant agree as follows:

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES

Consultant will provide the Services to the Client using qualified professionals licensed in the
State of Wisconsin to perform work outlined both in this Agreement and Exhibit A.

Plan reviews shall be performed in accordance with the City's Municipal Code of Ordinances
and the Department of Safety and Professional Services regulations in the Wisconsin
Administrative Code.

Consultant will perform work at a level of competency in accordance with industry standards,
applicable in the State and Municipality for which the Services are proposed.

It shall be up to the sole discretion of the City as the Authority Having Jurisdiction as to what
will be required for the ability to have any building project commence. This includes any
potential additional documentation, approvals, permits, bonds, compliance with local zoning,
historical review, architectural review board requirements, and/or other requirements not
herein specified but otherwise required by City as the Authority Having Jurisdiction.

Due to the nature of the delegated agent/appointed agent program as set forth by the State
of Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services, any plan review exceeding the
size thresholds for a "Certified Municipality" for Building and HVAC reviews, as well as any
and all other types of reviews that rely upon the licensure of Consultant (i.e. Fire Alarm, Fire
Sprinkler, Plumbing, etc.) shall be reviewed by Consultant. City retains the right, should they
desire, to perform plan reviews that they have properly licensed qualified individuals to
perform review services that would be able to be performed without the existence of this
Agreement.

Due to the nature of the delegated agent/appointed agent program as set forth by the State
of Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services, City may at any point in time
request that the State of Wisconsin perform any plan review in lieu of Consultant. City is not
bound to accept Consultants approval or disapproval of plans and at its sole discretion may
seek another entity, such as the State of Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional
Services, to perform such services. In any event, the Consultant shall be entitled to full



payment for review of all plans Consultant reviewed, regardless of if City accepts the review
performed.

Consultant is not obligated to perform services beyond what is required by this Agreement.

2. TIMELINE FOR EXECUTION OF SERVICES
Proposed services as part of this Agreement and outlined in Exhibit A shall go into full effect
at the time and date of this fully executed Agreement.

3. CHANGES TO SCOPE OF SERVICES

Any Changes to Services that are mutually agreed upon between City and Consultant shall be
made in writing, which shall specifically designate any changes in compensation for the
Services and be made as a signed and fully executed amendment to this Agreement.

4. FEE STRUCTURE

In consideration of the Consultant providing services, the City shall pay the Consultant for the
services performed in accordance with Exhibit A- List of Plan Review Services and Fee
Schedule.

5. ADMINISTRATIVE AND LOGISTICS INCIDENTAL CHARGES

While review of paper plans as well as shipping and handling of paper plans shall be
acceptable, it is the underlying goal of this Agreement to ensure, to the maximum extent
possible, the best possible service delivery for code reviews to constituents of the City of
Franklin. To accommodate this, the following methods shall be utilized:

1. Electronic Submission of Documents
a. City shall allow and encourage for the submission, wherever possible, of

electronic documents to be submitted via pdf format and to work with
Consultant on the method acceptable for allowing such submissions. At the time
of a fully executed Agreement, City shall work with Consultant as to the best
method to utilize to allow for document submission.

b. Electronic submission of documents shall be the preferred method to be utilized
wherever and whenever possible.

2. Paper Submission of documents
a. City to be responsible for any and all direct charges and expenses associated with

shipping and handling charges of all documents to and from City via a designated
courier and/or approved logistics vendor. At time of a fully executed Agreement,
City and Consultant shall agree to desired third party vendor and make all
appropriate arrangements to allow for ease of logistics to ship relevant materials
and financial costs to be accounted for.

b. Any indirect charges associated with labor, material, or other costs incurred by
City for delivery of documents to approved third party courier to ship materials
to Consultant shall be the responsibility of City.



c. Any indirect charges associated with labor, material, or other costs incurred by
Consultant for delivery of documents to approved third party courier to ship
materials to City shall be the responsibility of the City.

3. Alternate Means and Methods
a. Nothing shall prevent City and Consultant from making alternate arrangements

aside from the methods outlined above for delivery of submission to the
appropriate parties.

6. INVOICE & PAYMENT STRUCTURE

Fees outlined in Exhibit A are to be collected by Consultant. Consultant shall remit the fees
appropriate collected to City on a monthly basis, and provide all supporting documentation,
using a format referenced as an "Invoice", and render payment as appropriate. City may
request additional information before approving the invoice. When additional information is
requested, City will Identify specific disputed item(s) and give specific reasons for any
request. If additional information is requested, the appropriate party will submit payment to
the other party within thirty (30) days of resolution of the inquiry/dispute.

7. TERM

This Agreement shall be effective on the latest date on which the Agreement is fully executed
by both Parties ("Effective Date"). The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on the
Effective Date and be thirty-six (36) months, unless terminated earlier in accordance with
paragraph 8. Unless either party provides notice in writing to the other party thirty {30) days
prior to the expiration of the initial term or a renewal term, this Agreement shall
automatically renew on identical terms for a period of twelve (12) months, unless terminated
earlier in accordance with paragraph 8.

8. TERMINATION

Either party may terminate this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement upon forty-five
(45) days written notice, with or without cause at any time, including during the initial Term
of the Agreement. In case of such termination, Consultant shall be entitled to receive
payment for work completed up to and including the termination and within forty-five (45)
days after the termination.

All projects that have had plans submitted, or re-submitted, for review but are not completed
at the time of termination may be returned without comments with appropriate refund in
initial fees rendered based on services provided. In the event that either of the conditions as
set forth in paragraph 6 are met, fees shall be invoiced for as specified in this Agreement.

9. CITY OBLIGATIONS

City shall take necessary measures to follow procedures as set forth from the State of
Wisconsin to seek approval to obtain Delegated Municipality or Appointed Agent Status as
required. Consultant will assist in this process to the maximum extent possible however it
shall be the primary responsibility of City to obtain final authorization to proceed.



If in the event the State of Wisconsin denies application for Delegated Municipality or
Appointed Agent Status to City, this Agreement shall continue to exist until such time
Delegated Municipality or Appointed Agent Status is granted.

City shall provide all data, information, plans, specifications, municipal forms, structural
calculations, and all other documentation required by Consultant to perform services in an
electronic pdf file format or paper submission in a timely manner.

City shall allow through ordinance, if required, the ability for electronic plan submission
documents as required by the State of Wisconsin to be submitted and reviewed.

City shall maintain licensed credentialed staff of Inspectors at no cost to Consultant to the
extent as required by the State of Wisconsin for the Delegated Agent/ Appointed Agent plan
review program.

10. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS

Consultant shall use that degree of care, skill, and professionalism ordinarily exercised under
similar circumstances by members of the same profession practicing or performing the
substantially same or similar services with respect to the category of services being
performed. Consultant represents to the Client that it retains and will only utilize employees
that possess the skills, knowledge, and ability to competently, timely, and professionally
perform the Services in accordance with this Agreement.

11. INDEMNIFICATION

A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless
Client, Client's officers, directors, partners, and employees from and against costs,
losses, and damages (including but not limited to reasonable fees and charges of
engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and reasonable court or
arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negligent acts or
omissions of Consultant or Consultant's officers, directors, partners, employees, and
consultants in the performance of Consultant's services under this Agreement.

B. Nothing contained within this agreement is intended to be a waiver or estoppel of
the contracting municipality Client or its insurer to rely upon the limitations,
defenses, and immunities contained within Wisconsin law, including those contained
within Wisconsin Statutes§§ 893.80, 895.52, and 345.05. To the extent that
indemnification is available and enforceable, the municipality Client or its insurer
shall not be liable in indemnity or contribution for an amount greater than the
liability limits for municipal claims established by Wisconsin Law.

12.. SUBCONTRACTING

Consultant is permitted to subcontract portions of services to be provided with or without
notice. Consultant shall remain responsible for any and all of subcontractor's performance.
Subcontractors shall be subject to the same performance, certification and professionalism



criteria as expected of Consultant. Performance clauses shall be included in Agreements with
all subcontractors to assure quality levels and agreed upon schedules are met.

A listing of all personnel utilized in the completion of services, regardless of if they are
subcontractors or not, shall be provided upon completion by Consultant including applicable
license information for personnel and scope of work reviewed by subcontractor.

Unless mutually agreed to in writing prior to such work commencing, Consultant shall not be
permitted to utilize individuals for services outlined in Exhibit A of this Agreement who either
do not reside in the State of Wisconsin as their primary residence or do not report to a
primary employment office located within the State of Wisconsin.

13. INSURANCE

Consultant shall not commence work under this Agreement until it has obtained the
insurance required herein. All coverages shall be with insurance carriers licensed and
admitted to do business in the State of Wisconsin. All coverages shall be with carriers
acceptable to the City.

It is hereby understood and agreed that the insurance required by the City is primary
coverage and that any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officers, council
members, agents, employees or authorized volunteers will not contribute to a loss.

Worker's Compensation and Employers liability Minimum Requirements as required by
Statute: Consultant shall cover or insure under applicable labor laws relating to worker's
compensation insurance, all of their employees in accordance with the law in the State of
Wisconsin. Consultant shall provide statutory coverage for work related injuries and
employer's liability insurance with limits of $100,000 each accident, $500,000 disease policy
limit and $100,000 disease each employee.

Liability Insurance: Consultant shall procure and maintain during the life of this Agreement
the following Commercial General Liability Insurance and Automobile Liability insurances:

A. PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY (Errors and Omissions)

(1) Minimum Limits
(a) $2,000,000 each claim/$3,000,000 annual aggregate
(b) Any deductible not to exceed $25,000 each claim

(2) Must continue coverage for 3 years after final payment for service

B. GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE

(1) Commercial General Liability
(a) $4,000,000 general aggregate
(b) $1,000,000 products - completed operations aggregate
(c) $1,000,000 personal injury and advertising injury



(d) $2,000,000 each occurrence limit

(2) Claims made form of coverage is not acceptable.

(3) Insurance must include:
(a} Premises and Operations Liability
(b) Blanket Contractual Liability including coverage for the joint

negligence of the City of Franklin, it officers, council members,
agents, employees, authorized volunteers and the named insured

(c) Personal Injury
(d) Explosion, collapse and underground coverage
(e) Products/Completed Operations

C. BUSINESS AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE

(1) Minimum Limits - $2,000,000 Combined Single Limit for Bodily Injury and
Property Damage each accident.

(2) Must cover liability for "Any Auto" - including Owned, Non-Owned and Hired
Automobile Liability.

Additional Insured: Consultant shall name the City, including all elected and appointed
officials, all employees and volunteers, all boards, commissions and/or authorities and their
board members, employees and volunteers as Additional Insured on the General Liability and
Automobile Liability Coverage. This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insured.

Cancellation Notice: All insurances required by this Agreement shall include an endorsement
stating the following: "Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation or Ten (10)
days for Non-Renewal shall be sent to Client.

Proof of Insurance Coverage: Consultant shall provide to the City, at the time this Agreement
is returned for execution, Certificates of Insurance and/or policies, acceptable to the City. If
so requested, certified copies of any or all polices shall also be furnished. The Additional
Insured Policy endorsement must accompany the Certificate of Insurance. A copy of the
Certificate of Insurance must be on file with Risk Management. If no Certificates of Insurance
and/or policies are provided to the City upon execution of this Agreement, the Agreement
shall be null and void.

Continuation of Coverage: If any of the above coverage expires during the term of this
Agreement, the Consultant shall deliver renewal certificates and/or policies to the City at
least ten (10) days prior to the expiration date.

14. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Consultant is an independent contractor, and neither Consultant, nor any employee or agent
thereof, shall be deemed for any reason to be an employee or agent of City. As Consultant is
an independent contractor, City shall have no liability or responsibility for any direct payment
of any salaries, wages, payroll taxes, or any and all other forms or types of compensation or



benefits to any of Consultant's personnel performing services for City under this Agreement.
Consultant shall be solely responsible for all compensation, benefits, insurance, and
employment-related rights of any person providing Services hereunder during the course of
or arising or accruing as a result of any employment, whether past or present, with
Consultant, as well as all legal costs including attorney's fees incurred in the defense of any
conflict or legal action resulting from such employment or related to the corporate amenities
of such employment.

15. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

City shall retain ownership of all work product and deliverables created by Consultant
pursuant to this Agreement. All records, documents, notes, data and other materials
required for or resulting from the performance of the Services hereunder shall not be used
by Consultant for any purpose other than the performance of the Services hereunder without
the express prior written consent of City. All such records, documents, notes, data and other
materials shall become the exclusive property of City when the Consultant has been
compensated for the same as set forth herein, and City shall thereafter retain sole and
exclusive rights to receive and use such materials in such manner and for such purposes as
determined by it. If this Agreement expires or is terminated for any reason, all records,
documents, notes, data, and other materials maintained or stored in Consultant's secure
proprietary software pertaining to City will be exported into a XLS, CSV, DOC, or PDF file and
become property of City.

City shall have the right to request access to any documents, papers and records that
Consultant has related to this project for the purposes of audit or examination, except for
Consultant's financial records and contractual records, and may make excerpts and
transcriptions of the same.

Consultant shall keep all documents and records generated in the performance of the
Services under this Agreement for no less than seven (7) years after completion of the
Services and shall make them available to City at City's request. Consultant acknowledges
that such records may be subject to Wisconsin's public records law.

16. SEVERABILITY

If any part of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid for any reason, the remainder of this
Agreement shall be valid to the fullest extent permitted by law.

17. DISCRIMINATION & ADA COMPLIANCE

Consultant will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because
of race, color, religion, age, sex, disability, national origin, or any other protected class. Such
action shall include but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or
transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other
forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Consultant
agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment,
notice to be provided by an agency of the federal government, setting forth the provisions of
the Equal Opportunity Law.



Consultant shall comply with the appropriate provision of the Americans with Disabilities Act
(the "ADA"), as enacted and as from time to time amended, and any other applicable federal
and State of Wisconsin Law or regulations.

18. RECORDS RETENTION

Consultant shall maintain all records pertaining to this Agreement during the term of this
Agreement and for a period of 7 years following its completion. The Consultant shall make
such records available to the City for inspection and copying upon request.

19. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. Professionalism. The same degree of care, skill, and diligence shall be exercised in
performing the services as is possessed and exercised by a member of the same
profession, currently practicing, under similar circumstances. All persons providing such
services under this Agreement shall have such active certifications, licenses, and
permissions as required by law.

B. Pursuant to Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary anywhere else set forth
within this Agreement, all services and any and all materials and/or products provided
by Consultant under this Agreement shall comply with all applicable governmental laws,
statutes, decisions, codes, rules, orders, and ordinances, be they Federal, State, County
or Local.

C. Conflict of Interest. Consultant warrants that neither it nor its affiliates have any
financial or other personal interest that would conflict with the performance of the
services under this Agreement and that neither it nor its affiliates will acquire any such
interest directly or indirectly. Consultant warrants that it will immediately notify the City
if any actual or potential conflict of interest arises or becomes known to the Consultant.
Upon receipt of such notification, a City review and written approval is required for the
Consultant to continue to perform work under this Agreement.

D. This Agreement may only be amended by written instrument signed by City and
Consultant.

20. PROHIBITION AGAINST EMPLOYING ILLEGAL ALIENS

Consultant shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work
under Agreement and will verify immigration status to confirm employment eligibility.
Consultant shall not enter into an Agreement with a subcontractor that fails to certify to the
Consultant that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien
to perform work under this Agreement. Consultant is prohibited from using the program or



the Department program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job
applicants while this Agreement is being performed.

21. NOTICES

Any Notice under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed sufficient when
directly present or sent pre-paid, first-class United States Mail, addressed as follows:

If to City: If to the Consultant:
Director of Administration David Adam (DA) Mattox
9229 W Loomis Rd 12605 W North Ave., #189
Franklin, WI 53132 Brookfield, WI 53005

22. DISPUTE RESOLUTION
In the event a dispute arises out of or related to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, and if
said dispute cannot be settled through negotiation, the venue for any actions arising under
this Agreement shall be the Circuit Court for Milwaukee County. The prevailing party shall be
awarded its actual costs of any such litigation, including reasonable attorney fees.

23. GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall be construed under and governed by the Laws of the State of Wisconsin
and all services to be provided will be provided in accordance with applicable federal, local
state, and local municipal law. This Agreement constitutes the complete, entire and final
Agreement of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and shall
supersede all previous communications, representations, whether oral or written, with
respect to the subject matter hereof.

24. COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement and any amendments may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same
instrument. For the purposes of executing this Agreement, scanned signatures shall be as
valid as the original.

This Agreement, along with attached exhibits, constitutes the complete, entire and final
Agreement of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and shall
supersede any and all previous communications, representations, whether oral or written,
with respect to the subject matter hereof. Invalidation of any of the provisions of this
Agreement or any paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word herein or in the application
thereof in any given circumstance shall not affect the validity of any other provision of this
Agreement.

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Agreement to be executed in their
respective names on the dates hereinafter enumerated.



City: Franklin, Wisconsin

Authorized
Signature: _

Printed
Name: John R. Nelson

Title: Mayor

Date: _

Authorized
]gn1a[ufe;

Printed
Name: Danielle L. Brown

Title: Director of Finance and Treasurer

)-T,

Authorized
Signature: _

Printed
Name: Shirley J. Roberts

Title: City Clerk

Date: _

Approved as to form:

Jesse A. Wesolowski, City Attorney
DATE:

Consultant:------------
Authorized
Signature: _

Printed
Name: _

Title:--------------

)a9,



Exhibit A - Plan Review Services

1. PLAN REVIEW SERVICES
Plan review is limited to Structural, Building, Mechanical, Plumbing, Fire Alarm, and Fire Sprinkler
trades/disciplines.

Each discipline will be reviewed by a plan examiner holding certifications as required by the local
jurisdiction and/or licensed Architect and/or Professional Engineer holding licensure in the State of
Wisconsin.

Disciplines are defined as follows:
■ Building (architectural/ structural)
■ Mechanical (HVAC)
■ Plumbing
• Fire (Sprinkler, Fire Alarm, etc.)

V Post final comprehensive conditional plan approval - required if requested by Jurisdiction of
Authority.
■ Delegated Component Submittal(s)
■ Shop Drawings

2. PLAN REVIEW FEE:
• Building, HVAC, Plumbing, Fire Alarm and Fire Sprinkler Plan Review Fees shall be based upon
the fee schedule adopted by City.

• Plan Review Fees will be split with City.
o 90% of plan review fees are retained by Consultant and 10% are retained by City.

• Out of Consultant's retained fees, Consultant shall be responsible for fees
due to the State of Wisconsin as applicable for plan reviews Consultant
perform as specified in Wisconsin Administrative Code.



1. New construction, additions, alterations and parking lots fees are computed per this table.
2. New construction and additions are calculated based on total gross floor area ofthe structure.
3. A separate plan review fee is charged for each type ofplan review.

Area Building Plans HVACPlans FireAlarm System Fire Suppression System Plans(Square Feet) Plans
Less than 500 sf $100 $100 $100 $100
501 sf- 2,500 $300 $180 $100 $100
2,500 -5,000 $350 $250 $100 $100
5,001- 10,000 $600 $350 $150 $150
10,001- 20,000 $800 $450 $200 $200
20,001 - 30,000 $1,200 $600 $250 $250
30,001 - 40,000 $1,600 $900 $400 $400
40,001 - 50,000 $2,100 $1,200 $550 $550
50,001 - 75,000 $2,900 $1,600 $800 $800
75,001 - 100,000 $3,600 $2,200 $1,100 $1,100
100,001 - 200,000 $6,000 $2,900 $1,400 $1,400
200,001 - 300,000 $10,500 $6,700 $3,300 $3,300
300,001 - 400,000 $15,500 $9,800 $4,800 $4,800
400,001 - 500,000 $18,500 $12,000 $6,300 $6,300
Over 500,000 $20,000 $13,500 $7,100 $7,100

1. A Plan Entry Fee of$100.00 shall be submitted with each submittal ofplans in addition to the plan review

Note:
and inspection fees.
2. At the sole discretion ofthe Supervisor ofBuilding Inspection and Plans Examiner; Fees may be modified,
reduced or waived based on scope ofservices, project type, or other relevant factors.
The area ofa floor is the area bounded by the exterior surface ofthe building walls or the outside face of

Determination ofArea
columns where there is no wall. Area includes all floor levels such as subbasements, basements, ground floors,
mezzanines, balconies, lofts, all stories, and all roofed areas including porches and garages, except for
cantilevered canopies on the building wall. Use the roofarea for free standing canopies.

Structural Plans and When submitted separately from the general building plans, the review fee for structural plans, precast
other Component concrete, laminate wood, beams, cladding elements, other facade features or other structural elements, the

Submittals review fee is $250.00 per plan with an additional $100.00 plan entry fee per each plan set.

Accessory Buildings
The plan review fee for accessory buildings less than 500 square feet shall be $125.00 with the plan entry fee
waived.

Permission to Start The plan review fee for permission to start construction shall be $150.00.

Plan Examination The fee for the extension ofan approved plan review shall be 50% ofthe original plan review fee, not to
Extensions exceed $3,000.00.

Resubmittals & revisions When deemed by the reviewer to be a minor revision from previously reviewed and/or approved plans, the

to approved plans review fee shall be $75.00. Any significant changes or alterations beyond minor amendments as determined
by the Plans Examiner and City Inspection Services Departmentmay result in additional charges as appropriate.

ubmittal of plans after
Where plans are submitted after construction, the standard late submittal fee of $250.00 will be assessed per
each review type that occurred after construction. This is in addition to any other plan entry fees, structural

construction
components and base fees applied to a project.

Expedited Priority Plan
The fee for a priority plan review, which expedites completion ofthe plan review in less than the normal
processing time when the plan is considered ready for review, shall be 200% ofthe fees specified in these

Review
provisions.



Plumbing Plan Review Fee Schedule
Plumbing Site work - Stormwater Review

Acres (area of drained to a plumbing system) Fee

up to 5 $400.00

greater than 5 less than 10 $600.00

greater than 10 up to 15 $750.00

Each acre beyond 15 (rounded up) $750.00 base plus $50.00 per acre

Plumbing Sanitary Drain and Water Supply Laterals

$40.00 per combined inch of pipe size
(diameter pipe rounded up to nearest inch)

Interior Plumbing Plan Review Fee

For all interior plumbing as well as miscellaneous fixtures that necessitate review per SPS 382

Base Plumbing Plan Review fee $250.00 + $3.50 per fixture

Plumbing Plan Review Fee Schedule Notes

All individually submitted plumbing plan sets
plan entry fee. (applies to site work and $100.00
laterals if submitted separately as well)

When deemed by the reviewer to be a minor revision from
previously reviewed and/or approved plans, the review fee

Resubmittals & revisions to approved plans shall be $75.00. Any significant changes or alterations beyond
minor amendments as determined by the Plans Examiner and
Building Inspection Department may result in additional

charges as appropriate.

Early Start The plan review fee for permission to start construction shall be
$150.00 for all structures.

Where plans are submitted after construction, the standard
late submittal fee of $250.00will be assessed per each review

Submittal of plans after construction type that occurred after construction. This is in addition to
any other plan entry fees, structural components and base

fees applied to a project.

The fee for a priority plan review, which expedites completion

Expedited Priority Plan Review
of the plan review in less than the normal processing time

when the plan is considered ready for review, shall be 200% of
the fees specified in these provisions.

At the sole discretion of the Supervisor of Building Inspection and Plans Examiner; Fees may be modified, reduced
or waived based on scope of services, project type, or other relevant factors.



3. Supplemental Services as required by municipality:
• Hourly rate for services beyond what is specified in this Agreement shall be rendered at

$200.00 per hour. This shall only be assessed when prior written consent is provided by City
to Consultant and agreed to by the Consultant in writing.
o This hourly rate is not intended for plan review services, but rather for incidental

supplemental "on call" professional engineering services as required beyond the
scope as outlined in services defined throughout the balance of Exhibit A.

4. PLAN REVIEW FEE - includes the following services:
✓ One optional remote code consultation meeting after conclusion of the first review
✓ Consultation via phone during duration of project regarding reviews performed.
✓ Three (3) reviews of all disciplines to verify that all comments have been addressed.

■ Subsequent reviews may result in resubmittal plan examination fees to be assessed.
✓ Changes to plans after conditional approval is granted may result in resubmittal plan

examination fees to be assessed.
✓ Free code consultation with all inspectors/municipal staff, both employed directly and under

contract, serving the City of Franklin for entirety of duration of any project reviewed by E­
Plan Exam, regardless of any contract in place with that entity and the City of Franklin. This
free consultation period shall extend prior to any formal submission of any plan documents
to the conclusion of any project reviewed or termination of this Agreement (whichever
occurs first).

5. TIME OF PERFORMANCE
✓ Plan review turnaround time shall be fifteen (15) business days after full receipt by Consultant

of all required documents as required by the Department of Safety and Professional Services
as well as the City of Franklin Municipal Code.
o Plan Review turnaround time is defined as the timeframe from date of full receipt of

plans to conclusion of plan review. Conclusion of plan review date will be determined
by date that plans are listed as one of the following as dictated by best practices with
the State of Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services:

■ Conditionally Approved
■ Hold - Request for Additional Information
■ Denied

6. CONSULTANT CONTACT
Consultant will provide a qualified professional to oversee this project. They are available by
phone and email using the contact information listed below.

Plan Review Management Contact
David Adam Mattox, P.E.
414-736-4721
damattox@eplanexam .com

Plan Review Management Contact
John Cunningham
414-336-4470
Johncunningham@eplanexam.com
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APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

STANDARDS, FINDINGS AND DECISION
OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN COMMON
COUNCIL UPON THE APPLICATION OF
JOHN SPITZ, FOX GLEN CORPORATE
CENTRE, LLC, APPLICANT, FOR A
SPECIAL EXCEPTION TO CERTAIN

NATURAL RESOURCE PROVISIONS OF
THE CITY OF FRANKLIN

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE

MEETING
DATE

10/01/24

ITEM NUMBER

District 4

This item was tabled at the September 17, 2024 meeting at the request ofthe applicant.

This Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE) request is to allow for impacts to
wetland buffer, and wetland setback to allow for restoration of these features as part of
the resolution of an enforcement case for unpermitted fill on properties located at 11027
S 27TH ST/ 978 9998 000 and 0 W South County Line Rd./ 978 9999 001. The
Common Council originally heard the item at the August 6, 2024 meeting.

During review ofthe NRSE, staff identified encroachments in the regulatory floodplain.
Based on this information, the previous draft of the Standards, Findings, and Decision
included conditions for NRSE approval of the floodplain encroachments, in addition to
the applicant's request.

At the August meeting, the Common Council tabled this request for an NRSE to allow
for resolution of the floodplain issue.

Staff has revised the draft Standards, Findings, and Decision document to clarify
proposed conditions regarding floodplain requirements. Draft text for conditions four
and five were deleted, and new text for condition four inserted. The text before Council
today limits the scope of the approval to the applicant's original request to allow for
restoration ofwetland buffer.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Adopt the standards, findings and decision of the City of Franklin Common Council
upon the application of John Spitz, Fox Glen Corporate Centre, LLC Applicant, for a
special exception to certain natural resource provisions of the City of Franklin Unified
Development Ordinance.

Department of City Development: MX



REVISED Draft September 12, 2024

Standards, Findings and Decision
of the City of Franklin Common Council upon the Application of John Spitz, Fox

Glen Corporate Centre, LLC, applicant, for a Special Exception
to Certain Natural Resource Provisions of the City of Franklin

Unified Development Ordinance

Whereas, John Spitz, Fox Glen Corporate Centre, LLC, applicant, having filed
an application dated September 3, 2021, for a Special Exception pursuant to Section
15-9.0110 of the City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance pertaining to the
granting of Special Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Navigable Water-related,
Wetland, Wetland Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and Improvements or
Enhancements to a Natural Resource Feature; a copy of said application being
annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A; and

Whereas, the application having been reviewed by the City of Franklin
Environmental Commission and the Commission having made its recommendation
upon the application, a copy of said recommendation dated June 26, 2024 being
annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B; and

Whereas, following a public hearing before the City of Franklin Plan
Commission, the Plan Commission having reviewed the application and having made
its recommendation thereon as set forth upon the report of the City of Franklin
Planning Department, a copy of said report dated July 18, 2024 being annexed hereto
and incorporated herein as Exhibit C; and

Whereas, the property which is the subject of the application for a Special
Exception is located at 11027 S 27TH ST /978 9998 000 and O W South County Line
Rd. / 978 9999 001, zoned Planned Development District 39, and such property is
more particularly described upon Exhibit D annexed hereto and incorporated herein;
and

Whereas, Section 15-10.0208B. of the City of Franklin Unified Development
Ordinance, as amended by Ordinance No. 2003-1747, pertaining to the granting of
Special Exceptions to Stream, Shore Buffer, Navigable Water-related, Wetland,
Wetland Buffer and Wetland Setback Provisions, and Improvements or
Enhancements to a Natural Resource Feature, provides in part: "The decision of the
Common Council upon any decision under this Section shall be in writing, state the
grounds of such determination, be filed in the office of the City Planning Manager
and be mailed to the applicant."

Now, Therefore, the Common Council makes the following findings pursuant
to Section 15-10.0208B.2.a., b. and c. of the Unified Development Ordinance upon
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the application for a Special Exception dated April 22, 2024, by John Spitz, Fox Glen
Corporate Centre, LLC, applicant, pursuant to the City of Franklin Unified
Development Ordinance, the proceedings heretofore had and the recitals and matters
incorporated as set forth above, recognizing the applicant as having the burden of
proof to present evidence sufficient to support the following findings and that such
findings be made by not less than four members of the Common Council in order to
grant such Special Exception.

1. That the condition(s) giving rise to the request for a Special Exception were not
self-imposed by the applicant (this subsection a. does not apply to an application to
improve or enhance a natural resource feature): NotApplicable.

2. That compliance with the stream, shore buffer, navigable water-related, wetland,
wetland buffer, and wetland setback requirement will:

a. be unreasonably burdensome to the applicant and that there are no reasonable
practicable alternatives; or

b. unreasonably and negatively impact upon the applicant's use of the property and
that there are no reasonable practicable alternatives: The applicantproposes to restore
impacted resources as required by City ofFranklin UDO Part 4.

3. The Special Exception, including any conditions imposed under this Section will:

a. be consistent with the existing character of the neighborhood; and

b. not effectively undermine the ability to apply or enforce the requirement with
respect to other properties; and

c. be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the provisions of this
Ordinance proscribing the requirement; and

d. preserve or enhance the functional values of the stream or other navigable water,
shore buffer, wetland, wetland buffer, and/or wetland setback in co-existence with the
development: (this findng only applying to an applicaton to improve or enhance a
natural resource feature). The applicant proposes to restore impacted resources as
required by City ofFranklin UDO Part 4.

The Common Council considered the following factors in making its
determinations pursuant to Section 15-10.0208B.2.d. of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

1. Characteristics of the real property, including, but not limited to, relative
placement of improvements thereon with respect to property boundaries or otherwise
applicable setbacks: Theproperty is currently vacant ofstructures.
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2. Any exceptional, extraordinary, or unusual circumstances or conditions applying
to the lot or parcel, structure, use, or intended use that do not apply generally to other
properties or uses in the same district: The applicant proposes to restore impacted
resources as required by City ofFranklin UDO Part 4.

3. Existing and future uses of property; useful life of improvements at issue;
disability of an occupant: The property is currently vacant ofstructures. The site is
zoned Planned Development District 39 which allows for light manufacture, office,
and other business uses.

4. Aesthetics: The applicant proposes to restore impacted resources as required by
City ofFranklin UDO Part 4.

5. Degree of noncompliance with the requirement allowed by the Special Exception:
None. The applicant proposes to restore impacted resources as required by City of
Franklin UDO Part 4.

6. Proximity to and character of surrounding property: area of impact is in the
middle ofthese lots which are currently vacant ofstructures.

7. Zoning of the area in which property is located and neighboring area: PDD 39
(north and west), Outside corporate boundary (south and east).

8. Any negative affect upon adjoining property: The applicant proposes to restore
impacted resources as required by City ofFranklin UDO Part 4.

9. Natural features of the property: Wetland with buffer and setback, river shoreline,
woodland, environmental corridor, floodplain.

10. Environmental impacts: The applicantproposes to restore impacted resources as
required by City ofFranklin UDO Part 4.

11. A recommendation from the Environmental Commission as well as a review and
recommendation prepared by an Environmental Commission-selected person
knowledgeable in natural systems: The Environmental Commission recommendation
and its reference to the report ofJune 26, 2024 is incorporated herein

12. The practicable alternatives analysis required by Section 15-9.011 0C.4. of the
Unified Development Ordinance and the overall impact of the entire proposed use or
structure, performance standards and analysis with regard to the impacts of the
proposal, proposed design solutions for any concerns under the Ordinance, executory
actions which would maintain the general intent of the Ordinance in question, and
other factors relating to the purpose and intent of the Ordinance section imposing the
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requirement: The Plan Commission recommendation and the Environmental
Commission recommendation address thesefactors and are incorporated herein.

Decision

Upon the above findings and all ofthe files and proceedings heretofore had
upon the subject application, the Common Council hereby grants a Special Exception
for such reliefas is describedwithin Exhibit C, upon the conditions:

I. that the natural resourcefeatures and mitigation areas upon the properties to be
developed be protected by a perpetual conservation easement to be approved by
the Common Council prior to any development within the areas for which the
Special Exception is grantedprior to the issuance ofany Occupancy Permits;

2. that the applicant obtain all other necessary approval(s) from all other applicable
governmental agencies prior to any development within the areas for which the
Special Exception is granted,

3. that all development within the areas for which the Special Exception is granted
shall proceed pursuant to and be governed by the approved Natural Resource
Protection Plan and all other applicable plansfor John Spitz, Fox Glen Corporate
Centre, LLC, applicant, and all other applcable provisions of the Unified
Development Ordinance.

4. The applicant must submit and obtain approvalfrom the Planning Department of
a Land Use Permit to resolve changes to the floodplain prior to approval ofa
gradingpermit.

5. The applicant must include maintenance information/guarantees in proposed
restoration plans.

6. The applicant shall providefor a diverse native seed mix, includng short and long
stem grasses andforbs, to beplanted in restoration areas.

7. Once restoration is complete, the applicant shall install construction fencing to
protect wetland, buffer and setback from further encroachments during fill
removal work, and remove the constructionfencing when work is complete.

8. The applicant shall place boulders, fencing, or other permanent boundary in such
a way that the wetland buffer cannot be encroached upon or mowed after
completion ofrestoration.

The duration ofthis grant ofSpecial Exception is permanent.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of> 2024.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting ofthe Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of2024.

APPROVED:

4



ATTEST:

Shirley J. Robinson, City Clerk

AYES __ NOES ABSENT

5

John R. Nelson, Mayor



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE
2023-2569, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE
2024 ANNUAL BUDGET FORTHE STREET
IMPROVEMENT FUNDAND CAPITAL

OUTLAY FUND TO RE-APPROPRIATE $61,000
OF STREET IMPROVEMENT

APPROPRIATIONS FORTHE PURCHASE OF A
SHOULDERING MACHINE

MEETING DATE
October 1, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

Background
On November 28, 2023, the Common Council adopted Ordinance No. 2023-2569 which adopted the 2024
Annual Budget.

The Street Improvement Fund focuses funding for local street improvements associated with the Local Street
Improvement Program. The funding sources for the Local Street Improvement Program is resources from
general property taxes, state transportation aids, a portion of landfill siting fees, and a biennial state grant for
Local Road Improvements.

The Capital Outlay Fund focuses on capital expenditures for general capital asset purchases. It covers
various capital-intensive items, such as vehicles, infrastructure improvements, and building related
expenses. In this case, the Local Street Improvement Program requires a contractor to use a shouldering
machine. The Director of Public Works determined the City would save money by purchasing the machine and
doing the work instead ofhiring the contractor to do it on an annual basis.

Recommendation
The Director of Finance & Treasurer recommends the proposed 2024 Budget Amendment to re­
appropriate the funds so the City can purchase this general asset for public works use.

Fiscal Note
The reallocation of funding allows for the purchase to be made as well as keeping the Local Street
Improvement Program within budget.
The GL Numbers Associated with this amendment are:

Capital Outlay Fund - Fund 41
41-0331-5811 Auto Equipment
41-0000-4830 Transfers from Other Funds
Street Improvement Fund - Fund 47
47-0000-5597 Transfer to Capital Outlay

Increase
Increase

Increase

$61,000
$61,000

$61,000

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED
Motion adopting Ordinance No. 2024- .an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2023-2569, an
Ordinance adopting the 2024 Annual Budget for the Street Improvement Fund and Capital Outlay Fund
to Re-Appropriate $61,000 of Street Improvement Appropriations for the Purchase of a Shouldering
Machine.

Roll Call Vote Required
Finance Dept - DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2024­---

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2023-2569, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2024 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND AND

CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND TO RE-APPROPRIATE $61,000 OF STREET IMPROVEMENT
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE PURCHASE OF A SHOULDERING MACHINE

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2024 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 28, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the 2024 Annual Budget appropriated street improvement appropriations for
the Local Street Improvement Program; and

WHEREAS, the Director of Public Works deems it appropriate to purchase a shouldering
machine for the general use of the City and provide cost saving services; and

WHEREAS, a budget amendment is needed to re-appropriate the $61,000 expenditure
from the Street Improvement Fund into the Capital Outlay Fund; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That the 2024 Street Improvement Fund Budget be amended as follows:

Street Improvement Fund
0000 Transfers Out Capital Outlay Increase $61,000

Section 2 That the 2024 Capital Outlay Fund Budget be amended as follows:

Capital Outlay Fund
0331 Highway
0000 Transfers In

Auto Equipment
Other Funds

Increase
Increase

$61,000
$61,000

Section 3

Section 4

Section 5

Pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 65.90(5)(ar), the City Clerk is hereby directed to post a
notice of this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this
Resolution on the City's web site.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, or otherwise be legally invalid or fail under the applicable rules of
law to take effect and be in force, the remaining terms and provisions shall
remain in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts ofordinances in contravention to this ordinance are hereby
repealed.



Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
_day of2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--



~~COMPANY

BILLTO:
CITY OF FRANKLIN
9229 W LOOMIS RD
FRANKLIN, WI, 53132

Purchaser's Order

SHIPTO:
CITY OF FRANKLIN
9229w LOOMIS RD
FRANKLIN, WI, 53132
Via: Customer Pick Up @ Aring

The undersigned Purchaser whose name and address is given above, hereby purchases fromARING EQUIPMENT' COMPANY, INC ("Aring") the goods described belowor on the
auachcd specifications and to secure payment and perfonnance of Debtor's obligation in hisAgrement toAring or Aring's permitted assignee("Obligations") purchaser grants to
Aring a securly interest In the goods described below and all accessions to, and spare and repair parlS, special tools and equipment for thesame, Any SALES or USE TAXapplicable
to this order shall be paid by PURCHASER

Quantity Make

1 ROAD
WIDENER

InventoryDetails

ROAD WIDENER SHOULDERINGMACHINE
Road Widener FHR Right Hand Shouldering Machine
/w Remote
14 pin connector

Unit Price

$ 61,000.00

Sub Total

Sales Tax

Interest (If Applicable)

F.E.T. (IfApplicable)

Grand Total

Down Payment

Unpaid Balance

Total

$ 61,000.00

$ 61,000.00

$0.00

$ 61,000.00

$ 61,000 00

Warranty; 12 month Manufacturer Warranty
Payment Terms: Net 30 Days

BILLOF SALEFOR PROPERTYTAKEN IN TRADE

Forvalue received, the undersigned sellsARING EQUIPMENT COMPANY, INC, these goods.

MAKE None

MODEL

SERIAL

YEAR

MAKE.

MODEL.

SERIAL

VEAR

The undersigned warrant(s) that the undersigned is the owner of the goods, free from all liens, incumbrances, and security mnterests

THIS PURCHASE IS SUBJECTTO THETERMSAND CONDITIONSSETFORTH ON THEREVERSESIDE

PURCHASER'S NAME Rch Katzfey TITLE

PURCHASER'SSIGNATURE Z,. k------
ore -23-24

SALESMAN ORWITNESS



Terms& Conditions

1. OFFER, GOVERNING PROVISIONSAND CANCELLATION. ThisAgreement is an otter by Purchaser to Aring Equipment Company, Inc ("Seller"). Once
accepted by seller, it shall supersede anyandall poor agreements relatmg to the goods described on the Purchaser'sOrder attached hereto. Thiswriting is not an
acceptance of any offer made to Purchaser: and Purchaser acknowledges that Seller objects to any additional or different terms which may be contained in any
acknowledgement or other form. or in any other communication heretofore or hereafter received from Purchaser THESE TERMSAND CONDITIONS, WHEN
ACCEPTED BYSELLER, SHALL CONSTITUTETHEENTIREAGREEMENT BETWEEN SELLERAND PURCHASER,AND SHALL BEGOVERNED BYAND
CONSTRUEDACCORDING TO THE INTERNAL LAWSOFTHESTATEOFWISCONSIN. No order may be canceled or altered by the Purchaser except upon
terms and conditions acceptable to Seller, as evidenced by Seller'swritten consent
2, RISK OF LOSS. RIsk of loss or damage shall pass to Purchaser upon commencement of loading at Seller's place of business and shall remain with Purchaser
until the goods are completely unloaded upon return Notwithstanding the foregoing, title to the goods, and all accessions to the goods, shall remain with Seller
unUI payment in full of the purchase price and of other amounts owing Seller have been paid, Seller may reclaim any goods delivered to Purchaser or In transit If
Purchaser shali fail to make any payment when due. Seller shall not be liable for anydamage as a result of anydelaydue to anycause beyond Seller's
reasonable control, Including. but not limited to, any act of God, or delay ,n ttansportation.
3, PRICE AND PAYMENT, The prices in thisAgreement are Seller's prices for such goodswith the Exclusion of Consequential Damages and Disclalmer ot Other
Liabilities, as found in Paragraph 5 below. including the disclaimer of negligence, strict liability and other tort liabtlity. If Purchaser desires for Seller to provide a
'greater or additionalwarranty and/or to be fiabe for some or al of the matters disclaimed in Paragraph 5, and/or to be bable for consequentla) or incidental
damages, then the Purchasermust notify Seller before Purchaser accepts (or Is deemed to accept) this offer pursuant to Paragraph 1, In which event Seller will
amend this offer to reflect higher soles prices reasonably compensating Seller for assuming that additional exposure. In the absence of such a notification, by
accepting this offer Purchaser is accepting such limitations and disclaimers In exchange for the lower prices set fonh herein. If Purchaser does not receive an
Invoice, or claims not to have received an invoice, Purchaser shall pay for the goods In full within 30 days of receipt of the goods. Interest at the compound rate of
1 5% per month, shall be paid by Purchaser for all amounts not paid when due. All costs of collection including reasonable attorney lees, shall be paid
by Purchaser
4, WARRANT'ES. Seller providesnowarrantes, expressor implied, and specifically excludes anywarranty of merchantability or fitness tor a particular purpose,
and all goods sold here under are sold "AS IS "To the extent Seller mayhave provided anywritten warranties on the face of thisAgreement or as otherwise
documented, such warranty is limited to the terms thereof, Claims for shortages or other errors or defectsmust be made in writing to Seller wthun thrty (30) days
after receipt of the goods or equipment, except anydefects that cannot be discoveredwithin said period of time, In spite of a most careful examination, shall be
made in writing within thirty (30) days after discovery, and failure to glve suchnotice shallconstitute unqualified acceptance and a waiver of all such claims by
Purchaser, If Purct1aser does not, without delay, return the goods declared to be defective, or If It does not allow Seller to Inspect said goods, or if Purchaser
repairs any such goods without Seller's written consent. any and all claims shall be waived. If the Manufacturer (not Seller) provides a warranty, it shall be
assgned or given to Purchaser,
5. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGESAND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY; PURCHASER'S INDEMNITY. The liability of each party hereto with
respect to any breach of thsAgreement or any breach of any warranty that would be found to exist shall in no event exceed the contract price SELLER SHALL
NOT BESUBJECT TOAND DISCLAIMS (l)ANY OTHER OBLIGATIONSOR LIABILITIESARISING UNDER THISAGREEMENT OUT OF BREACH
OF CONTRACT OR OFWARRANTY, (2)ANYOBLIGATIONSWHATSOEVERARISING FROM TORT CLAIMS (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCEAND STRICT
LIABILITY) ORARISING UNDER OTHER THEORIESOF LAWWITH RESPECTTOTHISAGREEMENT, ORANYUNDERTAKINGS, ACTSOR OMISSIONS
RELATING THERETO, AND (3) ALL CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTALAND CONTINGENT DAMAGESWHATSOEVER RELATED TO THISAGREEMENT
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Seller specifically disclaims any liability for penalties (including administrative penalties), special or punitive
damages, damages tor lost profits or revenues. loss of use of products or anyassociated equipment. cost of capltal, facilkies or services, downtime, shut-down or
slow-down costs. spoilage of material, or for any other types of economic loss. Purchaser shall indemnify Seller against anyand all losses, liabilities, damages
and expenses (including without limitation, attorneys• fees and other costs of defending any action) which Seller may incur as a result ol any claim by Purchaser or
others arising out of or in connection with the products and/or servicessold hereunderand based on product or service defects not proven to have been caused
solely by Seller's negligence,
6. MAINTENANCEOF GOODS. Purchaser shall maintain the goods in good condition and repair and not permit their value to be impaired, keep the goods free
from all liens, encumbrances and security interests (other than Seller's security interest); defend them against all claims and legal proceedings by person other
than Seller, pay and discharge when due all taxes, license fees, levies and other charges upon them, not sell, lease or otherwise dispose of them or permit them to
become accession to other goods except as may be agreed to bySeller in writing. Until the goods are paid forcompletely, Seller shall have the right to inspect the
goods, wherever located, and Purchaser shall provide all reasonably requested assistance to Seller in making any such inspection
7. INSURANCE. Purchaser shall keep the goods and Seller's interest in them insured under policieswith such provisions, for such amounts and by such insurers
as shall be satisfactory to Seller, which insurance shall list Seller as anadditional insured Purchaser assigns {and directs any insurer to pay) to Seller the
proceeds of all such insurance and any premium refund and authorizesSeller to endorse in the name of Purchaser any instrument tor such proceeds or
refunds and , at the option of Seller, to apply such proceedsand refundsto any unpaid balance, whether or not due, and/or to restoration of the goods, returning
anyexcess to Purchaser Seller Is herebyauthorized by Purchaser lo make, adjust, settle claims under the insurance Purchaser shall furnish evidence of such
insurance to Seller within 30 days of the date ot thisAgreement.
8, MAINTENANCEOF SECURITY INTEREST. To secure payment of the purchase price, Purchaser herebygrants Seller a security interest In the goods
described.on the Purchaser's Order attached hereto, and Purchaser shall pay all expenses andshall take any action reasonably requested by Seller to preserve
the goods or to establish, perfect, terminate and/or enforce Seller's security interest in the goods under thisAgreement.
9. DEFAULT, The following shall constitute an event ot default:;
a Purchaser fails to pay amounts owing hereunderwhen due,
b Nonperformance In any material respect by Purchaser of any of the requirements of thisAgreement,
c Misrepresentation by Purchaser
In the event ot any default by Purchaser, al} of the obligationsof Purchaser, at the optlon of Seller, shalbecome immediatelydue and payable
10. REMEDIES. In addition to any other remedies allowed by law, upon default, Seller shall be entitled to the following
a. Upon notice from Seller, Purchaser shall assemble the goods and deliver them to Seller at a place designated by Seller;
b. Purchaser shall reimburse Seller for any reasonable and documented expense incurred by Seller in protecting or enforcing its rights hereir1, Including
reasonable attorney fees
c, It Purchaser falls to perform any obligation under thisAgreement, Seller may, but is not obligated to, perform in Purchaser's name, Including without limitation
signing Purchasers name. In the event Seller expends anyfunds performing the obligations of Purchaser, Purchaser shall reimburse Seller, with the payment(s)
being due immediately, Purchaser agrees that 10 calender dayswten notice, sent to the last known address of Purchas.er, shall for all purposes be reasonable
notice, Including for the proposed disposition of the goods Seller may permit Purchaser to remedy any default without waiving any other default by Purchaser
11. JURISDICTION. Purchaser agrees that all claims or disputes relating to thisAgreement shall be brought in Waukesha County, Wisconsin and that the State of
Wisconsin Courts are Courtsot competent jurisdiction.
12. PURCHASER'S PROPERTY.Any property of the Purchaser placed In Seller's custody for performance of thiscontract is not covered by insurance, and no
riskis assumed by Seller In the event of loss or damage to such property by fire, waler. burglary, theft, civil disorder or any accident beyond the reasonable control
of the Seller,
13. SEVERASILITY. II any of these Terms and Conditions shallbe deemed illegal or unenforceable, such Illegality 01 unenforceabililY shall not affect the validity
and enforce-ability ot any legal and enforceable provisions hereof which shall be construed as if such illegal and unenforceable provision or provisions had not
been inserted, unless such illegality or unenforceability shall destroy the underlying business purpose of these Terms and Conditions.
14. MACHINE TELEMATICS
A The equipment in this agreement may be equipped with a Telematics System, Telematics data provides information about the location of the Machine, Machine
utllliation, the numbers on the Machine's hour meter, alerts for scheduled maintenance, and similar Information Intended to enhance the Customer's knowledge
about and use of the Machine



B. Dealer acknowledges that collection and transmittal of Data within the context of the Telematics System may implicate privacy and notice concerns by certain
individuals, including, but not limited to, the Machine user For purposes of collecting, analyzing and transmitting Customer Requested lnlormatlon for the
Customer's use, Customer agrees to Indemnify and hold harmless the Dealer, Manufacturer, affiliates, and successors from and against any liability in connection
with such actions, including with respect to any
applicable privacy laws,
c. Customer consents to the transfer of Data to and use of the Data by Dealer and the Manufacturer for error detection and monitoring purposes marketing
purposes, product development processes, and statistical purposes.
D. Customer acknowledges and agrees that customer is solely responsible for the maintenance and upkeep of the Machine Notwithstanding this Agreement,
customer's use of the Telematics System, or Manufacturer's collection and use of the Data, neither the Manufacturer, its agents, nor its authorized dealers or
repairers shal have any duty or obligation whatsoever to Customer to provide any repairs or shall have any duty or obligation whatsoever to Customer to provide
any services or maintenance to Customer with respect to the Machine. Neither the Manufacturer nor Dealer shall be liable for any damages, costs or llabilllles
arising out of or relating to Customer's failure or lnablllty to maintain or service the Machine
E. If Customer prefers not to receive Customer Requested Information or permit Dealer or Manufacturer use of the Data, then Customer shall notty Dealer and
Dealer will remove, modify or disable telematics system, as appropriate, but Customer shall not remove, modify or disable any telematlcs Hardware without
Dealer's prior written consent.

mas 2k Date



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE
2023-2569, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE
2024 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT FUND TO PROVIDE

ADDITIONAL $8,000 APPROPRIATIONS AND
RESOURCES FOR THE SCHOOL TRAFFIC

SIGNAL PROJECT

MEETING DATE
October 1, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

Background

The 2024 Annual Budget appropriated $250,000 towards the school traffic signal project. Additionally, $43,500
was carried forward from the 2023 Budget to provide for the design costs. The project design was completed
and bids were solicited and received on May 2, 2024. Bids were higher than anticipated and required a budget
amendment to proceed. On June 18, 2024, Resolution No. 2024-8165 was adopted to amend the raSmith, Inc.
contract to provide an additional $8,000 for construction services.

Recommendation
The Director of Finance & Treasurer recommends the proposed 2024 Budget Amendment to provide for
the completion of the school traffic signal project.

Fiscal Note

Initially, there is a direct impact to the City Budget as the funding is to be provided solely by the City.
However, the City of Franklin has a Memorandum ofUnderstanding (MOU) with Franklin Public Schools. The
MOU states that the School District shall reimburse the City 50% of the total project costs and the City's share
is not to exceed $200,000. There is a written understanding with Franklin Public Schools that their cost directly
related to this project, and payable within 30 days from the date of sending an invoice to the school district, is
$262,612.07.

The GL Numbers associated with this amendment are:

Capital Outlay Fund - Fund 46

Revenue:
46-0000-4781

Expenditure:
46-0331-5839.9780

Refunds/Reimbursements

Traffic Signals-School Traffic Light

Increase

Increase

$8,000

$8,000

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion adopting Ordinance No. 2024- . an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2023-2569, an
Ordinance adopting the 2024 Annual Budget for the Capital Improvement Fund to Provide Additional
$8,000 Appropriations and Resources for the School Traffic Signal Project.

Roll Call Vote Required

Finance Dept - DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2024­

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2023-2569, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2024 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND TO

PROVIDE ADDITIONAL $8,000 APPROPRIATIONS AND RESOURCES FOR THE
SCHOOL TRAFFIC SIGNAL PROJECT

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2024 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 28, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the 2024 Annual Budget appropriated $250,000 for the Franklin school traffic
light project; and

WHEREAS, additional appropriations are needed to fully fund and support the amendment
for construction services; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin has a signed Memorandum of Understanding with
Franklin Public Schools for a cost share of this project; and

WHEREAS, Franklin Public Schools intends to reimburse the City of Franklin a total of
$262,612.07 for the school traffic light project; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That the 2024 Capital Improvement Fund Budget be amended as follows:

Capital Improvement Fund
0000 Misc. Revenue
0331 Highway

Refunds/Reimbursements
Traffic Signals

Increase
Increase

$8,000
$8,000

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 65.90(5)(ar), the City Clerk is hereby directed to post a
notice of this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this
Resolution on the City's web site.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, or otherwise be legally invalid or fail under the applicable rules of
law to take effect and be in force, the remaining terms and provisions shall
remain in full force and effect.

Allordinaneesandpartsofordinaneesincontraventiontothisordinancearehereb
repealed.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
_day of>2024.



ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

AYES NOES ABSENT



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

AResolution for Amendment 1 to raSmith, Inc. to Provide
Construction Related Services for the

Traffic Signal at S. 51" Street and S. Preserve Way
for $8,000

TG,DATEose18 2024

rrE,
st 5

5.
BACKGROUND
A traffic signal is being constructed at S. 51 st Street and S. Preserve Way. RaSmith, Inc. completed
the design for this project and during the pre-construction meeting it was noted that raSmith's
services did not extend into the construction phase.

ANALYSIS
Per the City's agreement with the Franklin Public Schools, any extra expenses are at the cost of
the Schools since the City's commitment of $200,000 is maxed.

Staff has discussed with Andrew Chromy, Assistant Superintendent of Business and Operations at
Franklin Public Schools the need for some oversight related to review of shop drawings, final
inspection, and other potential services and the Franklin Schools agree that this is a beneficial
endeavor and are willing to fund the not to exceed cost of $8,000 for this service.

Note that the City Engineering and DPW Staffs are self-performing much of the inspection and
oversight efforts.

OPTIONS
Approve, Deny, Modify, or Table the raSmith amendment.

FISCAL NOTE
There will need to be a future budget amendment for this expense, but again, it does not increase
the $200,000 commitment from the City for this project.

RECOMMENDATION
Authorize Resolution 2024- A Resolution for Amendment 1 to raSmith, Inc. to provide
construction related services for the Traffic Signal at S. 51st Street and S, Preserve Way for $8,000.

Engineering: GEM;



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2024 - _

A RESOLUTION FORAMENDMENT 1 TO RASMITH, INC. TO PROVIDE
CONSTRUCTIONRELATED SERVICES FORTHE

TRAFFIC SIGNAL AT S. 51ST STREET AND S. PRESERVEWAY FOR S8,000
it - ioobe i

WHEREAS, there have historically been traffic concerns at S. 51 st Street and S, Preserve
Way before and after school at the Franklin High School (822 • 51Street); and

WHEREAS, the City and the Franklin Public School District have a memorandum of
understanding to construct a traffic signal at this intersection and provide other traffic and safety
improvements along S. 51 st Street; and

WHEREAS, raSmith, Inc. performed the design of the signal and should be available as
needed during the construction phase.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, to authorize amendment 1 to the professional engineering services
contract with raSmith, Inc. to design Traffic Signal and Roadway Design Improvements for a
Traffic Signal at S. 51st Street and S. Preserve Way for a not to exceed amount of $8,000; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed
to execute the amendment contract on behalf of the City.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of.2024, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of 2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



AMENDMENT

This Amendment 1 To Agreement dated November 9, 2023 between the City of Franklin
(OWNER) and R.A. Smith, Inc (CONTRACTOR) to provide post-design services during the
construction phase of the S. 51 Street Traffic Signal and Roadway Improvements project.

Description of Modifications. CONTRACTOR to provide post-design services beyond the
original scope of services as outlined in proposal dated June 6, 2024 and attached as Attachment
A-1.

For the Additional Services or the modifications to services set forth above, OWNER shall pay
CONTRACTOR additional compensation up to $8,000 based on a time and materials contract.

All provisions of the Agreement not modified by this amendment remain in effect.

The effective date of this Amendment is June 13, 2024

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

BY _

PRINT NAME John R. Nelson

TITLE Mayor
DATE _

BY _

PRINT NAME Shurley J Roberts

TITLE City Clerk

[)[

BY _

PRINT NAME Danielle Brown, MBA

TITLE Drector of Finance and Treasurer
DATE _

Approved as to form

Jesse A Wesolowski, CyAttorney

DATE _

Date June 13, 2024

R.A SMITH, INC

BY _

PRINT NAME John Bruggeman

TITLE Traffic Project Manager
DATE _

Page 1 of 1



r Smith
Attachment A-1

RA Smith, Inc

16745 W Bluemound Road
Brookfield,w1 53005.5938
[262) 781-1000 ] rasmith.comCREATIVITY BEYOND ENGINEERING

June 6, 2024

Mr Glen Morrow, P E
City Engineer/ Director of PubhcWorks/Ut1hty Manager
City of Franklin
9229 W Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

RE· Traffic Signal and Roadway Design Improvements- Post-Design Services
S 51st Street
Franklin, Wisconsin

Dear Glen

Thank you for this opportunity to provide a quotation for post-design services on the subJect proJect The contents
of this letter contract spell out the Scope of Services, Cbent Respons1b1lItIes/Assumpbons. and Professional Fees
under which this proposal is being made

Scope of Services

The following non-inclusive lst of potental services was developed based on discussions with the City and our
knowledge of the project

POST-DESIGN SERVICES

1) Review shop drawings and other product subm1ttals requiring approval from the contractor

2) Review of list ofpay items submitted by the contractor

3) Final walk-through ofsignal equipment installation

4) Review ofmaterials testing and procedures

5) Review and approval offinal traffic signal base and pull box staking locations

6) Contractor coordmatIon regarding questions and issues not related to the design

7) Spot checks durng construction to confirmwork s progressing as designed

These services wll be completed on a time-and-ratenals bass as authorzed

Client Responsibilities/Assumptions
Based on d1scuss1ons with the Caty and our knowledge ofthe proJect, the following assumptions will apply Any
change to these assumptions may result In add1tIonal fees

• Feld survey data, mncludng topography, utilities, and nght ofway, ts not included in the project All construction
dec1s1ons and guidancewill be based on the best available information from the design plans, utility locates,
and discussionswith the construction team

Construction management services are not included In thas scope ofservices Ifrequested, construction
management services will be provided under a separate contract

Brook.held, WI I Milwaukee, WI I Appleton, WI I Madison, WI I Cedarburg, WI
Naperville, IL I Irvine, CA



Attachment A-1

rSmith
Mr Glen Morrow, P E
Page 2 / June 6, 2024

Professional Fees

raSm1th will complete the Scope of Services outlined on a time and matenals basis for a fee not to exceed
$8,000 00

We look forward to working with you on this pr01ect1

Sincerely,
raSmith

l 4,
•e.o
Senior Traffic Project Manager

blh T\1230007\Contract\ProposalEP 240605 Morrow - 51st & Preserve Post-Design Services docx



Glen Morrow

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Chromy, Andy <andy.chromy@frankhnk12.w1.us>
Thursday, June 13, 2024 8.03 AM
Glen Morrow
Re: FW. 51st St - Post-Design Services

Yes. That makes sense Glen and we will cover this cost.

Andy

On Wed, Jun 12, 2024 at 8:31 PM Glen Morrow <GMorrow@frankllnwl.gov> wrote:

Andy,

As we discussed in the pre-con meeting, raSmlth's services did not extend past that meeting. I would feel much more
comfortable if the consultant was available as needed as I am not a signal guy. The City will self-perform the day to day
inspections, but it would be beneficial to have them available for the review of the shop drawings and final
inspection Enclosed 1s a proposal, time and materials, as needed for up to $8k. I will do my best to limit their hours
and only call for the critical approvals

If I take this to Common Council next week, they will want to know if you are m agreement for payment since the City
maxed out the $200k. can you confirm?

From: Bruggeman, John <John.Bruggeman@raSmith.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 11:25 PM
To: Glen Morrow <GMorrow@frankllnwl.gov>
Subject: 51st St - Post-Design Services

H1 Glen- please review the attached proposal. If you are In general concurrence with the proposal, I can include 1t as
part of the City's contract boilerplate like we did with the original proposal.

Thanks,

John P, Bruggeman, P E., PTOE
Senior Traffic Project Manager

1



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COMMONCOUNCIL ACTION

Acceptance of the 2023 Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report for the City of Franklin

MEETING DATE

October 1, 2024

ITEM NUMBER.1.
Background
CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP (CLA) has completed the 2023 Audit and the 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report (ACFR) for the City of Franklin was prepared. A copy of the 2023 Annual Financial Report is attached
for your review.

An audit of the City's accounts is required by State Statute. A complimentary report is filed with the
Department of Revenue and various other regulatory and funding agencies.

The Finance Committee reviewed the report at their September 24, 2024 meeting and recommends Common
Council accept the report and place on file.

A final bound 2023 ACFR will be distributed to the Common Council at tonight's meeting.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

Motion to accept and place on file the 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the City of
Franklin.

Finance Dept - DB
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CliftonLarsonAlen LLP
CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Mayor and Common Council
City of Franklin, Wisconsin
Franklin, Wisconsin

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, m all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, as
of December 31, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted i the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent
of the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis forour audit opinions.

CLAglobal.com/drsdammer
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Mayor and Common Council
City of Franklin, Wisconsin

Responsibilities ofManagement for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting pnnciples generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City's
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors' report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 1n
accordance with GAAS and Govemment Auditg Standards wll always detect a materal
misstatement when rt exists The rsk of not detecting a material msstatement resulting from
fraud us higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control Misstatements are
considered materal tf there ts a substantial lkelhood that, ndwvdually or in the aggregate, they
would influence the Judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

• Identify and assess the nsks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City's internal control. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about City's ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

2



Mayor and Common Council
Crty of Franklin, Wisconsin

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, sIgmficant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified dunng the audit.

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
required supplementary information, hsted m the table of contents, be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information Is the respons1b11ity of management and,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers It to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements n an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have apphed certain hmited procedures to the required supplementary 1nformat1on
In accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inqumes of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our mquInes, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opm1on or provide any
assurance on the information because the hmited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted the management's dIscuss1on and analysis that accounting principles
generally accepted mn the United States of Amenca require to be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such mssung information, although not part of the basic financial
statements, Is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who consider t to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements mn an
appropriate operational, economic, or hustoncal context. Our opinion on the basic financial
statements is not affected by this mIssmg information.

Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The supplementary information, as
listed 1n the table of contents, rs presented for purposes of additional analysis and Is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was denved from and relates directly to the underlyng accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subJected to
the auditing procedures apphed in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, mncludung comparing and reconcilng such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other add1tIonal procedures m accordance with
GAAS. In our opinion, the supplementary information Is fa1r1y stated, mall material respects, In
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

3



Mayor and Common Council
City of Franklmn, Wisconsin

Other Reporting Required by GovernmentAuditing Standards
In accordance with Government Aud,t,ng Standards, we have also issued our report dated July
31, 2024, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of Its complance wth certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report Is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Aud,t,ng Standards in considering the City's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
July 31, 2024

4
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2023

Governmental Business-Type
Actrvtes Actntes Total

ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 70,351,708 $ 10,632,397 $ 80,984,105
Receivables, net
Accounts receivable 3,133,397 2,915,050 6,048,447
Taxes receivable 14,139,020 14,139,020
Special assessments receivable 207,154 207,154
Leases 1,504,313 1,504,312 3,008,625
Interest 36,179 36,179
Due from other governments 174,462 12,262,758 12,437,220
Prepaid ttems 46,858 46,858
Inventor1es 54,401 54,401
Internal balances 53,250 (53,250)
Restricted cash and investments 482,900 482,900
Capital assets (net of accumulated deprecaton)
Land 30,334,572 933,020 31,267,592
Buildings and Improvements 16,042,722 3,702,769 19,745,491
Machinery and equipment 8,645,843 1,386,877 10,032,720
lnfrastructure 96,115,056 114,579,406 210,694,462
Construction In progress 2,432,671 315,763 2,748,434

Total assets 243,271,606 148,662,002 391,933,608

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related 26,497,561 1,817,662 28,315,223
OPES-related 1,036,882 54,328 1,091,210

Total deferred outflow ofresources 27,534,443 1,871,990 29,406,433

Continued

See accompanying Notes to Fmanc,a/ Statements
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2023

Govemmental Business-Type
Activities ActN«ties Total

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3,472,116 1,646,042 5,118,158
Accrued liabilities 940,853 16,102 956,955
Due to other governments 125,971 125,971
Accrued interest 434,397 163,427 597,824
Unearned revenue 4,557,185 4,557,185
Special deposits 259,810 259,810
Noncurrent liabilities
Net pension labiltty 7,479,143 911,617 8,390,760
Duewithin one year 4,559,819 1,786,741 6,346,560
Due in more than one year 52,006,969 17,375,757 69,382,726
Total liabilities 73,836,263 21,899,686 95,735,949

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Subsequent year property taxes 26,400,403 26,400,403
Leases 1,418,374 1,418,373 2,836,747
Pension-related 14,465,961 590,867 15,056,828
OPES-related 1,102,875 54,676 1,157,551

Total deferred inflow of resources 43,387,613 2,063,916 45,451,529

NET POSITION
Net Investment 1n capital assets 132,464,764 104,770,872 228,376,236
Restricted for
Debt servce 560,437 560,437
Utility improvements 2,924,342 2,924,342
Development 12,967,742 12,967,742
TIF Districts 7,372,819 7,372,819
Grants and Donations 212,861 212,861
Opod Settlement 92,303 92,303
Health services 243,742 243,742
Library services 535,351 535,351
Sohd waste 430,358 430,358
Recreational services 50,619 50,619
Tourst commission 472,381 472,381
Equipment replacement 482,900 482,900
Intergovernmental agreement- debt servce 12,262,758 12,262,758
Unrestricted (4,745,546) 9,053,860 13,167,714

Total net position $ 153,582,173 $ 126,570,390 $ 280,152,563

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITYOF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OFACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Program Revenue Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Openlling Capital
Cllatges for Grants and Grants and Glwemmental Business-Type

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Conlltlulions Contrllulons Activities Actinties Total

Govemmental activities
General government $ 5 212158 $ 155,555 $ 3,723 $ $ (5052,880} S - $ (5,052 880)
Public safety 21,896387 3148,252 I 581,207 263,312 (16903,616) (16,903 616)
Publicworl<s 11,639402 5195667 2117119 4,561423 234,807 234 807
Heallh and human services 978,265 204 050 282070 (492,145) (492,145)
Cuture and recreation 2,930418 182,542 93,879 472,493 (2,181,564) (2181 564)
Conservation and development 3064610 1 486 101 (1,578,509) (1,578 509)
hnterest on long term debt 1 342,068 {1,342,068 ) l1,342,068)
Total governmental activities 47,063,368 10,372,167 4,077,998 5,297,228 {27,315.975) !27,315,975)

Business-type activilies
Water 6,281,226 6387,491 3,091,382 3197 647 3197 647
Sewer 6,990.752 4,724,319 192,695 1,811,668 (262,070) (262,070)
Total business-type activities 13,271,978 11,111 810 192,695 4,903 ,050 2,935,577 2,935,577
Total primary govemment $ 60,335,346 $ 21,483,977 $ 4,270,693 $ 10,200,278 {27,315,975) 2,935,577 __j24,380,398)

Genefal..-.ie:
Propetty taxes lewed for general pwposes 21,802 771 21,802771
Prope,ty axes levied for debt service 1100000 1100000
Property taxes lewel forTF Clisn:ts 3,223162 3,223 162
Oller taxes 1,545,340 1,545 340
lntenoemmental nevenuenot r esn:ledto specific programs 1144,211 1144 211
nvestment eamings 2,811,285 716 444 3,527 729
Mscelaneous revenue 72,567 166331 238 898

Transfers {722,199) 722,199
Total generalrevenue and transfers 30.977,137 1,604,974 32,582,111

Change in net posllion 3,661,162 4,540 ,551 8,201,713

Net p0$11ion-beginning 149,921,011 122,029,839 271,950,850

Net position - ending $ 153,582,173 $ 128,570,390 £ 280,152,563

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
BALANCE SHEET-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

Nonmajor Total
Debt Development TIF Governmental Governmental

General Service Fund Districts Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Investments $ 17999 305 $ 2 094 834 $ 13070232 $ 11296389 $ 23 325 125 $ 67 785 885
Receivables
Accounts recevable 1 068 693 3 265 1552,382 508 409 3132 749
Taxes receivable 14139,020 14 139 020
Speclal assessments receivable 8978 198 176 207 154
Leases 1 504 313 1 504 313
Interest 36179 36179

Due from other govemments 121,950 52 512 174 462
Due from other funds 380,852 380 852
Prepaid ttems 43,529 3 329 46858
lnventones 54,401 54 401
Advances to other funds 1 380,207 1,380 207

TOTAL ASSETS $ 36728,449 $ 2,103812 $ 13,073,497 $ 12 840,771 $ 24,087,551 $ 88,842 080

LIABILITIES ANO FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 453 248 $ - $ 3885 $ 2321957 $ 679 706 $ 3 458 796
Accrued liabilities 617231 101,870 11752 730 853
Due to other governments 125,971 125 971
Due to other funds 380852 380 852
Unearned revenue 4 557 185 4 557,185
Special deposits 259810 259,810
Advance from other funds 1326,957 1,326 957

Total liabilities 1,456260 105 755 4 029,766 5 248,643 10 840 424

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue 8978 1441 142 198176 1648 296
Leases 1418 374 1 418 374
Subsequent Year Tax Levy 20,623,280 1,100000 2,942,723 1,734 400 26,400,403
Total deferred inflows of resources 22,041 654 1108 978 4383 865 1 932 576 29,467 073

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)
Nonspendable
lnventones and prepaid Items 97930 3 329 101 259
Advances to other funds 1380207 1 380 207

Restricted
Debt servce 994834 994 834
Utility improvements 2 924 342 2 924 342
Development 12967742 12 967 742
TIF Distncts 7372819 7 372 819
Grants and Donations 212 861 212 861
Opold Settlement 92 303 92303
Health services 243 742 243,742
Library services 535 351 535 351
Solidwaste 430 358 430 358
Recreational services 50619 50619
Tounst commission 472 381 472 381

Assigned
Purchases on order 52191 52 191
Capital projects 12 031 313 12 031 313

Unassigned (deficit) 11700207 (2,937 679) (90 267) 8 672 261
Total fund balances (deficit) 13,230,535 994 834 12,967,742 4 435,140 16,906 332 48,534,583

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS,
AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) $ 36728449 $ 2103812 $ 13073497 $ 12 848 771 $ 24 087 551 $ 88 842 080

See accompanying Notes to Fnancual Statements
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2023

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 48,534,583

Amounts reported for governmental activities In the statement
of net position are different because.

Certain assets used in government actvties are not financial resources and
are therefore are not reported in the funds
Capital assets, net of depreciation 153,570,864

Some receivables that are not currently available are reported as
deferred inflows of resources in the fund financial statements
but are recognized as revenues when earned m the government-wide
statements
Unavailable revenue 1,648,296

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB
are applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in
fund statements
Deferred outflows - pensions 26,497,561
Deferred outflows - OPEB 1,036,882
Deferred Inflows - pensions (14,465,961)
Deferred inflows - OPEB (1,102,875)

Internal Service Fund net position 2,343,151

Long-term lablrties applcable to the City's governmental actvties are not
due and payable in the current penod, and accordingly, are not reported
as fund {abilities interest on long-term debt us not accrued in
governmental funds, but rather Is recognized as an expenditure when due
General obhgat1on debt (53,460,000)
Net pens 10n llabihty (7,479,143)
OPEB habllrty (20,171)
Compensated absences (2,340,900)
Unamortized debt premums (745,717)
Accrued Interest (434,397)

Net position of governmental activities $ 153,582,173

See accompanying Notes to Fmnancal Statements

9



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES -GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Nonmajor Total
Debt Development TIF Governmental Governmental

General Service Fund Districts Funds Funds
REVENUE
Taxes $ 21295 080 $ 1100 000 $ - $ 3 550480 $ 1,703 314 $ 27,648 874
Intergovernmental revenue 1,924 400 66 615 2 829,125 4 820 140
Licenses and permits 1158 784 60 545 1 219 329
Fines forfeitures and penalties 362179 362179
Public charges for services 2 889 553 4 218,021 7 107 574
Special assessments 1 684 1932310 133,961 2 067 955
Intergovernmental charges for services 338273 338 273
Investment earnings 1181 993 47904 578 890 178 308 503,790 2 490,885
Miscellaneous revenue 178,179 1,073,973 938,529 2,190,681
Total revenue 29328,441 1,149,588 2,511,200 4,869 376 10 387,285 48 245,890

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 3 253,239 10617 63914 3 327 770
Public safety 18 960 667 109 559 19,070 226
Pubhcworks 4,388 718 234054 2 179 306 6 802,078
Health and human services 722 898 212,865 935 763
Culture recreation and educaton 323 728 1,651,976 1975704
Conservation and development 671657 2 099 307 246949 3 017 913
Capital outlay 1875337 6 201 065 8 076 402
Debt servce
Principal 1 035,000 1430,000 2 465 000
Interest and fiscal charges 122,339 1,147 648 150,792 1 420,779
Total expenditures 28,320,907 1,157,339 10617 6,850 260 10,752,512 47,091,635

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures 1,007 534 (7 7s1) 2,500,583 (1 980,884) (365 227) 1154 255

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of captal assets 125,105 125 105
General obligation debt Issued 5 330 000 5 330 000
Prem1um on debt issued 208,286 6,409 214,695
Transfers mn 877185 3 620 823 4 498 008
Transfers out (24,000) (1 048 177) (1 461,756) (1 086 890) (3 620,823)
Total other financing sources and uses 853185 208,286 (1 048,177) (1,461,756) 7 995,447 6,546,985

Net change in fund balances 1 860,719 200 535 1 452 406 (3442 640) 7 630 220 7 701 240

Fund balances (deficit) - beginning 11 369 816 794299 11 515,336 7,877780 9,276,112 40 833 343

Fund balances (deficit) - ending $ 13,230 535 $ 994,834 $12,967 742 $ 4,435,140 $ 16,906,332 $ 48,534,583

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Net change In fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental actIvltIes In the statement
of activities are different because

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures
However in the statement of actt es, the cost of these assets
Is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as deprec1atIon expense or losses when disposed of

Capital outlays
Capital outlay contributed to business-type units
Capital outlay expensed
Depreciation
Net book value of assets disposed

Contnbuted capital assets are reported as revenues In the
statement of activities

The issuance of long-term debt ( e g notes, leases) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the pnncpal on long-term debt consumes current financial
resources of government funds Neither transaction, however, has
any effect on net position

General obligation debt issued
Pnncipal pad on long-term debt

Government funds report the effects of premiums,
discounts and refunding losses when the debt is first issued, whereas
these amounts are deferred and amortized mn the statement of
activit ies This amount is the net effect of the differences m the
treatment of these items

Some expenses reported in the statement of actvtes do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore, are
not reported as expendtures m the government funds

Compensated absences
Accrued interest payable
Pension actvty
OPEB activity

Revenue in the governmental funds that provides current
financial resources but has been previously reported as
revenue in the statement of actIvrtIes

Unavailable revenues

Internal service fund change Mn net position

Net change in net position ofgovernmental activities

See accompanying Notes to Fmancal Statements
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$ 7,701,240

8,076,402
(1,599,384)
(2,759,589)
(4,368,036)
(1,512,030)

2,290,945

(5,330,000)
2,465,000

(113,517)

(411,143)
(22,467)

(1,574,521)
249,968

1,503,054

(934,760)

$ 3,661,162



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
GENERAL FUND-STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amount Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUE
Taxes $ 21,024,300 $ 21,024,300 $ 21,295,080 $ 270,780
Intergovernmental revenue 1,902,200 1,902,200 1,924,400 22,200
Lcenses and permits 1,270,100 1,270,100 1,158,784 (111,316)
FInes, forfeitures and penalties 415,000 415,000 362,179 (52,821)
Public charges for services 2,556,000 2,556,000 2,889,553 333,553
Intergovernmental charges for servces 330,900 330,900 338,273 7,373
Investment earnings (loss) 221,575 221,575 1,181,993 960,418
Miscellaneous revenue 150,500 150,500 178,179 27,679

Total revenue 27,870,575 27,870,575 29,328,441 1,457,866

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 5,954,803 5,977,547 3,253,239 2,724,308
Public safety 19,298,556 19,425,082 18,960,667 464,415
Public works 4,374,891 4,394,871 4,388,718 6,153
Health and human services 730,136 730,136 722,898 7,238
Culture and recreation 377,428 380,753 323,728 57,025
Conservation and development 671,261 685,526 671,657 13,869
Capital Outlay

Total expenditures 31,407,075 31,593,915 28,320,907 3,273,008

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over ( under) expenditures (3,536,500) (3,723,340) 1,007,534 4,730,874

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets
Transfers in 1,060,500 1,060,500 877,185 (183,315)
Transfers out (24,000) (24,000) (24,000)

Net change in fund balance (2,500,000) (2,686,840) 1,860,719 4,547,559

Fund Balances - beginning 11,369,816 11,369,816 11,369,816

Fund Balances - ending $ 8,869,816 $ 8,682,976 $ 13,230,535 $ 4,547,559

Outstanding encumbrances at December 31, 2023 £ 52,191

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities-

water Sanitary Internal
Utility Sewer Totals Service Funds

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and investments $ 7,939,342 $ 2,693,055 $ 10,632,397 $ 2,565,823
Receivables
Accounts receivable 1,441,952 1,473,098 2,915,050 648
Leases receivable 51,367 51,367
Due from other governments 1,405,575 1,405,575
Total current assets 9,432,661 5,571,728 15,004,389 2,566,471

Noncurrent assets
Restricted cash and Investments 482,900 482,900
Leases receivable 1,452,945 1,452,945
Due from other governments 10,857,183 10,857,183
Capital assets
Land 162,885 770,135 933,020
Buildings and Improvements 3,414,033 3,189,549 6,603,582
Improvements other than buldungs 71,935,218 94,847,177 166,782,395
Machinery and equipment 4,863,283 1,175,029 6,038,312
Construction 1n progress 315,763 315,763
Less accumulated deprecaton (26,561,671) (33,193,566) (59,755,237)
Total caprtal assets (net of
accumulated deprecation) 54,129,511 66,788,324 120,917,835

Total noncurrent assets 55,582,456 78,128,407 133,710,863

Total assets 65,015,117 83,700,135 148,715,252 2,566,471

DEFFEREDOUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension-related 902,740 914,922 1,817,662
OPEB-related 27,164 27,164 54,328
Total deferred outflows of resources 929,904 942,086 1,871,990

Continued

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

Buliness-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activtles ­

Water Sanitary Internal
Utility Sewer Totals Service Funds

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 770626 $ 875,416 $ 1646042 $ 13 320
Accrued labilities 689 15413 16,102 210 000
Accrued interest payable 89288 74139 163 427
Current portion of accrued compensated
absences 25,583 25,583 51 166

Current portion of long-term advances 18600 18600
Current portion of long-term obligations 230,000 1505575 1 735 575
Total current lablitues 1134,786 2496126 3630 912 223 320

Noncurrent iabilities
Net OPEB lablty 729 729 1458
Net pension labtlrty 467,765 443,852 911 617
Accrued compensated absences 45,574 45,574 91148
Long-term advances 34,650 34,650
General oblgation notes payable 3,622,159 13,660992 17 283,151
Total noncurrent labilites 4 170,877 14 151,147 18322 024

Total liabilities 5305,663 16,647 273 21 952 936 223 320

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Penson-related 281,366 309501 590,867
OPEB-related 27,338 27,338 54,676
Leases 1,418,373 1,418,373
Total deferred inflows of resources 1727,077 336839 2,063,916

NET POSITION
Net Investment in capital assets 53,272 352 51,498520 104,770872
Restricted for
Sewer equipment replacement 482900 482,900
Intergovernmental agreement- debt servce 12262758 12 262,758

Unres tncted 5,639,929 3413 931 9053 860 2,343,151

Total net posrton $ 58912,281 $ 67658109 $ 126 570,390 $ 2 343 151

See accompanying Notes to Fmanc,a/ Statements
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities •

Water Sanitary lnt&rnal
uity $ewer Totals Service Funds

OPERATING REVENUE
Metered sales
Residential $ 3 284,443 $ 2,642,610 $ 5927,053 $
Multi-family 796,661 676,737 1473 398
Commercial 726,705 772 142 1498847
lrrigaton 169,941 169,941
lndustnal 386,752 396760 783 512
Public authority 253,831 205,101 458,932
Total metered sales 5,618333 4693,350 10311683

Group health & dental charges 2 913,000
Unm etered sales 37796 725 38521
Public fire protection serce 558959 558,959
Private fire protection servce 134,808 134808
Forfeited discounts penalties and other 37,595 30,244 67,839

Total operating revenue 6,387 491 4 724,319 11111,810 2,913,000

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services 4,042,169 2,857,413 6,899582 4 010,712
Depreciation and amortization 1,439,039 2369,874 3,808,913
Adm instraton 616,977 1 377,187 1,994,164
Total operating expenses 6,098,185 6,604,474 12,702,659 4 010,712

Operating income (loss) 289,306 (1,880 155) (1 590,849) (1,097,712)

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings (loss) 263 981 452,463 716,444 162,952
Subsides 192,695 192,695
Sundry 142575 22,234 164,809
Sale of capital assets (53) 1,575 1522
Interest expense (183,041) (386,278) (569,319)

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 223,462 282,689 506,151 162 952
Income (loss) before capital contnbubons
and transfers 512 768 (1 597 466) (1 084,698) (934,760)

Captal contributions - Developers 3091,382 1,811 668 4,903050
Caprtal contrbutons - Governmentel Actovtes 1263,561 335823 1599384
Transfers out (874,725} (2,460) (877,185)

Change in net position 3992,986 547,565 4,540,551 (934 760)

Net position - beginning 54919295 67,110544 122029,839 3,277 911

Net position • ending $ 58,912,281 $ 67,658,109 $ 126,570390 $ 2 343 151

See accompanying Notes to Fmancral Statements
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Busmess-Type Activities- Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities ­

Water Santary Internal
Utihty Sewer Totals Service Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 6,465,301 $ 4,478,525 $ 10,943,826 $ 2,912,676
Payments to suppliers (4,123,658) (3,624,559) (7,748,217) (4,000,579)
Payments to employees (568,861) (561,302) {1,130,163)

Net cash flows provided by (used in)
operating activities 1,772,782 292,664 2,065,446 __(1,087,903)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Grant subsidies 192,695 192,695
Transfer out - paid for tax equwvalent (874,725) (2,460) (877,185)

Net cash flows provided by (used in) (874,725) 190,235 (684,490)
noncapital financing actvtes

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING .ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from capital debt 2,995,000 2,995,000
Proceeds from premium on capital debt 81,812 81,812
Payments on capital debt (60,000) (1,471,802} (1,531,802)
Receipts from other governments 1,371,801 1,371,801
Payment of advances from other funds (18,200) (18,200)
Interest paid on capital debt (103,753) (373,834) (477,587)
Acqurston of capital assets (398,368) (948,537) (1,346,905)

Net cash provided (used) by captal 2,496,491 (1,422,372) 1,074,119
and related financing actuvtIes

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING .ACTMTIES
Investment earnings 263,981 442,502 706,483 162,952

Net increase (decrease) 1n cash
and cash equivalents 3,658,529 (496,971) 3,161,558 (924,951)

Cash and cash equivalents - Begnnng 4,280,813 3,672,926 7,953,739 3,490,774

Cash and cash equivalents - Ending $ 7,939,342 $ 3,175,955 $11,115,297 $ 2,565,823

Cash and Investments - Unrestncted $ 7,939,342 $ 2,693,055 $10,632,397 $ 2,565,823
Cash and Investments - Restricted 482,900 482,900

$ 7,939,342 $ 3,175,955 $11,115,297 $ 2,565,823

Continued

See accompanying Notes to Fnancral Statements
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Business-Type Activities- Enterprise Funds Governmental

Water
Utility

Sanitary
Sewer Totals

Activities •
Internal

Service Funds
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities
Operating income (loss) $
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash flows provided by operating actwvtes
Deprecation
Depreciation allocated to other funds
Nonoperating revenues
(Increase) decrease 1n assets and deferred
outflows of resources
Accounts receivable
Lease receivable
Pension assets/liabilities
Deferred outflows - pensions
Deferred outflows - OPEBs

lncrease (decrease) In labrties and deferred
inflows of resources
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
OPES obllgatrons
Deferred Inflows - leases
Deferred inflows - pensions
Deferred Inflows - OPEBs
Total adjustments
Net cash flows provided by (used in)
operating activities

1,439,039
13,844

142,575

2,369,874 3,808,913
(13,844)
22,234 164,809

(324)

10,133

9,809

$ 1,772,782 $ 292,664 $ 2,065,446 $ (1,087,903)

289,306 $ (1,880,155) $ (1,590,849) $ (1,097,712)

(23,724) (268,028) (291,752)
42,714 42,714

1,022,453 1,009,782 2,032,235
(449,561) (445,135) (894,696)
13,889 13,889 27,778

{68,743) 43,865 (24,878)
(13,495) (15,094) (28,589)
(18,191) (18,191) (36,382)
(83,755) (83,755)
(532,118) (525,082) (1,057,200)
(1,451) (1,451) (2,902)

1,483,476 2,172,819 3,656,295

Noncash Capital Activities
Capital assets included m year-end accounts
payable
Cost of Ut1hty plant installed and/or financed
by external parties or the City

See accompanying Notes to Fmnancral Statements

2.8 123,237 $ 123,237

$ 4,354,943 $ 2,147,491 $ 6,502,434 $----
Concluded
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2023

Employee Tax Collection
Benefit Custodial

Trust Funds Fund
ASSETS
Cash $ $ 38,531,832
Investments
Fixed Income securities 7,169,136 690,264
Domestic equities 11,692,518
International equities 1,633,708
Total Cash & Investments 20,495,362 39,222,096

Accounts receivable 6,316
Taxes receivable 40,248,848
Total assets 20,501,678 79,470,944

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 60,886 85,430
Due to other governments 509,430 39,136,666
Total liabilities 570,316 39,222,096

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Taxes levied for subsequent year's budget 40,248,848

NET POSITION
Restricted for pensions 11,561,761
Restricted for OPEB 8,369,601
Total net position $ 19,931,362 $

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Employee Tax Collection
Benefit Custodial

Trust Funds Fund
ADDITIONS
Tax collections $ $ 77,368,021
Contributions
Employer 422,463
Plan participants 177,208

Net investment earnings (loss) 2,669,589
Total additions 3,269,260

DEDUCTIONS
Tax distributions 77,368,021
Incurred clamms 1,117,943
Prescript1on drug clamms 167,608
Claims fees 76,076
Stop loss premiums less claims recerved 98,395

Total deductions 1,460,022

Change in net position 1,809,238

Net Position Beginning of year 18,122,124

Net Position End of year $ 19,931,362 $

See accompanying Notes to Fmnancral Statements
19



CITYOF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARYOF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES (continued)

The accompanying summary of the City of Franklin's (the City) more significant accounting
pohc1es 1s presented to assist the reader in interpreting the financial statements and other data
in this report. These pohc1es, as presented, should be reviewed as an integral part of the
accompanying financial statements. The accounting polcres of the City conform to accounting
principles generally accepted mn the United States of Amenca as applicable to governmental
units. A summary of the significant accounting polices follows

A. REPORTINGENTITY

This report includes all of the funds of the City of Franklin. The reporting entity for the City
consists of the primary government and its component units. Component units are legally
separate organizations for which the pnmary government are financially accountable or other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government are such that their exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statement
to be misleading.

Blended Component Unit

The Community Development Authority (Authority) was created by the City in 1992 to serve as
a financing vehicle for certain Tax Incremental D1stncts (TIO) development within the City. The
Authority 1s governed by a seven-member board appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the
Common Council Although 1t 1s legally separate from the City, the Authority us reported as if rt
were part of the primary government because its sole purpose 1s to finance and manage certain
TIO development proJects for the benefit of the City. The Authority had no financial transactions
during 2023, nor does the Authority own any assets or liable for any debt. Therefore, no
financial statements are presented in this report. The Authority does not issue separate financial
statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARYOF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the reporting
government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds.
The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type actlv1ttes. Governmental
act1v1t1es generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenue and other non­
exchange revenue. Business-type act1vit1es are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to
external parties for goods and services provided

The statement of actrvrties demonstrates the degree that drrect expenses of a given segment or
function are offset by program revenue Drect expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment The City does not allocate all indrrect expenses to functions
in the statement of act1v1t1es. Program revenue includes 1) charges lo customers or applicants,
who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or pnvleges provided by a given
function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment Taxes and other ,terns
not included among program revenue are reported as general revenue. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenue rather than as program revenue.

Fund Financial Statements

Financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds with a fund considered to
be a separate accounting entity. Each fund s accounted for by providing a separate set of self­
balancing accounts that constitute rts assets, deferred outflows of resources, hab1ht1es, deferred
inflows of resources, net posrton/fund equity, revenue and expenditures/expenses. Funds are
organized as mayor funds or nonmayor funds wrthmn the governmental and enterprise fund
statements. An emphasis rs placed on mayor funds within the governmental and enterprise
categories.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE ANDFUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)

A fund is considered mayor if it is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the following
criteria

a. Total assets and deferred outflows of resources, labthttes and deferred inflows of
resources, revenue, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or
enterprise fund are at least 10% of the corresponding total for all funds of that category
or type

b. The same element of the indIvIdual governmental fund or enterprise fund that met the
10% test is at least 5% of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise
funds combined.

c. In add1tIon, any other governmental or enterprise fund that the City believes 1s important
to financial statement users may be reported as a maJor fund.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds wth the latter being excluded from government-wde financial statements. Major
Individual government funds and mayor ndvdual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns mn the fund financial statements.

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund - accounts for the City's primary operating actIvmes. It Is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Debt Service Fund - accounts for resource accumulation from taxes, special assessments and
other revenue along with payments made for principal and interest on long-term debt other
than enterprise fund debt.

Development fund - This special revenue fund Is used to account for impact fees restricted for
use to capital improvements Significant revenue source rs special assessment and Impact
fees used for capital improvements.

TIF Districts Fund - Thus capital project fund accounts for resource accumulation from tax
increments and other revenue of the TIO along with payments made for capital outlay, other
expenditures, pnncIpal and interest on long-term debt obligations of the TlOs. Each TID Is a
sub fund of the TIO Fund
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Major Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business - where the Intent of the governing body is that the costs
(expenses, mcludmg deprec1ation/amortizat&on) of providing goods or services to the general
public on a contmumg basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or (b)
where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenue earned, expenses
incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, pubhc pohcy, management
control, accountability or other purposes

Water Utility Fund - accounts for operations of providing water services to City residents and
bills for those services

Sanitary Sewer Fund - accounts for the operations of prov1dmg sanitary sewer services for Cty
residents and bills for those services.

In addition the City reports

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds - account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
major capital proJects) that are legally or policy restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes. The funds include Library Operating, Library Auxiliary, Solid Waste Collection, St
Martin's Far, Donation, Cc Celebrations, Tourism Commission, Opioid Settlement, and
Grant.

Capital Projects Funds - account for resources accumulated to be used for the purchase of
equipment, street replacement, acqu1s1t1on of land and the construction of capital
Improvement projects. The funds include Capital Outlay, Equipment Replacement, Capital
Improvement, Street Improvement, Ut1l1ty Improvement.

Other Fund Types

Internal Service Fund - accounts for the payment by the City for active employees of group
health and dental charges for services and stop loss insurance charges and the bilhng of
departments or agencies of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis for the services
received.

Custodial Funds - used to account for and report assets controlled by the City that are held for
the benefit of other governmental entities. The City reports one custodial fund for tax
collections.

Employee Benefit Trust Funds - used to account for and report resources that are required to
be held in trust for the members and beneficiaries of defined benefit plans and other post­
employment benefit plans.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. MEASUREMENT Focus, BASIS OFACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wde statement of net position and statement of activities are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenue 1s recognized when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liability is Incurred or economic asset used. Revenue, expenses, gains, losses, assets,
deferred inflows, hab1ht1es and deferred outflows resulting from exchange and exchange-like
transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Property taxes are recognized as
revenue in the year that they are levied for.

Taxes receivable for the followng year are recorded as receivables and deferred inflows or
resources Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider are met. Special assessments are recorded as revenue
when earned. Receivables are recorded as revenue when services are performed.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City's Water Utility
and Sanitary Sewer fund and vanous other functions of the government. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenue reported for the various functions
concerned.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue Is recorded when It
Is both measurable and available. Available means collectible wthun the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay lablrties of the current penod. For this purpose, the City
considers grant revenue to be available tf they are collected within 160 days of the end of the
current fiscal period and all other revenue to be available If they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund hab1llty 1s
incurred, except for unmatured interest on long-term debt, claims, Judgments, compensated
absences and pension expenditures which are recorded as a fund hab1hty when due and
payable.

Property taxes are recorded the year levied as receivable and deferred inflow and are
recognized as revenue the next yearwhen services financed by the levy are provided.

Intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenue in the penod the City 1s entitled to
the resources and the amounts are available. Amounts owed to the City are recorded as
receivables. Amounts not available or received pnor to the entitlement period are recorded as
deferred inflow of resources.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

c. MEASUREMENT Focus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION
(continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Special assessments levied for benefits to property owners for installation of sanitary sewers,
water mains, roads, and other improvements are recorded as revenue when they become
measurable and available. Annual installments due mn future years are recorded as receivables
and deferred inflows of resources.

Revenue susceptible to accrual includes property taxes, room taxes, pubhc charges for services
and interest. Other general revenue such as permits, fines and forfeitures, licenses and
miscellaneous revenue are recognized when received or when measurable and available under
the criteria mentioned above.

Deferred inflows of resources are reported on the governmental funds balance sheet. Deferred
inflows anse from taxes levied m the current year that are for subsequent year's operations. For
governmental fund financial statements unearned revenues arise where potential revenue does
not meet both the "measurable" and available" cntena for recognition mn the current period.
Unearned revenue anses when resources are received before the City has a legal claim to
them, as when grant monies are received pnor to the mcurrence of qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition cntena are met and when the City has a
legal claim to the resources, the hab1hty ,s removed from the balance sheet and revenue IS
recognized.

Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported usmg the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting

Proprietary funds dIstmguIsh operating revenue and expenses from nonoperating ,terns.
Operating revenue and expenses generally result from providing services and dehvenng goods
in connection with the proprietary fund's principal operations The principal operating revenue of
the Water and Sanitary Sewer funds are charges to customers for sales and services provided
The rates billed in the Water Utility are approved by the Public Service Commission Sanitary
sewer charges are billed at rates established by City pohcy based on the charges received from
the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage DIstnct and local operation and maintenance expenses
The principal operating revenue of the internal service fund Is charges to other funds for group
health coverage.

Operating expenses for propnetary funds include the cost of sales and services, administration
and deprec1at1on/amort1zat1on on capital assets. Revenue and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

c. MEASUREMENT Focus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION
(continued)

All Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted In the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amount of assets and llab1llt1es and disclosure of contingent
assets and liab11it1es at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenue
and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could vary from those
estimates.

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY

1. Cash and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments with
an mIt1al maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

The City of Franklin maintains two investment policies. The first covers all funds except fiduciary
funds for retiree health purposes. The obJect1ve of this polcy Is to generate current income,
consistent with safety and reasonable rsk as defined under prudent person rules As operating
reserves, the quality, liqu1d1ty and maturity structure of the portfolio are most important The
Investment polcy

a. Requires a minimum rating at time of purchase of Aa3 by either Moody's or Standard &
Poor's.

b. Limits an issuer to 10% or less and asset classes to 35% or less of the fair value of the
portfolio with the exception of U,S. Government Treasury and Agency securities that
have the full faith guarantee of the U.S. Government.

c. Specifies a minimum amount of cash equivalents be maintained, an average life of the
portfolio not exceeding 6 years and no indrvdual tssue with a maturity exceeding seven
years at the date of purchase to limit interest rate risk.

d Limits investments highly sens1t1ve to market changes through its duration and
duverstficaton policies to limit interest rate risk

e. Prohibits the investment in foreign owned securities.
f. Limits denvat1ve investments to those with a final maturity of seven years or less.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

1. Cash and Investments (continued)

In addition, the City's investment policy restricts allowable investments to investments that
follow state statutes, section 66.0603, which hm1ts investments to

a. Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank, trust company or loan association
authorized to transact business in the state and maturing in three years or less.

b. The Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).
c. Bonds or secuntIes issued or guaranteed by the federal government.
d. Bonds or secuntIes of any county, city, drainage distnct, technical college district, village,

town or school district of the State of Wisconsin. Also, bonds issued by a local expos1tIon
distnct, a local professional baseball park district, a local professional football stadium
district, a cultural arts district, or by the University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics
Authority and the Wisconsin Aerospace Authority.

e Any security matunng in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest
rating category assigned of a nationally recognized rating agency.

f. Securities of an open-ended management investment company or investment trust
subject to vanous conditions and investment optons.

g. Repurchase agreements with public deposItones, with certain conditions.

The second investment pohcy Is for ,ts fiduciary fund for retiree health purposes. The policy

a Requires the investment to be ma section 115 trust for retiree health purposes
b. Requires compliance with the "prudent person" standard.
c. Requires asset allocation pohcy that considers the hab1hty stream of benefits, the
relationshp to current and projected assets, the hustoncal performance of capital
markets and the perception of future economic conditions.

d Primary investment objectives are safety, diversification and return.
e. Allows investment m various asset classes
f. Limits investment n equities to no more than 75% of total assets to be invested.
g. L1m1ts investment in fixed income secuntles to no less than 25% of total assets to be

invested.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

1. Cash and Investments (continued)

The City manages the vanous nsks in tts cash and investments as follows

a Custodial credit nsk investments are held by a trustee or third party custodian.
deposits in excess of FDIC insurance limits are maintained

n the State LGIP or secured bank balances in
amounts of at least 75% of the year-end cash balances.

b. Credit nsk-secunttes purchased need to have an AA or better mvestment rating.
c Concentration of credit risk - issuer or asset class not to exceed 10% of the market
value of the portfolio with the exception of U.S. issued securities

d. Interest rate nsk - managed by limiting the length of matunty of newly purchased
investments and lIm1ts the average hfe of the portfolio to control risk.

Investments are stated at fair value, which Is the amount at which an investment could be
exchanged in a current transaction between w1Umg parties. Fair values are based on methods
and inputs outlined in Note 3. No investments are reported at amortized cost

AdJustments necessary to record investments at fair value are recorded in the operating
statement as increases or decreases in investment income Investment income on commingled
investments of various City Funds Is allocated based on average investment balances.

The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is part of the State Investment Fund
(SIF), and Is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF 1s not registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory authority of
Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF reports the far value of its underlying assets annually.
Participants tn the LGIP have the right to withdraw funds m total on one day's notice. At
December 31, 2023, the fair value of the City's share of LGIP assets was substantially equal to
the amount reported in these statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

2. Receivables

Property taxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1. In
addition to property taxes for the municipality, taxes are collected for and remitted to the state
government, county government, three local school districts, technical college district and
metropolitan sewerage distnct Taxes for all other governmental units billed m the current year
for the succeeding year are reflected as receivables and due to other taxing units on the
accompanying fiduciary funds statement of fiduciary net position as the City's custodial funds.
The Solid Waste fee 1s billed and collected along with property taxes.

Property tax calendar - 2023 tax roll

Lien date and levy date
Tax bills malled
Payment in full, or
First installment due
Second installment due
Third installment due
Personal property taxes in full
Final tax settlement with County
Tax deed by County - 2023
Delinquent real estate taxes

December 2023
December 2023
January 31, 2023
January 31, 2023
March 31, 2023
May 31, 2023
January 31, 2023
August 20, 2023

October 2025

Accounts receivable have been shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. No
provIsIon for uncollecbble accounts receivable has been made for enterpnse funds because of
their right by law to place delinquent bills on the tax roll.

During the course of operations, transactions occur between indvdual funds that may result In
amounts owed between funds Short-term interfund loans are reported as "due to and from
other funds". Long term interfund loans are reported as "advances from and to other funds".

Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated
In the statement of net pos1t1on. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental
activities and the business-type activities are reported in the government-wIde financial
statements as "internal balances".

In the general fund financial statements, advances to other funds are classified as
nonspendable fund balance in the general fund, which indicates that they do not constitute
expendable available financial resources and, therefore, are not available for appropnatIon.
Advances in all other governmental funds are classified in fund balance based on the ava1lab1hty
of repayments for use
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

3. Inventories, Supplies and Prepaid Items

Governmental fund inventory items, except fuel inventory, are charged to expenditures when
purchased. The fuel inventory Is recorded at cost on a first-in first-out basrs usrng the
consumption method of accounting. The cost of such inventones Is recorded as
expendrtures/expenseswhen consumed rather than when purchased.

Proprretary fund materials and supplies are generally used for construction and for operation
and maintenance work They are not for sale. Matenal and supplies on hand at year-end are
rmmaterral

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting perrods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. The prepaid
rtems are recorded as expenditures/expenses dunng the penods benefited.

4. Restricted Assets

Mandatory segregation of assets are presented as restncted assets. Such segregation Is
required by agreements with external parties. Current labiltues payable from restricted assets
are so classrfied The excess of restncted assets over current hab1litIes 1s shown as restricted
net posrtton.

5. Pensions and Benefit Obligations

For purposes of measuring the net pension labltes (assets), deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net positions of theWisconsin Retirement System (WRS) and the City of Franklin Defined
Benefit Retirement Income Plan (DPW) and addrtons to/deductions from WRS and DPW's
fiduciary net position have been deterrrnned on the same basis as they are reported by WRS and
DPW. For thrs purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contrrbutrons) are
recognrzed when due and payable In accordance With the benefit terms Investments are reported
at farr value.

The fiduciary net position of the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) has been determined using
the flow of economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. Thrs includes
for purposes of measunng the following Net Pension Ltabllity (Asset), Deferred Outflows of
Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, Pension Expense (Revenue).

Information about the fiduciary net postton of the WRS and addtons to/deductions from WRS'
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the WRS.
For this purpose, benefit payments (mcludmg refunds of employee contnbutons) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at farr value.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

5. Pensions and Benefit Obligations (continued)

For the purposes of measunng the net other post-employment benefit (OPES) hab1hty, deferred
outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of resources related to OPES, and OPEB expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust
and additions to/deductions from the City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust's fiduciary
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the City of Frankhn
Post Employment Benefits Trust. For this purpose, the City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits
Trust recognizes the benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value, except for money market investments and
participating interest-earning investments contracts that have a maturity at the time of purchase of
one year or less, which are reported at cost

6. Capital Assets

Government-Wide Statements

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, as well as lease and subscription
right-of-use assets, are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets
are defined by the government as assets with an in1t1al cost of more than $5,000 for general
capital assets and $25,000 for infrastructure assets with estimated useful lives greater than one
year or more. Capital assets are recorded at histoncal cost or estimated historical cost if actual
amounts are not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date
of donation. Additions to and replacements of capital assets of business-type activities are
recorded at original cost, which includes materal, labor, overhead.

Right-to-use lease assets are 1mtially measured at the present value of payments expected to
be made during the lease term, adJusted for lease payments made at or before the lease
commencement date, plus certain 1mt1al direct costs. Subsequently, the lease asset Is
amortized ma systematic and rational manner over the shorter of the lease term or the useful
life of the underlying asset.

The cost of renewals and betterments relating to retirement untts ts added to plant accounts
The cost of property replaces, retired, or otherwise disposed of, 1s deducted from plant accounts
and, generally, together with removal costs less salvage value, 1s charged to the applicable
function
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

6. Capital Assets (continued)

Deprecation/amortzaton of all exhaustible capital assets Is recorded as an allocated expense
In the statement of actvtes, wth accumulated deprecation/amortization reflected In the
statement of net position. Oeprec1at1on/amortizat1on Is provided over the assets' estimated
useful lives using the straight-lune method of deprecation/amortization. The range of useful lives
by asset type follows

Buddings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Water and sewer systems
Infrastructure

Fund Financial Statements

5-50 Years
2-30 Years
20-100 Years
20-90 Years

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acqu1s1tIon. Capital
assets used m proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same in the government-wide
statements

7. Deferred Inflows of Resources and Deferred Outflows of Resources

A deferred outflow of resources represents a consumption of net position/fund balance that
applies to a future perod and will not be recogmzed as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until that future time. A deferred inflow of resources represents an
acquisition of net position/fund balance that apples to a future penod and therefore will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that future time.

In governmental funds, property taxes receivable, special assessments, lease receivables, and
interest revenue not yet due are not recogmzed as revenue in the current period. For the
government-wide and proprietary fund type financial statements, special assessments and
interest revenue are recognized as revenue in the current period. This leaves property tax
receivable and leases receivables as a deferred inflow of resources in the statement of net
position.

Certain Items that affect the net pension asset(s)/labiltty(es) are amortized over the period
determined to be affected by the change. The balance at year-end of these items 1s report as
deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources section of the statement of net
position.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

8. Compensated Absences

Under terms of employment, employees may earn compensatory time and are granted sick
leave, severance pay and vacations in varying amounts. Only benefits considered to be vested
are disclosed In these statements. All vested compensatory time, severance pay and vacation
pay are accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial
statements. A hab1hty for these amounts 1s reported in governmental funds only 1f they have
matured. For example a hab1hty, as a result of employee res1gnat1ons or retirements are payable
with expendable available resources.

Payments for vested compensatory time, severance pay and vacation pay will be made at rates
In effect when the benefits are used. Accumulated vested compensatory time, severance pay
and vacation pay lablites are determined on the basis of current salary rates and Include
salary related payments. Vacation and compensatory time are used on a first-in, first-out basis
Accordingly all accrued amounts are considered to be due within one year Severance due
within one year Is estimated based on employee age and expected retirement.

9. Long-term Obligations/Conduit Debt

All long-term obligations to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are
reported as liabilities in the government-wide statements The long-term obligations consist of
notes and bonds payable and accrued compensated absences.

Long-term obligations for governmental funds are not reported as hab1hbes m the fund financial
statements The face value of debt (plus any premium) 1s reported as other financing sources
and payments of pnncipal and interest are reported as expenditures The proprietary fund
accounting is the same as it 1s m the government-wide statements

For the government-wide statements and propnetary fund statements, bond premiums and
discounts are amortized over the life of the issue using the interest rate method The balance at
year-end s shown as an increase or decrease 1n the hab1hty section of the statement of net
position.

The City has approved issuance of industrial development revenue bonds (IDRB) for the benefit
of private business enterprises IDRB's are secured by mortgages or revenue agreements on
associated projects of the business enterprises. The {DRB's do not constitute indebtedness of
the City. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as habdrt1es m the financial statements. An
IDRB originally Issued wth an aggregate pnncpal amount of $3,750,000 is outstanding with a
balance of $2,275,000 at December 31, 2023.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

10. Claims and Judgments

Claims and judgments are recorded as liabilities if all the conditions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board pronouncements are met. Claims and Judgments that would
normally be hqu1dated wrth expendable available financial resources are recorded during the
year as expenditures in the government funds. If they are not to be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources, no hab1lrty 1s recogmzed in governmental fund financial
statements. The related expenditure ts recognzed when the liability ts liquidated. Claims and
Judgments are recorded in the government-wide statements and proprietary funds as expenses
when the related habdit1es are incurred

11. Equity Classifications

Government-Wide Statements

Equity Is classified as net position and displayed in three components

a. Net investment in capital assets -- Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation/amortization, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages,
notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets or related debt are also included in this component of net position

b Restricted net pos1t1on - Consists of net position with constraints placed on their use
either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or, 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation, and includes restricted assets reduced by liabilities related to those assets.
Generally, a hab1llty relates to restricted assets if the asset results from a resource flow
that also results in the recognition of a liability or if the liabltty wall be liquidated with the
restricted assets reported.

c. Unrestricted net position - The net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of
net investment in capital assets or the restricted components of net pos1t1on.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

11. Equity Classifications (continued)

The net posItIon section includes an adjustment for capital assets owned by the business-type
activities column, but financed by the debt of the governmental activities column The amount Is
a reduction of "net investment in capital assets", and an increase in "unrestricted" net posit1on,
shown only in the total column A reconc1hat1on of this adjustment 1s as follows at year-end

Gowmmental Business-type
Actrut1es Actr«ties AdJustment Total

Net m\estment in capital assets $ 132,464,764 $ 104,770,872 $ (8,859,400) $ 228,376,236
Unrestricted (4,745,546) 9,053,860 8,859,400 13,167,714
Total Net Position $ 127,719,218 $ 113,824,732 $ $ 241,543,950

When both restncted and unrestricted resources are available for use, t s the City's policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

Fund Statements

Fund balance of governmental funds 1s reported in various categories based on the nature of
any hm1tat1ons requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The government itself can
establish hm1tat1on on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund
balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance).

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the
specific purposes determined by a formal action of the government's highest decision-making
authority. The governing council is the hghest level of decision-making authority for the
government that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit
fund balance. Once adopted, the hm1tat1on imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a
similar action Is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation. The
City does not report any committed fund balance.

Amounts m the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government
for specific purposes but do not meet the critena to be classified as committed. The governing
council (Common Council) has by resolution authorized the Director of Finance & Treasurer to
assign fund balance (Resolution 2014-7025). The Common Council may also assign fund
balance as It does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue
and appropriations in the subsequent year's appropriated budget.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, UABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

When committed, assigned and unassigned resources are available for use, it is the City's
pohcy to use committed resources first, then assigned resources and then unassigned
resources, as they are needed.

The Crty has adopted a fund balance policy (Res. 2016-7216) for all governmental funds
supported by tax ley as follows the ratio of year-end fund balance to current year expenditures
shall target a range between 20% and 30%. The amount of fund balance will be taken into
consideration when establishing the following year's budget. At least 15% of the succeeding
year expenditure budget shall be mamtamed for working capital. Any nonspendable fund
balance of the general fund shall be excluded from the ratio.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgetary mnformation s derived from the annual operating budget and is presented using the
same basis of accounting for each fund as described m Note 1 C. The budgetary statements
also report the amount of remaining balance of encumbrances that represent a future use of
financial resources. Encumbrances are not included as actual expenditures on the budgetary
statements.

A budget has been adopted for the General, Debt Service, TIO #4, TIO #5, TIO #6, TIO #7, TIO
#8, Library Operating, Library Auxlary, Solid Waste Collection, Civic Celebrations, St. Martin's
Farr, Donations, Grant, Tourism Commission, Capital Outlay, Equipment Replacement, Capital
Improvement, Street Improvement, Utihty Improvement, Development, Sanitary Sewer and
Water Ut1hty funds. Budgets have not been formally adopted for other funds.

The budget amounts presented include any amendments made dunng the year The City may
authorize transfers of budget amounts within departments. Transfers between departments and
changes to the overall budget must be approved by a two-thirds vote of the Common Council.
Supplemental appropriations dung the year were not significant. Appropriations lapse at the
end of the year unless specifically earned over Carryovers to the following year were not
material. Budgets are adopted for personnel and non-personnel expenditures at the function
level.
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DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCEANDACCOUNTABILITY (continued)

B. LIMITATIONS ON THE CITY'S TAXLEVY

Wisconsmn law limits the City's future tax leves. Generally, the City us limited to its prior tax levy
dollar amount (excluding TIF districts and debt service levy), increased by the greater of the
percentage change in the City's equalized value due to new construction, or 0%. Changes In
debt service from one year to the next are generally exempt from this hm1t within certain
exceptions. The City Is required to reduce its allowable levy by the estimated amount of fee
revenue increase It collects for certain services, 1f those services were funded in 2013 by the
property tax levy. Levies can be increased above the allowable limits tf the amount Is approved
by referendum. The Solid Waste fee was enacted prior to this restriction.

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTESON ALL FUNDS

A. CASH ANO INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is utlzed by all funds. Each fund's portion
of this pool 1s displayed on the statement of net posll:Ion and balance sheet as cash and
investments of the City. In addItIon, investments are separately held by several of the funds.

Deposits in each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC mn the amount of $250,000 for
time and savings deposits and $250,000 for demand deposits (interest-beanng and noninterest­
bearing). In addition, rf deposits are held mn institutions outside of the state In which the
government Is located, insured amounts are further hm1ted to a total of $250,000 for the
combined amount of all deposit accounts.

The City's bank accounts are also insured by the State of Wisconsin Deposit Guarantee Fund In
the amount of $400,000 per financial institution. However, although the fund had reserves
available at December 31, 2023, the future availability of resources to cover the losses cannot
be proJected because provIsIons of the 1985 Wisconsin Act 35 provided that the amount in the
fund will be used to repay public depositors for losses until the appropnat1on 1s exhausted at
which time the fund Is abolished This coverage has not been considered m computing custodial
credit risk.

The City maintains a collateral arrangement wth its man bank to provide collateralzaton in
excess of deposits maintained at the bank. The collateral Is maintained m the form of a letter of
credit from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati in the amount of $30,000,000. The City
maintains both Non-FDIC insured and collateralzed balances with an investment manager that
deposits funds with US Banks. The funds are held in accounts "As Agent for its Customers".
The manager utilizes FDIC insurance, third-party insurance and Federal Home Loan Bank
letters of credit as collateral for balances.
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Cash and investments as shown on the December 31, 2023 statement of net posItIon are
subject to the followng risks

Financial Bank & investment Associated
Instruments Canymg Value Balances Rusks

Local Gowrnment lnwstment Pool $ 3,581 535 $ 3,581 535 Credit interest rate
Money market accounts 68,586,740 68,586,740 Custodial credit
Certificate of deposits 3 825,000 3,825,000 Custodial credit
US Agencies 511,138 511,138 Custodial credit, interest

rate. credit, and
concentration ofcredit

Equity funds 13 326,226 13,326,226 Custodial credit
Fixed income funds 7169, 136 7,169,136 Credit and interest rate
Cash and demand deposits 44,175,579 16,625,169 Custodal credit
Petty cash 9,109 9,109 None
Total cash and Investments $ 141,184,463 $ 113,634,053

Reconciliaton to the financial statements Is shown below

Per statement of net position
Government-wide financial statements
Unrestricted cash and investments
Restncted cash and nvestments

Per statement of fiduciary net pos1t1on - fiduciary funds
Custodial fund
Employee Benefit Trusts Funds

$

$

80,984,105
482,900

39,222,096
20,495,362

141,184,463

Custodial Credit Risk For deposits - Custodial credit rsk ts the risk that in the event of a'
financial Institution falure, the City's deposits may not be returned to the City As of
December 31, 2023, none of the City's total bank balances were uninsured and uncollaterallzed
and therefore exposed to custodial credit nsk. The City has a policy to maintain balances in
excess of FDIC hmits with collaterahzat1on agreements to cover the City's deposits.

For Investments - Custodial credrt nsk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of ,ts investments or collateral
securites mn the possession of an outside party. All of the City's investments subject to custodial
credit rsk have a tri-party relat1onsh1p with the investments held in the City's name by a party
independent of the party managing the investment.
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

A. CASH AND WNVESTMENTS (continued)

Credit Risk Credit nsk is the nsk that an issuer or other counterparty will not fulfill its obligation.
The City's policy requires a minimum credit rating of Aa3 at time of purchase. The City's fixed
Income Investments subject to credit nsk include agencies securities, corporate asset backed
securities, corporate bonds, government repurchase agreements and money market funds and
were rated by Moody's Investor Service.

As of December 31, 2023, fixed income funds totaling $7,169,136 and local Government
Investment Pool totaling $3,581,535 are not rated

Concentration of Credit Risk Concentration of credit nsk 1s the nsk of loss attributed to a large
investment position in a single issuer. As of the December 31, 2023 no issuer other than U.S.
Treasury and Agency secuntIes that have the full faith guarantee of the U.S. government had a
position of greater than 5% of the portfolio. The City's concentration of credit risk policy limits
issuers or asset classes not to exceed 10% of market value of the portfoho, with the exception
of U.S. issued secunties.

Interest Rate Risk Interest rate nsk us the risk that rsmg interest rates will have an adverse
impact on the far value of the investments in the portfolio. The longer the maturities In the
portfolio the greater the nsk of loss is in portfolio value. The City's portfolio policy limits this risk
by hm1tmg the length of permitted investments and limits the purchase of investments highly
sensitive to market changes.

As of December 31, 2023, the City's investments exposed to interest rate risk were as follows

lmestment Matunty m Years
Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 2-3 4-5 6- 10
US Agencies $ 511,138 $ 511 138 $ - $ - $
Fed Income funds 7,169136 455,113 2,613,294 328 472 3 772,257
LGIP 3 581,535 3 581,535

$ 11,261,809 $ 4,547 786 $ 2,613 294 $ 328,472 $ 3,772,257

The City categorizes its far value measurements within the far value hierarchy established by
the generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. The hierarchy Is
based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset level 1 inputs are
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, Level 2 inputs are significant other
observable inputs, Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ONALL FUNDS (continued)

A. CASH AND lNVESTMENTS (continued)

The valuation method for recurring fair value measurements are as follows

Market approach - pnces or other Informat1on from mark.et transactions involving 1dent1cal or
similar assets.

The following table summarizes the City's investments reported at fair value

As of December 31, 2023
Lewi 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

US Agencies $ 511,138 $ - $ $ 511,138
Equity funds 13,326,226 13,326,226
Fxed income funds 7,169,136 7,169,136

$ 21,006,500 $ - $ - $ 21,006,500

8. RECEIVABLES

Receivables consist of accounts, taxes, notes, interest, due from other governments and special
assessments. Receivables are reported net of uncollectble amounts. The reserve for bad debts,
principally for personal property taxes and ambulance revenue, was $494,805 at December 31,
2023. Other than the special assessment receivables, all other receivables are expected to be
collected within one year

Governmental funds report unavailable or unearned revenue m connection with receivables for
revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.
Property taxes levied for the subsequent year are not earned and cannot be used to liquidate
hab1htIes of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recogmtIon in connection
with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year,
the various components of deferred inflows of resources resulting from unavailable revenue and
unearned revenue were as follows

Tax Lewy/
Unavailable Unearned Total

Governmental fund
Subsequent year property taxes $ $ 24,549,046 $ 24,549,046
Charges for serwces on tax roll 1,851,357 1,851,357
Leases receivable 1,418,374 1,418,374
TID minimum assessment guarantees 1,441,142 1,441,142
Special assessments not yet due 207,154 207,154
Total deferred inflows of resources
for govemmental funds $ 1,648,296 $ 27,818,777 $ 29,467,073
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ONALL FUNDS (continued)

C. DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

In 2011, the City entered into an intergovernmental cooperation agreement with another
government for the construction and financing of the Ryan Creek Interceptor Sewer. The terms
of thus agreement include that the other government wll reimburse the City for substantially all
of the debt service costs resulting from the City taking on a State Clean Water Fund Loan.
Those reimbursements started in 2015 and wll continue over the life of the loan, ending in
2031. This 1s presented as due from other governments in the statement net pos1t1on Annual
principal and interest payments to maturity received as part of thus agreement are as follows

Year Ending Business-Type Act«ties
December31 Pnncpal Interest

2024 $ 1,405,575 $ 284,607
2025 1,440,181 249,575
2026 1,475,638 213,681
2027 1,511,968 176,904
2028 1,549,193 139,221

2029-2031 4,880,203 182,173
Total $ 12,262,758 $ 1,246,161

D. RESTRICTED ASSETS

In accordance with the City's ordinance enacting a sewer user charge system and regulations of
the Department of Natural Resources, the Sanitary Sewer Fund - an Enterprise Fund,
incorporated an equipment replacement charge as a component of the rate structure to be used
for significant mechanical equipment replacement as required by the Wisconsin Department of
Natural Resources. Revenue generated from this charge is accumulated and used for
replacement of certain equipment. The balance in this account at December 31, 2023 1s
$482,900.
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ONALL FUNDS (continued)

E. CAPITALASSETS

Governmental activities capital asset actIvIty for the year ended December 31, 2023 was as
follows

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental Activities
Capital assets not depreciated
Land $ 28,834631 $ 1,499,941 $ $ 30 334 572
Construction in progress 7,628,440 2,617,055 7 812 824 2 432 671
Total assets not depreciated 36,463 071 4 116 996 7 812 824 32 767,243

Capital assets depreciated
Buildings & improvements 29,908607 876 262 100 251 30 684 618
Machinery & equipment 22694,449 780 215 314 284 23 160 380
Infrastructure 132,344,229 6 542 325 632,224 138 254 330
Total assets, depreciated 184,947,285 8 198,802 1,046 759 192 099,328

Less Accumulated deprecation for
Buildings & improvements 13 846,932 895 215 100 251 14 641,896
Machinery & equipment 13 682 104 1140,087 307 654 14 514 537
Infrastructure 40,438,764 2 332,734 632 224 42,139 274
Total accumulated deprecation 67967,800 4 368 036 1 040,129 71295707

Total depreciable assets net of
accumulated depreciation 116 979 485 3 830766 6,630 120 803 621

Governmental actiwties capital assets
net accumulated deprecation $153,442,556 $ 7 947,762 $ 7,819,454 $ 153,570 864
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ONALL FUNDS (continued)

E. CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Depreclat1on/amorbzat1on expense was charged to functions as follows

Govemmental Actrties
General govemment
Public safety
Pubhc works
Health & human sences
Culture & recreation
Consenaton & development
Total governmental act1\Aties depreciation

$ 293 432
674,397

2,872,278
1,114

526167
648

$ 4,368 036

Business-type actrvtes capital asset actrvrty for the year ended December 31, 2023 was as
follows

Beginning Ending
Balance lnCreases Decreases Balance

Business-type Actrvties
Capital assets, not depreciated
Land $ 888479 $ 44541 $ $ 933 020
Construction mn progress 9236 617 1,581 352 10,502,206 315 763
Total assets not depreciated 10,125 096 1 625 893 10,502 206 1 248 783

Capital assets, depreciated
Buildings & improvements 6,739 801 136 219 6603 582
Machinery & equipment 5 846 589 343,598 151 875 6 038,312
Infrastructure 150895 830 15886 565 166 782 395
Total assets deprecated 163,482,220 16,230,163 288,094 179 424 289

Less Accumulated depreciation for
Buddings & improvements 2 754 316 282 716 136 219 2 900 813
Machinery & equipment 4 428,872 374,438 151 875 4 651,435
Infrastructure 49 051 230 3151 759 52,202,989
Total accumulated deprec1at1on 56234418 3 808 913 288,094 se75 237

Total depreciable assets net of
accumulated deprecation 107 247 802 12421 250 119669 052

Business-type actntes capital assets
net accumulated deprecation $117 372 898 $ 14047,143 $ 10 502206 $ 120 917 835

Depreciation/amortzaton expense was charged to functions as follows

Business-type Actwties
Water Ut1hty
Samta,y Sewer Utility
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$ 5,030,351

$ 183,396
150,264
152,809
155,482
158,288
369,360
388,800
466,560
559,872
671,846
806,215
967,459

Year Pnnc1pal lnterest
2024 $ 102,734 $ 80,662
2025 73,029 77,235
2026 78,789 74,020
2027 84,920 70,562
2028 91,444 66,844

2029- 2033 49,649 319,711
2034 - 2038 75,295 313,505
2039-2043 167,615 298,945
2044-2048 288,675 271,197
2049-2053 445,589 226,257
2054-2058 647,077 159,138
2059-2063 903,809 63,650

$ 3,008,625 $ 2,021,726

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

F. LEASE DISCLOSURES

Lessor Lease Agreements

The CIty, acting as lessor, leases communicaton srtes under long-term, non-cancelable lease
agreements. The leases expre at various dates through September 2064 During the year
ended December 31, 2023, the City recognized $167,509 and $84,607 n lease revenue and
Interest revenue, respectively, pursuant to these contracts. The City has used estimated
Incremental borrowing rates of 2.5% - 4.0% In calculating the lease receivables and deferred
Inflows of resources as the lease agreements do not include explicit interest rates.

Total future minimum lease payments to be received under lease agreements are as follows

Total

The CIty has allocated the revenues, recervables, and deferred inflows of resources evenly
between the General Fund / Governmental Activities and the Water Utility Fund / Business-type
Activities.

G. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES l PAYABLES, ADVANCES, AND TRANSFERS

lnterfund balances result from the time lag between the dates that (1) mterfund goods and
serces are provided or reimbursable expendttures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the
accounting system and (3) payments between funds are made. In all cases amounts are repaid
within one year. At December 31, 2023, the TIF DIstncts fund had a due to the General Fund In
the amount of $380,852, which 1s expected to be funded through future tax increments.
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ONALL FUNDS (continued)

G. INTERFUND RECENVABLES PAYABLES, ADVANCES, ANDTRANSFERS (continued)

Advances

The City of Franklin provides short- and long-term advances to its TIF Districts and Water Utlrty.
The amounts advanced are either from proceeds of a borrowing or from fund reserves They are
used to enable the TIF Districts to carry out approved project plans. The TIF Districts interest
rate Is based upon the interest rate incurred by the debt service fund on its borrowings or the
reinvestment rate available to other funds The advances wll be repaid as the TIF Districts have
resources available.

In 2017, the City made an advance payment on the PubhcWorks Defined Benefit Pension Plan
In doing so, the general fund advanced $155,700 to the Water Utility on a 10-year note to aid
the Water Utility portion of the payment. The outstanding balance on the advance Is $53,250 at
December 31, 2023. Additionally, the TIF Distnct #6 and TIF District #8 have an advance In the
amount of $415,524 and $911,433, respectively, from the general fund for amounts paid by the
general fund on behalf of the TIF Districts. Thus mnterfund balance ts anticipated to be paid
through future tax increments The balances at December 31, 2023 were

Receivable Fund

Payable Fund
TIF Drstncts
Water Utility

General Fund
$ 1,326,957

53,250
$ 1,380,207
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NOTE 3- DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

G., INTERFUND RECEIVABLES / PAYABLES, ADVANCES, AND TRANSFERS (continued)

Transfers

Generally, transfers are used to (1) move revenue from the funds that collect them to the fund
that the budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the
funds collecting the receipts to the Debt Service Fund and (3) use unrestricted revenue
collected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds In
accordance wth budgetary authorizations.

Transfers as presented on the fund financial statements during the year ended December 31,
2023 were as follows

TransferOtt
Nonmayor

General Development TIF Governmental Enterpnse Fund
Transfer In Fund Fund Dristncts Funds Funds Totals
General Fund $ $ $ $ $ 877 185 $ 877 185
Development Fund
TIF Dstncts
Nonmayor Governmental
Funds 24,000 1 048,177 1 461 756 1 086890 3 620 823

$ 24000 $1048,177 $1,461,756 $ 1 086890 $ 877,185 $4498008

A reconc1hat1on of fund statement transfers to government wide transfers for the year ended
December 31 . 2023 1s as follows

Gmemmental Enterpnse
Funds Funds

Transfers 1n, per fund statements $ 4,498,008 $
Transfers out, per fund statements (3,620,823) (877,185)
Municipality-financed addition to Utility Plant (1,599,384) 1,599,384

Govemmental-wide transfers $ (722,199) $ 722,199
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ONALL FUNDS (contmued)

H. LONG TERMOBLIGATIONS

Long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2023 were as follows:

Beginnmg Ending Due within
Balance Additions Deletions Balance One Year

Governmental Activities
Genera l obligation debt $ 50,595 000 $ 5 330,000 $ 2,465,000 $ 53,460 000 $ 3,500,000
Premium 632,200 214,695 101 178 745,717
Subtotal 51,227,200 5,544,695 2,566,178 54,205 717 3,500,000

Compensated absences
Accrued veca tion pay 482,022 1,180361 1 139,747 522 636 522,636
Accrued severance pay 1228,390 416,695 61,404 1 583,681 302 600
Accrued compensatory time 219,345 390,395 375,157 234,583 234 583
Total compensated absences 1,929,757 1,987,451 1,576,308 2,340,900 1,059,819

Net OPEB obligation 810,655 909,364 1,699,848 20171

Governmental activities long-t erm
obligations $ 53,967,612 $ 8 441,510 $ 5 842,334 $ 56 566,788 $ 4,559 819

The governmental activites compensated absences, net pension labities, and OPEB liabilities
primarily accrue to and are paid from the City's general fund.

Beginning Ending Due wthin
Balance Ad&tons Deletions Balance One Year

Business-type Activities
Genera l obligation debt $ 3 745 000 $ 2,995000 $ 160000 $ 6 580 000 $ 330 000
Genera l obhgatJon debt from direct
borrowings 13634 561 1371802 12 262 759 1405575

Prermum 108769 81812 9961 180620
Discount 5 482) (829) (4 653)
Subtotal 17 482 848 3076812 1540934 19 018 726 1 735 575

Compensated absences
Accrued vacation pay 52014 50323 61391 40946 40946
Accrued severance pay 94176 5 477 19155 80498 7320
Accrued compensatory time 23 114 11443 13687 20870 2,900
Total compensated absences 169304 67 243 94233 142 314 51 166

Net OPEB obligation 37840 41 854 78236 1458

Business-type actrwties long-term
obligations $ 17,689992 $ 3185909 $ 1713403 $ 19162 498 $ 1 786 741
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

H. LONG TERMOBLIGATIONS (continued)

Details of general obhgatIon notes and bonds payable as of December 31, 2023 are as follows

Govemmental Activities Maturity Interest Original Balance at
Issuance Date of Issue Interest Rate Dates Payable Amount 12/31/2023
General obligation notes 2014A 12/18/2014 20 50% 3/1/15-24 3/1 & 9/1 $ 5 320000 $ 325 000
General obligation notes - 2017 12/21/2017 2$30% 31/19-27 311 & 911 1 630000 1005000
General obligation bonds - 2019A 2/20/2019 30 35% 3/1/20 - 32 3/1 & 9/1 13685000 6 9 620 000
General obhgatlon bonds 20198 2/202019 30 40% 311/22 • 34 311 & 9/1 6 365000 7 5 990 000
General obligation bonds 2019C 12/412019 175 305% 3/1/22- 37 311 & 911 12 360000 8 11960000
General obligation notes - 20190 12/412019 20-30% 3/1/20 • 27 311 & 911 2 285000 4 1320000
General obligation bonds • 2020A 12/10/2020 16-205% 3/1/20 • 37 311 & 911 9 545000 s 9 545 000
General obligalion bonds - 20208 12/10/2020 10 .-20% 3y1/20 34 311 & 911 3045000 9 2 970 000
General obligation notes - 2021A4 11/17/2021 2 0% 3/1/22 - 30 311 & 9.11 2 040000 10 1890000
General obligation bonds - 2021B 12/2/2021 2.0-30% 3/1122 41 3/1 & 9/1 3 505000 ,, 3 505 000
General obligation bonds 20234 11/28/2023 4.0-50% 3/1/23 43 311 & 91 2 980000 12 2 980 000
General obligat,on bonds 2023B8 11/28/2023 5 0% 3/1123 33 3/1 8 9v1 2350000 13 2 350 000
Total Govemmental Activities $ 53 460 000

Business-type Activities Maturity Interest Original Balance at
Issuance Date of Issue Interest Rate Oates Payabl e Amount 1213112023
Clean Water Loan 1/2512012 2 46% 5/1/14 31 5/1 & 11/1 $ 27 562 754 2 $ 12 262 759
General obligation bonds - 2019A 12/18/2014 20-3125% 3/1/15 -34 311 & 911 1290000 3 780 000
General obligation bonds - 2021B 12/212021 20-30% 3/1/22 - 41 311 & 911 4160 000 11 2 805,000
General obligation bonds - 2023A 11/28/2023 4.0-50% 3/1/23 - 43 3/1 & 911 2 995 000 12 2 995,000
Total Busness-type Activities $ 18 842 759

*Direct 8orrow ing

1 Issued 63% tar cap#al Ti purposes and 37% for general capital purposes
2 Issued for a sew er extension on West Ry-an Road
3 lss ued for water building purposes
4 Issued for general captal improvement purposes
5 Refunded 2018A. NAN for projects in TD5
6 sued to refund $pt0 mlion of the 2018A4 MAMs and a developer grant in TD#3
7 Issued for infrastructure projects in lD06

8 Issued to refund $4mlion of the 2018A NAN, capital projects in TD 5
and #7 and financeadeVeloper 11111tgage rl 1D#7

9 Issued for caplal projeels in 1Dl6
10 Issued Im Capital lpovesent Flan and Acquisit ion ofVehicles and Equipment
11 Issued for sewerage pro;ects and infrastructure projects
12 Issued far watersystem projects and housingof machinery and equipmeno
13 is sued for capital ingroverents parks projects street improvements and land acquisin
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

H. LONG TERMOBLIGATIONS (continued)

Annual principal and interest payments to maturity on general obligation notes and bonds
payable are as follows

Business-Type Actit 1es
Year Ending Govemmental Actnuties Non-Direct Borrowngs
December31 Pnncipal Interest Pnncpal Interest

2024 $ 3,500,000 $ 1,360,295 $ 330,000 $ 185,124
2025 3,510,000 1,319,773 265,000 206,975
2026 3,830,000 1,215,604 280,000 196,850
2027 4,205,000 1,102,523 290,000 186,250
2028 3,910,000 985,658 310,000 175,100

2029- 2033 22,915,000 2,924,032 1,720,000 702,950
2034-2038 10,305,000 797,223 1,780,000 409,444
2039- 2043 1,285,000 137,126 1,605,000 129,275

$ 53,460,000 $ 9,842,234 $ 6,580,000 $ 2,191,968

Business-Type Act1ties
Year Ending Direct Borrowings
December31 Pnncipal Interest

2024 $ 1,405,575 $ 284,607
2025 1,440,181 249,575
2026 1,475,638 213,682
2027 1,511,968 176,904
2028 1,549,193 139,221

2029- 2031 4,880,204 182,174
$ 12,262,759 $ 1,246,163

The City's statutory debt hm1t and margin of indebtedness at December 31, 2023 are as follows

2023 Equalized value
Wisconsin lmit
Statutory debt lmrt
Total general obligation debt
Margn of indebtedness
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NOTE 3- DETAILED NOTESON ALL FUNDS (continued)

H. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Municipal Revenue Obligations

In 2018, the City issued a mumc1pal revenue obhgat1on (MRO) as part of a development
agreement. The amount of the obhgat1on was $3,500,000 and 1s payable to the developer solely
from tax increments collected from a development m TIO #5. No payment was made mn 2023.
The MRO bears interest at 5.5% payable on March 1 annually. The balance of the MRO was
$3,500,000 at December 31, 2023.

In 2020, the City issued an MRO as part of a development agreement. The amount of the
obligation was $14,952,000 and is payable to the developer solely from tax increments collected
from a development mn T1D #7. $765,000 mn payments were made mn 2023 The MRO bears no
interest. The balance of the MRO was $13,728,000 at December 31, 2023. The MRO is payable
from tax increment collected until 2040

The MROs described in the preceding paragraphs do not constitute a charge upon any funds of
the City. In the event that future tax increments are not sufficient to pay off the obhgat1ons, the
obligations terminate with no further lablty to the City. Smee the amount of the future payments
Is contingent on the collection of future TlD increments, the obligations are not reported as a
ability in the accompanying financial statements.

Clean Water Fund Loan Programs
The City's outstanding notes from direct borrowngs related to business type activities of
$12,262,759 contain the followng provisions in the event of a default 1) Wisconsin Department
of Adm1n1stratIon can deduct amounts due from any state payments due to the City or add the
amounts due as a special charge to the property taxes apportioned, 2) may appoint a receiver
for the Program's benefit, 3) may declare the principal amount 1mmed1ately due and payable, 4)
may enforce any rght or obligation under the financing agreement including the right to seek
spec1f1c performance or mandamus, and 5) may increase the interest rate set forth In the
financing agreement to the market interest rate.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ONALL FUNDS (continued)

I. NET POSITION/FUNDBALANCES

Governmental Activities

Governmental actvites net posrton reported on the government-wtde statement of net position
at December 31 , 2023 include the following

Governmental Actrwtes
Net mwstment m capital assets
Land
Construction in process
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Less Related long-term debt outstanding

Net investment mn capital assets

Business-typeActrwties
Net mwstment in capital assets
Land
Construction m process
Other capital assets, net of accumulated deprec1at1on
Less Related long-term debt outstanding

Net mwstment in capital assets

$ 30,334,572
2,432,671

120,803,621
(21,106,100)

$ 132,464,764

$ 933,020
315,763

119,669,052
(16, 146,963)

$ 104,770,872

Governmental Fund Balances

Reported on the fund financial statements at December 31, 2023 include the following

Nonspendable
General fund - advances
General fund - prepaid items and inventones
Nonmajor governmental funds - prepaid items and

Inventones
Total nonspendable

51

$

$

1,380,207
97,930

3,329
1,481,466



CITYOF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 3 - DETAILEDNOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

I. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (continued}

Governmental Fund Balances (continued)

Restncted
Debt serce
Utility improvements
Development
TIF Dstncts
Grants and donations
OpI01d Settlement
Health serces
Library seNces
Sohd waste
Recreational sences
Tourism commission

Total restncted

Assigned
General fund - purchase orders
Municipal buildings
Police department
Fire department
Economic development
Planning

Capital projects
Capital outlay
Equipment replacement
Capital improvement
Street improvement
Total assigned

Unassigned
General fund
TIF D»stncts (deficit)
Nonmayor govemmental funds (deficit)

Total unassigned

Total fund balance
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$ 994,834
2,924,342

12,967,742
7,372,819

212,861
92,303

243,742
535,351
430,358

50,619
472,381

$ 26,297,352

$ 9,884
16,339
2,583

15,365
8,020

1,623,715
2,524,207
6,520,437
1,362,954

$ 12,083,504

$ 11,700,207
(2,937,679)

(90,267)
$ 8,672,261

$ 48,534,583



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

The City reports pension-related balances at December 31, 2023, as summarized below

Net Pension Deferred Deferred Pension
Asset Outflows of Inflows of Expense

(Luabfuty) Resources Resources (Benefit)
Wisconsin Retirement System
(WRS) $ (7,008,704) $ 26,370,199 $ 14,863,387 $ 3,572,936

City of Franklin Defined Benefit
Retirement Income Plan (1,382,056) 1,945,024 193,441 254,408

$ (8,390,760) $ 28,315,223 $ 15,056,828 $ 3,827,344

Wisconsin Retirement System

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan description The WRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.
WRS benefits and other plan provIsIons are established by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin
Statutes. Benefit terms may only be modified by the legislature. The retirement system Is
administered by the Wisconsin Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF) The system
provides coverage to all eligible State of Wisconsin, local government, and other public
employees. All employees, mnrtally employed by a participating WRS employer on or after
July 1, 2011, expected to work at least 1,200 hours a year (880 hours for teachers and school
district educational support employees) and expected to be employed for at least one year from
employee's date of hire are elgble to participate m the WRS.

ETF issues a standalone Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR), which can be found
at http //etf.wI gov/about-etf/reports-and-stud1eslfinanc1al-reports-and-statements.

Additionally, ETF issued a standalone Wisconsin Retirement System Financial Report, which
can also be found usmg the hnk above.

Vesting. For employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990, and no longer
actively employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable service in each of five years Is required
for eligibility for a retirement annuity. Participants employed pnor to 1990 and on or after
Apnl 24, 1998, and pnor to July 1, 2011, are mmmedately vested. Participants who Initially
became WRS ehg1ble on or after July 1, 2011, must have five years of creditable service to be
vested.

Benefits provided Employees who retire at or after age 65 (54 for protective occupations and
62 for elected officials and executive service retirement plan participants, if hred on or before
12/31/2016) are entitled to a retirement benefit based on a formula factor, their final average
earnings, and creditable service.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

General Information about the Pension Plan (continued)

Final average earnings is the average of the participant's three highest annual earnings periods
Creditable service includes current service and prior service for which a participant received
earnings and made contributions as required. Creditable service also includes creditable mIhtary
service The retirement benefit will be calculated as a money purchase benefit based on the
employee's contnbutons plus matching employer's contnbutions, with interest, If that benefit Is
higher than the formula benefit.

Vested participants may retire at or after age 55 (50 for protective occupations) and receive an
actuarially-reduced benefit Participants terminating covered employment pnor to eligibility for
an annuity may erther recerve employee-required contributions plus Interest as a separation
benefit or leave contnbutons on deposrt and defer application until eligible to receive a
retirement benefit. The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees.

Post-Retirement Adjustments The Employee Trust Funds Board may periodically adJust
annuity payments from the retirement system based on annual mvestment performance in
accordance wth s. 40.27, Wis. Stat. An mcrease (or decrease) in annuity payments may result
when investment gains (losses), together with other actuarial experience factors, create a
surplus (shortfall) m the reserves, as determined by the system's consulting actuary. Annuity
increases are not based on cost of living or other sIm1lar factors. For Core annuItIes, decreases
may be applied only to previously granted increases. By law, Core annuIt1es cannot be reduced
to an amount below the original, guaranteed amount (the "floor") set at retirement The Core and
Variable annuity adjustments granted dunng recent years are as follows

Year Core Fund Adjustment Variable Fund
() Adjustment (%)

2014 47 25 0 I
2015 29 20 l
2016 05 (5 0) I
2017 20 40
2018 2 4 17 0 I
2019 00 (10 0)
2020 17 210
2021 5 1 130
2022 74 15 0 I
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4- OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

General Information about the Pension Plan (continued)

Contributions. Required contributions are determmed by an annual actuarial valuation in
accordance with Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The employee required contribution 1s
one-half of the actuanally determined contnbutlon rate for General category employees,
including Teachers, Executives and Elected Officials. Starting on January 1, 2016, the
Executives and Elected Officials category was merged mnto the General Employee Category.
Required contributions for protective employees are the same rate as general employees.
Employers are required to contnbute the remainder of the actuanally determined contribution
rate. The employer may not pay the employee required contribution unless provided for by an
existing collective bargaining agreement.

During the City's reporting penod, the WRS recognzed $1,829,488 contnbutions from the
employer.

Contribution rates as of December 31, 2023 are

Employee Category Employee Employer
General (including teachers, executives, and 6 80% 6 80%
elected officials)
Protective wth Social Securty 6 80% 13 20%
Protective without Social Security 6 80% I 18 10% I

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2023, the City reported a habillty (asset) of $7,008,704, for its proportionate
share of the net pension liability (asset). The net pension hab1hty (asset) was measured as of
December 31, 2022, and the total pension ability used to calculate the net pension llab1l1ty
(asset) was determined by an actuanal valuation as of December 31, 2021 rolled forward to
December 31, 2022. No matenal changes m assumptions or benefit terms occurred between
the actuarial valuation date and the measurement date. The Caty's proportion of the net pension
liability (asset) was based on the City's share of contnbutlons to the pension plan relative to the
contributions of all participating employers. At December 31, 2022, the City's proportion was
0.13229702%, which was an increase of 0.00393236%, from ,ts proportion measured as of
December 31, 2021.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the City recognized pension expense (benefit) of
$3,572,936 related to WRS Pension, including duty disabltty payments.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

At December 31, 2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and
actual expenence $ 11 162 694 $ 14 665 273

Changes in assumptions 1 378 201
Net differences between projected and
actual eamngs on plan vestments 11 906169

Changes in proportion and differences
between employer contnbutons and
proportionate share ofcontnbutons 93,647 198 114

Contnbutions made subsequent to the
measurement date 1,829,488

Total $ 26,370199 $ 14,863,387

The $1,829,488 reported as deferred outflows related to pension resulting from the City's
contributions subsequent to the measurement date wl be recognized as a reduction (addrtion)
of the net pension labtrty (asset) in the year ended December 31, 2024 for the City. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pension will be recognized n pension expense (benefit) as follows

Amortization of
Deferred Outflows
& Deferred Inflows

Year Ended December 31 of Resources (Net)---------------2024 $ 405,798
2025 1,985,786
2026 2,025,063
2027 5,260,677
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pension Liabllltles, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Actuarial assumptions The Total Pension LIabd1ty m the December 31, 2022, actuarial
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, appled to all periods
included in the measurement

Actuarial Valuation Date December 31, 2021
Measurement Date of Net Pension Llab1hty December 31, 2022
(Asset)
Experience Study January 1, 2018-December 31, 2020

Published November 19, 2021
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Asset Valuation Method Far Value
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 6.8%
Discount Rate 6.8%
Salary Increases
Inflation 3.0%
Seniority/Merit 0.1%-5.6%

Mortality 2020 WRS Expenence Mortality Table
Post-retirement Adjustments 1.7%

• No post retirement adjustment as guaranteed Actual adjustments are based on recognized investment return, actuanal
experience, and otherfactors 1 7% rs the assumed annual adjustment based on the Investment return assumption and the post
retirement discount rate

Actuarial assumptions are based upon an expenence study conducted in 2021 that covered a
three-year perod from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2020. The total pension l1ab1hty for
December 31, 2022 s based upon a roll-forward of the hab1hty calculated from the December
31, 2021 actuarial valuation.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Wisconsin RetirementSystem (continued)

Pension Llabilitles, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

long-term expected Return on Plan Assets. The long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments was determined using a budding-block method mn which best-estimate
ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns. net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each mayor asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation The target
allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each mayor asset class are
summarized mn the following table

Asset Allocation Targets and Expected Returns 1

As of December 31, 2022
Long-Term

Long-Term Expected
Expected Nominal Real

Core Fund Asset Class Asset Allocaton % Rate ofReturn % Rate of Return % 2

Public Equity 48 76 50
Public Fixed Income 25 53 27
Inflation Sensttve Assets 19 36 1 1
Real Estate 8 52 26
Pnvate Equity/Debt 15 96 69
Total Core Fund J 115 74 48

Variable Fund Asset Class
U S Equities 70 72 46
International Equities 30 81 55
Total Vanable Fund 100 77 51

1. Asset allocatons are managed Within established ranges target percentages may differ fromactual monthly allocations
Z. New England Pension Consultants Long Tenn US CPI (Inflation) Forecast. 2 5%
3. The investment policy used for the Core Fund involves reducing equity exposure by leveraging lower-volatility assets such as fixed

Income securities. Thus resultsan asset allocation beyond 100% Currently an asset allocation target of 15% policy leverage is used
subject to an allowable range of up to 20%
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DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4- OTHER INFORMATION {continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS {continued)

Wisconsin Retirement System (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Single Discount rate. A single discount rate of 6.80% was used to measure the total pension
hab1hty for the current and pnor year This single discount rate was based on the expected rate
of return on pension plan investments of 6 80% and a municipal bond rate of 4.05%. (Source
Fixed-income municipal bonds with 20 years to matunty that include only federally tax-exempt
mumc1pal bonds as reported in Fidelity Index's "20-year Mumc1pal GO AA Index" as of
December 31, 2022. In describing this index, Fidelity notes that the MumcIpal Curves are
constructed using optlon-adJusted analytics of a diverse population of over 10,000 tax-exempt
securities.) Because of the umque structure of WRS, the 6.80% expected rate of return 1mphes
that a dividend of approximately 1.70% wll always be paid For purposes of the single discount
rate, tt was assumed that the drvdend would always be paid. The pr0Ject1on of cash flows used
to determine this single discount rate assumed that plan member contnbutlons will be made at
the current contnbutIon rate and that employer contnbutons wll be made at rates equal to the
difference between actuanally determined contribution rates and the member rate Based on
these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all proJected future benefit payments (including expected dIv1dends) of current plan
members. Therefore, the expected long-term rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of proJected benefit payments to determine the total pension hab1hty.

Sensitivity of the City's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to
changes in the discount rate. The following presents the City's proportionate share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset) calculated using the discount rate of 6.80%, as well as what the City's
proportionate share of the Net Pension L1ab1hty {Asset) would be If 1t were calculated using a
discount rate that Is one-percentage-point lower (5 80%) or one-percentage-point higher
(7.80%) than the current rate

1% Decrease to Current 1% lncrease to
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

(5 80%) (6 80%) (7 80%)
City's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset) $ 23,261,660 $ 7,008,704 $ (4,171,936)

Pens,on plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net
position is available in separately issued financial statements available at
https //etf.w1 gov/about-etf/reports-and-stud1es/financ1al-reports-and-statements.
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DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFITRETIREMENT INCOME PLAN

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description - The City sponsors the City of Franktmn Defined Benefit Retirement Income
Plan, a single employer defined benefit pension plan covenng el1g1ble pubhc works employees.
The assets of this Plan are administered by Pnnc1pal Life Insurance Company. An annual
financial report may be obtained by writing to the plan administrator at Principal Financial
Group, P.O. Box 9693, Des Moines, IA 50306-9396.

Vesting - Participants with five years of credible service are 50% vested mn the plan. Upon
reach1 ng 1 O years of credible service participants are fully vested mn the plan.

Benefits provided - The City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan provides
retirement benefits to former barga1mng employees of the City that are not covered under
Wisconsin State Pension Plan (Wisconsin Retirement System), or who are regular part-time
employees as defined by Civil Service and who have a mImmum of 6 months of service.
Employees who retire at or after age 60 are entitled to receive an unreduced retirement benefit.
The factors influencing the benefit are: (1) average compensation at retirement, (2) years of
creditable service, and (3) a formula factor

Average compensation at retirement is the average of the partIcIpant's three highest
consecutive years' earnings out of the ten latest years pnor to retirement Creditable service Is
the creditable current and prior service expressed in years or fractional partial years for which a
participant receives earnings. The formula factor 1s a standard percentage based on the plan
provisions.

Employees may retire at age 55, with a minimum of 10 completed years of service and receive
reduced benefits. Employees terminating covered employment before becoming eligible for a
retirement benefit may receive either normal retirement benefits at normal retirement date, or a
lump-sum cash payment of part1c1pant's vested accumulations.

The plan also provides death and d1sab1l1ty benefits for employees.

Participating employees - Membership in the plan as of date of study consisted of the following
classes of participants

Active employees
Terminated vested participants
Retirees
Total participants
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN (continued)

General Information about the Pension Plan (continued)

Contributions - Contnbuton requirements are established through action of the City Council and
may be amended only through city ordinance. Employees make a non-elective and non­
discretionary pension contnbuton that is equal to 8.2% of ther payroll. The City contributes all
remaining amounts necessary to fund the pension plan. During the reporting period,
contr1butIons of $256,000 were made by the City to the plan.

Pension Liabilities/Asset, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2023, the City reported a llabd1ty (asset) of $1,382,056 for its net pension
lability (asset). The net pension liability (asset) was measured as of December 31, 2022, and
the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension habdity (asset) was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2022. No material changes in assumptions or benefit
terms occurred between the actuanal valuation date and the measurement date.

Current year changes mn the net pension llab1hty (asset)were as follows.

Balance at December 31 2022

Increase (Decrease) Net
Total Pension mn Plan Fiduciary Penson
Luablty Net Position Liability (Asset)
(a) (b) (a) - (b)

$ 11 476,935 $ 13 211 075 $ (1 734 140)

125 133
676 545
612 779
(295 216)
(192 000)
2 165,325
23 630

125133
676 545
612 779
(295 216)

192 000
(2 165 325)

(23 630)
6@22to)@@2a3@o)..
$ 11,972856 $ 10590800 $ 1,382 056a

Changes for the year
Sel'lllce cost
Interest
Difference between expected and actual expenence
Assumption changes or inputs
Contnbut1ons - employer
Net investment income
Administrative expenses
Benefit payments

Balance at December 31 2023

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total Pens10n habtl1ty 88 46%
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DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN (continued)

Pension Llabllltles/Asset, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

At December 31, 2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual expenence $ 303,295 $ 47,324
Changes in assumptions 146,117
Net differences between projected and actual earngs
on plan investments 1,385,729

Contnbuttons made subsequent to the measurement
date 256,000

Total $ 1,945,024 $ 193,441

The $256,000 reported as deferred outflows related to pension resulting from the City's
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction (increase)
of the net pension labrlrty (asset) in the year ended December 31, 2024 Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension
will be recognized mn pension expense (benefit) as follows

Amortization of
Deferred Outftows
& Deferred Inflows

Year Ended December 31 of Resources (Net)
too

2024 $ 171,618
2025 290,514
2026 444,668
2027 588,783
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DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN (continued)

Pension Liabilities/Asset, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Actuarial assumptions - The pension hab1hty in the December 31, 2022 actuaral valuation was
determined use the following actuanal assumptions, applied to all penods in the measurement

December 31 2022
December 31 2022
Entry Age
Market Value
6 25%
6 25%
400%
Based on PubG-2010 General base rate mortality table
projected to future years wth hustoncal and assumed
mortality mpro-.ement rates using the MP-2019 mortality
Improvement scale

Actuarial assumptions are based upon an expenence study conducted mn 2019 using hustorcal
experience. The total pension hability for December 31, 2023 is based upon the habihty
calculated from the December 31, 2022 actuanal valuation.

Long-term Expected Return on Plan Assets - The long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was determined using the weighted average rate based on the target asset
allocation and the Long-Term Capital Market Assumptions. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target
allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table

Long-term Real
Asset Class Rate ofRetum Target Allocation

US Equity - Large Cap 770% 37 71%
US Equity - Md Cap 800% 4 55%
US Equity - Small Cap 8 55% 224%

Non-US Equity 8 00% 13 89%
Real Estate (Dstnct Property) 5 35% 811%

Core Bond 4 20% 30 63%
Hugh Yield Bond 6 10% 2 87%
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4- OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN (continued)

Pension LiabilitieslAsset, Pel)sion Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Discount rate - A discount rate of 6.25% was used to measure the total pension liability, which
changed from 6.00% used In the pnor year. This single discount rate was based on the
expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 6.25% and a long-term bond rate of
4 38%. The projection of cash flows used to determine this discount rate assumed that plan
member contnbut1ons wIU be made at the current contribution rate and that the City
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined
contribution rates and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan's
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all penods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability.

Sens1t1v1ty of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate - The following presents
the City's net pension hab1hty (asset) calculated using the discount rate of 6.25%, as well as
what the City's net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that 1s one-percentage-point lower (5.25%) or one-percentage-point higher (7 25%) than the
current rate

1% Decrease to
Discount Rate

(5 25%)

Current
Discount Rate

(6 25%)

1 % Increase to
Discount Rate

(7 25%)
City's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset) $ 2,639,992 $ 1 382 056 $ 312,903

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the City recognized pension expense (benefit) of
$254,408 related to the City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income Plan.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

B. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Based on City ordinances all eligible City of Franklin non-protective employees (except public
works employees) partIcIpate in the City of Franklin Defined Contribution Plan (the "Plan"). The
Plan assets are admImstered by the Principal Life Insurance Company.

Employees after completing st months of service with the City are elgble to participate. The
Plan requires the City to make periodic contributions to each partcpant's account equal to 10%
of such participant's annual compensation. Employees are required to make contributions of 5%
of wages. A participant's accrued benefit for City contributions Is 100% vested and non­
forfeitable upon death, normal retirement, early retirement or permanent and total d1sab1hty as
defined in the Plan. If employment s terminated for any other reason. each participant's accrued
benefit vests at various percentages, based on years of service. During 2023, total contributions
of $45,034 or 10% of covered payroll were made. The City contnbuted $22,517 and employees
contributed $22,517. The City may make amendments to the Plan.

C. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

Plan administration and description- The City administers the City of Franklin Post­
Employment Benefit Trust (City OPEB Plan), a single employer defined benefit OPES plan that
1s used to provide post-employment health care benefits for all el1g1ble full-time employees of
the City. Management of the City OPEB Plan Is vested in the City's Common Council Separate
financial statements are not prepared for the City OPEB Plan

Benefits provided - City of Frankin elgrble full time employees meeting minimum age and
service requirements may receive group health care benefits at a reduced cost during the period
from their normal retirement date until they reach age 65. This results 1n another post­
employment benefit obligation for those groups. These groups commonly have higher medical
costs than anticipated m the blended premium rates That differential Is referred to as an Impllc1t
rate subsidy.

The years of service for benefit ehg1b1hty for the Firefighter group decreased from 20 years to 15
years with the newest contract in effect during the year ended December 31, 2023.

Employees covered by benefit terms -- At December 31, 2023, the following employees were
covered by the benefit terms

Active employees
Inactive employees entitled to, by not yet recerng benefits
Retirees
Total participants

65

207

31
238



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C. POST EMPLOYMENTHEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

Plan participant payments - Plan partIcIpant payment requirements are established by either
City ordinance or collective bargaining and may be amended only by the groups establishing the
requirements. The City's penodic contribution is determined and fixed at the time of retirement.
The retiree pays the balance of the penodIc blended premium. The ehg1b1hty for the benefit
follows

Employee Group City Amount Age Years of Serce
Non-represented 75% of Premium at Retirement 62 20
Police 75% of Premium at Retirement 53 15
Dispatch 75% of 2005 Premium 62 20
F,re 75% of Premium at Retirement 53 15
DPW 75% of Premium at Retirement 60 15

Investment policy - The City us authorized to invest funds of the City OPEB Plan 1n accordance
with the City's investment policy for the City OPEB Plan.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a
method m which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of OPEB plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each mayor asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by we1ght1ng the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of anthmetc real rates of return for
each major asset class are summanzed in the following table

Target
Allocation

TGosa-125%
US Core Fixed Income 33.92%
US Equity 69 16%

Long-term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

0 76%
2 21%
5 50%

Asset Class

Concentrations - AII OPEB plan assets have been invested in bonds and equity securities. See
Note 3.A for additional information

Rate of return - The annual money-weighted rate of return on investments, net of investment
expense for 2023 was 14.79%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment
performance, net of investment expense, adJusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Actuarial assumptions - The City's net OPEB hablltty (asset) was measured as of December 31,
2023, and the total OPEB labltty used to calculate the net OPEB hab1lity (asset) was
determined by an actuanal valuation as of December 31, 2023
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

c. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

The total OPEB liability in the January 1, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, appled to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified

Salary increases

Investment rate of return

Healthcare cost trend rates

3% average, including
inflation

6 50%, net of OPEB plan
investment expense,
including inflation

2024 650%
2025 570%
2026 480%
2027 4 70%
2028 4 50%
2029 440%
2030 4 30%
2031 410%
2032 4 00%
2033 3 80%

2033-2065 390%
2066-2068 380%
2069-2072 370%
2073+ 3 60%

Mortality rates were based on a blend of the Death-in-Service and Retired Lives mortality rates
are based on the 2020 WRS Experience Tables and proJected with mortality improvements
using 100% of the fully generational MP-2021 proJect,on scale from a base year of 2010.

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2023 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2018 - December 31, 2020.

Discount rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB hab1hty was 6.5%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the City's
contributions wll be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates over the
next 40 years. This rate 1s a blend of expected earnings on Plan assets and the current yield for
20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or
higher
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

OPEB Liabilities/Asset, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

Luabduty Net Poston Liability (Asset)
(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balance at December 31 2022 $ 8 379 819 $ 7 589925 $ 789 894

Changes fer the year
Serce cost 299 788 299 788
Interest 537 835 537 835
Effect of plan changes 107 771 107 771
Economic/demographic gains or losses 3 424 3 424
Assumption changes or inputs (113 999) (113 999)
Contnbutlons - employer 433 336 (433 336)
Contnbutions - employees 177208 (177 208)
Net investment income 1 105 929 (1 105 929)
Administrative expenses (2400) 2400
Benefit payments (823408) (823 408)

Estimated balance at December 31 2023 8 391230 8480590 (89 360)

Difference between estimated and actual Plan fducary Net Position (110 989) 110 989

Actual Balance at December 31 2023 $ 8 391 230 $ 8 369601 $ 21 629

Plan fiduciary net posIt1on as a percentage of the total OPEB habthty 99 74%

Sens1t1v1ty of the net OPEB hab1hty (asset) to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost
trend rates - The followmg presents the net OPEB l1abil1ty (asset) of the City, as well as what
the City's net OPEB hab1hty (asset) would be 1f 1t were calculated usmg a discount rate that Is
one-percentage-pomt lower of one-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate

City's Net OPEB L1ability (Asset)

City's Net OPEB Luablity (Asset)

Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(5 50%) (6 50%) (7.50%)

$ 655,517 $ 21,629 $ (560,079)

Healthcare Cost Healthcare Cost Healthcare Cost
Trend Rates Trend Rates Trend Rates

$ (219,832) $ 21,629 $ 216,288
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4 • OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C, POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

OPEB LiabilitleslAsset, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the City recognized OPEB expense (benefit) of
$296,682.

At December 31, 2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPES from the following sources

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and
actual expenence $ 84,409 $ 262,826

Changes m assumptions 734,108 894,725
Net differences between proJected and
actual eamungs on plan investments 272,693

Total $ 1,091,210 $ 1,157,551

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will
be recognzed mn OPEB expense (benefit) as follows

Amortization of
Deferred Outflows
& Deferred Inflows

Year Ended December 31 of Resources {Net)-------------2024 $ (12,415)
2025 37,091
2026 183,082
2027 (186,837)
2028 (62,943)

Thereafter (24,319)

The City does not report a payable for any outstanding amount of contributions to the City
OPEB Plan as of December 31, 2023

D. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The City at times ts party to claims and legal proceedings Although the outcome of such
matters mn not presently determinable, rt is the opinion of City management and the Crty attorney
that the likelihood ts remote that any such claims or proceedings wll have a material adverse
effect on the City's financial posttion.
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DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4- OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

D. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (continued)

The City has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review
and audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursements to the
grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants Management believes
such d1sallowances, If any, would be immaterial.

The City receives impact fees for new development proJects. The fees are to be used to fund
specific projects within a specific perod of time. In the event the projects are not completed or
the time period elapses, the Crty will be required to refund the impact fees to the current owners
of properties that the fees were onginally collected.

Funding for the operating budget of the City comes from many sources, including property
taxes, grants and aids from other units of government, user fees, fines and permits and other
miscellaneous revenue. The State of Wisconsin provides a variety of aid and grant programs
that benefit the City. Those aid and grant programs are dependent on continued approval and
funding by the Wisconsin governor and legislature, through their budget process. Any changes
made by the State to funding or eligibility of local aid programs could have a significant impact
on future operating results of the City.

E. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City 1s exposed to various nsks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, natural dusasters, and workers' compensation claims that the City
carnes commercial insurance. No significant reductions in insurance coverage occurred for any
risk of loss in the past year, and settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any
of the past three fiscal years.

The City also offers a group medical and dental insurance plan to employees for which the City
Is self-mnsured. This actrty Is accounted for in the City's Self Insurance Internal Serice Fund.
Group medical and dental costs are charged to City departments and retirees participating In
the program. A third-party administrator handles claims payments. The City carries stop loss
insurance for claims in excess of $60,000 per year per ind1v1dual and $75,000 per year per
group Liab1ht1es are reported when it is probable that claims have occurred and the amount of
the claim can be reasonably estimated. Luabltes Include an estimated amount for claims that
have been incurred but not reported ("IBNR").

Changes 1n the balance of claims payable for the two years ended December 31, 2022 and
2023 are as follows

Balance Current Claims Balance
Fiscal Beginning of and Changes Claims End of
Year Year mn Estimates Payments Year
2023 $ 210,000 $ 4,010,712 $ 4,010,712 $ 210,000
2022 311,800 2,890,665 2,992,465 210,000
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DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

F. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 16, 2024, the City Issued $1,880,000 of general oblgaton promissory notes, Series
2024A, for paying for the cost of projects included in the project plan for TIF District #9. Interest
Is payable on March 1 and September 1 through 2044 at a rate of 4.00%- 5.00%.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

(ASSET) -- WISONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LAST TEN MEASUREMENT PERIODS

Proportionate
Share of the Net Plan Fiduciary

WRS Proportion Proportionate Pension Luablrty Net Position
Fiscal of the Net Share of the (Asset) as o as a Percentage

Year Ending Penson Net Pension Covered Percentage of of the Total
Date Luabihty (Asset) l.Jab1hty (Asset) Payroll Covered Payroll Pension Liability

12/31/2014 0 084116700% $ (2 065,567) $ 8,071472 -25 59% 102 74%
12/31/2015 0 082739220% 1,344 496 8 459 850 15 89% 9820%
12/31/2016 0 084036620% 692662 8 682 689 798% 9912%
12/31/2017 0 087815360% (2,607,342) 8,950 304 -29 13% 102 93%
12/31/2018 0 091598830% 3,258 799 9,094,718 3583% 9645%
12/31/2019 0 103535240% (3,338,448) 13 827,279 -24 14% 102 96%
12/31/2020 0117144820% (7,313,513) 15176 375 -48 19% 105 26%
12/31/2021 0 128364660% (10,346 427) 15,132,859 -68 37% 106 02%
12/31/2022 0 132297020% 7008 704 15,882 594 4413% 95 72%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS -- WISONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Contnbutons In
City Relation to the Contnbutions
Fiscal Contractually Contractually Contnbuton as a Percentage

Year Ending Required Required Deficiency Covered ofCovered
Date Contnbutions Contnbutons (Excess) Payroll Payroll

12/31/2015 $ 689,692 $ 689692 $ $ 8459 850 815%
12/31/2016 869,137 869137 8682,689 10 01%
12/31/2017 1,074,037 1 074,037 8950,304 12 00%
12/31/2018 1,119 560 1,119 560 9 094 718 12 31%
12/31/2019 1,380,924 1,380 924 13 827,279 9 99%
12/31/2020 1 568,169 1 568,169 15176,375 10 33%
12/31/2021 1,505,635 1505635 15,132 859 995%
12/31/2022 1,576,154 1,576 154 15 882 594 9 92%
12/31/2023 1 829,488 1,829488 16 898 974 10 83%

See Independent Auditors Report and accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
SCHEDULE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) AND RELATED RATIOS -

CITYOF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN
LAST TEN MEASUREMENT PERIODS

Meuutement Period Ending December 31
21114 2016 2011 2047 2048 2019 2020 2021 2022

Total Pension Liability
Service Cost $ 165,130 $ 180,074 $ 154,889 $ 182,107 $ 161806 $ 157837 $ 142,398 s 146,433 s 125133
Interest on the TotalPenson Liability 531850 603,514 606,747 651,297 875093 662,710 676,516 742116 676 545
Benefit Changes (656529)
Difference between Expected and Actual
Experience 527384 (460,357) 425,998 (154,963 ) 149778 (466,918 ) 378,725 (836,058) 612 779
Assumption Changes 213,402 12,332 7119 ,323 (203.418) 1303694 (615,012) 788,964 (295,216 )
Benefit Payments (191,375) (239,861 (296,4659) (370.146) (434,800) (469,209) (513 ,694) (556,738) (623,320)

Net Change in Total Pension Liability 1,2"16 ,391 95. 702 1600,492 104 877 1199034 (730,592 ) 1472,909 (534 247) 495 921
Total Pension Liability .. Beginning 7022,369 8,268,760 8,364,462 9,964954 10 ,069,831 11,2611,1165 10 ,538,273 12 011 182 11,476935

Total Pension Liability - Ending $ 8,268 760 $ 8,364,462 $ 9,964,954 s 10,069,831 s 11,268,1165 $ 10,538 ,273 $ 12,011182 $ 11,476,935 $ 11 972 856

Plan Fiduciary NetPosit ion
Employer Contributions $ 293 ,632 $ 3399Z7 $ J02 518 s 1133559 $ 251009 $ 256 ,000 s 581 000 $ 255 792 s 192,000
Pension Plan Net lrvestment come 377842 (41 577) 409,272 1 372 321 (363.980) 1724,318 1448,664 1,434,668 (2 165.325)
Benefit Payments (191375) (239 ,861) (296,465) (3701"16 ) (434 ,808) (469,209) (513,694) (556,738) (623 320)
Penson Plan Administrative Expense 127941) (22,802) (20,307) {31,410) (28,11!111) (25,806) (19,130) (15 656) (23,630)
Other (4.869

NetChange in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 452, 158 35,687 395 018 2,104,324 (581233) 1485,303 1496,840 1118066 (2.620 275)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 6 704,912 7157070 7192 757 7587775 9,692 099 9110,866 10596,169 12 093 009 13,211075

Plan Fiduciary Net Posit ion - Ending $ 7157,070 $ 7192,757 $ 7,587,775 s 9,692.099 s 9,110,866 $ 10,596,169 S 12,093,009 $ 13.211 075 $ 10 590,800

NetPension Liability(Asset) Ending $ 1 111690 $ 1171705 $ 2.377179 $ 377732 s 2.157999 $ (57896) $ (81 827) s (1 734140) s 1,382,056

Plan Fiduciary NetPosition as a Percentage
of Total Pension Liability 87% 116% 76% 96% 81% 101% 101% 115% 88%

Covered Payroll $ 1792,628 $ 1876,995 $ 1853.074 $ 1 792628 $ 1776639 $ 1731027 $ 1620,333 $ 1,496,670 s 1.250 847

NetPension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage
ofCovered Payrol 62% 62% 128% 21% 121% 3% -5% 116% 110%

See Independent Auditors Report and Accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - CITY OF FRANKLIN

DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Actuarially Contribution Actual Contribution
Fiscal Year Ending Determned Actual Deficiency Covered as a% of
December 31, Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll-

2015 $ 339,927 $ 339,927 $ $ 1,876,995 18%
2016 302,518 1,202,518 (900,000) 1,853,074 65%
2017 233,559 233,559 1,792,628 13%
2018 251,009 251,009 1,776,639 14%
2019 255,552 256,000 (448) 1,731,027 15%
2020 256,855 581,000 (324,145) 1,620,333 36%
2021 255,792 255,792 1,496,670 17%
2022 159,303 192,000 (32,697) 1,250,847 15%
2023 131,828 256,000 (124,172) 1,167,207 22%

See Independent Auditors Report and Accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY (ASSET)

AND RELATED RATIOS -OPEB PLAN
LAST TEN MEASUREMENT PERIODS

FiscalYear Ending December 31,
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Total OPEB Llablllty
Serice Cost $ 223 719 $ 238 261 $ 210 159 $ 223 819 $ 238 367 $ 248 638 $ 299 788
Interest on the Total OPE Labl ity 489875 509975 516 342 557 865 563984 487 002 537 835
D1lference between Expected and Actual
Expenence 132 200 (195 804) 3 424

Plan Changes 107 771
Assumption Changes 208654 (1 186 931) 786 509 (113 999)
Benefit Payments (418,905) (622,193) (442,196) (469,392) (472,857) (76o,097) (823 408)

NetChange In Total OPEB Llablllty 294689 126043 625 159 312 292 (1 053 241) 762 052 11411
Total OPEB Liability• Beginning 7312825 7 607 514 7 733 557 8 358 716 8 671 008 7 617 767 8 379 819

Total OPEB Liability• Ending $ 7,607,514 $ 7735,967 $ 4,421%. $ 8,671,008 1121L191. ·65%412. $ 8,391,230

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer Contr:but:ons $ 422684 $ 444364 $ 377 172 $ 719 788 $ 374 367 $ 372 652 $ 433 336
Employee Contnbut:ons 91969 128294 215 296 146 308 147403 170 357 177 208
OPEB Plan Net Investment Income 673624 (294824) 1159 084 421 249 1237 939 (1 266 753) 1 105 929
Benefit Payments (500 350) (622,193) (442 196) (469 392) (472 857) (760 097) (823 408)
OPEB Plan Admimstrat,ve Expense (8 000) (2 400)
Deferred Inflows 438,201 (23 651) (34 950) (52 388)

Net Change In Plan Fiduciary NetPosition 687927 (344 359) 1309356 1 256154 1 255 201 (1 518 791) 838 277
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 4885836 5573763 5229404 6538760 7 794 914 9 050 115 7 531 324

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending $ 5,573,763 $ 5,229,404 $ 6,538,760 $ 7,794,914 $ 9,050 115 $ 7,531 324 $ 8 369 601

Net OPEB Liability (Asset) Ending $ 2 033 751 $ 2 504153 $ 1819956 $ 876094 $(1432 348) $ 848495 $ 21 629

Plan Fiduciary Net Posrt:on as a Percentage
of Total OPEB L:ab:l:ty (Asset} 73% 68% 78% 90% 119% 90% 100%

Covered Payroll $ 13 879 896 $ 14188 222 $ 14 300 000 $ 14 300 000 $15 411 322 $15 411 322 $17 979 720

NetOPEB Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll 15% 18% 13% 6% 9% 6% 0%

See Independent Auditors Report and Accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS -OPEB PLAN

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Flsc:al Year Ending December 31,
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Actuarally Determined Contribution s 422684 s 441 859 s 377172 s 394 788 s 324 614 s 149 256 s 389 403
Actual Contribution 422,684 444 364 377,172 719,788 374,387 372,852 433,336
Contnbuton Deficiency (Excess) s . s (2,905) s . s (325,000) s 9Z53) s 223,3881..2383%

Covered Payroll S 13879898 S 14188 222 s 14 300 000 S 14 300 000 $15 411 322 $15 411 322 $17 979 720

Actual Contnbuton as a Pa-centage
of Covered Payroll 3% 3% 3% 5% 2% 2% 2%

See Independent Auditors Report and Accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary lnformat,on
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 1 -PRESENTATION

The City Is required to present the last ten years of data on each schedule included in the
required supplementary information, however, the standards allow the City to present as many
years of information as are available until ten years are presented.

NOTE 2- WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The data presented mn the Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension L1ab1hty (Asset)
for the Wisconsin Retirement System was taken from the reports issued by the Wisconsin
Retirement System.

Changes of benefit terms There were no changes of benefit terms for any partIcIpatIng
employer In WRS.

Changes ,n assumptions. Based on a three-year experience study conducted In 2021
covering January 1 2019 through December 31, 2020, the ETF Board adopted
assumptions changes that were used to measure the total pension liability beginning
with the year-ended December 31, 2021, including the following

1. Lowering the long-term expected rate of return from 7 0% to 6.8%
2. Lowering the discount rate from 7.0% to 6.8%
3. Lowering the price inflation rate from 2 5% to 2.4%
4. Lowering the post-retirement adjustments from 1.9% to 1.7%
5. Mortality assumptions were changed to reflect updated trends by transitions from
the W1sconsm 2018 Mortality Table to the 2020 WRS Experience Mortality Table

Based on the three-year experience study conducted mn 2018 covering January 1, 2015
through December 31, 2017, the ETF Board adopted assumption changes that were
used to measure the total pension hab11lty beginning with the year-ended December 31,
2018, including the following

1. Lowering the long-term expected rate of return from 7 .2% to 7 .0%
2. Lowering the discount rate from 7 2% to 7.0%
3 Lowering the wage inflation rate from 3.2% to 3.0%
4. Lowering the pnce inflation rate from 2.7% to 2 5%
5. Lowering the post-retirement adjustments from 2.1 % to 1.9%
6. Mortality assumptions were changed to reflect updated trends by trans1tIons from
the Wisconsin 2012 Mortality Table to the W1sconsm 2018 Mortality Table.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 2 -WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM {continued)

Significant methods and nuumptJons used in calculating Wisconsin Retirement SystemActunnaly
Oeterm111ed Contributions.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 2 - WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued)

Significant methods nnd assumptions used in rnlculotin9 Wisconsin Retirement SystemAct11arinJ1y
Determined Contributions:
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

DECEMBER 31, 2023

NOTE 3 - CITY OF FRANKLIN DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT INCOME PLAN

The data presented in the Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related
Ratios and Schedule of Contributions for the City of Franklin Defined Benefit Retirement Income
Plan was taken from the reports issued by the actuary.

Changes of benefit terms During the last here were no changes of benefit terms during the last
ten measurement periods presented, as disclosed m Note 4.A to the financial statements.

Changes of assumptions The following us a summary of key assumption changes for the last
ten measurement periods

2022 - Discount rate updated to 6.25%, Mortahty MP-2021 Table updated to MP-2019
Table

2021 - Mortality. MP-2019 Table updated to MP-2021 Table
- 2020 - Discount rate updated to 6.00%, Mortality updated to PubG-2010 General base

rate mortality table proJected to future years with historical and assumed
mortality improvement rates using the MP-2019 mortality improvement scale

2019 - Discount rate updated to 6.50%, Mortality updated to 2020 IRS Table
- 2018- Discount rate updated to 5.93%, Inflation updated to 2.25%, Sernonty/Ment

updated to 4.00%, Mortality updated to 2019 IRS Table
2017 -Discount rate updated to 6.75%, Mortality updated to 2017 IRS Table
2016 - Discount rate updated to 6.54%, Inflation updated to 2.00%, Mortality updated to

2016 IRS Table
- 2015-No changes to assumptions n previous period
- 2014 - Discount rate 7.3%, Inflation 2.3%, Sernority/Ment 3.0%, Actuarial Cost

Method Entry Age, Asset Valuation Method Market Value, Mortality 2014 IRS
Prescribed Mortality -- Optional Combined Table for Small Plans

NOTE 4- OPEB PLAN

The data presented in the Schedule of Changes an Net OPEB Liability (Asset) and Related
Ratios and Schedule of Contributions for the City of Frankhn Post-Employment Benefit Trust
Plan was taken from the reports issued by the actuary.

Changes of benefit terms. The years of service for benefit elgbilty for the Firefighter group has
decreased from 20 years to 15 years with the newest contract in 2023 This has increased the
liab1hty by approximately $108,000. No other s1grnficant changes to benefit terms occurred
dunng the last ten measurements periods presented as disclosed in Note 4C to the financial
statements.

Changes of assumpt,ons Dunng the last ten measurement penods, there were no significant
changes in assumptions as disclosed in Note 4 C to the financial statements
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds account for the proceeds of spec1f1c revenue sources (other than debt
service or mayor capital projects) that are restricted for specified purposes

Library operating fund - This fund accounts for the budgetary operation of the library

Library aux1lIary fund - This fund accounts for library donations, fines, and forfeitures

Solid waste collection fund - This fund accounts for solid waste collection act1v1t1es

Donation fund - This fund accounts for donations received for specific purposes

St Martins Fair fund - This fund accounts for activities related to the farmers/flea market held the
first Monday of the spring and summer months and the Labor Day weekend

C1v1c celebrations fund - This fund accounts for activity related to the City's Fourth of July and
other celebrations

Tourism Comm1ss1on fund - The state mandated that certain portions of the hotel tax be
dedicated for tourism promotion The Common Council formed a tourism commission that
determines how those funds are spent

Opioid Settlement fund - Th1s fund accounts for funds received and restricted for human
services from op101d settlements These funds are to be used to support treatment of Op101d Use
Disorder (OUD) and any co-occurring Substance Use Disorder or Mental Health (SUD/MH)
cond1t1ons through evidence-based or evidence-informed programs or strategies

Grant fund - The City reports its grant activities mn thus fund Grant activities include fire
department, police department, health department, community development block grants,
CVID-19 grants, and miscellaneous grants received by the City that are not accounted for
elsewhere

Capital Projects Funds

Caprtal projects funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of mayor capital facilities (other than those finance by proprietary funds)

Capital outlay fund - This fund accounts for the departmental capital outlays These
expenditures are funded by the tax levy, normally are less than $25,000 and are under the
direction of the department supervisor

Equipment replacement fund - this fund accounts for the rolling stock replacement program that
accumulates annual funding (from landfill siting fees) for replacement of vehicles and s1mIlar
equipment in lieu of usung borrowed monies

Capital improvement fund - This fund accounts for land acqu1s1tions, building proJects, and all
public works proJects and are usually funded with landfill siting revenues, borrowed money, or
funding from some other source other than the tax levy

Street improvement fund - This fund accounts for the act1v1t1es of the local road improvement
program Funding 1s provided by landfill siting fees and a portion of general transportation aids
and an every-other-year local road improvement grant from the state

Utility improvement fund -- This fund is used to account for water and sewer connection fees and
special assessments that are used for water and sewer construction proJects

81



9

69

LO

8
'°IO....

I Cl()
IOr
c;j
M..,,.

' Cl()
IO
Cl()
<'i....
N

' Cl()

3
M
IO

5.
ID
N
c;j
~

:8 I

M
c;j
M..,,.

I I IN t I
ID..,,.
<'i
IO...

(") I I t Igs

I I I I

I I I I I 0)...
IDg

I I I I I t

:g I I I I I

Cl()
<'i....
N

O>
Ne
M

69

IOIO.......
ID IO<nil>...

r,.. I
ID
N
c;j
O>

9

w

I I I I

ONIO r,..
r,.. ll) Cl() O
Cl() r,.. .-Cl()
ai..=,.:.,;
N ..- ID a,
M IO ClO

fi
69

8's,., Cl() ....,nco
00........
<'ic-i

8''g
M M

w

..,,. ........ Cl() IClO r,.. IO.-·90 IO ID
N ClO 0

.,..:N
69

I ID
Cl()...
5

I I

69

w

I I I I I

I I I , C")

g
si

N IN CJ) -.:t
co 'l""""C'\10:,
U> IO (I') r-
11> <'iri<'ia::, IO O>
N N

<n
¢f9

0 I I

3...
0...

%

g
IO
IO...

v9

%

69

t%

Mg
s;·a §

0 II.
Cl)

!!
0
I-

Ill ~
,:, 0
§ -~ 'f;; 'g
II. ·-,15 :I

? ­as
GI U
ili
II::
.;;-~

Q)
=i
8.cu
Cl)



C0....
IOs....
ri..

I I I I I

I I I I I

N'
%
i
N

N'

~
si
i

3
ri

I I I I

9''g
Cl0 Cl0

$ $

a<0 ION
..,. If)

6%

I (0 ' I ClO,._ ...
.,.... "'s.,.... ...

ri....

+i.s e­
I- C l ::i0 I.I.z

C)

C')
co

0,-..
~
N.,....
C0
(0

(0

5
ri
No.,....

,-..
0
N
..,f
N
IO
i

(0.....,-..
ri
N
(0_

I I I I I

I I I I I

I I I I I

I I I I I

' '

I I

9
O!......
0)
N

.....o
IO

"'C')
O!......g

.,....
If)
IO

N
~
i...
Cl0
(0

0

N
ri.,.....,....

r,,.. I I I

3
$

8' I I

Cl0
IX>..,.

IO
C')
0o
i::
(0

(0,-..
c:»g
<0_
..--

-- CC Cl.I
GI E-oE a., c:g±a
0" CL
W 411

IX

Cl)
w

~ UI

i
ii
.0
"0
C
.;!

I



I

3....
i
"'

CID

"'..,
$....

8
CID

"'..;...
.....,
"'0
OJ.......

iii
ai

'0
8

•o •
8

..,
m
?

3
1
A

~

• i1i •• i1i
0 0m ro
CID CID...

. .., .
8g
"'

I I I I I I I I

Q°V I U) I Iov ..,............: ...,

• Ci~8a
... in

"'

. :s :s
9.9.
O> O>......

OU>O88ga6
...

. .., ........ a ...IVU> CID N
U) 0, ,._ Cl0
a:i' CD OOM..,:
UJ'V CD CD0 ...

"' "'...

...

#,._ CD:!

...
#3

I I

g:
·c
:a
E
0u

I
i
:I
II,,
,5

I f.
I
:a
g
::,
IL



co
0....
~
oi

I I

&%

iii
E
- 'ii 41 -8Jl! e e c0eE>
" oguz o

C,

IQ) Q)=g
2£
8 8

"'co

g
5
C
Cl)

I

I
.!!
3
"C
C:,

LL.

~-
0
N
LI)

CD
V¼

.....
0
N
'<t
N
Lll_
N

£
j

~
(IJ

3
"C
5
LL

5
aj
Ol
Ol

'It"
0
LO

3
U)co
U)

'°g

~
0,
CD
I{)
I{)

u5

LI)
N
0r-..:
U)

0cooco
N.....

I I '<I°g
CD
0.....

I I I

o
Nco
N

' 00

I '<I° I

g
CD
0

I I I

IO O 1

NO
00
,...: 0
'<l"N

00 I
000
00a;c;;
..... I{)
U)

3
U)co
8

1
~

I I

CJ) I..,.
N
c-i....
CJ)
i

I I I I I I CO I.........
g
00

It It I IV I
U)
U)co
8

I I I f I t

I f I I I I T"9

%,......,.
co

t I I I I t I t t f f

flt

I I

%

'8
..-U)
a,,..:,.... ..--

o

...
-cC GI
GI E "Cge
,9, Ill :,
:, - LL.a a.w Cl)a::

-CGI
iii iii Eoi'E_JC
Ill Ill 0 :,
00¥

E

.!!:::s
"C
41.s::.u
Cl)

g
'2:a
8u

$
C
.!!
a3
"C
C
:::s
LI.
.!:



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Transfers In - Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Schedule 3

Variance with
final budget ­

Original Change Final Excess
Budget Inc (Dec) Budget Actual (Deficiency)_

TAXES
General property taxes $ 20,467,400 $ - $ 20,467,400 $ 20,441,126 $ (26,274)
Water Utlhty- tax equivalent 1,060,500 1,060,500 877,185 (183,315)
Cable TV franchise fees 385,000 385,000 363,534 (21,466)
Hotel/Room Tax 151,900 151,900 151,900
Mobile home assessments 20,000 20,000 18,120 (1,880)

22,084,800 22,084,800 21,851,864 (232,936)

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE
State shared revenue 572,600 572,600 546,007 (26,593)
Fire insurance - dues 198,000 198,000 218,772 20,772
Local, state and federal grants and aids
Computer aid 346,700 346,700 346,671 (29)
Transportation aids 600,000 600,000 628,032 28,032
Personal Property Aids 86,400 86,400 86,402 2
Video Service Provider Aids 98,500 98,500 98,516 16
Other

1,902,200 1,902,200 1,924,399 22,199

LICENSES, FEES AND PERMITS
Licenses.
Beer and liquor 42,100 42,100 31,627 (10,473)
Bartenders 17,000 17,000 16,774 (226)
Amusement and related 9,600 9,600 8,670 (930)
Peddlers 2,900 2,900 4,680 1,780
Food and related 12,900 12,900 15,236 2,336
Dog and cat 8,000 8,000 10,875 2,875
Health 91,300 91,300 94,389 3,089
Other 25,800 25,800 27,713 1,913

Permits:
Building 675,000 675,000 626,514 (48,486)
Electrical 170,000 170,000 92,463 (77,537)
Plumbing 140,000 140,000 176,112 36,112
Sign 10,000 10,000 13,295 3,295
Park 35,000 35,000 34,306 (694)
Fire 6,000 6,000 5,200 (800)
Other 24,500 24,500 6,250 (18,250)

1,270,100 1,270,100 1,164,103 (105,997)

FINES, FORFEITURES AND PENALTIES 415,000 415,000 362,179 (52,821)

(Continued)
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Schedule 3
{concluded)

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Transfers In - Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)
For the YearEnded December 31, 2023

Variance with
final budget ­

Original Change Final Excess
Budget nc (Doc) Budget Actual (Deflclency)

PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES
General government
Property reports and document fees $ 17,600 $ - $ 17,600 $ 15,219 $ (2,381)
Financial Services

Publlc safety
Police Department and related 6,000 6,000 18,911 12,911
Ambulance service 1,350,000 1,350,000 1,611,011 261,011
Fire Department and related 27,000 27,000 18,763 (8,237)
Quarry reimbursement 42,000 42,000 44,000 2,000
Weights and measures 4,900 4,900 3,227 (1,673)

Public works
Weed cutting 7,000 7,000 3,510 (3,490)
Street lighting 22,500 22,500 17,657 (4,843)
Engineering and DPW fees 345,000 345,000 377,824 32,824
Landfill tippage fees 538,000 538,000 583,792 45,792

Health and human services
Health climes and other health fees 78,500 78,500 68,842 (9,658)

Conservation and development
Zoning, subdivision and other filing fees 117,500 117,500 126,798 9,298

2,556,000 2,556,000 2,889,553 333,553

INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES 330,900 330,900 338,273 7,373

INVESTMENT EARNINGS 221,575 221,575 1,502,393 1,280,818

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
Municipal property rental 85,000 85,000 99,817 14,817
Property sales 2,000 2,000 371 (1,629)
Refunds and reimbursements 25,000 25,000 19,388 (5,612)
Insurance dividend 37,500 37,500 22,012 (15,488)
Other revenue 1,000 1,000 31,268 30,268

150,500 150,500 172,856 22,356

Total Revenues $ 28,931,075 $ - $ 28,931,075 $ 30,205,620 $ 1,274,545
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures and Transfers Out - Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Schedule 4

Variance with
final budget •

Original Change Final Excess
Budget Inc [ec) Budget Actual (Deficiency]

CURRENT
General Government
Mayor - Personnel Services $ 18,486 $ $ 18,486 $ 18,476 $ 10
Mayor - Other Services 12,000 12,000 6,499 5,501
Aldermen - Personnel Services 47,391 47,391 47,391 (O)
Aldermen - Other Services 27,445 27,445 24,922 2,523
Municipal court- Personnel Services 202,241 202,241 213,940 (11,699)
Municipal court - Other Servces 19,200 19,200 16,688 2,512
City clerk • Personnel Services 359,425 7,000 366,425 338,906 27,519
City clerk - Other Services 28,500 28,500 21,941 6,559
Elections - Personnel Services 37,645 37,645 333,777 (296,132)
Elections - Other Services 12,700 10,000 2 22,700 18,152 4,548
Information servces - Personnel Services 159,607 159,607 168,451 (8,844)
Information services - Other Services 333,000 333,000 296,224 36,776
Administration - Personnel Services 314,595 314,595 274,143 40,452
Administratlon - Other Services 179,100 179,100 165,749 13,351
Finance - Personnel Services 469,591 469,591 396,888 72,703
Finance - Other Services 128,700 128,700 163,774 (35,074)
Independent Audit 38,000 1 38,000 39,005 (1,005)
Assessor - Other Services 222,000 222,000 202,859 19,141
Legal counsel 332,600 5,025 337,625 284,838 52,787
Municipal buildings - Personnel Services 128,242 (51,900) 3 76,342 126,955 (50,613)
Municipal bulldings - Other Services 129,335 70,000 3 199,335 147,536 51,799
Refunded Taxes 20,000 20,000 32,486 (12,486)
Property and llabllity Insurance 160,000 160,000 166,864 (6,864)
Anticipated Underexpenditure (300,000) (300,000) (300,000)
Contingency 2,625,000 (22.578) 4 2,602,422 2,602,422
Total General Government 5,704,803 17,547 5,722,350 3,506,464 2,215,886

Public Safety
Police - Personnel Services 7,934,414 7,934,414 7,960,252 (25,838)
Police - Other Services 1,290,990 (1,518) 1,289,472 1,038,576 250,896
Dispatch - Personnel Services 1,292,389 1,292,389 1,181,653 110,736
Fire - Personnel Services 6,937,781 6,937,781 6,843,647 94,134
Fire - Other Services 622,850 22,578 4 645,428 594,823 50,605
Fire protectlon service charge 280,000 280,000 279,968 32
Building inspection - Personnel Services 891,665 66,000 5 957,665 785,783 171,882
Building Inspection - Other Services 44,467 44,467 38,533 5,934
Sealer of weights and measures 4,000 4,000 3,600 400
Total Public Safety 19,298,556 87,061 19,385,617 18,726,835 658,781

1 Re-allocation of Salaries appropriations from Engineering to Clerks Department
2 Council authorized use of 2022 unused funds for Election printing
3 Transfer for Professional Services funded by Part-Time Salaries
4 Contingency used for Fire Department failed building systems and vehicle repairs
5 Council authorized use of 2022 unused funds for Temporary Inspection Personnel Services (Continued)
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Schedule 4
(concluded)

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures and Transfers Out - Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Variance with
final budget -

Original Change Final Excess
Budget _Hefel_ Budget Actual (Deficiency]

CURRENT
Public Works
Engineering - Personnel Serces $ 605,008 $ (7,000) 1 $ 598,008 $ 533,567 $ 64,441
Engineering - Other Serices 347,150 347,150 444,460 (97,310)
Hlghway - Personnel Services 1,864,333 1,864,333 1,836,219 28,114
Highway - Other Servlces 1,165,150 18,931 2 1,184,081 1,195,177 (11,096)
Street lighting 386,200 386,200 366,999 19,201
Weed control 7,050 7,050 3,303 3,747
Total Public Works 4,374,891 11,931 4,386,822 4,379,725 7,096

Health and Human Services
Public health - Personnel Services 614,686 614,686 626,368 (11,682)
Public health • Other Services 67,950 67,950 50,942 17,008
Animal control 47,500 47,500 45,589 1,911
Total Health and Human Services 730,136 730,136 722,898 7,238

Culture and Recreation
Senlor activities and travel program 22,000 22,897 2 44,897 33,040 11,857
Parks - Personnel Services 264,028 264,028 197,790 66,238
Parks - Other Services 91,400 3,325 2 94,725 84,281 10,444
Total Culture and Recreation 377,428 26,222 403,650 315,110 88,540

Conservation and Development
Planning - Personnel Services 433,301 9,500 3 442,801 430,727 12,074
Planning - Other Services 88,050 10,000 2 98,050 78,344 19,706
Economic development - Personnel Services 97,960 97,960 101,428 (3,468)
Economic development - Other Services 51,950 51,950 43,290 8,660
Total Conservation and Development 671,261 19,500 690,761 653,788 36,973

Total Expenditures 31,157,075 162,260 31,319,335 28,304,822 3,014,513

Transfers to Other Funds 24,000 24,000 24,000

Total Expenditures and Transfers Out $31,181,075 $ 162,260 $31,343,335 $ 28,328,822 $ 3,014,513

1 Re-allocation of Salaries appropriations from Engineering to Clerks Department
2 Council authorized use of 2022 unused funds for services
3 Transfer labor from Consulting Services for staffing costs
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CITY OF FRANKLIN,WISCONSIN
Debt Service Fund

Schedule ofRevenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Schedule 5

Variance with
flnalbudget-

Original Change Final Excess
Budget inc (Dec) Budget Actual _(Deficiency)

REVENUE
Taxes $ 1,100,000 $ - $ 1,100,000 $ 1,100,000 $
Special assessments 2,000 2,000 1,684 (316)
Investment earnings 6,100 6,100 47,903 41,803
Total revenue 1,108,100 1,108,100 1,149,587 41,487

EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal 1,035,000 1,035,000 1,035,000
Interest 122,338 122,338 122,339 1)
Total expenditures 1,157,338 1,157,338 1,157,339 (1)

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (49,238) (49,238) (7,752) 41,486
expendrtures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers out
General obligation debt issued
Refunding debt issued
Premium (discount) on debt issued 208,286 208,286
Payment to refunding escrow agent
Pnncpal payment on current refunding

Total other financing sources (uses) 208,286 208,286

Net change mn fund balances $ (49,238) $ - $(49.238) 200,534 $ 249,772

Fund balances - begnnng 794,298

Fund balances - ending $ 994,832
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Schedule 8
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

Fiduciary Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

PROPERTY TAX AGENCY FUND 12/31/22 Additions Deductions 12/31/23
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 37,208,919 $ 129,286,799 $ 127,284,078 $ 39,211,640
Receivables
Taxes receivable 40,159,103 151,766,081 151,676,336 40,248,848
Accounts receivable

Total assets $ 77,368,022 $ 281,052,880 $ 278,960,414 $ 79,460,488

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 882,477 $ 87,728,207 $ 86,997,693 $ 151,963
Due to other governments 76,485,545 77,301,435 80,124,415 79,308,525

Total liabilities $ 77,368,022 $ 165,029,641 $ 167,122,108 $ 79,460,488

OTHER AGENCY FUND
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 10,923 $ 32,037 $ 30,678 $ 12,282
Accounts receivable 1,234 20,553 21,787 $

Total assets $ 12,157 $ 52,590 $ 52,466 $ 12,282

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 1,307 $ 30,477 $ 29,872 $ 702
Special deposits 10,850 30,522 31,252 $ 11,580

Total liabilities $ 12,157 $ 60,999 $ 61,124 $ 12,282

TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 37,219,842 $ 129,318,836 $ 127,314,756 $ 39,223,922
Receivables
Taxes receivable 40,159,103 151,766,081 151,676,336 40,248,848
Accounts receivable 1,234 20,553 21,787

Total assets $ 77,380,179 $ 281,105,470 $ 279,012,879 $ 79,472,770

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 883,784 $ 87,758,684 $ 87,027,565 $ 152,665
Due to other governments 76,485,545 77,301,435 80,124,415 79,308,525
Special deposits 10,850 30,522 31,252 11,580

Total liabilities $ 77,380,179 $ 165,090,640 $ 167,183,231 $ 79,472,770

98



Ol
Ol

-~ ~

11E(0 .....

6%

~

..

' '

1 I I I

....
0

c5
0
M_

(0 ..­
IOIO
'<f"N
c.oc-J
'<f"N40.o........

m..­aoao
C')C')

$8
C'l"l,-,­
,-

...
C CO&

Ill C. U
$SEJ.!

GI C
C

GI~
o 31i.!·c
>5.

C

I =i!: ...
« &e-o.. 111

0 ·=(.) C

£--­Ill l'G .,.cu :::, u3 .,.,_
.c :::, .b
1=:E,!
o Cz

I I I I I I ,o

ta
%
8
m
u.

'as
I
1
'a UI

$8
•- C:t:: Ill=•D .D
== 'a- Cro ::i~-



0
0

8 a I

It) ~
0 .....
It) 0,
ri
1,/t,

a..,. '
8 ft!aon
85
u:i"
1,/t,

a•o
0 0
0 ~'° a(') 0
0 lOg o
1,/t,

J
-~Ct

N
«i
$
co

41.A
8 £g
i--:- u:i"

1,/t,

'I
I
-g
::,
LI.

e

J
liz

I I I I

I I t t

I I I I

I I

I I I I I I

re re..,...,.
00
NN
'<I;.~.- .....

I a..,.
a
u:i"

•o
&g
CD

I 8l
ore

a ina.­a,._
00
It) ...,._ CD

'238
0 CO IQ
c,i c,iu:i"
N N

I CD...
CDg

I I CD
~g

m3 ­"'"' c:o .-:......
1,/t,

- o4
- E111 CL U
QJ 0 ·.::::m--CII en>·-a,Q
C

s g
Hg$



.5

I
~
1/i
i5
u.
i==

~
.5

!
i
0
u.
I=

0
N

"'"'g

0

I

s..;
0ao.,;

si
{ij

o~•
NN

"'"'.,;,.,
g%

I
I

I
I

·44
to I I

SI
'!.

£ao

g''

f00ao ao...

#

ggg1g
0,....0 ~
It> MCI U)
¢ u) Oeo
...

... ;':;l;llifit,-_(')~gs... .:...

meg20 o
"!. ~... ......

§;;;::iii(') (')"'
00 ¢E (') CIO

...

.. ui'c!l
z: u
'-'.5

..,

.g
;;
i5

;B

I
·I
±
'..
I
i5

i

.f
t

e'
1
'i
l
i
§
u.



8

;;;
O'l.,;

fl..,
co

I I I I

I I t I I I

I I I J I I

I I I I I I

I I I I I I

oo I I I........,...,.
cicigg
e

I

OU>o.,_
Ost
00
IO .,_
... U)

OIOvr
0...
cici
IO .,_
... U)

I U)

U>
3

o
U>
a:i

8'38
0 00 IOg g.., ..,tVCOO>"'lf'IOIDGON,-..."111"

NNNa> l"'­CO..- m ,.._
"!. ..-v~ ~
&9

00
00
O>O>
c-ic-i
tor-
<'!.

RIO.-O>VID('r')-Nm COg gs
~

Q) ..
gi Q)o
.i:: ..c.>.5

"'C:
0
E
E
0u.,.
:;;
'iim
Ill

u
'i:
'Iii
i:S

I
IO

i
i
Q

]
a,,
::i i
"Cia,,
.c
bl

5
"'i

g
'c!
C:

3
'£

"'"iii
.0
"C
C:::,
u.

g
i
Q)
I

1
.!!
.2
"C
C:
::,
u...



Schedule 12
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Employee Benefit Trust Funds
As of December 31, 2023

City of Franklin Total
Defined Benefit City of Franklin Employee
Retirement Post Employment Benefit
Income Plan Benefits Trust Trust Funds

ASSETS
Cash $ - $ - $
Investments:
Fred Income Securities 4,100,729 3,068,407 7,169,136
Domestic Equities 5,827,324 5,865,194 11,692,518
International Equities 1,633,708 1,633,708
Total Cash & Investments 11,561,761 8,933,601 20,495,362

Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable 6,316 6,316
Due from Municipality
Prepaid expense
Long-term investments

Total assets $ 11,561,761 $ 8,939,917 $ 20,501,678

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - $ 60,886 60,886
Accrued liabilities $ - $ $
Due to other governments - $ 509,430 509,430
Due to municipality
Special deposits

Total liabilities 570,316 570,316

Net Position
Restricted for employee benefits 11 561 761 8,369,601 19,931,362

Total Net Position $ 11,561,761 $ 8,939,917 $ 20,501,678
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Schedule 13
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Employee Benefit Trust Funds
For theYear Ended December 31, 2023

City of Franklin Total
Defined Benefit City of Franklin Employee
Retirement Post Employment Benefit
Income Plan BenefitsTrust Trust Funds

ADDITIONS
Contributions
City of Franklin $ 256,000 $ 166,463 $ 422,463
Retirees 177,208 177,208

Net investment earnings (losses) 1,429,368 1,240,221 2,669,589
Total additions 1,685,368 1,583,892 3,269,260

DEDUCTIONS
Incurred claims $ 680,617 $ 437,326 $ 1,117,943
Prescription drug clarms 167,608 167,608
Claims fees 33,790 42,286 76,076
Stop loss premums less clams recerved 98,395 98,395

Total deductions 714,407 745,615 1,460,022

Change in net position 970,961 838,277 1,809,238

Net Position Beginning of year 10,590,800 7,531,324 18,122,124

Net Position End ofyear $ 11,561,761 $ 8,369,601 $ 19,931,362

105



Schedule 14
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule by Source

As of December 31, 2023

Governmental funds capital assets:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure improvements
Construction in process

Total governmental funds capital assets

106

$ 30,334,572
30,684,618
23,160,380
138,254,330
2,432,671

$ 224,866,571



Schedule 141
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

Capital Assets Used in the Operation ofGovernmental Funds
Schedule by Function and Activity

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Buildings Machinery
and and Infrastructure Construction

Functlon and Activity Land Improvements Equipment improvements ln process Total
General Government:
Mayor $ - $ - $ 2,202 $ - $ - $ 2,202
Aldermen 9,584 9,584
Municlpal court 35,210 35,210
City clerk 21,416 21,416
Elections 30,890 30,890
Information services 858,599 858,599
Administration 261,310 261,310
Human resources 9,617 9,617
Finance 189,179 189,179
Assessor 46,080 46,080
Attorney 906 906
Municipal buildings 597,437 5,231,869 774,719 6,604,025
Total General Government 597437 5,231,869 2,239,712 8,069,018

Public Safety:
Police 1,201,829 9,016,451 3,077,105 13,295,385
Fire 63,248 4,371,642 5,022,936 9,457,826
Building inspection 316,910 316,910
Total Public Safety 1,265,077 13,388,093 8,416,951 23,070,121

Public Works:
Engineering 446,941 446,941
Highway 357,407 3,217,532 8,322,476 11,897,415
Street Lighting 1,097 1,097
Infrastructure 23,757,397 138,254,330 162,011,727
Construction in process 2,432,671 2,432,671
Total Public Works 24,114,804 3,217,532 8,770,514 138,254,330 2,432,671 176,789,851

Health & Human Services:
Health 141,889 141,889

Culture and Recreation:
Library 4,916,666 2,495,228 7,411,894
Parks 4,357,254 3,930,458 1,047,901 9,335,613
Total Culture and Recreation 4,357,254 8,847,124 3,543,129 16,747,507

Conservation and Development:
Planning 48,185 48,185
Total Conservation and Development 48,185 48,185

Total governmental funds capital assets $ 30,334,572 $ 30,684,618 $ 23,160,380 $ 138,254,330 $ 2,432,671 $224,866,571
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Schedule 14.2
CITY OF FRANKLIN,WISCONSIN

Capital Assets Used In the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

,Function and Activity
General Govemment:
Mayor
Aldermen
Municipal court
City clerk
Elections
Information services
Administration
Human resources
Finance
Assessor
Attomey
Municipal buildings
Total General Government

Public Safety:
Police
Fire
Building inspection
Total Public Safety

Public Works:
Engineering
Highway
Street lighting
Infrastructure
Construction In process
Total Public Works

Health & Human Services:
Health

Culture and Recreation:
Library
Parks
Total Culture and Recreation

Conservation and Development:
Planning
Total Conservation and Development

Total governmental funds capital assets

$ 2,202 $
9,584
35,210
21,416
30,890
858,599
261,310
9,617

189,179
46,080
906

6,017417
7,482,410

12,973,676
9,444,691
316,910

22,735,277

368,501
11,981,783

1,097
154,601,685
7,628,440

174,581,506

141,889

7,512,145
8,908,944

16,421,089

48,185
48,185

$ 221,410,356 $
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- $

586,608
586,608

321,709
13,135

334,844

78,440
229,916

8,042,266

8,350,622

426,669
426,669

- $

314,284

632,224
5,195,769
6,142,277

100,251

100,251

2,202
9,584
35,210
21,416
30,890
858,599
261,310
9,617

189,179
46,080
906

6,604,025
8,069,018

13,295,385
9,457,826
316,910

23,070,121

446,941
11,897,415

1,097
162,011,727
2,432,671

176,789,851

141,889

7,411,894
9,335,613
16,747,507

48,185
48,185

Governmental Funds Capital Assets
7276722 AaaTdons eleuozTM

9,698,743 $ 6,242,528 $ 224,866,571
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Statistical Section

This part of the City of Franklin's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information In the basic
f1nanc1al statements, note disclosures and required supplementary information says about
the City's overall financial health

Financial Trends Table 1

These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time

Revenue Capacity Table 5

These tables contain trend information to help the reader assess the City's most
s1gnif1cant local revenue source, the property tax

Debt Capacity Table 11

These tables present information to help the reader assess the affordab1l1ty of the
City's current level of outstanding debt and the City's ability to Issue additional debt in the
future.

Demographic and Economic Information Table 14

These tables offer demographic and economic md1cators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities take place

Operating Information Table 17

These tables contain servlce and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information mn the City's financial report relates to the services the Crty provides
and the activities It performs

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables 1s derived from the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the relevant year The City implemented
GASS Statement 34 in 2003, schedules presenting government-wide information include
Information beginning mn that year
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APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

AResolution Approving a Partial Property Tax
Rescission and Refund for Parcel #841-0155-000

MEETING DATE

October 1, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

3.
BACKGROUND
Per Wisconsin State Statutes, the removal of property taxes needs to be authorized by the Common Council.
Statutes enumerate specific conditions under which a rescission/refund is appropriate and necessary. There
is currently one property that was incorrectly assessed for the 2023 tax year. Due to a palpable error, the
value has been reduced by $24,000.

ANALYSIS
Parcel: 841-0155-000
Owner: Dolata Aloysius & Patricia A-Rev Trust
Address: 8463 S. Deerwood Ln.

Per the City's Assessor, permits were taken out late 2022 for a basement finish. The previous assessor
estimated completion and increased the assessed value for 2023. Per owner (confirmed by inspections) that
the basement finish was framing only as of 1/1/23. The City's Assessor estimates that it was approximately
20% complete for 2023 after reviewing the Inspections Department's notes.

FISCAL NOTE
The impact of the above rescission/refund is likely a bad debt expense for the City in the amount of $88.46.
There is a formal process that allows the City to notify the Department ofRevenue (DOR) ofrescissions in
October of each year, and, as long as the total of all rescissions, for the tax year, for the City of Franklin,
meet the statutory dollar threshold, $250 or more per any single property, the chargeback will be authorized,
and the other taxing entities will be responsible for their share. Staff will complete the statutory submittal
and make the request to be reimbursed by the other taxing entities for their prorated shares totaling
approximately $299.75.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that Council authorize this resolution to partially rescind and refund the above noted taxes
as outlined.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve Resolution No. 2024- .A Resolution Approving a Partial Property Tax Rescission
and Refund for Parcel #841-0155-000; and direct staff to file the chargeback request with the DOR to seek
compensation from the other taxing authorities.

Finance Dept - DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2024----

RESOLUTION APPROVING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX RESCISSION AND REFUND
FOR PARCEL #841-0155-000

WHEREAS, the following property taxes were assessed improperly, per Wisconsin State
Statutes 74.33 (1) (b), which states that the assessment included real property improvements that
did not exist on the assessment date, and a partial rescission and refund of the tax due is
appropriate:

Dolata Aloysius & Patricia A-Rev Trust
8463 S. Deerwood Ln.
Franklin, WI 53132
(Parcel #841-0155-000) $388.21

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin, that the proper City Officials are hereby authorized and directed to rescind and refund the sum of
$388.21; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the proper City Officials authorized and directed to seek
compensation from the other taxing authorities, if applicable, per Wisconsin State Statutes 74.41.

Fundsfor thispurpose are appropriatedfrom thefollowingAccountNumbers:
01-0000-1415 Milwaukee County $73.62
01-0198-5543 City ofFranklin $88 46
01-0000-1412 MATC $18 80
01-0000-1411 Franklin School Distrct $178.47
01-0000-1413 MMSD $28 86

Resolution introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this_day of2024.

Passed at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin thisday
of 224,

APPROVED:

John R Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



CITY OF FRANKLIN
TREASURER
9229 W LOOMIS ROAD
FRANKLIN WI 53132-9728

STATE OF WISCONSIN
REAL ESTATE PROPERTY TAX BILL FOR 2023

CITY OF FRANKLIN
MILWAUKEE COUNTY

Bill#:
Parcel#:

Alt. Parcel #:

350699
8410155000

Total Due For Full Payment
Pay to Local Treasurer By Jan 31, 2024

$7,222.84

[] check For Billing Address Change

DOLATA ALOYSIUS & PATRICIA A -
8463 S DEERWOOD LN
FRANKLIN WI 53132

REV TR

OR PAY INSTALLMENTS OF
1ST INSTALLMENT 2ND INSTALLMENT
Pay to Local Treasurer Pay to Local Treasurer

$3,558.26 $1,832.29
BY January 31 2024 BY March 31 2024
3RD INSTALLMENT
Pay to Local Treasurer

$1,832.29
BY May 31 2024

Amount Enclosed$

STATE OF WISCONSIN
REAL ESTATE PROPERTY TAX BILL FOR 2023

CITY OF FRANKLIN
MILWAUKEE COUNTY

BILL NUMBER: 350699
IMPORTANT· Correspondence should refer to parcel number

See reverse side for Important Information.
Be sure this description covers your property This description Is
for property tax bill only and may not be a full legal description

DOLATA ALOYSIUS & PATRICIA A - REV TR
8463 S DEERWOOD LN
FRANKLIN WI 53132

DEERWOOD ESTATES CONDOMINIUMS SW 17 5 21

Property Address. 8463 DEERWOOD LN S
Parcel # 8410155000
Alt. Parcel #:

Total Est. Fair Mkt.□ A Star In this box
470,800 means Unpaid Prior

Year Taxes

Assessed Value Land
18,000

Est. Fair Mkt. Land
18,500

Ass'd Value Improvements
439,500

Est. Fair Mkt. Improvements
452,300

Total Assessed Value
457,500

Ave. Assmt. Ratio
0. 9716 NetAssessed Value Rate

(Does NOT reflect credits)

School taxes reduced by
school levytax credit

0 016176223

$ 731.97

Taxing Jurisdiction

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
CITY OF FRANKLIN
FRANKLIN SCHOOL DIST
MATC
MMSD
STATE OF WISCONSIN

2022
Est. State Aids

Allocated Tax Dist.
3,680,570
2,390,505

31,832,920
4,326,522

2023
Est. StateAids

Allocated Tax Dist.
4,350,816
3,420,529

33,198, 986
4,518,534

2022
Net Tax

1,329.13
1,509.96
2,458 42

311.21
471.41

2023
Net Tax

1,542.30
1,852 98
3,006.69

393. 96
604.68

0.00

% Tax
Change

16 0%
22.7%
22.3%
26 6%
28 3%

Total

Parcel#: 8410155000

42,230,517 45,488,865
First Dollar Credit
Lottery & Gaming Credit
Net Property Tax

6,080.13
72.69

238.60
5,768.84

7,400.61
71 44

265.93
7,063.24

21 7%
-1 7%
11.5%
22 4%

Make Check Payable to
CITY OF FRANKLIN
TREASURER
9229 W LOOMIS ROAD
FRANKLIN WI 53132-9728
414-425-4770

Full Payment Due On or Before January 31, 2024
$7,222.84

Or pay the following Installments to
3558 26 DUE BY 01/31/2024
1832.29 DUE BY 03/31/2024
1832.29 DUE BY 05/31/2024

Net Property Tax
SOLID WASTE

7,063.24
159 60

7,222.84

·- »- FOR FULL PAYMENT
Pay By January 31 2024

► $

s
cb
e

Warning If not paid by due dates, installment option is lost §
and total tax is delinquent subject to interest and if applicable ocserrs"z

Year
Increase Ends

2037

Total Additional Taxes
Applied to Property

577 53

Total
Additional Taxes
5,788,325 00

FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY
Voter Approved Temporary Tax Increases
Taxing Jurisdiction
FRANKLIN SCHOOL DIST



Form
PC-201

Assessment Year Co-muni Code

2024 Request for Chargeback
of Rescinded or Refunded Taxes

County

Municipality

Case No,

Wisconsin
Dept of Revenue

Report Type

Property Information
~Real estate I Parcel/account number Is this parcel in a TID? TIO number

[]Personal property 841-0155-000 [] Yes Z] o
Property owner name

I
Due to court rul.ing? Court determination date Court case/docketnumber

Doiata ... Patricia A- Rev Trust [J Yes Z]No

RealEstate;
AssessmentBeforeAdjustment AssessmentAfter Adjustment (col. g)
(col a) (col. b) (col c) (col. d) (col. e) (col f) Total Assessment

Total Value Total Value DifferenceClass Land Improvement (cols a+b) Class Land Improvement (cols d+ e) (cols c- f)

Res $18,000 $439,500 $457,500 Res $18,000 $415,500 $433,500 -$24,000
Total -$24,000

Personal Property
[] Manufacturing I Property category
[] Non-manufacturing

I Before adjustment !After adjustment I Difference

Nort-manufacturing Interest
Paid Interest?
D Yes D No I Total non-manufacturing interest refundedlrescinded

District Information
Net taxes rescinded or refunded to be charged back to taxing jurisdictions (excluding interest)
District Code District Type District Name Net Tax

STATE

COUNTY

MUNICIPALITY

SCHOOL

UNION HIGH

TECHNICAL COLLEGE

Total net tax rescinded or refunded (excluding Interest)

Explanation
I certify the total net taxes were rescinded or refunded to the taxpayer Ive» 0 No

Reference

I
Statute explanation

74.33(1 )(b) & 70.43(2) Correction of palpable error
Additional explanation
Property had permit taken out late 2022 for basement finish Assessor estimated complete and increased assessed value However, per owner
(confirmed by Inspections), the basement finish was framing only as of 1/1/2023--ie only partial complete We estimate that it was approximately
20% complete for 2023 upon reviewing Inspections' notes

Because the assessment was noted to have increased $30,000 for finished basement, the correction is easily calculated The actual assessment
increase should've been $6,000 based on 20% complete, not $30,000 based on 100% complete This requires a decrease of $24,000 for 2023

Page 1 of 2



Form
PC-201

2024 Request for Chargeback
of Rescinded or Refunded Taxes

Wisconsin
Dept of Revenue

Preparer
Name Title

Email Phone

Signature Statement
Under penaltles of law, I declare this form and all attachments are true, correct and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Do you agree with this statement? D Yes D No

Co-muni Code

Attachments

I Submission Type I Submission Date I Confirmation NumberSubmlsslon Information

You must attach the documents listed below.

1. Property Tax Bill

Page 2 of 2



0 00
194 11
97.05
97 05

0.00
3,506.20
1,753.10
1,753.10

Dolata Aloysius & Patricia A - Rev Trust
841-0155-000 equated

$457,500
$433,500
-24,000
0 00

3,700.31
1,850.15
1,850 15

Original
Revised

Name
Parcel ID
Assessed Value -
Assessed Value -
Payments Due
Lottery Credit
1/31
3/31
5/31

7,400.61 7,012.40 388 21

GLA/RAcct
State Tax
Milwaukee County 010000 1415
Sales Tax Credit
City of Franklin 01 0198 5543
MATC (VTAE) 0100001412

1 Frankhmn Schools 010000 1411
State School Levy credit

1 MMSD 010000 1413

GL Entry
State

2023 Original Adjusted Report
Rate Amount Amount Difference Difference

0.0000000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3.3711542 1,542.30 1,461.40 80 90 73.62
0.0000000 0.00 0.00 0.00
4.0502260 1,852.98 1,755.77 97.21 88.46
0.8611245 393.96 373.30 20.66 18.80
8.1719422 3,738.66 3,542.54 196.12 178 47
-1.5999288 -731.97 -693.57 -38 40
1.3217058 604.68 572.96 31.72 28.86

16.1762239 7,400.61 7,012.40 388.21 388.21

Milwaukee County is entitled to the Sales tax credit
The School levy credit is proportioned among all taxing dustncts
The State when calculating the amounts will calculate the TIF impact and include that wth the City total
Franklin Schools 010000 1411 8.1719422
Oak Creek/Franklin School 01 0000 1418 8.2508137
Whitnall Schools 01 0000 1419 7.4508424
No Sewer 0.0000000

TOTAL



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE
2023-2569, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE
2024 ANNUAL BUDGET FORTHE GENERAL
FUND TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL $340,000
APPROPRIATIONS FORASSESSOR
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

MEETING DATE
October 1, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

Background

The 2024 Annual Budget appropriated funding towards the contractual services for the City's Assessor. When
working on the 2024 Annual Budget, the Common Council did not have an agreement in place for the 2024
calendar year. On January 16, 2024, the Common Council approved an Agreement with Forward Appraisal for
assessor services for the City ofFranklin. Due to a significant amount ofwork needed the first year, year 1
services totaled $550,000. Only $210,000 was budgeted due to previous assessor contracts.

Recommendation
The Director of Finance & Treasurer recommends the proposed 2024 Budget Amendment to provide for
the mandatory assessment services for the City of Franklin.

Fiscal Note
Due to this error, the resources covering this amendment will come from fund balance.

The GL Numbers associated with this amendment are:

General Fund - Fund O 1

Expenditure:
01-0154-5210 Professional Services Increase $340,000

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

Motion adopting Ordinance No. 2024- .an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2023-2569, an
Ordinance adopting the 2024 Annual Budget for the General Fund to Provide Additional $340,000
Appropriations for Assessor Contractual Services.

Roll Call Vote Required

Finance Dept - DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2024----

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2023-2569, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2024 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE GENERAL FUND TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL

$340,000 APPROPRIATIONS FOR ASSESSOR CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2024 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 28, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the 2024 Annual Budget appropriated funding towards the City's Assessor
services; and

WHEREAS, additional appropriations are needed to fully fund and support mandatory
assessment services for the City of Franklin; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That the 2024 General Fund Budget be amended as follows:

General Fund
0154 Professional Services Increase $340,000

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 65.90(5)(ar), the City Clerk is hereby directed to post a
notice of this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this
Resolution on the City's web site.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, or otherwise be legally invalid or fail under the applicable rules of
law to take effect and be in force, the remaining terms and provisions shall
remain in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts ofordinances in contravention to this ordinance are hereby
repealed.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor



ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES-- ABSENT
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APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

APPROVAL OF PAYAPPLICATION 1 AND
CHANGE ORDER 1 FOR THE 2024 PPII SUMP

PUMP PROJECT -MMSD FUNDING
AGREEMENTM10005FR01

MEETING DATE

10/1/2024

ITEM NUMBER

9.10.
BACKGROUND
The City of Franklin is undertaking the 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project under the MMSD Funding
Agreement M10005FR01. Pay Application 1, submitted by UPI, LLC, requests $155,975.75 for
work completed. As per the funding agreement, this amount is eligible for reimbursement from
MMSD. Engineering design fees are noted at $196,150.83, and construction-related engineering
fees amount to $17,175.00.

Additionally, Change Order 1 proposes a contract price reduction of $95,490.00. The original
contract sum was $1,415,839.00, but the revised contract price becomes $1,320,349.00 with this
adjustment. Change Order 1 reflects adjustments such as:

• Reduction in unit prices as the City will handle CCTV sewer inspections after the installation of
storm sewer laterals and the change from sod to seed and mulch for restoration.

• Modifications to plans, including adding 8515 W Willow Point Parkway, adjusting storm sewer
alignment for 8411& 8417 W Willow Point Parkway, and modifying structures due to field
conditions.

After approval, the City will pay the contractor, and a reimbursement request will be submitted to
MMSD. The following documents detail these changes and payment amounts.

FISCAL NOTE
The total amount requested in Pay Application 1 is $155,975.75, with the revised contract sum of
$1,320,349.00. These expenses are eligible for reimbursement under the MMSD funding
agreement, so no net impact on the City's budget is anticipated upon reimbursement.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the Common Council approve Pay Application 1 for $155,975.75 and
Change Order 1, reducing the contract price by $95,490.00, bringing the revised contract sum to
$1,320,349.00.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve Pay Application 1 and Change Order 1 for the 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project -
MMSD Funding Agreement M10005FR01.

Prepared by Kelly Hersh, Director of Administration, on behalf of the Engineering Department

DOA-KH



From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Attachments:

Follow Up Flag:
Flag Status:

Christopher J. Beyer <Chnstopher.Beyer@clarkdietz.com>
Tuesday, September 24, 2024 1 :45 PM
Kelly Hersh
Kyle Baker; Andrew J. Ashley; RSpecht@mmsd.com
Franklin Sump Pay App
2024.09.24 Franklin Sump Pay&CO 1_M10005FR01.pdf

Flag for follow up
Flagged

Kelly,

Please see Pay App 1 & Change Order 1 for the Franklin Sump Pump Construction project funded by MMSD
(MMSD# M10005FR01). The City has two (2) signature lines which are on the first pages of the pay app and
change order.

My assumption is that this will have to go through Council for approval and eventual payment. It doesn't look
like the Agenda is finalized yet, so I hope we can still hit the Oct 1 Meeting, if possible. After the City issues
payment to the Contractor, we will follow that up with a reimbursement request to MMSD.

Call with questions - Thanks!
CJ

Clarkietz
Christopher J. Beyer, PE
Clark Dietz, Inc. 625 57th Street, 6th Floor, Kenosha, WI 53140
p 262.842.2415 c 262.442.1097
christopher,beyer@clarkdietz.com clarkdietz.com

1



Clark)ietz
Engineering Quality of life {'\.

----------~
September 24, 2024

The City of Franklin
ATTN: Kelly Hersh, Director of Administration
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - MMSD Funding Agreement M10005FR01
Pay Application 1 and Change Order 1.

Dear Kelly Hersh:

Attached is Pay Application 1 for the 2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - MMSD Funding Agreement
M10005FR01 project from UPI, LLC. I have reviewed the pay application and agree with the amount of
$155,975.75 that they are asking for. It is expected that the total completed to date is eligible for reimbursement
from MMSD per our funding agreement. Our engineering fees for design were $196,150.83. The engineering fees
for construction to date are $17,175.00.

Also attached is Change Order 1 for a decrease in the contract price of $95,490.00. The original Contract Sum is
$1,415,839.00 with the revised Contract to be reduced to $1,320,349. This Change Order modifies the contract by
the following items:

Reduction of Unit Prices:
• The City of Franklin will complete CCTV sewer inspection after installation of the 6-inch and 8-inch storm

sewer laterals. That unit price reduction is a result of the Contractor not providing that scope of work.
• Unit price change to complete restoration with seed and mulch rather than sod.
Plan modifications:
• Addition of 8515 W Willow Point Pkwy.
• Revised 8-Inch Storm Sewer alignment and restoration limits for 8411 & 8417 W Willow Point Pkwy.
• Connect (2) two homes to existing storm structures rather than new structures due to field conditions.
• Add line item for structure modifications due to field conditions.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Clark Dietz, Inc.

6 $,
Andy Ashley, PE
Project Engineer
E-mail: andrew.ashley@clarkdietz.com
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ProjeCt Details M100os Post 20so FF Poro»ch - Rebecca Specht

Hidden Projects

No project photo uploaded.

CancelPrintable Participants DirectoryExport Address Book

01.04.2021
10.21.2039
Post 2050 FF PP/ Approach

Specht.Rebecca
09.23.2024
Asset View
DistrictWebsite
MMSD Diversity Compliance(B82GNow)
MMSD L.egista r (Commission Legislation)
MMSD Online Safety Training
On-Demand e-Builder TrainingVideos
Project'View Link (GIS)

M10005- Post 2050 ff Pl'II Approach
Ziegler, Connie

Active

Details
Project Name

e-Builder Project
Administrator
Project Status

iew mep) Address
Coun try

Start Date
Trget Date
Description

Project Webcam
Last Modified By

Date Last Modified
Web Links

Recent Pages.

9ARNER$ {OR A CI(ANt?AIRER

Project Menu
Details
Project Participants
Sent Items
Forms

Issues

Processes

Documents

Contacts
Calendar

Submittals

CustomFeds (43) Notes (3) Documents (3) Forms (0) Processes O) Settings

Project Number
ProgramGroup Category:

Program Group:
Subgroups:

Stream Reaches:
Facility Number

Division:
Division Director

Responsible Cost Center:
Department Managers:

GroupManager
Project Manager

ConstructionManager
Source of Project Request

Project Category
ReportingStatus:

Transitional P\'aject
Program Project:

Program Type:
BudgetSource:

Funding Source :.
MunicipallyCode

Convnunity
External Stakeholder

Groups:
Initially Panned Project

Start Date:
Initially Planned Project

End Date:
DateAdded:

Current Project Scope:

Current Project Purpose
and Rlslc Mitigation:

Current Project
Badcground and

Justification:

Project Phases:
Reason(s) forCost

Variance:

M10005
Other (GroupsG,L M)
M- DistrictAdministration
10-Capital ReimbUfsement Programs - District Adrnln

Offi ce of ExecutiveDirector
Kevin Shafer
EXD

Specht. Rebecca
Rebecca Specht

ExecutiveDirector RecommendedProject
Programmatic
Active
No
Yes
EqualizedValue
Capi tal
Cash

01.01.2023

12.31.2027

03,11.2019
Project M10005 facili tates andmanages the funding of inflow and Infiltration (1/1) reductionwork on private
property (PP) throughannual allocations to the28 satellite municipalities as defined In the project policy.
Project M10005 is solelymunldpal allocations and expenses. No District labor Is in M10005,
Project M10005 funds 1/1 reductionon private propertytomeet the District WPDES level of service requirements
and tomeet the District2035Vision objectivesfor overflow and basement backup reduction.
ProjectM10005 provides funding for 1/1 reduction beyond thecurrent 2020 policy sunset. Through revisions in
the policy, thePPI/I reductionprogram will be extended Indefinitely. Completed evaluations on PP work
completed todate confirm the most effective W reduction is accomplished through PPwork. Reducing VI
through PPwork Is necessarytomeet theDistrict WPDES level ofservice requirements. system performance,
and the 2035Vision objectivesforoverflow and basement backup reduction.
Construction (CO
none



Reason(s) for Schedule none
Variance·

Is project interrelated to
another project(s)?

Interrelated Project(s):
Summary of project

interrelationships:
Will assets be No

added/removed/modified?
Asset Register Changes.

Risk Register ID:
Pre Mitigation Governing

Risk Level.
Pre-Mitigation Cumulative

Risk Score:
Post Mitigation Governing

Risk Level·
Post-Mitigation Cumulative

Risk Score·
Risk Reduction



APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT PAGE ONE OF 2 PAGES

TO OWNER
City of Franklin
9229 W Loomis Rd
Franklin, WI 53132
FROM CONTRACTOR
UPI LLC
2180 S Springdale Rd
New Berlin WI 53146
CONTRACT FOR

PROJECT
2024 PPII Sump Pump Project
MMSD Agreement M10005FR01

VIA ARCHITECT
Clark Detz Inc
759 N Milwaukee St.
Milwaukee WI 53202

APPLICATION #
PERIOD TO
PROJECT NOS

CONTRACT DATE

1
09/03/24
2024-02

08/26/24

Distribution to

~

Owner
Const Mgr
Architect
Contractor

CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT
Application is made for payment. as shown below in connection with the Contract.
Continuation Sheet is attached

The undersigned Contractor certifies that to the best of the Contractor's knowledge information and
belief the Work covered by this Application for Payment has been completed in accordance with the
ContractDocuments, that all amounts have been paid by the Contractor for Work far which previous
Certificatesfor Paymentwere issued and payments received from the Owner and that current payment
shown therein Is now due

DateBy

CONTRACTOR8,1415,83800,8,-8549000,°,1320.34900,164,185 00

1. ORIGINAL CONTRACT SUM-----------
2 Net change by Change Orders----~
3. CONTRACT SUM TO DATE (Line 1 +/- 2)
4 TOTAL COMPLETED & STORED TO DATE-$

(Column G on Continuation Sheet)
5. RETAINAGE

$$~ 8_2_0_9_2---l5I
155 975 75

a 50% of Completed Work $] 8,209 25/
(Columns D+E on Continuation Sheet) L---- -"-'---'--'--'-'

b 10 0% of Stored Material $
(Column F on Continuation Sheet) .__ ___,

Total Retamage (Line 5a + 5b or
Total in Column 1 of Continuation Sheet-------­

6 TOTAL EARNED LESS RETAINAGE----------­
(LIne 4 less Line 5 Total)

7 LESS PREVIOUS CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT
(Line 6 from prior Certificate)---------- $$1~--------~I

8. CURRENT PAYMENT DUE----------- 155,975 75
9 BALANCE TO FINISH, INCLUDING RETAINAGE

tune 3less Lune 6) °1,164.37226

CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT

AMOUNT CERTIFIED--- $

"ay 45-
I337 92s zs

Date 9/12/2024

By·

CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS
Total changes approved in previous
months by Owner
Total approved this Month -$95,490 00

TOTALS -$95,490 00
NET CHANGES by Change Order -$95,490 00

FUNDING AGENCY.

'kl.fdptsns srooz4
City/Owner ate



CONTINUATION SHEET
ATTACHMENT TO PAY APPLICATION

PROJECT
2024 PPII Sump Pump Project
MMSD Agreement M10005FR01

Page 2 of 2 Pages
APPLICATION NUMBER 1

APPLICATION DATE 09/12/24
PERIOD TO: 3-Sp-24

ARCHITECT'S PROJECT NO 2024-02

A B C D E F G H I
Item Description of Work Scheduled Work Completed Materials Total % Balance Retainage
No Value From Previous This Period Presently Completed (Gc) To Finish

Application Stored And Stored (Cc·G)
(D+E) (Not In To Date

DorE) (D+E+F)
1 "pvc storm lateral AJA $413 25 0 00424- 616 00 74,99400 74,994 00 18% 346,521 00 3 749 70
2 8" pvc storm 407,68000 49 686 00 49,686 00 12% 357,994 00 2,484 30
3 12" storm reinstall - slurry AJA $5, 080 003,- , 3,520 00
4 15" storm reinstall - slurry 1,800 00 1 800 00
5 18" storm reinstall - slurry 5 040 00 5 040 00
6 12" rcp storm - slurry 3,204 00 3 204 00
7 sump pump connect 48,555 00 8,775 00 8,775 00 18% 39 780 00 438 75
8 private check valve 3,450 00 3,450 00
9 2' inlet 168 740 00 22,715 00 2271500 13% 146,025 00 1,135 75
10 3' inlet 29 920 00 3,740 00 3 740 00 13% 26,18000 187 00
11 connect to existing structure AJA $25,1 5 00 23,866 09 3,225 00 3,225 00 14% 20,640 00 161 25
12 4" topsoil seed & mulch 13312500 133,125 00
13 replace curb 70000 700 00
14 replace walk 4,62000 4,620 00
15 replace concrete drive 66,305 00 66,305 00
16 asphalt patch 247500 2,475 00
17 Change Order
18 Modify Inlet for larger pipe A JA- $'050 00 1 050 00 1 050 00 (1 050 00) 52 50
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28 Ah $1,320,349.00 AU $1156 164 00

SUBTOTALS PAGE 2 1,324 54400 164,185 00 164,185 00 12% 1,160,329.00- 8 209 25



UPI, LLC 2180 S SPRINGDALE RD, NEW BERLIN, WI 53146

CITY OF FRANKLIN

PROJECT Franklin 2024 Sump lateral Project
PAY REQUEST #1 THROUGH 9/3/24

Date
Job

9/12/2024
2404

DESCRIPTION
Item
No. BID ITEM UNIT
1 6" pvc storm lateral (.f.
2 8" PVC storm If.
3 42" storm reinstall - slurry l.f.
4 15" storm reinstall - slurry I.t.
5 8" storm reinstall - slurry (.f.
6 12" rcp storm - slurry l.f.
7 sump pump connect ea
8 [private check valve ea
9 2' Inlet 0a
10 3' Inlet ea
11 connect to existing struct ea
12 4" topsoll seed & mulch sy.
13 replace curb If.
14 replace walk s.f.
15 replace concrete drive sv.
16 asphalt patch s.y.

Change Order
1 Modify Inlet for larger pipe ea

JOB QTY

48450
4160 0

16 0
80

24 0
12 0
83 0
100
520
80

370
53250

10 0
4200
7450

15 0

00

UNIT PRICE

$8700
$9800

$220 00
$225 00
$210 00
$267 00
$585 00
$345 00

$3 245 00
$3,740 00

$645 00
$2500
$7000
$1100
$8900

$165 00

$105000

WORK COMPLETED
PREVIO US THIS AMOUNT
PERIODS PERIOD THIS PERIOD

000 862 00 $74,994 00
000 50700 $49,686 00
000 000 $0 00
000 000 $000
000 000 $000
0 00 000 $000
000 15 00 $8,775 00
000 000 $000
000 700 $22 715 00
000 1 00 $3 740 00
000 500 $3,225 00
000 000 $000
000 0 00 $000
000 0 00 $0 00
000 000 $0 00
0 00 0 00 $0 00

0 00 1 00 $105000

CUMULATIVE SALES

UNITS AMOUNT

862 00 $74 994 00
507 00 $49,686 00

o oo $000
0 00 $0 00
0 00 $0 00
0 00 $0 00

15 00 $8,775 00
0 00 $0 00
7 00 $22,715 00
1 00 $3,740 00
5 00 $3,225 00
0 00 $0 00
0 00 $0 00
o oo $0 00
0 00 $000
0 00 $0 00

1 00 $1,050 00

[ EARNED TO DATE $164,185 00]

9/16/24 - B. Specht approved payment
with changes as noted by AJA



Owner
Engineer.
Contractor
Contract Name
Date Issued

CHANGE ORDER NO.: 1 Agreed Upon Prices
City of Franklin Owner's Project No
Clark Dietz, Inc Engineer's Project No F0520040
UPI Contractor's Project No
2024 PPII Sump Pump Project - MMSD Funding Agreement MlOOOSFROl
9/10/2024

The Contract Is modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order

Reduction of Unit Prices
• The City of Frankl will complete CCTV sewer inspection after installation of the 6-inch and 8-inch storm

sewer laterals That unit pnce reduction 1s a result of the Contractor not providing that scope of work
• Unit price change to complete restoration with seed and mulch rather than sod

Plan modifications
• Addition of 8515 W Willow Pomnt Pkwy pending Right of Entry Agreement signed by resident
• Revised 8 Inch Storm Sewer alignment and restoration limits for 8411 & 8417 W Willow Point Pkwy
• Add1t1on of (2) two connect to existing storm structure due to field conditions
• Add line item for structure modifications due to field conditions

Attachments Contract Quantities
Change in Contract Price Change in Contract Times

Orgnal Contract Price Original Contract Times·
Substantial Completion 7/17/24

$ 1,415,839 (BASE +ALL Alternates) Ready for final payment 7/31/24

[Increase] [Decrease] from previously approved Increase from previously approved Change Orders
Change Orders No 1 to No 1 No 1 to No 1

Substantial Completion N/A
$ N/A Ready for final payment N/A

Contract Price prior to thts Change Order Contract Times prior to this Change Order
Substantial Completion. 7/17/24

$ 1,415,839 (BASE +ALL Alternates) Ready for final payment 7/31/24

Decrease this Change Order Increase this Change Order.
Substantial Completion. 11/22/2024

$ 95,490 00 Ready for final payment 11/29/2024

Contract Price mcorporatmg this Change Order Contract Times with all approved Change Orders
Substantial Completion 11/22/2024

$ 1,320,349 00 Ready for final payment 11/29/2024

By:

Title:

Date: 9/12/2024

Authorized by Owner

By:

Title:

Date: a/zhy.

Approved by Funding Agency (1f applicable)

Urban Water Program Manager
9/20/24

EJCDC C-941, Change Order.
Copyright2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Pagel ofl



2024 PPII Sump Pump Project MMSDO FungAgreement MI10005FR01 In The CityOt Franktun

UPI

Original Contract Quantities Change Order (Change In QTY Revised Contract Cost with agreed upon
and/or unit price) unit prices

Item# Total Base .. ALL I 11) Alternates Unit Qty Unit Cost TotalCott Qty Unit Cost Total Cost Qty Unit Cost Total Cott

l 6-Inch Storun Sewer Lateral, PVC LF 4750 $ 96,00 $ 456,000.00 !, (9 00) $ (42,750.00) 4750 $ 87.00 $ 413,250.00

1 8-lnch Stoun Sewer, PVC LF 4160 $ 101.00 $ 420,160.00 I (3 00) $ {11 .'180001 4160 $ 98.00 $ 407,680.00

3 12inch Ppe Femove and Reinstall lf 14 s 110.00 $ 5,280.00 $ $ 24 s 110 .00 s 5,280.00

• 15-inch Pipe Remove and Reinstall LF 8 5 225.00 $ 1,800.00 5 $ 8 $ 225.00 5 1,800.00

5 1B8-Inch Pipe Remove and Reinstall Lf 24 $ 21000 s 5,040.00 5 $ 24 $ 210.00 $ 5,040.00

6 12-lnch Storm Sewe,, R(P LF 12
,

267.00 s .3,104.00 $ $ 11 $ 267.00 s J,204.00

7 ump Pump Connection LA 83 $ 585.00 $ 48,555.00 $ $ 83 $ 585.00 $ 48,555.00

8 Private Sump Pump Check Valve EA 10 $ 345.00 s 3,450.00 $ s 10 s 345.00 s 3;450.00
'

9
Inlets 2.+IDiameter, Indudug Hare &

EA 52 s 3,245.00 $ 168,140.00 $ $ 52 $ 3,245.00 $ 168,740.00Grate (Neenah R-2S64)

10
Inlets 3.FT Diameter, Including Hare &

EA 8 $ 3,740.00 $ 29,920.00 s $ 8 $ 3,740.00 s 29,920.00Grate {Neenah R·2S64}

ll Connection to Existing turn Structure EA 37 s 645.00 $ 23,865.00 l s s 1,290.00 39 5 645.00 s 25,155.00

12
4-1ch Compacted Topsoil & Mo4 Seed

SY 5325 s 33. 00 S 175,725.00 s 18 lYJ) $ (42,6 00 00) 5325 $ 15.00 $ 133,125.00Hestoration (with Watering)

13 Remove & Heplace Conrete Curb & Gutter Lf 10 s 70.00 $ 700.00 s s 10 s 70 .00 $ 700.00

14 Remove & Replace Contete Sidewalk sr 420 $ 11.00 s 4,620.00 $ $ 420 $ 11.00 $ 4,620.00
,,

15 Remove & Replace Concrete Driveway SY 74S $­ 89.00 ,$ 66,305.00 $ s 74S $ 89.00 $ 66,305.00

16 HMA Pavement Path SY 15 s 165.00 s 2,475.00 5 $ 15 $ JGS.00 $ 2,476.00

COl.1 Structure Modification Each 0 s s I s 1,050.00 s 1,050.00 1 $ 1,050.00 $ 1,050 .00

TOTAL $ 1,415,839.00 $ (95,490.00) $ 1,320,349.00



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE
2023-2569, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE
2024 ANNUAL BUDGET FORTHE CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT FUND TO PROVIDE

ADDITIONAL $445,550 APPROPRIATIONS FOR
THE WISDOT PROJECT ON S. LOVERS LANE
FROMW. RAWSONAVE. TO W. COLLEGE

AVE.

MEETING DATE
October 1, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

.1\.

Background

The 2024 Annual Budget appropriated $147,800 towards the WisDOT project. On November 7, 2023, the
Common Council approved a resolution revising the State/Municipal Financial Agreement with the Wisconsin
Department of Transportation. The revision modified to total City project cost to $593,350. The construction of
this project was originally projected for 2024 or 2025. Initial 2024 Budget appropriations considered the design
in 2024 and construction in 2025. WisDOT started construction early, causing funding to be needed in 2024.

Recommendation
The Director of Finance & Treasurer recommends the proposed 2024 Budget Amendment to provide for
the completion of the WisDOT project on S. Lovers Lane from W. Rawson Ave. to W. College Ave.

Fiscal Note
The 2025 Budget will have to anticipate funding through the GO Debt borrowing anticipated to cover all
WisDOT projects, including this one.

The GL Numbers associated with this amendment are:

Capital Outlay Fund Fund 46
Expenditure:
46-0331-5823.3968 Streets - S. LL Rawson to College Increase $445,550

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion adopting Ordinance No. 2024- an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2023-2569, an
Ordinance adopting the 2024 Annual Budget for the Capital Improvement Fund to Provide Additional
$445,550 Appropriations for the WisDOT Project on S. Lovers Lane from W. Rawson Ave. to W. College
Ave.

Roll Call Vote Required

Finance Dept - DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2024----

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2023-2569, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2024 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND TO

PROVIDE ADDITIONAL $445,550 APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE WISDOT PROJECT ON
S. LOVERS LANE FROM W. RAWSON AVE. TOW. COLLEGE AVE.

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2024 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 28, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the 2024 Annual Budget appropriated $147,800 for the WisDOT project; and

WHEREAS, additional appropriations are needed to fully fund and support the
construction services; and

WHEREAS, the City has entered into a State/Municipal Financial Agreement with the
Wisconsin Department ofTransportation on November 7, 2023; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That the 2024 Capital Improvement Fund Budget be amended as follows:

Capital Improvement Fund
0331 Highway Streets-S. LL Rawson to College Increase $445,550

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 65.90(5)(ar), the City Clerk is hereby directed to post a
notice of this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this
Resolution on the City's web site.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, or otherwise be legally invalid or fail under the applicable rules of
law to take effect and be in force, the remaining terms and provisions shall
remain in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts ofordinances in contravention to this ordinance are hereby
repealed.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
_day of2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor



ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution to Revise State/Municipal Financial Agreement for
Improvements Related to a Wisconsin Department of Transportation

Project on S. Lovers Lane (USH 45 / STH 100) from
W. Rawson Avenue (CTH BB) to W. College Avenue

in the New Amount of $593,350

BACKGROUND
Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WISDOT) is constructing a project on S. Lovers Lane
(USH 45 / STH 100) from W. Rawson Avenue (CTH BB) to W. College Avenue starting in 2024.
A State/Municipal Financial Agreement and a State/Municipal Maintenance Agreement for
improvements for the improvements was approved on October 5, 2021 and last modified on May
2, 2023 in the amount of $483,756. The agreement states that the City is responsible for the actual
amount, regardless of the estimated $483,756.

ANALYSIS
WisDOT opened the bids and the actual total is $632,800. Staffhas had numerous conversations
with WisDOT concerning this new number and why it differs so much from the $483,756. The
discrepancy is a result of the lighting costs.

Item
Lighting
Utilities
Net

May 2023 Estimate
$221,756
$262,000
$483,756

October 2023 Bid
$392,800
$240,000
$632,800

Change
+$171,044
-$ 22,000
$149,044

As an Alternative, Staff asked WisDOT to consider the removal of the lighting system. Each
intersection would still be lit, but because WisDOT would participate 50/50 for a non-"system",
Franklin would burden the total share of a smaller project. First, WisDOT found an error in their
calculations that indicate the City would owe $593,350 (not $632,800) for the full lighting system.
The cost to the City without the full lighting system would be $600,500.

TABLE 1 SUMMARY OF COSTS

I Total Federal/State Municipal

Phase Est. Cost Funds % Funds %°

!Preliminary Engineering:

Plan Development $ 2,200,000 $ 2200,000 100%/$ 0%

IReal Estate Acquisilion:
Acquisition $ 3,900000 $ 3,900000 100% $ - 0%
Compensable Utilities $ $ 0%! $ 100%

I,ConstNCtion.
Participating $ 9,544000 $ 9,544 000 100% $ 0%

New Sidewalk $ 400,000 $ 400,000 100% $ 0%

2 3 Colored/Stamped concrete $ 10,000 $ 10,000 MAX $ BAL

1· New iighitng with CSS $ 665,300 standard $ 332 650 50%/LS $ 332,650 50%/BAL
$ 382 200 decorative $ 361 500 MAX $ 20,700 BAL

INon-Participating I $ 240,000 $ - 0% An nn 100%

Tola I Cost DlstrlbuUon $ 17,341,600 $ 16,740,160 s _sos,so [
WisDOT Revised Summary of Costs for a Full Lighting System



TABLE 1 SUMMARYOF COSTS

I Total Federal/State Municipal
Phase Est. Cost Funds % Funds %

IP,elimtna,y Engineering
Plan Dewlopment $ 2,200,000 s 2200,000 100% $ 0%

I Real Estate Acquisition·
Acqulsillon $ 3,900,000 $ 3,900,000 100% $ 0%
Compensable UtUlltes $ $ 0% $ 100%

I 1construchon:
Part icipating $ 9,544,000 $ 9,544,000 100% $ 0%
Now Sidewalk $ 400,000 $ 400,000 100% $ . 0%
' • Colorod'Stamped concrete $ 10,000 $ 10,000 MAX $ BAL

1 > New lighitng with CSS'
$ 360,500 non-participating s 0% $ 360,600 100%
$ 145,800 decorative $ 361 500 MAX BAL

[Non-Participating I $ 240,000 s .. . 100%
Total Cost DlstribUllon $ 16,800,300 $ 11,415,500 I $ 6oo,soo ]

WisDOT Summary of Costs without a Full Lighting System

Note that a new State/Municipal Financial Agreement is needed to allow WisDOT to reallocate
some of the context sensitive funding that actually reduces the City's portion. That is why a new
agreement is needed to supersede the previous version.

OPTIONS
A Authorize the new agreement.
B. Deny the new agreement (makes the previous version still valid and would cost more than

Option A)
C. Ask WisDOT to rewrite the agreement to remove the full lighting system and only light

intersections (would cost more than constructing the full lighting system)

FISCAL NOTE
There is another item on the agenda to authorize a budget amendment for this issue.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Motion to adopt Resolution 2023-__ a resolution to revise State/Municipal
Financial Agreement for improvements related to a Wisconsin Department of Transportation
project on S. Lovers Lane (USH 45 / STH 100) from W. Rawson Avenue (CTH BB) to W. College
Avenue in the new amount of $593,350.

Engineering Department: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 ­---

A RESOLUTION TO REVISE STATE/MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL AGREEMENT FOR
IMPROVEMENTS RELATED TO A WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

PROJECT ON S. LOVERS LANE (USH 45 / STH 100) FROM W. RAWSON AVENUE
(CTR BB) TOW. COLLEGE AVENUE IN THE NEW AMOUNT OF $593,350

• oo • i

WHEREAS, Wisconsin Department of Transportation is constructing a project on S. Lovers
Lane (USH 45 / STH 100) from W. Rawson Avenue (CTH BB) to W. College Avenue starting in
2024;and

WHEREAS, a State/Municipal Financial Agreement and a State/Municipal Maintenance
Agreement for improvements for the improvements was approved on October 5, 2021; and

WHEREAS, it was found economical to include City of Franklin water and sewer utility
adjustments in the State project to be performed by State contractors; and

WHEREAS, upon opening bids the amount was significantly more than anticipated; and

WHEREAS, this version four of the agreement reallocates context sensitive funding to be
advantageous for the City of Franklin.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The City of Franklin will enter into a new
State/Municipal Financial Agreement for $593,350 to supersede previous agreement.

Introduced at a regular order meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
_ day of,2)2,3 by

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
_______ day of , 2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MEETING DATE

10/1/2024

REPORTS & ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT -OCTOBER 2024
UPDATE

RECOMMENDATIONS

ITEM NUMBER

).12,
BACKGROUND
The City of Franklin Engineering Department has been actively engaged in several infrastructure
projects throughout 2024, addressing critical maintenance, enhancements, and new
developments to improve city services and manage growth. This update summarizes key projects,
recent developments, challenges, and upcoming tasks.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

This report is for informational purposes only. No action is required at this time.

Prepared by Kelly Hersh, Director of Administration, on behalf of the Engineering Department

DOA-KH
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APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE
2023-2569, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE
2024 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE GENERAL
FUND TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL $22,500
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE ELECTIONS

DEPARTMENT

MEETING DATE

October 1, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

Background

The 2024 Annual Budget appropriated funding towards the City's Elections services. When working on the
2024 Annual Budget, administration did not take into consideration that 2024 was a year that services four
elections. The 2024 budget only funds 2 elections.

Recommendation
The Director of Finance & Treasurer recommends the proposed 2024 Budget Amendment to provide for
the mandatory services to support four elections.

Fiscal Note
Due to this error, the resources covering this amendment will come from contingency.

The GL Numbers associated with this amendment are:

General Fund - Fund O 1

Expenditure:
01-0199-5499
01-0142-5421
01-0142-5532
01-0142-5313
01-0142-5313
01-0142-5242
01-0142-5115

Unrestricted Contingency
Official Notices
Facility Rental
Printing
Office Supplies
Equipment Maintenance
Temporary Salaries

Decrease
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase

$22,500
$395
$600
$2,000
$3,900
$2,500
$13,105

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion adopting Ordinance No. 2024- .an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2023-2569, an
Ordinance adopting the 2024 Annual Budget for the General Fund to Provide Additional $22,500
Appropriations for the Elections Department.

Roll Call Vote Required

Finance Dept - DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2024----

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2023-2569, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2024 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE GENERAL FUND TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL

$22,500 APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE ELECTIONS DEPARTMENT

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2024 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 28, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the 2024 Annual Budget appropriated funding towards the City's election
services; and

WHEREAS, additional appropriations are needed to fully fund and support mandatory
election services needed for the 2024 elections; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That the 2024 General Fund Budget be amended as follows:

General Fund
0199 Unrestricted Contingency Decrease $22,500
0142 Official Notices Increase $395
0142 Facility Rental Increase $600
0142 Printing Increase $2,000
0142 Office Supplies Increase $3,900
0142 Equipment Maintenance Increase $2,500
0142 Temporary Salaries Increase $13,105

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 65.90(S)(ar), the City Clerk is hereby directed to post a
notice of this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this
Resolution on the City's web site.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, or otherwise be legally invalid or fail under the applicable rules of
law to take effect and be in force, the remaining terms and provisions shall
remain in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts ofordinances in contravention to this ordinance are hereby
repealed.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
__day of , 2024.



ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
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APPROVAL REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

10-01-24

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND $158-8C. OF THE

MUNICIPAL CODE TO ALLOW FOR THE SALE BY
"CLASS B" LICENSE HOLDERS OF

INTOXICATING LIQUOR FOR OFF PREMISES
CONSUMPTION

ITEM NUMBER

This item was held over to the October 1, 2025 Common Council meeting. Attached is a red-lined copy and a
clean copy of the revised Ordinance.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve an Ordinance to Amend $158-8C. of the Municipal Code to Allow For the Sale by "Class B"
License Holders of Intoxicating Liquor for Off Premises Consumption.

OR

As directed.

Office ofthe City Clerk - sjr



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND §158-8C. OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO ALLOW FOR
THE SALE BY CLASS B" LICENSE HOLDERS OF INTOXICATING LIQUOR FOR

OFF PREMISES CONSUMPTION BY CLASS B LICENSE HOLDERS

WHEREAS, the Common Council having determined it necessary to amend the
Municipal Code to provide for the sale by "Class B" license holders of intoxicating liquor for off
premises consumption by Class B license holders.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1: § 15 8-8C. Class A Retail and Class A Combination Licenses; sale for
consumption away from Class B premises, of the Municipal Code of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended to read as follows
[note: added text is underlined].
§ 15 8-8C. Class A Retail and Class A Combination Licenses; sale for
consumption away from Class "B" and "Class B" premises. Class
A premises and premises operating under a
Class A Combination License may remain open for the conduct of their
regular business but may not sell fermented malt beverages between
9:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. Between 9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m., no person
may sell fermented malt beverages on Class "B" premises in an original
unopened package, container or bottle or for consumption away from
the premises. The City of Franklin hereby elects to come under Wis.
Stat. § 125.51(3)(b). Between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m.. a
retail "Class B" license authorizes the sale of intoxicating liquor to be
consumed by the glass on the premises where sold or off the premises if
the licensee seals the container of intoxicating liquor with a tamper­
evident seal before the intoxicating liquor is removed from the
premises. The "Class B" license also authorizes the sale of intoxicating
liquor in the original package or container, in any quantity, to be
consumed off the premises where sold.Class B Combination Licensed
premises may sell fermented malt beverages_ or intoxicating liquors to
be- consumed by the- glass on the licensed premises, or mey_ sell
individual glasses or cups of mixed drinks, original unopened package,
eontainer or bottle_of wine_in to go containers for off-site_consumption
provided the containers have a "tamper evident seal''in the original
package or container to be consumed off premises in any quantity to be
consumed off premises. Wine may be sold in original packages or



SECTION 2:

otherwise in any quantity to be consumed off the premises. Carry-out
sales shall cease at 9:00 p.m. each day.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.

ORDINANCE NO. 2024­
Page 2

SECTION 3: All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage
and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
___ day of , 2024, by Alderman _

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of•2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND $158-8C. OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO ALLOW FOR
THE SALE BY "CLASS B LICENSE HOLDERS OF INTOXICATING LIQUOR FOR

OFF PREMISES CONSUMPTION

WHEREAS, the Common Council having determined it necessary to amend the
Municipal Code to provide for the sale by "Class B license holders of intoxicating liquor for off
premises consumption.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1:

SECTION 2:

§158-8C. Class A Retail and Class A Combination Licenses; sale for
consumption away from Class B premises, of the Municipal Code of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended to read as follows
[note added text s underlned].
$158-8C. Class A Retail and Class A Combination Licenses; sale for
consumption away from Class "B? and "Class B" premises. Class
A premises and premises operating under a
Class A Combination License may remain open for the conduct of their
regular business but may not sell fermented malt beverages between
9:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. Between 9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m., no person
may sell fermented malt beverages on ClassB" premises in an original
unopened package, container or bottle or for consumption away from
the premises. The City of Franklin hereby elects to come under Wis.
Stat. § 125.51(3)(b). Between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m., a
retail "Class B" license authorizes the sale of intoxicating liquor to be
consumed by the glass on the premises where sold or offthe premises if
the licensee seals the container of intoxicating liquor with a tamper­
evident seal before the intoxicating liquor is removed from the
premises. The "Class B" license also authorizes the sale of intoxicating
liquor in the original package or container, in any quantity, to be
consumed off the premises where sold. Carry-out sales shall cease at
9:00 p.m. each day.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competentjurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.



ORDINANCE NO. 2024­
Page 2

SECTION 3: All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage
and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of2024, by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting ofthe Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND $158-8C. OF THE

MUNICIPAL CODE TO ALLOW FOR THE SALE OF
INTOXICATING LIQUOR FOR OFF PREMISES

CONSUMPTION BY CLASS B LICENSE HOLDERS

The City has been asked by an establishment that holds a "Class B" Intoxicating Liquor License and a Class
BFermented Malt Beverage Retailer's License to sell wine by the bottle for off premises consumption. The
way our ordinance is written this is not allowed. In 2023 the state enacted:

§ 125 .513). Wis. Stats Retail Class B Liguor License. A retail Class B liquor license shall permit its holder
to sell liquor in original packages or containers in multiples not to exceed 4 liters at any one time to be
consumed off the licensed premises. Wine may be sold in original packages or otherwise in any quantity to
be consumed off the premises.

Multiple other cities have enacted/changed their ordinance in order for establishments to sell liquor/wine for
consumption off premises. Some of them are as follows: Oak Creek, City of Waukesha, Town of Raymond
and City of Greenfield.

The following is the change to our ordinance to allow for the off-site consumption. The deletions are stricken
and the additions are underlined.

Franklin Municipal Code 158-8C.:

Class A Retail and Class A Combination Licenses; sale for consumption away from Class B
premises. Class A premises and premises operating under a Class A Combination License may
remain open for the conduct of their regular business but may not sell fermented malt beverages
between 9:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. Between 9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m., no person may sell
fermented malt beverages on Class B premises in an original unopened package, container or
bottle or for consumption away from the premises. Between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 9:00
p.m., Class B Combination Licenses may sell fermented malt beverages or intoxicating liquors
to be consumed by the glass on the licensed premises, or may sell individual glasses or cups of
mixed drinks, original unopened package, container or bottle ofwine in to-go containers for off­
site consumption provided the containers have a "tamper evident seal", in the original package or
container to be consumed off premises in any quantity to be consumed off premises. Wine may
be sold in original packages or otherwise in any quantity to be consumed off the premises.
Carry-out sales shall cease at 9 p.m. each day.



COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve an Ordinance to Amend $158-8C. of the Municipal Code to Allow for the Sale of
Intoxicating Liquor for OffPremises Consumption by Class B License Holders.

OR

As directed.

Office ofthe City Clerk - sjr



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2024­

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND $158-8C. OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO ALLOW FOR
THE SALE OF INTOXICATING LIQUOR FOR OFF PREMISES CONSUMPTION BY

CLASS B LICENSE HOLDERS

WHEREAS, the Common Council having determined it necessary to amend the
Municipal Code to provide for the sale of intoxicating liquor for off premises consumption by
Class B license holders.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1:

SECTION 2:

$158-8C. Class A Retail and Class A Combination Licenses; sale for
consumption away from Class B premises, of the Municipal Code of
the City ofFranklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended to read as follows
[note; added text s underlmed].
158-8C. Class A Retail and Class A Combination Licenses; sale for
consumption away from Class B premises. Class A premises and
premises operating under a Class A Combination License may remain
open for the conduct of their regular business but may not sell
fermented malt beverages between 9:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. Between
9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m., no person may sell fermented malt beverages
on Class B premises in an original unopened package, container or
bottle or for consumption away from the premises. Between the hours
of 6:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m., Class B Combination Licensed premises
may sell fermented malt beverages or intoxicating liquors to be
consumed by the glass on the licensed premises, or may sell individual
glasses or cups of mixed drinks, original unopened package, container
or bottle ofwine in to-go containers for off-site consumption provided
the containers have a "tamper evident seal", in the original package or
container to be consumed offpremises in any quantity to be consumed
off premises. Wine may be sold in original packages or otherwise in
any quantity to be consumed offthe premises. Carry-out sales shall
cease at 9 p.m. each day.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision ofthis ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-
Page 2

SECTION 3: All ordinances and parts of ordinances m contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage
and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of2024, by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting ofthe Common Council ofthe City of
Franklin this day of2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---
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APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

Background

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

April-June, 2024 Monthly Financial Report

MEETING DATE
October 1, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

The April-June, 2024 Financial Report is attached.

The Finance Committee reviewed this report at its August 27, 2024 meeting and recommends its acceptance.

The Director of Finance & Treasurer will be available to answer any questions.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

Receive and place on file.

Finance Dept - DB



Date:

To:

From:

Subject:

August 27, 2024

Mayor Nelson, Common Council and Finance Committee Members

Danielle Brown, Director of Finance & Treasurer

April thru June 2024 Financial Reports

The April, May, June 2024 financial reports for the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, TIO
Funds, American Rescue Plan, Solid Waste Fund, Capital Outlay Fund, Equipment
Replacement Fund, Street Improvement Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Development Fund,
Utility Development, Self Insurance Fund and Post Employment Insurance Fund are attached.

The budget allocation is completed using an average of the last five years actual spending
against the Budget. Caution is advised in that spending patterns may have changed. Comments
on specific and trending results are provided below to aid the reader in understanding or
explaining current year financial results.

Cash & Investments Summary - is provided to aid in understanding the resources available to
meet current activities. Cash & investments are positions with safety and liquidity as primary
objectives as stated in the City's Investment policy. Investment returns are secondary in the
investment decisions, while return potential is not ignored. Cash & Investments in the
Governmental Funds total $58.4 million. TIO Expenditures and Tax Settlements are the main
reason for cash reduction. The Property Tax Fund decreased $15.7 million on the April and
June Tax Settlements.

-- ---------

Cash Balances - May & June 2024

Other Tax FundSelf InsWater

Current Month : Prior Month
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April - June 2024
Financial Report

Investment balances have been reduced at Institutional Capital Management. The Finance
Department is continuing to look into moving investments from Institutional Capital Management
to American Deposit Management as all CD's have matured and the Rate of Return has
dropped dramatically. Our relationship with American Deposit Management has provided the
tool to tap the bank CD market with an average weighted Rate of Return on CD's at 8.33%.

Landfill Siting Resources - are spread across multiple capital funds and the General Fund.
This resource is currently performing approximately .91 % above the $2.55 million budget.
June's receipt (collected in July) were $264,500 (compared to $216,600 in June 2023). The
current annualized run rate is $2.7 million. The accompanying chart illustrates the current trend.
Most of this resource is credited to the Capital funds. Resources in excess of budget will be
evenly credited to Equipment Replacement and Street Improvement Funds.

Monthly Landfill Siting Revenue
300,000

250,000

200,000

150,000

100,000

50,000

Actual - - Budget - Monthly Rolling Avg

GENERAL FUND revenues of $22.1 million are $585,000 greater than budget. Tax collections
are nearly complete with final revenue coming in through the August Tax Settlement.

General Transportation Aids are provided on a quarterly basis and are anticipated to run roughly
$25,000 over budget by year end. Building permits started off strong in 2024, but have slowed
through Q2 and has roughly 57% budget remaining. Fines & Forfeitures have grown from Q1 to
Q2 with collections totaling $241,425 out of the $400,000 budget. Ambulance resources started
to taper off due to an upgrade in billing services. However, it is noted that the Fire Department
and Finance Department have worked diligently with the City's ambulance billing company to
maintain collection statuses. Through June 2024, Ambulance resources are at 51 % collection



April - June 2024
Financial Report

or $760,000. Engineering fees collected are at 45% of budget. Investment income Is $304,525
more than budget with continued high rates of return.

Year to Date expenditures of $14.7 million are $630,000 under spent. Department Heads
ma1nta1ning stable budgetary spending is holding Gen Government under budget. Some
departments continue to hold vacancies which may create some flexibility in spending within
future months.

A $7.4 million surplus is slightly over budget is $1.2 million greater than budget. It Is unlikely that
results In Dec will reflect a surplus of this size.

DEBT SERVICE - Debt payments were made March as required. Principal payments exceed
the budget due to 2023A & 2023B closing dates bemng post budget adoption. Principal and
interest payments on 2023A & 2023B G.O. Bonds were assumptions in the 2024 Annual
Budget.

TIF Districts - Staff has added the outstanding debt obligation by TID to aid in understanding
TID performance. The TlD's collected the $2.9 million increment as expected, which has slowly
declined over the last 5 years. Debt service and Capital Outlay represent the bulk of the actIvIty
in the TlD's so far this year.

TIO 3 - This TID closed in 2022 with the final taxing jurisdiction d1stribut1ons sent.

TID 4- This TID closed in 2023 with the final taxing jurisdiction distributions were sent in
March 2024.

TIO 5 - The $1.16 million 2024 Increment was collected. $1.88 million of debt service
was paid on February 29, 2024. The TID has an $695,000 fund balance and the $1.0 million
advance from the General Fund was paid back when the minimum assessment guarantee
payments were received. There Is $24.4 million of outstanding GO debt related to this TID as
well as a $3.5 million Municipal Revenue Obligation.

TIO 6 - The $292,000 2024 Increment was collected. $495,000 of debt service was paid
on February 29, 2024. The TID has a $-775,000 fund balance. The TID has $8.6 million in
outstanding GO debt. Development has continued to progress at a slower rate than ant1c1pated
in the project plan.

TIO 7 - There is no more activity in TID 7 at this time. The TID has a $6.8 million fund
balance due to the repayment of the mortgage loan and sale of Velo Village. The TID has $4.99
million in outstanding Debt as well as a $14.9 million MRO that wll continue to be paid annually
only with available tax increment.

TID 8 - There Is Increasing development activity in TID 8 at this time. $38,250 of debt
service was paid on February 29, 2024. The TID has a $-1.6 million fund balance due to the
lack of increment generated at the present time. The TID has $3.5 mllon in outstanding Debt.

TID 9- ThIs TID was created for the Carmex Laboratories development as well as
surrounding development opportunities. An advance from the General Fund totaling $50,000



April - June 2024
Financial Report

was complete to cover TID creation costs. Carmex Labs has begun construction on their
development project. The TID has $1.88 million in outstanding Debt.

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN -- a Federal grant related to the Pandemic. ThIs Is the first half of
the grant which was received in June 2021. The second payment occurred in June 2022.

The City has obligated all of the funds to City capital projects as needed by December 31, 2024
and intend to spend the funds by December 31, 2026.

SOLID WASTE FUND - Tippage resources are running even to budget. Resources run one
month behind. Investment income is running above budget significantly. Other activity Is
occurring as budgeted.

CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND- Resources are running relatively under budget.

The Health Department has ordered a new vehicle, the new Crty phone system has been
implemented, the Electrons Department purchased 2 new DS200 voting tabulators, the
Information Technology Department purchased the document scanning system, the Fire
Department has purchased their new hoses, the Engineering Department has purchased their
Large Format Plotter, the Public Works Department purchased their new pick-up trucks, the
Planning Department continues to work on the UDO Rewrite project, and the Police Department
has ordered some of their vehicle equipment in 2024.

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND - Resources are as expected so far in 2024. Sale of Fire
E113 and sale of DPW vehicles and equipment comprise the property sales resources.

The FIre department has ordered their battalion chief vehicle and interim replacement
ambulance and fire engine. The Inspection Department purchased their replacement vehicle.
The Highway Department has ordered a front-end loader which is in the 2024 Budget.

STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND - Intergovernmental resources get released over four
payments, the last in November. In 2024, $291,700 in property tax levy was allocated to the
Street Improvement Fund and has been collected.

The 2024 street program contract has been awarded and work rs in progress.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND- Interest income and Park Impact Fees represent the
majority of total revenue.

Expenditure encumbrances relate to projects currently in the works. Projects include: fiber optic
network project, highway projects, park improvements, WisDOT projects, S. 116" Street trail
project and the school traffic light project.

DEVELOPMENT FUND -- Impact fee collections are starting very strong wrth several home
building permits getting pulled. Interest income is running well over budget. Council approved a
significant refund to Seasons at Franklin Developer which resulted in $128,000 being paid out of
existing impact fees.



April - June 2024
Financial Report

No transfers out have been made yet.

UTILITY DEVELOPMENT FUND There has been little activity in this fund in 2024.

SELF INSURANCE FUND - Resources are slightly below budget.

The $1.0 million of claims are significantly lower than budget, and lower than 2023. $139,450 of
Stop Loss recoveries have reduced the net claims costs.

Due to high claims costs m 2023, the fund has a $2.5 million fund balance, which 1s $300,000
lower than 2023. However, the 2024 year 1s trending lower claims costs due to a few high cost
claimants no longer being on the plan.

RETIREE HEALTH FUND - Benefit payments are stable mn 2024. In past years, additional
participant contributions have been approved.

Investment results have been stellar, with a $845,000 gain so far in 2024, compared to a
$750,000 gain in 2023. Markets are volatile, so that puts investment results into perspective with
a longer view. Market changes are foreshadowing at a slight decline entering later months 1n
2024.



City of Franklin
Cash & Investments Summary

April 30, 2024

American Institutional Local Prior
Cash Deposit Capital Government Total Month

Management Management Invest Pool Total

General Fund $ 1,784,440 $ 10,672,520 $ 1,037,281 $ 3,645,748 $ 17,139,989 $ 15,725,530

Debt Serice Funds 125,884 476,419 602,303 597,634

TIF Districts (153,728) 7,769,780 7,616,052 7,996,494

Nonmayor
Governmental Funds 5,231,228 31,588,502 36,819,731 35,455,378

Total Governmental
Funds 6,987,824 50,507,222 1,037,281 3,645,748 62,178,074 59,775,035

Sewer Fund 502,470 3,088,338 3,590,808 4,923,093

Water Utility 984,224 7,835,745 8,819,969 7,808,134

Self Insurance Fund 85,408 2,736,322 2,821,730 2,795,879

Other Designated Funds 16,475 16,475 16,475

Total Other Funds 1,588,577 13,660,406 15,248,982 15,543,581

Total Pooled
Cash & Investments 8,576,400 64,167,627 1,037,281 3,645,748 77,427,056 75,318,617

Property Tax Fund 13,585,535 (2,925,166) 10,660,368 19,653,832

Total Trust Funds 13,585,535 {2,925,166) 10,660,368 19,653,832

Grand Total
Cash & Investments 22,161,935 61,242,461 1,037,281 3,645,748 88,087,425 94,972,448

Average Floating Rate of Return 5.30% 0.59% 5.38%
Avg Weighted Rate of Return - CD's 8.33%

Maturities:
Demand 22,161,935 58,792,461 1,037,281 3,645,748 85,637,425 90,632,448
Fed Income & Equities
2024 - Q1 515,000
2024 - Q2
2024 - Q3 245,000 245,000 1,620,000
2024 - Q4
2025- Q1 2,205,000 2,205,000 2,205,000

22,161,935 61,242,461 1,037,281 3,645,748 88,087,425 94,972,448

8/22/2024 Fmndata Qtrrpt Cash & Investments Aprl 2024



City of Franklin
2024 Financial Report
General Fund Summary

For the Four months ended April 30, 2024

2024 2024 2024 2024 Var to Budget
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

Property Taxes $ 20,628,600 $ 20,628,600 $ 16,312,683 $ 15,757,495 $ (555,189)
Other Taxes 511,900 511,900 112,664 133,442 20,778
Intergovernmental Revenue 2,762,530 2,762,530 436,097 313,250 (122,847)
Licenses & Permits 1,305,550 1,305,550 372,253 445,202 72,949
Law and Ordinance Violations 400,000 400,000 170,596 164,010 (6,587)
Public Charges for Services 2,766,800 2,766,800 849,053 504,206 (344,847)
Intergovernmental Charges 325,000 325,000 69,559 116,801 47,242
Investment Income 1,014,660 1,014,660 307,917 479,593 171,676
Sales of Capital Assets 200 200 115 (115)
Miscellanous Revenue 147,720 147,720 31,913 82,162 50,248
Refund/Reimbursement - Elec
Transfer from Other Funds 950,000 950,000 335,418 316,800 (18,618)

Total Revenue $ 30,812,960 $ 30,812,960 $ 18,998,269 $ 18,312,960 $ (685,309)

2024 2024 2024 2024 Var to Budget
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Expenditures Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

General Government $ 3,624,214 $ 3,647,404 $ 1,428,360 $ 1,199,153 E $ 229,207
Public Safety 20,383,939 20,477,005 7,141,220 6,576,299 E 564,922
PublicWorks 4,676,354 4,687,089 1,469,390 1,248,175 E 221,214
Health and Human Services 785,433 785,433 250,663 233,261 17,402
Other Culture and Recreation 406,653 418,556 126,721 53,851 E 72,870
Conservation and Development 827,722 831,325 268,680 190,920 E 77,759
Contingency and Unclassified 2,845,000 2,900,129 110,937 396 110,541
Anticipated underexpenditures (300,000) (300,000) (100,000) (100,000)
Transfers to Other Funds 71,000 71,000
Encumbrances (66,762) 66,762

Total Expenditures $ 33,320,315 $ 33,517,941 $ 10,695,970 $ 9,435,292 $ 1,260,678

Excess of revenue over
(under) expenditures (2,507,355) (2,704,981) $ 8,302,299 8,877,667 $ 575,369

Fund balance, beginning of year 12,805,733 12,805,733 12,805,733

Fund balance, end of period $ 10,298,378 $ 10,100,752 $ 21,683,400

E Represents an encumbrance for current year from pnor year



City of Franklin
Debt Service Funds

Balance Sheet
April 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2023 2023
Special Debt 2024 Special Debt 2023

Assets Assessment Service Total Assessment Service Total
Cash and investments $ 209,111 $ 393,192 $ 602,303 $ 193,161 $ 717,800 $ 910,962
Accounts receivable 8,978 8,978 10,662 10,662

Total Assets $ 218,089 $ 393,192 $ 611,281 $ 203,823 $ 717,800 $ 921,624

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Unearned & unavailable revenue $ 8,978 $ $ 8,978 $ 10,662 $ $ 10,662
Due to other funds
Specal Deposits
Unassigned fund balance 209,111 393,192 602,303 193,161 717,800 910,962

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 218,089 $ 393,192 $ 611,281 $ 203,823 $ 717,800 $ 921,624

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Four months ended April 30, 2024 and 2023

51 31
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023 2023 2023

Special Debt Year-to-Date Original Special Debt Year-to-Date
Revenue: Assessment Service Actual Budget Assessment Service Actual
Property Taxes $ $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $ $1,100,000 $1,100,000
Landfill siting revenue
Special Assessments 2,819 2,819 2,000
Investment Income 3,388 17,429 20,817 32,300 2,050 9,615 11,665
Bond & Note Premium

Total Revenue 6,207 1,117,429 1,123,636 1,134,300 2,050 1,109,615 1,111,665

Expenditures:
Debt Service
Principal 1,395,000 1,395,000 1,300,000 1,035,000 1,035,000
Interest 119,366 119,366 246,042 67,263 67,263
Bank Fees 1,800 1,800 2,400 1,600 1,600

Total Expenditures 1,516,166 1,516,166 1,548,442 1,103,863 1,103,863

Transfers mn 234,308 108,862 108,862
Transfers out
Net change in fund balances 6,207 (398,737) (392,530) (179,834) 2,050 114,614 116,664

Fund balance, beginning of year 202,904 791,929 994,833 994,833 191,111 603,187 794,298

Fund balance, end of period $ 209,111 $ 393,192 $ 602,303 $ 814,999 $ 193,161 $ 717,800 $ 910,962

8/22/2024 F \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2024\Monthly\Debt Serice\Apr 2024
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City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #3 - Northwestern Mutual

Balance Sheet
As of April 30, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & investments $ 19,432 $ 48 835
Total Assets $ 19,432 $ 48 835

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accrued Liabilities $ $

Total Liabilities

Assigned fund balance 19,432 48,835
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 19,432 $ 48,835

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Four months ended April 30, 2022 and 2021

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General property tax levy $ $ $ $ $
State exempt aid
Investment income 19 432
Bond proceeds 28,319
Miscellaneous Revenue
Total Revenue 19,432 28,319

Expenditures
Debt service principal 390,000
Debt service interest & fees 5,850
Administrative expenses
Refunded Property Taxes 3 707
Culture, recreation and education
Professional services
Capital outlays
Development incentve & obligation payments
Total Expenditures 399,557

Revenue over (under) expenditures 19,432 (371,238)
Transfers In (out) (605,259)

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,025,332

Fund balance end of period $ $ $ $ 19,432 $ 48,835



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #4 -Ascension Hospital

Balance Sheet
As of April 30, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & investments $ 17 836 $ 850,123
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Total Assets $ 17 836 $ 850,123

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ $
Accrued Liabilities
lnterfund Advance from Development Fund
Due to other funds - Interfund Advance
Advances from Other Funds
Deferred Inflow
Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities

Assigned fund balance 17,836 850,123
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 17,836 $ 850,123

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Four months ended April 30, 2022 and 2021

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ $ $ $ $
Payment mn Lieu of Tax
State Exempt Aud
Special assessments
Investment Income 14,315 12,541
Bond Proceeds
Miscellaneous revenue
Total Revenue 14 315 12,541

Expenditures
Debt service principal
Debt servce interest & fees
Administrative expenses 1,230
Refunded Property Taxes
Culture, recreation and educaton
Professional services 1 300,101 14,920
Capital outlays 117,848
Development incentive & oblgaton payments
Encumbrances (132,768)
Total Expenditures 1,300,101 1,230

Revenue over (under) expenditures (1,285 786) 11,311
Transfers In (out) (756,704) (756,704)

Fund balance beginning of year 2,060,326 2,060,326 2 060,326 2,060,326 838,812

Fund balance, end of period $ 2,060,326 $ 1303622 $ 2,060,326 $ 17,836 $ 850 123



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #5

Balance Sheet
As ofApril 30, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & mnvestments $ 828,618 $ 119,115
Accounts receivable 879,683
Taxes receivable 0
Total Assets $ 1,708,301 $ 119,115

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ 5,220 $

Total Liabilities 1,005 220

Assigned fund balance 703 081 119,115
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 1,708,301 $ 119,115

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Four months ended April 30, 2022 and 2021

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ 1,270,000 $ 1,270,000 $ 501,000 $ 1,166 952 $ 1,094,021
Payment in Lieu of Tax 90,000 90,000 30,000
State Exempt Aud 12900 12,900 4,300
Special assessments
Investment Income 44,747
Bond Proceeds 130 1,302
Miscellaneous revenue 838,000 838,000 279,333
Total Revenue 2,210,900 2,210,900 814,633 1,211,828 1,095,323

Expenditures
Debt service principal 1,550,000 1,550,000 516,667 1,550,000 750,000
Debt service interest & fees 640,803 640,803 255,571 330,408 341,225
Administrative expenses 37,420 37,420 17,383 12,480 2,040
Culture, recreation and education 6,000 6,000 2,024 2,000
Professional services 11,200 11,200 3,458 14,858 4,380
Capital outlays
Development incentive & obligation payments
Encumbrances
Total Expenditures 2,245,423 2,245,423 795,103 1,909,745 1,097,645

Revenue over (under) expenditures (34,523) (34,523) 19,530 (697,917) (2,322)

Fund balance, beginning of year 1400998 1 400,998 1,400,998 1,400,998 121,436

Fund balance, end of period $ 1,366,475 $ 1,366,475 $ 1,420,528 $ 703,081 $ 119,115



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #6 - Loomis & Ryan

Balance Sheet
As of April 30, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & Investments $ (565,904) $ (1,048,617)
Accounts receivable 221,922
Total Assets $ (343,982) $ (1,048,617)

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ 14,079 $ 13,948
Total Liabilities 429,603 13,948

Assigned fund balance (773,585) (1,062,565)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ (343,982) $ (1,048,617)

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Four months ended April 30, 2022 and 2021

2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ 315,000 $ 105,000 $ 292,539 $ 58,702
Payment in Lieu of Tax 699,920 233,307
Investment Income
Bond Proceeds 1,348
Miscellaneous revenue 6,395
Total Revenue 1,014,920 338,307 298,934 60,051

Expenditures
Debt service principal 370,000 123,333 370,000 290,000
Debt serce interest & fees 243,353 95,073 124,876 129,926
Administrative expenses 7,920 2,640 2,640 5,720
Professional services 11,200 3,733 1,761 2,756
Capital outlays 163,810 613,237
Encumbrances (163,810) (165,098)
Total Expenditures 632,473 224,779 499,277 876,541

Revenue over (under) expenditures 382,447 113,527 (200,343) (816,490)

Fund balance, beginning of year (573,242) (573,242) (573,242) (246,075)

Fund balance, end of period $ (190,795) $ (459,714) $ (773,585) $ (1,062,565)



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #7 - Velo Village

Balance Sheet
As ofApril 30, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & investments $ 7,552,927 $ 9,283,362
Accounts receivable 90,000
Interest receivable
Total Assets $ 7,552,927 $ 9 373,362

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ 162 $
Advances from Other Funds 0 1,500,000
Deferred Inflow 3,347,737

Total Liabilities 162 4,847,737

Assigned fund balance 7,552,765 4,525,625
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 7,552,927 $ 9 373,362

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Four months ended April 30, 2022 and 2021

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ 791,800 $ 791,800 $ 12,500 $ 727,429 $ 739,722
Investment Income 295,000 295,000 98,333 44,088
Miscellaneous revenue
Total Revenue 1,086,800 1,086,800 110,833 771,517 741,253

Expenditures
Debt service interest & fees 126,081 126,081 42,027 63,628 76,035
Administrative expenses 7,920 7,920 2,640 2,640 2,040
Professional services 1,350 1,350 450 (7,035) (7,350)
Development incentive & obhgaton payments 816,000 816,000 272,000
Encumbrances 7,500 7,500
Total Expenditures 1,051,351 1,051,351 350,450 166,733 78,225

Revenue over (under) expenditures 35,449 35,449 (239,617) 604,785 663,027

Fund balance, beginning of year 6,947,981 6,947 981 6,947,981 6,947,981 3,862,598

Fund balance, end of period $ 6,983,430 $ 6,983,430 $ 6,708,364 $ 7,552,765 $ 4,525,625



City of Franklin
Tax increment Financing Distrct #8 - Corporate Park

Balance Sheet
As of April 30, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & investments $ (269,514) $ (235,423)
Total Assets $ (269,514) $ (235,423)

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ 24,401 $ 24,149
Advances from Other Funds

Total Liabilities 935,834 24,149

Assigned fund balance (1,205,348) (259,572)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ (269,514) $ (235,423)

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Four months ended April 30, 2022 and 2021

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ 785,000 $ 785,000 $ 261,667 $ 755 803 $ 204,026
Investment Income
Bond Proceeds 0 0 4,648 19,075
Miscellaneous revenue 874,233
Total Revenue 785,000 785,000 261,667 760,451 1,097,333

Expenditures
Debt service interest & fees 76,100 76,100 25,367 38,250 38,050
Administrative expenses 37,420 37,420 12,473 12,480 17,640
Professional services 46,200 134,615 15,400 97,827 207,346
Capital outlays 2,171,421 199,691 1,573,895
Development incentive & obligation payments
Encumbrances (294,506) (1,766,634)
Total Expenditures 187,000 2,446,837 62,333 62,822 80,297

Revenue over (under) expenditures 598,000 (1,661,837) 199,333 697,629 1,017,036

Fund balance, begmrnng of year (1,902,977) (1,902,977) (1,902,977) (1,902,977) (1,276,608)

Fund balance, end of perod $ (1,304,977) $ (3,564,813) $ (1,703,643) $ (1,205,348) $ (259,572)



Assets
Cash and investments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Encumbrance
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
American Rescue Plan

Balance Sheet
April 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
$ 3,512,373 $ 3,758,804

$ 3,512,373 $ 3,758,804

$ $
3,748,350 $

(235,977) 3,758,804
$ 3,512,373 $ 3,758,804

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Four months ended April 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Intergovernmental $ 1,918,000 $ 1,918,000 $ 639,333 $ $
Investment Income 7,200 7,200 2,400 2,436

Total Revenue 1,925,200 1,925,200 641,733 2,436

Expenditures:
Non Personnel Services $ $ $ $ $
Audrtor Services 5,600 5,600 1,867
Legal Services
Investment Expenses $ $ $ $ $
Transfer to Capital Outlay 7,000 7,000
Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund 1,918,000 1,918,000 639,333
Encumbrances

Total Expenditures 1,923,600 1,930,600 641,200 7,000

Revenue over (under) expenditures 1,600 (5,400) 533 (7,000) 2,436

Fund balance, beginning of year (228,977) (228,977) (228,977) 3,756,368

Fund balance, end of period $ (227,377) $ (234,377) $ (235,977) $ 3,758,804

8/22/2024 F \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2024\Monthly\American Recovery ACT Apr 24



Assets
Cash and investments
Tax Receivables
Accrued Receivables

Total Assets

City of Franklin
Solid Waste Collection Fund

Balance Sheet
April 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
$ 2,052,916 $ 1,680,091

46 46
596 1,168

$ 2,053,557 $ 1,681,305

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries & wages
Unearned Revenue
Restricted fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

$ 357,876
53

(801)
1,696,428

$ 2,053,557

$ (172)
48

(801)
1,682,230

$ 1,681,305

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Four months ended April 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2023
Original YTD Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Actual Actual
Grants $ 69,000 $ $ $
User Fees 1,854,600 1,851,123 1,853,867 1,616,079
Landfill Operations-tippage 390,000 100,680 98,707 122,075
Investment Income 17,900 6,739 31,594 25,293
Sale of Recyclables 3,543 1,668

Total Revenue 2,331,500 1,958,542 1,987,710 1,765,116

Expenditures:
Personnel Services 17,620 6,099 143 1,975
Refuse Collection 845,000 254,301 278,626 200,244
Recycling Collection 822,000 247,194 275,853 E 196,978
Leaf & Brush Pickups 69,000 55 140 140
Tippage Fees 556,000 104,251 168,062 73,211
Miscellaneous 2,625 1,015 416 422
Printing 1,000 333
Refunded User Fees
Encumbrances (1,600)
Total Expenditures 2,313,245 613,248 721,640 472,970

Revenue over (under) expenditures 18,255 1,345,294 1,266,070 1,292,146

Fund balance, beginning of year 430,358 430,358 390,084

Fund balance, end of period $ 448,613 $ 1,696,428 $ 1,682,230

8/22/2024 Findata Qtrrpt Solid Waste Apr24



Assets
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivables

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
Capital Outlay Fund

Balance Sheet
April 30, 2024 and 2023

2024
$ 1,737,951

88

$ 1,738,039

$ 76,285
1,661,755

$ 1,738,039

2023
$ 1,517,095

316

$ 1,517,411

$
1,517,411

$ 1,517,411

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Four months ended April 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Property Taxes $ $ $ $ $
Grants 63,000 113,000 21,000 6,750
Landfill Siting 965,000 965,000 261,869 236,587 301,326
Investment Income 28,000 28,000 9,333 15,244 16,258
Miscellaneous Revenue 2,000 2,000 170 8,738
Transfers from Other Funds 7,000

Total Revenue 1,058,000 1,108,000 292,373 267,568 324,334

Expenditures:
General Government 408,067 508,631 93,872 65,275 E 20,432
Public Safety 464,266 967,669 184,882 580,763 E 290,105
Public Works 145,125 197,756 13,985 169,920 E 28,573
Health and Human Services 17,796 58,014 8,898 40,218
Culture and Recreation 78,250
Conservation and Development 9,872 291,479 3,291 48,366 E 91,276
Contingency 10,000 10,000
Encumbrances (675,013) (171,292)

Total Expenditures 1,055,126 2,111,798 304,927 229,529 259,094

Revenue over (under) expenditures 2,874 (1,003,798) (12,554) 38,039 65,240

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,623,716 1,623,716 1,623,716 1,452,171

Fund balance, end of period $ 1,626,590 $ 619,917 $ 1,661,755 $ 1,517,411

8/22/2024 Findata Qtrrpt Capital Outlay Apr 24



Assets
Cash and Investments
Taxes receivable
Accounts Receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Encumbrance
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
Equipment Replacement Fund

Balance Sheet
April 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
$ 2,107,750 $ 852,003

$ 2,107,750 $ 852,003

$ $

2,107,750 852,003
$ 2,107,750 $ 852,003

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Four months ended April 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Landfill $ 480,000 $ 480,000 $ 132,944 $ 121,490 $ 117,440
Investment Income 34,000 34,000 11,333 18,367 15,270
Grants
Property Sales 20,000 20,000 2,560 11,150 51,977
Refunds/Reimbursements
Miscellaneous Revenue-Close out TID #
Transfers From Fund Balance 650,000
Miscellaneous Income

Total Revenue 534,000 534,000 146,837 801,007 184,687
Expenditures:
General Government 32,000 32,000 16,000 77,358
Public Safety 125,000 855,452 74,558 582,605 E 278,513
Public Works 460,000 460,000 275,706 445,400 E 230,998
Encumbrances (460,541) (309,654)
Total Expenditures 617,000 1,347,452 366,264 567,464 277,215

Revenue over (under) expenditures (83,000) (813,452) (219,427) 233,543 (92,528)

Fund balance, beginning ofyear 1,874,207 1,874,207 1,874,207 944,531
Fund balance, end of period $ 1,791,207 $ 1,060,755 $ 2,107,750 $ 852,003

8/22/2024
F \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2024\Monthly\Equip Replacement\Apr24



Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivables

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
Street Improvement Fund

Balance Sheet
April 30, 2024 and 2023

2024
$ 2,527,576

$ 2,527,576

$ 117,729
2,409,847

$ 2,527,576

2023
$ 1,965,864

$ 1,965,864

$
1,965,864

$ 1,965,864

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Four months ended April 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Totals Totals
Property Taxes $ 291,700 $ 291,700 $ 291,700 $
Landfill Siting $ 520,000 $ 520,000 $ 134,290 $ 144,910
Investment Income 34,000 34,000 21,440 13,184
Transfers from Other Funds 106,704
Intergovernmental Resources 1,395,000 1,395,000 697,233 609,560

Total Revenue 2,240,700 2,240,700 1,251,368 767,654

Expenditures:
Street Reconstruction Program - Current Year 2,347,800 2,571,313 1,859,521 E 314,665
Encumbrances (1,761,751) (314,665)

Total Expenditures 2,347,800 2,571,313 97,770

Revenue over (under) expenditures (107,100) (330,613) 1,153,598 767,654

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,256,250 1,256,250 1,256,250 1,198,210

Fund balance, end of period $ 1,149,150 $ 925,637 $ 2,409,847 $ 1,965,864

8/22/2024 Findata Qtrrpt Street Improvement Apr 2024



Assets
Cash and investments
Due from State ofWisconsin
Accounts receivables

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
Capital Improvement Fund

Balance Sheet
April 30, 2024 and 2023

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Four months ended April 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
$ 5,762,331 $ 1,675,795

847 847
$ 5,763,178 $ 1,676,643

$ 231,358 $ 39,064
5,531,820 1,637,579

$ 5,763,178 $ 1,676,643

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Totals Totals
Other Grants
DPW Charges
Landfill Siting 120,000 120,000 38,960 31,970 98,300
Transfers from Other Funds 1,968,000 2,053,000 684,871 629,627
Transfers from General Funds
Transfers from Impact Fees 606,819 606,819 30,782 47,654
Transfers from Connection Fees 900,000 900,000
Transfers from Special Assessments
Bond Proceeds 89,287 5,139
Notes Proceeds
Bond & Notes Premium
Donations 50,000 50,000
Refunds, Reimbursements & Miscellaneous
Investment Income 2,125 2,125 708 49,145 6,688

Total Revenue 3,646,944 3,731,944 755,321 170,402 787,408

Expenditures:
General Government 350,000 1,048,448 116,667 484,969 E 35,294
Public Safety
Public Works 455,000 3,519,404 151,667 242,865 E 323,622
Health and Human Services
Culture and Recreation (Lib/Parks) 1,427,934 4,461,345 475,978 2,012,900 E 187,844
Conservation and Development
Sewer & Water 900,000 900,884 266,667 718,356 E 25,457
Contingency 150,000 150,000 68,274
Bond/Note Issuance Cost
Transfers to Other Funds
Encumbrances {3,067,592) (464,884)

Total Expenditures 3,282,934 10,080,080 1,079,252 391,498 107,333

Revenue over (under) expendrtures 364,010 (6,348, 136) (323,931) (221,096) 680,075

Fund balance, beginning of year 5,752,916 5,752,916 5,752,916 957,504

Fund balance, end of period $ 6,116,926 $ (595,220) $ 5,531,820 $ 1,637,579

8/22/2024 Findata Qtrrpt Capital Improvement Apr 2024



City of Franklin
Development Fund

Balance Sheet
April 30, 2024 and 2023

$ 13,504,656

$ 13,501,391
3,265

2023

$ 12,448,905

101,870

12,347,036

12,448,905

$

$ 10,945,640
3,265

1,500,000

2024

13,504,656

38,444

13,466,213

$

Assets
Cash and investments
Other accounts receivable
Due From TID's

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accrued Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Four months ended April 30, 2024 and 2023

$ 13,466,213

2024
Year-to-Date

ActualRevenue:
Impact Fees
Parks
Southwest Sewer Service Area
Administration
Water
Transportation
Fire Protection
Law Enforcement
Library
Total Impact Fees

Miscellaneous Revenue

Investment Income
Investment Gains/Losses
lnterfund Interest Income

Total Revenue

Expenditures:
Other Professional Services
Transfer to Debt Service
Law Enforcement
Fre
Transportation
Library
Encumbrances
Total Transfers to Debt Serice

Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund
Park
Water
Total Transfers to Capital
Improvement Fund

Remmb to Developers & Others
Transfer to Other Funds
Caprtal Improvements
Sewer Fees
Water Fees

Encumbrances

Total Expenditures

Revenue over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of period

2024
Original
Budget

$ 175,000
50,000
15,000
750,000
150,000
100,000
100,000
30,000

1,370,000

255,000

26,250
1,651,250

25,000

125,600
43,008
65,700

234,308

140,000
466,819

4,192,430

5,058,557

(3,407,307)

12,967,743

$ 9,560,436

2024
Amended
Budget

$ 175,000
50,000
15,000
750,000
150,000
100,000
100,000
30,000

1,370,000

255,000

26,250
1,651,250

27,970

125,600
43,008
65,700

234,308

128,768
140,000
466,819

4,192,430

5,190,295

(3,539,045)

12,967,743

$ 9,428,698

2024
Year-to-Date

Budget

$ 56,577
13,554
4,014

184,540
28,910
25,012
26,651
10,336
349,594

85,000

8,750
443,344

6,624

89,639
20,888
38,992

149,518

46,667
24,809

1,397,477

1,625,094

{1,181,750)

$ 42,057
105,158

1,845
66,025
22,261
15,290
17,461
7,426

277,523

222,783

500,306

4,806 E

- E

- E

93,000 Ee

(95,970)

1,836

498,470

12,967,743

2023
Year-to-Date

Actual

$ 189,309
7,458
6,507

420,310
65,581
44,799
51,384
33,286
818,634

169,581

988,215

41,840
67,022

108,862

140,654

140,654

(93,000)

156,516

831,699

11,515,337

$ 12,347,036

8/22/2024 F \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2024\Monthly\Development Fund Apr 2024



City of Franklin
Utility Development Fund

Balance Sheet
April 30, 2024 and 2023

Assets 2024 2023
Cash and Investments - Water $ 1,343,047 $ 1,158,264
Cash and Investments - Sewer 1,738,110 1,529,283
Taxes receivable
Special Assessment - Water Current 153,065 78,136
Special Assessment - Water Deferred 14,175 20,071
Special Assessment - Sewer Current 11,058 29,311

Total Assets $ 3,259,455 $ 2,815,065

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Unearned Revenue $ 178,298 $ 127,518

Total Fund Balance 3,081,157 2,687,547
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 3,259,455 $ 2,815,065

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Four months ended April 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Actual Actual
Special Assessments
Water $ 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 18,501 $
Sewer 25,000 25,000 1,377 7,062

Connection Fees
Water
Sewer 10,000 10,000 89,760 3,000

Total Assessments & Connection Fees 55,000 55,000 109,639 10,062

Special Assessment Interest 8,200 8,200 206 71
Investment Income 106,250 106,250 46,971 28,272
Total Revenue 169,450 169,450 156,815 38,404

Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund
Water 400,000 400,000
Sewer 500,000 500,000

Total Transfers to Capital Improvement Fund 900,000 900,000

Revenue over (under) expenditures (730,550) (730,550) 156,815 38,404

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,924,342 2,924,342 2,924,342 2,649,143

Fund balance, end of penod $ 2,193,792 $ 2,193,792 $ 3,081,157 $ 2,687,547

8/22/2024 Findata Qtrrpt Utility Development Apr 2024



City of Franklin
Self Insurance Fund - Actives

Balance Sheet
April 30, 2024 and 2023

Assets
Cash and Investments
Accounts receivable
Interfund advance receivable
Prepaid expenses

Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable
Claims payable
Unrestricted net assets

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2024 2023
$ 2,885,730 $ 3,463,084

1,296 324

$ 2,887,026 $ 3,463,408

$ 61,253 $ 75,028
210,000 210,000
2,615,773 3,178,380

$ 2,887,026 $ 3,463,408

City of Franklin Self Insurance Fund - Actives
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Four months ended April 30, 2024 and 2023

Revenue
Medical Premums-City
Medical Premiums-Employee
Other - Invest Income, Rebates
Medical Revenue

Dental Premtums-City
Dental Premiums-Retirees
Dental Premiums-Employee
Dental Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenditures:
Medical
Medical claims
Prescription drug claims
Refunds-Stop Loss Coverage
Total Claims

Medical Clamm Fees
Stop Loss Premums
Other - Miscellaneous
HSA Contributions
Plan Administration
Total Medical Costs

Dental
Active Employees & COBRA
Retiree

Total Dental Costs

2024
Original
Budget

$ 3,285,140
537,805
193,000
4,015,945
145,000
3,000
70,000
218,000
4,233,945

2024
Year-to-Date

Budget
$ 1,110,802

180,961
64,333

1,356,096
45,743
1,575
23,502
70,820

1,426,916

2024
Year-to-Date

Actual
$ 978,857

164,441
89,172

1,232,470
32,136
1,206
16,066
49,408

1,281,878

2023
Year-to-Date

Actual
$ 766,192

145,219
84,099
995,511
32,968
2,174
17,870
53,011

1,048,522

3,032,000 1,010,791 600,792 707,286
490,000 163,333 142,211 118,634

(118,212) (45,425)
3,522,000 1,174,124 624,791 780,495
147,000 49,970 62,793 60,400
643,000 218,303 188,603 168,514
2,700 900 8,959 16,450

177,000 61,269 52,313 49,250
48,515 16,172 16,180 15,700

4,540,215 1,520,738 953,639 1,090,809

196,462 63,909 55,375 56,241
242 1,003

196,462 63,909 55,617 57,244

Total Expenditures 4,736,677 1,584,647 1,009,256 1,148,053

Revenue over (under) expenditures (502,732) $ (157,731) 272,622 (99,531)
Net assets, begmrnng of year 2,343,151 2,343,151 3,277,911

Net assets, end of period $ 1,840,419 $ 2,615,773 $ 3,178,380

8/22/2024 Fmdata Qtrrpt Self Insurance Apr 24



City of Franklin
City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust

Balance Sheet
April 30, 2024 and 2023

Assets
Cash and investments $
Investments held mn trust - Ftxed Inc
Investments held mn trust - Equities
Accounts receivable

Total Assets $

2024 2023
(572,632) $ (315,893)
3,314,619 2,863,380
6,015,904 5,373,184
31,482 21,789

8,789,373 $ 7,942,460============
Liabilities and Net Assets

Accounts payable $ 36,357 $ 64,240
Claims payable 60,000 60,000
Net assets held mn trust for post emp 8,693,016 7,818,220___.......__;,_,..__

Total Lab»ties and Fund Balance $ 8,789373 2992%&O,

City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Four months ended April 30, 2024 and 2023

Revenue
ARC Medical Charges - City
Medical Charges - Retirees

Medical Revenue

2024
Year-to-Date

Actual
$ 108,716

141,971

250,687

2023
Year-to-Date

Actual
$ 116,232

89,427

205,659

8/22/2024

Expenditures:
Retirees-Medical
Medical claims
Prescription drug claims
Refunds-Stop Loss Coverage
Total Claims-Retirees

Medical Claim Fees
Stop Loss Premiums
Miscellaneous Expense
Total Medical Costs-Retrees

Revenue over (under) expenditures

Annual Required Contribution-Net
Other - Investment Income, etc.
Total Revenues

Net Revenues (Expenditures)

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of penod $

161,305
48,361

209,666
11,862
38,314
13,417
273,259

(22,572)

28,776
317,211
345,987

323,415

8,369,601

195,788
64,133
(7,588)

252,333
14,805
39,625

153
306,916

(101,257)

(60,752)
448,904
388,152

286,895

7,531,325

8,693,016 $ 7,818,220==================
Fmndata Qtrrpt Retiree Health Fund April 2024



City of Franklin
Cash & Investments Summary

May 31, 2024

American Institutional Local Prior
Cash Deposit Capital Government Total Month

Management Management Invest Pool Total

General Fund $ 2,295,101 $ 8,310,217 $ 1,037,663 $ 3,662,352 $ 15,305,333 $ 17,139,989

Debt Service Funds 125,884 478,891 604,775 602,303

TIF Districts 659,086 7,791,102 8,450,189 7,616,052

Nonmayor
Governmental Funds 4,811,568 31,138,498 35,950,066 36,819,731

Total Governmental
Funds 7,891,639 47,718,709 1,037,663 3,662,352 60,310,363 62,178,074

Sewer Fund 846,299 4,151,383 4,997,682 3,590,808

Water Utility 26,860 6,819,063 6,845,923 8,819,969

Self Insurance Fund 38,057 2,747,779 2,785,836 2,821,730

Other Designated Funds 15,777 15,777 16,475

Total Other Funds 926,994 13,718,225 14,645,219 15,248,982

Total Pooled
Cash & Investments 8,818,633 61,436,934 1,037,663 3,662,352 74,955,581 77,427,056

Property Tax Fund 10,878,132 6,073,767 16,951,899 10,660,368

Total Trust Funds 10,878,132 6,073,767 16,951,899 10,660,368

Grand Total
Cash & Investments 19,696,765 67,510,701 1,037,663 3,662,352 91,907,480 88,087,425

Average Floating Rate of Return 5.30% 0.037% 5.38%
Avg Weighted Rate of Return - CD's 8.33%

Maturities:
Demand 19,696,765 65,060,701 1,037,663 3,662,352 89,457,480 84,262,425
Fixed Income & Equities
2024- Q1
2024 - Q2
2024 - Q3 245,000 245,000 1,620,000
2024- Q4
2025 -Q1 2,205,000 2,205,000 2,205,000

19,696,765 67,510,701 1,037,663 3,662,352 91,907,480 88,087,425

8/22/2024 Fmdata Qtrrpt Cash & Investments May 2024



City of Franklin
2024 Financial Report
General Fund Summary

For the Five months ended May 31, 2024

2024 2024 2024 2024 Var to Budget
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

Property Taxes $ 20,628,600 $ 20,628,600 $ 16,313,817 $ 15,757,495 $ (556,322)
Other Taxes 511,900 511,900 204,727 256,670 51,944
Intergovernmental Revenue 2,762,530 2,762,530 452,274 408,880 (43,394)
Licenses & Permits 1,305,550 1,305,550 501,491 557,737 56,246
Law and Ordinance Violations 400,000 400,000 204,309 203,149 (1,159)
Public Charges for Services 2,766,800 2,766,800 1,064,705 740,755 (323,950)
Intergovernmental Charges 325,000 325,000 117,898 116,801 (1,098)
Investment Income 1,014,660 1,014,660 384,505 608,029 223,524
Sales of Capita Assets 200 200 120 (120)
Miscellanous Revenue 147,720 147,720 42,396 83,658 41,262
Refund/Reimbursement - Elec
Transfer from Other Funds 950,000 950,000 418,547 396,000 (22,547)

Total Revenue $ 30,812,960 $ 30,812,960 $ 19,704,790 $ 19,129,174 $ (575,616)

2024 2024 2024 2024 Var to Budget
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Expenditures Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

General Government $ 3,624,214 $ 3,647,404 $ 1,722,544 $ 1,479,940 E $ 242,604
Public Safety 20,383,939 20,477,005 8,680,584 8,645,210 E 35,374
Public Works 4,676,354 4,687,089 1,785,821 1,682,006 E 103,816
Health and Human Services 785,433 785,433 295,109 317,194 (22,085)
Other Culture and Recreation 406,653 418,556 156,386 95,761 E 60,625
Conservation and Development 827,722 831,325 333,194 253,779 E 79,415
Contingency and Unclassified 2,845,000 2,900,129 144,207 5,550 138,658
Anticipated underexpendutures (300,000) (300,000) (125,000) (125,000)
Transfers to Other Funds 71,000 71,000
Encumbrances (64,948) 64,948

Total Expenditures $ 33,320,315 $ 33,517,941 $ 12,992,845 $ 12,414,492 $ 578,354

Excess of revenue over
(under) expenditures (2,507,355) (2,704,981) $ 6,711,944 6,714,682 $ 2,738

Fund balance, beginning of year 12,805,733 12,805,733 12,805,733

Fund balance, end of penod $ 10,298,378 $ 10,100,752 $ 19,520,415

E Represents an encumbrance for current year from pnor year



City of Franklin
Debt Service Funds

Balance Sheet
May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2023 2023
Special Debt 2024 Special Debt 2023

Assets Assessment Service Total Assessment Service Total
Cash and Investments $ 209,937 $ 394,837 $ 604,775 $ 197,334 $ 1,823,116 $ 2,020,451
Taxes receivable (2,684) (1,100,000) (1,102,684)
Accounts receivable 8,978 8,978 10,662 10,662

Total Assets $ 218,915 $ 394,837 $ 613,752 $ 205,312 $ 723,116 $ 928,429

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Unearned & unavailable revenue $ 8,978 $ $ 8,978 $ 10,662 $ $ 10,662
Due to other funds
Spec1al Deposits
Unassigned fund balance 209,937 394,837 604,775 194,650 723,116 917,767

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 218,915 $ 394,837 $ 613,752 $ 205,312 $ 723,116 $ 928,429

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Five months ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

51 31
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023 2023 2023

Special Debt Year-to-Date Original Special Debt Year-to-Date
Revenue: Assessment Service Actual Budget Assessment Service Actual
Property Taxes $ $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $ $1,100,000 $1,100,000
Landfill siting revenue
Special Assessments 2,819 2,819 2,000
Investment Income 4,214 19,074 23,289 32,300 3,539 14,931 18,470
Bond & Note Premium

Total Revenue 7,033 1,119,074 1,126,107 1,134,300 3,539 1,114,931 1,118,470

Expenditures:
Debt Service
Principal 1,395,000 1,395,000 1,300,000 1,035,000 1,035,000

Interest 119,366 119,366 246,042 67,263 67,263

Bank Fees 1,800 1,800 2,400 1,600 1,600

Total Expenditures 1,516,166 1,516,166 1,548,442 1,103,863 1,103,863

Transfers mn 234,308 108,862 108,862

Transfers out
Net change mn fund balances 7,033 (397,092) (390,059) (179,834) 3,539 119,930 123,469

Fund balance, beginning of year 202,904 791,929 994,833 994,833 191,111 603,187 794,298

Fund balance, end of period $ 209,937 $ 394,837 $ 604,775 $ 814,999 $ 194,650 $ 723,116 $ 917,767

8/22/2024 F \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2024\Monthly\Debt Serice\May 2024
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City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #3 - Northwestern Mutual

Balance Sheet
As of May 31, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & investments $ $ 54,773
Total Assets $ $ 54,773

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accrued Liabilities $ $

Total Liabilities

Assigned fund balance 54,773
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ $ 54,773

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Five months ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General property tax levy $ $ $ $ $
State exempt ad
Investment income
Bond proceeds 34,257
Miscellaneous Revenue
Total Revenue 34 257

Expenditures
Debt service principal 390,000
Debt service interest & fees 5,850
Administrative expenses
Refunded Property Taxes 3,707
Culture, recreation and education
Professional services
Capital outlays
Development incentive & obligation payments
Total Expenditures 399,557

Revenue over (under) expenditures (365 300)
Transfers In (out) (605,259)

Fund balance, beginning of year 1 025,332

Fund balance, end of period $ $ $ $ $ 54,773



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #4 - Ascension Hospital

Balance Sheet
As of May 31, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & investments $ 3 521 $ 888,358
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Total Assets $ 3,521 $ 888,358

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ $
Accrued Liabilities
lnterfund Advance from Development Fund
Due to other funds - lnterfund Advance
Advances from Other Funds
Deferred Inflow
Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities

Assigned fund balance 3,521 888,358
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 3,521 $ 888,358

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Five months ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ $ $ $ $
Payment mn Lieu of Tax
State Exempt Aud 37,145
Special assessments
Investment Income 15,918
Bond Proceeds
Miscellaneous revenue
Total Revenue 53,063

Expenditures
Debt service principal
Debt service interest & fees
Administrative expenses 1,230
Refunded Property Taxes
Culture, recreation and education
Professional services 1,300,102 1 300,101 14,920
Capital outlays 120,135
Development incentive & obligation payments
Encumbrances (132 768)
Total Expenditures 1,300,102 1,300,101 3,517

Revenue over (under) expenditures (1,300,102) (1,300,101) 49,546
Transfers In (out) (756,704) (756 704)

Fund balance, beginning of year 2 060,326 2,060,326 2,060,326 2,060,326 838,812

Fund balance end of period $ 2,060,326 $ 3 520 $ 2,060,326 $ 3,521 $ 888,358



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #5

Balance Sheet
As of May 31, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & investments $ 1 678,245 $ 131 604
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable 0
Total Assets $ 1 678,245 $ 131,604

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ $ 2,484

Total Liabilities 1,000 000 2,484

Assigned fund balance 678,245 129,120
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 1,678,245 $ 131,604

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Five months ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ 1,270,000 $ 1,270 000 $ 501,000 $ 1,166,952 $ 1,094,021
Payment in Lieu of Tax 90,000 90,000 37,500
State Exempt Aid 12,900 12,900 5,375 12 883 12,883
Special assessments
Investment Income 44,747
Bond Proceeds 130 1,418
Miscellaneous revenue 838,000 838,000 349,167
Total Revenue 2,210,900 2,210,900 893,042 1,224 711 1 108,322

Expenditures
Debt service principal 1,550,000 1 550,000 645,833 1,550,000 750,000
Debt service interest & fees 640,803 640,803 270,532 330,408 341,225
Administratve expenses 37,420 37,420 21,729 15,600 2,550
Culture, recreation and education 6,000 6,000 2,530 2,500
Professional services 11,200 11,200 4,284 48,957 6,864
Capital outlays
Development incentive & obligation payments
Encumbrances
Total Expenditures 2,245,423 2,245,423 944 908 1 947,464 1,100,639

Revenue over (under) expenditures (34,523) (34,523) (51,867) (722,753) 7,684

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,400,998 1,400,998 1,400,998 1,400,998 121,436

Fund balance, end of penod $ 1,366,475 $ 1,366,475 $ 1,349 131 $ 678,245 $ 129,120



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #6 - Loomis & Ryan

Balance Sheet
As of May 31, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & investments $ (566,721) $ (1,050,047)
Accounts receivable 221,922
Total Assets $ (344,800) $ (1,050,047)

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ 13,948 $ 15,669
Total Liabilities 429,472 15,669

Assigned fund balance (774,272) (1,065,715)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ (344,800) $ (1,050,047)

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Five months ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ 315,000 $ 131,250 $ 292,539 $ 58,702
Payment in Lieu of Tax 699,920 291,633
Investment Income
Bond Proceeds 1,348
Miscellaneous revenue 6,395
Total Revenue 1,014,920 422,883 298,934 60,051

Expenditures
Debt servce principal 370,000 154,167 370,000 290,000
Debt serce interest & fees 243,353 98,744 124,876 129,926
Administrative expenses 7,920 3,300 3,300 7,150
Professional services 11,200 4,667 1,788 3,188
Capital outlays 163,810 613,237
Encumbrances (163,810) (163,810)
Total Expenditures 632,473 260,877 499,964 879,691

Revenue over (under) expenditures 382,447 162,006 (201,030) (819,640)

Fund balance, beginning of year (573,242) (573,242) (573,242) (246,075)

Fund balance, end of penod $ (190,795) $ (411,235) $ (774,272) $ (1,065,715)



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District#7 - Velo Village

Balance Sheet
As ofMay 31, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & investments $ 7,578 427 $ 9,282 852
Accounts receivable 90 000
Interest receivable
Total Assets $ 7 578,427 $ 9,372 852

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ $
Advances from Other Funds 0 1 500,000
Deferred Inflow 3,347,737

Total Liabilities 4,847,737

Assigned fund balance 7,578,427 4,525,115
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 7,578,427 $ 9,372,852

Statement ofRevenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Five months ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ 791,800 $ 791,800 $ 12,500 $ 727,429 $ 739,722
Investment Income 295,000 295,000 122,917 70,513
Miscellaneous revenue
Total Revenue 1,086,800 1,086,800 135,417 797,942 741,253

Expenditures
Debt service interest & fees 126,081 126,081 52,534 63,628 76,035
Administrative expenses 7,920 7,920 3,300 3,300 2,550
Professional services 1,350 1,350 1,123 (6,931) (7,350)
Development incentive & obligation payments 816,000 816,000 340,000
Encumbrances 7,500 7,500
Total Expenditures 1,051,351 1,051,351 438,623 167,496 78,735

Revenue over (under) expenditures 35,449 35,449 (303,206) 630,446 662,517

Fund balance, beginning of year 6,947,981 6,947,981 6,947,981 6 947,981 3,862,598

Fund balance, end of period $ 6,983,430 $ 6,983,430 $ 6,644 774 $ 7,578,427 $ 4,525,115



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #8 -. Corporate Park

Balance Sheet
As of May 31, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & Investments $ (275,939) $ (242,630)
Total Assets $ (275,939) $ (242,630)

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ 24,149 $ 129,005
Advances from Other Funds

Total Liabilities 935,582 129,005

Assigned fund balance (1,211,521) (371,635)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ (275,939) $ (242,630)

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Five months ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ 785,000 $ 785,000 $ 327 083 $ 755,803 $ 204,026
Investment Income
Bond Proceeds 0 0 4 648 21,477
Miscellaneous revenue 874,233
Total Revenue 785,000 785,000 327 083 760,451 1,099,735

Expendrtures
Debt service interest & fees 76,100 76,100 31,708 38,250 38,050
Administrative expenses 37,420 37 420 15,592 15,600 22,050
Professional services 46,200 134,615 19,250 98,610 207,954
Capital outlays 2,171,421 199,691 1,573,895
Development incentive & obligation payments
Encumbrances (294,506) (1,659,687)
Total Expenditures 187,000 2,446,837 77,917 68,995 194,762

Revenue over (under) expenditures 598,000 (1,661,837) 249,167 691,456 904,973

Fund balance, beginning of year (1,902,977) (1,902,977) (1,902,977) (1,902,977) (1,276,608)

Fund balance, end of period $ (1,304,977) $ (3,564,813) $ (1,653,810) $ (1,211,521) $ (371,635)



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #9 - Carma Labs

Balance Sheet
As of May 31, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & investments $ 32,656 $
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Total Assets $ 32,656 $

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ $
Accrued Liabilities
lnterfund Advance from Development Fund
Due to other funds - lnterfund Advance 50,000
Advances from Other Funds
Deferred Inflow
Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities 50,000

Assigned fund balance (17,344)
Total Luablttes and Fund Balance $ 32,656 $

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Five months ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ $ $ $ $
Payment in Lieu of Tax
State Exempt Aid
Special assessments
Investment Income
Bond Proceeds 0 0
Miscellaneous revenue
Total Revenue

Expenditures
Debt service principal
Debt service interest & fees
Administrative expenses
Culture, recreation and education
Professional services 17,344
Capital outlays
Development incentive & obligation payments
Encumbrances
Total Expenditures 17,344

Revenue over (under) expenditures (17,344)

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of period $ $ $ $ (17,344) $



City of Franklin
American Rescue Plan

Balance Sheet
May 31, 2024 and 2023

Assets
Cash and investments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Encumbrance
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2024 2023
$ 3,512,373 $ 3,759,408

$ 3,512,373 $ 3,759,408

$ $
3,748,350 $

(235,977) 3,759,409

$ 3,512,373 $ 3,769,409

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Five months ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Intergovernmental $ 1,918,000 $ 1,918,000 $ 799,167 $ $
Investment Income 7,200 7,200 3,000 3,041

Total Revenue 1,925,200 1,925,200 802,167 3,041

Expenditures:
Non Personnel Services $ $ $ $ $
Auditor Services 5,600 5,600 2,333
Legal Services
Investment Expenses $ $ $ $ $
Transfer to Capital Outlay 7,000 7,000
Transfer to Caprtal Improvement Fund 1,918,000 1,918,000 799,167
Encumbrances

Total Expenditures 1,923,600 1,930,600 801,500 7,000

Revenue over (under) expenditures 1,600 (5,400) 667 (7,000) 3,041

Fund balance, beginning of year (228,977) (228,977) (228,977) 3,756,368

Fund balance, end of period $ (227,377) $ (234,377) $ (235,977) $ 3,759,409

8/22/2024 F \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2024\Monthly\American Recovery ACT May 24



Assets
Cash and investments
Tax Receivables
Accrued Receivables

Total Assets

City of Franklin
Solid Waste Collection Fund

Balance Sheet
May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
$ 1,741,553 $ 3,158,454

46 (1,614,114)
804 32,288

$ 1,742,403 $ 1,576,628

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries & wages
Unearned Revenue
Restricted fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

$
53

(801)
1,743,150

$ 1,742,403

$ (100)
48

(801)
1,545,724

$ 1,544,871

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Five months ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2023
Original YTD Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Actual Actual
Grants $ 69,000 $ 27,600 $ $
User Fees 1,854,600 1,851,571 1,855,291 1,616,079
Landfill Operations-tippage 390,000 125,334 135,779 152,692
Investment Income 17,900 8,082 40,045 32,115
Sale of Recyclables 3,543 1,668

Total Revenue 2,331,500 2,012,587 2,034,658 1,802,556

Expenditures:
Personnel Services 17,620 7,455 143 3,948
Refuse Collection 845,000 296,371 278,626 266,006
Recycling Collection 822,000 288,042 275,923 E 261,621
Leaf & Brush Pickups 69,000 6,947 140 140
Tippage Fees 556,000 132,452 168,062 114,647
Miscellaneous 2,625 1,155 571 554
Printing 1,000 417
Refunded User Fees
Encumbrances (1,600)
Total Expenditures 2,313,245 732,839 721,865 646,915

Revenue over (under) expenditures 18,255 1,279,748 1,312,792 1,155,640

Fund balance, beginning of year 430,358 430,358 390,084

Fund balance, end of period $ 448,613 $ 1,743,150 $ 1,545,724

8/22/2024 Findata Qtrrpt Sold Waste May24



Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts Receivables

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
Capital Outlay Fund

Balance Sheet
May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
$ 1,599,698 $ 1,560,145

24,088 316

$ 1,623,786 $ 1,560,461

$ $ 12,503
1,623,786 1,547,958

$ 1,623,786 $ 1,560,461

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Five months ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Property Taxes $ $ $ $ $
Grants 63,000 113,000 26,250 6,750
Landfill Siting 965,000 965,000 341,337 320,106 366,329
Investment Income 28,000 28,000 11,667 19,829 17,051
Miscellaneous Revenue 2,000 32,000 170 39,938
Transfers from Other Funds 7,000
Transfers from Fund Balance
Notes Proceeds 1,905

Total Revenue 1,058,000 1,138,000 379,424 386,873 392,035

Expenditures:
General Government 408,067 508,631 126,365 80,526 E 21,125
Public Safety 464,266 967,669 210,756 590,763 E 291,889
Public Works 145,125 227,756 14,083 171,007 E 33,115
Health and Human Servtces 17,796 58,014 8,898 40,218
Culture and Recreation 143,250
Conservation and Development 9,872 291,479 4,113 48,366 E 91,276
Contingency 10,000 10,000
Encumbrances (544,078) (141,157)

Total Expenditures 1,055,126 2,206,798 364,215 386,802 296,248

Revenue over (under) expenditures 2,874 (1,068,798) 15,209 71 95,787

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,623,716 1,623,716 1,623,716 1,452,171

Fund balance, end of period $ 1,626,590 $ 554,917 $ 1,623,786 $ 1,547,958

8/22/2024 Fmndata Qtrrpt Capital Outlay May 24



City of Franklin
Equipment Replacement Fund

Balance Sheet
May 31, 2024 and 2023

Assets 2024 2023
Cash and Investments $ 2,112,973 $ 878,473
Taxes receivable
Accounts Receivable

Total Assets $ 2,112,973 $ 878,473

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ $
Unearned revenue
Encumbrance
Assigned fund balance 2,112,973 878,473

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 2,112,973 $ 878,473

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Five months ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Landfill $ 480,000 $ 480,000 $ 167,708 $ 164,380 $ 140,500
Investment Income 34,000 34,000 14,167 23,727 18,680
Grants
Property Sales 20,000 20,000 2,560 11,150 51,977
Refunds/Reimbursements
Miscellaneous Revenue-Close out TID #
Transfers From Fund Balance 650,000
Miscellaneous Income

Total Revenue 534,000 534,000 184,435 849,257 211,157
Expenditures:
General Government 32,000 32,000 16,000 26,476 77,358
Public Safety 125,000 855,452 75,000 639,242 E 278,513
Public Works 460,000 460,000 284,754 445,400 E 230,998
Encumbrances (500,627) (309,654)
Total Expenditures 617,000 1,347,452 375,754 610 491 277,215

Revenue over (under) expenditures (83,000) (813,452) (191,320) 238,766 (66,058)

Fund balance, beginning ofyear 1,874,207 1,874,207 1,874,207 944,531
Fund balance, end of period $ 1,791,207 $ 1,060,755 $ 2,112,973 $ 878,473

8/22/2024
F \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2024\Monthly\Equip Replacement\May24



Assets
Cash and investments
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivables (accord landfill)

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Contracts Payable - Retainages
Unearned revenue
Encumbrances
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
Street Improvement Fund

Balance Sheet
May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024
$ 2,452,374

$ 2,452,374

$
55,122

2,397,252
$ 2,452,374

2023
$ 2,010,903

18,000
$ 2,028,903

$ 6,645

2,004,258
$ 2,010,903

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Five months ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Totals Totals
Property Taxes $ 291,700 $ 291,700 $ 291,700 $
Landfill Siting $ 520,000 $ 520,000 $ 181,700 $ 191,030
Investment Income 34,000 34,000 28,623 16,754
Transfers from Other Funds 106,704
Intergovernmental Resources 1,395,000 1,395,000 697,233 609,560

Total Revenue 2,240,700 2,240,700 1,305,961 817,344

Expenditures:
Street Reconstruction Program - Current Year 2,347,800 2,423,513 1,926,709 E 367,062
Encumbrances (1,761,751) (355,766)

Total Expenditures 2,347,800 2,423,513 164,958 11,296

Revenue over (under) expenditures (107,100) (182,813) 1,141,002 806,048

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,256,250 1,256,250 1,256,250 1,198,210

Fund balance, end of period $1,149,150 $ 1,073,437 $ 2,397,252 $ 2,004,258

8/22/2024 Fmndata Qtrrpt Street Improvement May 2024



Assets
Cash and investments
Due from State ofWisconsin
Accounts receivables

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Contracts Payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabtlttes and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
Capital Improvement Fund

Balance Sheet
May 31, 2024 and 2023

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Five months ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
$ 5,609,137 $ 1,668,335

847 847
$ 5,609,984 $ 1,669,182

$ $ 140,119
39,064

5,609,984 1,489,999
$ 5,609,984 $ 1,669,182

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Totals Totals
Other Grants
DPW Charges
Landfill Siting 120,000 120,000 44,598 43,260 131,840
Transfers from Other Funds 1,968,000 2,053,000 684,871 629,627
Transfers from General Funds
Transfers from Impact Fees 606,819 606,819 30,782 62,182 47,654
Transfers from Connection Fees 900,000 900,000
Transfers from Spec1al Assessments
Bond Proceeds 109,348 5,139
Notes Proceeds
Bond & Notes Premium
Donations 50,000 50,000
Refunds, Remmbursements & Miscellaneous 254,613
Investment Income 2,125 2,125 885 53,628 6,704

Total Revenue 3,646,944 3,986,557 761 137 268,418 820,964

Expenditures:
General Government 350,000 1,048,448 145,833 487,441 E 35,294
Public Safety 47,912
Public Works 455,000 3,828,317 189,583 243,399 E 333,436
Health and Human Services
Culture and Recreation (Lib/Parks) 1,427,934 4,461,345 594,973 2,012,900 E 295,466
Conservation and Development
Sewer & Water 900,000 900,884 308,333 718,356 E 25,457
Contingency 150,000 150,000 99,047 89,141
Bond/Note Issuance Cost
Transfers to Other Funds
Encumbrances (3,050,746) (538,237)

Total Expenditures 3,282,934 10,388,993 1,337,770 411,350 288,469
Revenue over (under) expenditures 364,010 (6,402,436) (576,633) (142,932) 532,495

Fund balance, beginning of year 5,752,916 5,752,916 5,752,916 957,504
Fund balance, end of period $ 6,116,926 $ (649,520) $ 5,609,984 $ 1,489,999

8/22/2024 Findata Qtrrpt Capital Improvement May 2024



City of Franklin
Development Fund

Balance Sheet
May 31, 2024 and 2023

Assets 2024 2023
Cash and Investments $ 13,595,733 $ 11,478,062
Other accounts receivable 3,265 3,265
Due From TID's 1,500,000

Total Assets $ 13,598,998 $ 12,981,327

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accrued Liabilities $ 38,444 $ 101,870
Accounts Payable
Assigned fund balance 13,560,555 12,879,458

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 13,598,998 12,981,327

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Five months ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Impact Fees
Parks $ 175,000 $ 175,000 $ 71,565 $ 58,407 $ 304,033
Southwest Sewer Service Area 50,000 50,000 14,981 130,814 11,187
Administration 15,000 15,000 5,121 2,278 10,467
Water 750,000 750,000 235,894 105,662 669,734
Transportation 150,000 150,000 38,707 28,492 105,325
Fire Protection 100,000 100,000 31,317 19,566 71,947
Law Enforcement 100,000 100,000 33,093 22,341 82,524
Library 30,000 30,000 12,961 10,302 53,458
Total Impact Fees 1,370,000 1,370,000 443,641 377,861 1,308,675

Miscellaneous Revenue

Investment Income 255,000 255,000 106,250 278,969 211,962
Investment Gamns/Losses
lnterfund Interest Income 26,250 26,250 10,938

Total Revenue 1,651,250 1,651,250 560,828 656,830 1,520,637

Expenditures:
Other Professional Services 25,000 27,970 10,534 4,806 E
Transfer to Debt Serice
Law Enforcement 125,600 125,600 89,639
Fire 43,008 43,008 20,888 41,840
Transportation 65,700 65,700 38,992 67,022
Library
Encumbrances
Total Transfers to Debt Serice 234,308 234,308 149,518 108,862

Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund
Park 466,819 466,819 24,809 155,182 E 140,654
Water
Total Transfers to Capital
Improvement Fund 466,819 466,819 24,809 155,182 E 140,654

Remmb to Developers & Others 128,768
Transfer to Other Funds 140,000 140,000 58,333
Capital Improvements
Sewer Fees
Water Fees 4,192,430 4,192,430 1,746,846

Encumbrances (95,970) (93,000)

Total Expenditures 5,058,557 5,190,295 1,990,040 64,018 156,516

Revenue over (under) expendrtures (3,407,307) (3,539,045) (1,429,212) 592,812 1,364,121

Fund balance, beginning of year 12,967,743 12,967,743 12,967,743 11,515,337

Fund balance, end of penod $ 9,560,436 $ 9,428,698 $ 13,560,555 $ 12,879,458

8/22/2024 F \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2024\Monthly\Development Fund May 2024



City of Franklin
Utility Development Fund

Balance Sheet
May 31, 2024 and 2023

Assets 2024 2023
Cash and Investments - Water $ 1,348,218 $ 1,208,998
Cash and Investments - Sewer 1,745,805 1,542,785
Taxes recervable (40,746)
Special Assessment - Water Current 153,065 78,136
Special Assessment - Water Deferred 14,175 20,071
Special Assessment - Sewer Current 11,058 29,311

Total Assets $ 3,272,321 $ 2,838,555

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Unearned Revenue $ 178,298 $ 127,518

Total Fund Balance 3,094,023 2,711,037
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 3,272,321 $ 2,838,555

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Five months ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Actual Actual
Special Assessments
Water $ 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 18,501 $
Sewer 25,000 25,000 1,377 7,062

Connection Fees
Water
Sewer 10,000 10,000 90,960 4,800

Total Assessments & Connection Fees 55,000 55,000 110,839 11,862

Special Assessment Interest 8,200 8,200 206 72
Investment Income 106,250 106,250 58,637 49,961
Total Revenue 169,450 169,450 169,681 61,894

Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund
Water 400,000 400,000
Sewer 500,000 500,000

Total Transfers to Capital Improvement Fund 900,000 900,000

Revenue over (under) expendrtures (730,550) (730,550) 169,681 61,894

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,924,342 2,924,342 2,924,342 2,649,143

Fund balance, end of perod $ 2,193,792 $ 2,193,792 $ 3,094,023 $ 2,711,037

8/22/2024 Findata Qtrrpt Utility Development May 24



City of Franklin
Self Insurance Fund - Actives

Balance Sheet
May 31, 2024 and 2023

Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
lnterfund advance receivable
Prepaid expenses

Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable
Clamms payable
Unrestricted net assets

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2024 2023
$ 2,849,836 $ 3,262,272

972 324

$ 2,850,808 $ 3,262,596

$ 235,575 $ 108,931
210,000 210,000
2,405,234 2,943,665

$ 2,850,808 $ 3,262,596

City of Franklin Self Insurance Fund - Actives
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Five months ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

Revenue
Medical Premiums-City
Med1cal Premiums-Employee
Other - Invest Income, Rebates
Medical Revenue
Dental Premiums-City
Dental Premiums-Retirees
Dental Premiums-Employee
Dental Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenditures:
Medical
Medical clamms
Prescription drug clamms
Refunds-Stop Loss Coverage
Total Clamms

Medical Clamm Fees
Stop Loss Premums
Other - Miscellaneous
HSA Contributions
Plan Administration
Total Medical Costs

Dental
Active Employees & COBRA
Retiree

Total Dental Costs

2024
Original
Budget

$ 3,285,140
537,805
193,000

4,015,945
145,000
3,000
70,000
218,000
4,233,945

2024
Year-to-Date

Budget
$ 1,381,797

224,640
80,417

1,686,854
62,393
1,575
30,019
93,987

1,780,841

2024
Year-to-Date

Actual
$ 1,222,953

205,091
135,416

1,563,460
40,158
1,206
20,001
61,365

1,624,825

2023
Year-to-Date

Actual
$ 957,207

180,244
132,066

1,269,517
41,202
2,505
22,271
65,978

1,335,495

3,032,000 1,261,372 930,426 1,052,045
490,000 204,167 200,708 155,342

(118,212) (45,425)
3,522,000 1,465,539 1,012,922 1,161,962
147,000 63,453 91,472 84,316
643,000 273,891 282,995 254,263
2,700 1,125 10,350 19,097

177,000 74,885 65,250 61,750
48,515 20,215 20,225 19,625

4,540,215 1,899,108 1,483,214 1,601,013

196,462 75,996 79,276 67,725
252 1,003

196,462 75,996 79,528 68,728

8/22/2024

Clamms contingency

Total Expenditures 4,736,677 1,975,104 1,562,742 1,669,741

Revenue over (under) expenditures (502,732) $ (194,263) 62,083 (334,246)
Net assets, begmnmg ofyear 2,343,151 2,343,151 3,277,911

Net assets, end of period $ 1,840,419 $ 2,405,234 $ 2,943,665

Fmdata Qtrrpt Self Insurance May24



City of Franklin
City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust

Balance Sheet
May 31, 2024 and 2023

Assets 2024 2023
Cash and investments $ (550,834) $ (369,020)
Investments held mn trust - Fxed Inc 3,388,329 2,856,852
Investments held mn trust - Equities 6,282,599 5,335,779
Accounts receivable 21,410 13,376

Total Assets $ 9,141,504 $ 7,836,987

Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable $ 66,326 $ 47,043
Claims payable 60,000 60,000
Net assets held mn trust for post emp 9,015,178 7,729,944

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 9,141,504 $ 7,836,987

City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Five months ended May 31, 2024 and 2023

Revenue
ARC Medical Charges - City
Medical Charges - Retirees

Medical Revenue

Expenditures:
Retirees-Medical
Medical clamms
Prescription drug claims
Refunds-Stop Loss Coverage
Total Claims-Retirees

Medical Clamm Fees
Stop Loss Premiums
Miscellaneous Expense
Total Medical Costs-Retirees

2024
Year-to-Date

Actual
$ 108,716

141,971

250,687

178,467
75,353

253,820
19,128
57,058
13,497
343,503

2023
Year-to-Date

Actual
$ 116,232

89,427

205,659

227,605
82,858
(7,588)

302,875
19,481
59,228
230

381,814

8/22/2024

Revenue over (under) expenditures

Annual Required Contribution-Net
Other - Investment Income, etc.
Total Revenues

Net Revenues (Expenditures)

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of period $

(92,816)

63,149
675,244
738,393

645,577

8,369,601

(176,155)

(46,882)
421,656
374,774

198,619

7,531,325

9,015,178 $ 7,729,944============
Fndata Qtrrpt Retiree Health Fund May 2024



City of Franklin
Cash & Investments Summary

June 30, 2024

American Institutional Local Prior
Cash Deposit Capital Government Total Month

Management Management Invest Pool Total

General Fund $ 1,177,743 $ 9,734,379 $ 1,038,058 $ 3,678,633 $15,628,812 $ 15,305,333

Debt Serice Funds 360,192 481,392 841,584 604,775

TIF Districts (1,627,477) 7,817,864 6,190,387 8,450,189

Nonmajor
Governmental Funds 5,018,382 30,780,858 35,799,240 35,950,066

Total Governmental
Funds 4,928,840 48,814,494 1,038,058 3,678,633 58,460,024 60,310,363

Sewer Fund 494,442 2,884,741 3,379,183 4,997,682

Water Utility 178,039 6,092,611 6,270,650 6,845,923

Self Insurance Fund 22,056 2,709,382 2,731,438 2,785,836

Other Designated Funds 15,283 15,283 15,777

Total Other Funds 709,820 11,686,734 12,396,554 14,645,219

Total Pooled
Cash & Investments 5,638,660 60,501,227 1,038,058 3,678,633 70,856,578 74,955,581

Property Tax Fund (332,271) 4,312,432 3,980,162 16,951,899

Total Trust Funds {332,271) 4,312,432 3,980,162 16,951,899

Grand Total
Cash & Investments 5,306,389 64,813,659 1,038,058 3,678,633 74,836,739 91,907,480

Average Floating Rate of Return 5.30% 0.038% 542%
Avg Weighted Rate of Return - CD's 8.33%

Maturities:
Demand 5,306,389 62,363,659 1,038,058 3,678,633 72,386,739 88,082,480
Fred Income & Equities
2024 - Q1
2024 - 02
2024 - Q3 245,000 245,000 1,620,000
2024 - 04
2025- Q1 2,205,000 2,205,000 2,205,000

5,306,389 64,813,659 1,038,058 3,678,633 74,836,739 91,907,480

8/22/2024 Findata Qtrrpt Cash & Investments June 2024



City of Franklin
2024 Financial Report
General Fund Summary

For the Six months ended June 30, 2024

2024 2024 2024 2024 Var to Budget
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

Property Taxes $ 20,628,600 $ 20,628,600 $ 17,574,037 $ 17,563,769 $ (10,267)
Other Taxes 511,900 511,900 206,451 258,612 52,161
Intergovernmental Revenue 2,762,530 2,762,530 468,452 408,880 (59,572)
Licenses & Permits 1,305,550 1,305,550 671,689 710,665 38,977
Law and Ordinance Violations 400,000 400,000 232,688 241,426 8,738
Public Charges for Services 2,766,800 2,766,800 1,271,847 1,472,822 200,975
Intergovernmental Charges 325,000 325,000 139,059 202,144 63,085
Investment Income 1,014,660 1,014,660 454,280 758,807 304,527
Sales of Capital Assets 200 200 130 (130)
Miscellanous Revenue 147,720 147,720 70,156 83,732 13,576
Refund/Reimbursement - Elec 58 58
Transfer from Other Funds 950,000 950,000 501,677 475,200 (26,477)

Total Revenue $ 30,812,960 $ 30,812,960 $ 21,590,463 $ 22,176,114 $ 585,651

2024 2024 2024 2024 Var to Budget
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Expenditures Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

General Government $ 3,624,214 $ 3,647,404 $ 1,989,303 $ 1,771,501 E $ 217,803
Public Safety 20,383,939 20,477,005 10,258,855 10,199,858 E 58,997
PublicWorks 4,676,354 4,687,089 2,143,205 2,009,947 E 133,258
Health and Human Services 785,433 785,433 374,509 363,548 10,961
Other Culture and Recreation 406,653 418,556 188,008 126,930 E 61,078
Conservation and Development 827,722 831,325 396,646 310,270 E 86,375
Contingency and Unclassified 2,845,000 2,900,129 170,489 17,303 153,186
Anticipated underexpendrtures (300,000) (300,000) (150,000) (150,000)
Transfers to Other Funds 71,000 71,000
Encumbrances (60,061) 60,061

Total Expenditures $ 33,320,315 $ 33,517,941 $ 15,371,014 $ 14,739,296 $ 631,718

Excess of revenue over
(under) expenditures (2,507,355) (2,704,981) $ 6,219,449 7,436,818 $ 1,217,369

Fund balance, beginning of year 12,805,733 12,805,733 12,805,733

Fund balance, end of penod $ 10,298,378 $ 10,100,752 $ 20,242,551

E Represents an encumbrance for current year from prior year



City of Franklin
Debt Service Funds

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2023 2023
Special Debt 2024 Special Debt 2023

Assets Assessment Service Total Assessment Service Total
Cash and investments $ 210,774 $ 630,810 $ 841,584 $ 198,142 $ 1,825,987 $ 2,024,130
Taxes receivable (2,684) (1,100,000) (1,102,684)
Accounts receivable 8,978 8,978 10,662 10,662

Total Assets $ 219,752 $ 630,810 $ 850,562 $ 206,120 $ 725,987 $ 932,107

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Unearned & unavailable revenue $ 8,978 $ $ 8,978 $ 10,662 $ $ 10,662
Due to other funds
Special Deposits
Unassigned fund balance 210,774 630,810 841,584 195,458 725,987 921,446

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 219,752 $ 630,810 $ 850,562 $ 206,120 $ 725,987 $ 932,107

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Sx months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

51 31
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023 2023 2023

Special Debt Year-to-Date Original Special Debt Year-to-Date
Revenue: Assessment Service Actual Budget Assessment Service Actual
Property Taxes $ $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $ $1,100,000 $1,100,000
Landfill siting revenue
Special Assessments 2,819 2,819 2,000
Investment Income 5,051 20,739 25,790 32,300 4,347 17,801 22,148
Bond & Note Premium

Total Revenue 7,870 1,120,739 1,128,609 1,134,300 4,347 1,117,801 1,122,148

Expenditures:
Debt Service
Principal 1,395,000 1,395,000 1,300,000 1,035,000 1,035,000
Interest 119,366 119,366 246,042 67,263 67,263
Bank Fees 1,800 1,800 2,400 1,600 1,600

Total Expenditures 1,516,166 1,516,166 1,548,442 1,103,863 1,103,863

Transfers 1n 234,308 234,308 234,308 108,862 108,862
Transfers out
Net change in fund balances 7,870 (161,119) (153,249) (179,834) 4,347 122,801 127,148

Fund balance, beginning of year 202,904 791,929 994,833 994,833 191,111 603,187 794,298

Fund balance, end of period $ 210,774 $ 630,810 $ 841,584 $ 814,999 $ 195,458 $ 725,987 $ 921,446

8/22/2024 F \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2024\Monthly\Debt Service\June 2024
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City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #3 - Northwestern Mutual

Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & investments $ $ 61,099
Total Assets $ $ 61,099

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accrued Liabilities $ $

Total Liabilities

Assigned fund balance 61,099
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ $ 61,099

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General property tax levy $ $ $ $ $
State exempt ard
Investment income
Bond proceeds 40,583
Miscellaneous Revenue
Total Revenue 40,583

Expenditures
Debt service principal 390,000
Debt service interest & fees 5 850
Administrative expenses
Refunded Property Taxes 3,707
Culture, recreation and education
Professional services
Capital outlays
Development incentive & obhgabon payments
Total Expenditures 399,557

Revenue over (under) expenditures (358,974)
Transfers In (out) (605 259)

Fund balance beginning of year 1,025,332

Fund balance, end of penod $ $ $ $ $ 61,099



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #4 -Ascension Hospital

Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & Investments $ 3 521 $ 2 018,646
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable (1 126,690)
Total Assets $ 3 521 $ 891,956

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ $
Accrued Liabilities
lnterfund Advance from Development Fund
Due to other funds - Interfund Advance
Advances from Other Funds
Deferred Inflow
Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities

Assigned fund balance 3,521 891,956
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 3,521 $ 891,956

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ $ $ $ $
Payment in Lieu f Tax
State Exempt Aid 37 145
Special assessments
Investment Income 19,516
Bond Proceeds
Miscellaneous revenue
Total Revenue 56,661

Expenditures
Debt service principal
Debt service interest & fees
Administrative expenses 1,230
Refunded Property Taxes
Culture, recreation and educaton
Professional services 1,300,102 1 300,101 14,920
Capital outlays 120,135
Development incentive & obligation payments
Encumbrances (132,768)
Total Expenditures 1 300,102 1,300,101 3 517

Revenue over (under) expenditures (1,300,102) (1 300,101) 53,144
Transfers In (out) (756,704) (756,704)

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,060,326 2,060,326 2,060,326 2 060,326 838,812

Fund balance end of period $ 2,060,326 $ 3 520 $ 2,060,326 $ 3,521 $ 891,956



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #5

Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & investments $ 609,628 $ 1 842,487
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable 0 (1 094,021)
Total Assets $ 609,628 $ 748,466

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ $

Total Liabilities 0

Assigned fund balance 609,628 748,466
Total Labilrtes and Fund Balance $ 609,628 $ 748,466

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ 1,270,000 $ 1,270,000 $ 501,000 $ 1,166,952 $ 1,094,021
Payment in Lieu of Tax 90 000 90000 45,000 81,207
State Exempt Aud 12,900 12,900 6,450 12,883 12883
Spec1al assessments
Investment Income 44,747
Bond Proceeds 130 1,537
Miscellaneous revenue 838,000 838 000 419,000 244,487
Total Revenue 2,210,900 2,210,900 971,450 1,224,711 1,434,135

Expenditures
Debt service principal 1 550,000 1 550,000 775,000 1,550 000 750,000
Debt service interest & fees 640,803 640 803 285,493 394,158 341,225
Administrative expenses 37,420 37,420 26,074 18,720 3,060
Culture, recreation and education 6,000 6,000 3,037 3,000
Professional services 11,200 11,200 4,779 50,204 7 368
Capital outlays
Development incentive & obligation payments
Encumbrances
Total Expenditures 2,245,423 2,245,423 1,094 383 2,016,082 1 101,653

Revenue over (under) expenditures (34,523) (34,523) (122,933) (791 370) 332 482

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,400,998 1,400,998 1,400,998 1,400,998 415 984

Fund balance end of period $ 1,366,475 $ 1 366,475 $ 1,278,065 $ 609,628 $ 748,466



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #6 - Loomis & Ryan

Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & Investments $ (567,571) $ (341,813)
Accounts receivable 221,922
Total Assets $ (345,650) $ (637,821)

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ 13,948 $ 13,948
Total Liabilities 429,472 429,472

Assigned fund balance (775,122) (1,067,294)
Total Liablites and Fund Balance $ (345,650) $ (637,821)

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ 315,000 $ 157,500 $ 292,539 $ 58,702
Payment in Lieu of Tax 699,920 349,960
Investment Income
Bond Proceeds 1,348
Miscellaneous revenue 6,395
Total Revenue 1,014,920 507,460 298,934 60,051

Expenditures
Debt service principal 370,000 185,000 370,000 290,000
Debt service Interest & fees 243,353 102,415 124,876 129,926
Administrative expenses 7,920 3,960 3,960 8,580
Professional services 11,200 5,600 1,978 3,336
Capital outlays 163,810 613,237
Encumbrances (163,810) (163,810)
Total Expenditures 632,473 296,975 500,814 881,270

Revenue over (under) expenditures 382,447 210,485 (201,880) (821,219)

Fund balance, beginning of year (573,242) (573,242) (573,242) (246,075)

Fund balance, end of period $ (190,795) $ (362,757) $ 775,122) $ (1,067,294)



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District#7 -Velo Village

Balance Sheet
As ofJune 30, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & investments $ 6788,375 $ 10,022,064
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Taxes receivable (739,722)
Total Assets $ 6,788,375 $ 9,282,342

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ $
Advances from Other Funds 0 1,500,000
Deferred Inflow

Total Liabilities 1,500,000

Assigned fund balance 6,788,375 7,782,342
Total Lablties and Fund Balance $ 6,788 375 $ 9,282,342

Statement ofRevenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ 791,800 $ 791,800 $ 12,500 $ 727,429 $ 739,722
Investment Income 295,000 295,000 147,500 97 275
Miscellaneous revenue
Total Revenue 1,086,800 1,086,800 160,000 824,704 741,253

Expenditures
Debt service interest & fees 126,081 126,081 63,040 63,628 76,035
Administrative expenses 7,920 7,920 3,960 3,960 3,060
Professional services 1,350 1,350 675 (6,777) (7,350)
Development incentve & obligation payments 816,000 816,000 408,000 816,000
Encumbrances 7,500 7,500
Total Expenditures 1,051,351 1,051 351 525,675 984,310 79,245

Revenue over (under) expenditures 35,449 35,449 (365,675) (159,606) 662,007

Fund balance, beginning of year 6,947,981 6,947,981 6,947,981 6,947,981 7,120,335

Fund balance, end of period $ 6,983,430 $ 6,983,430 $ 6,582,305 $ 6,788,375 $ 7,782,342



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Fmancing District #8 - Corporate Park

Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & vestments $ (676,121) $ 721,529
Total Assets $ (676,121) $ 517,503

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ 24,149 $ 24,149
Advances from Other Funds 911,433

Total Liabilities 935,582 935,582

Assigned fund balance (1,611,702) (418,079)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ (676,121) $ 517,503

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ 785,000 $ 785,000 $ 392,500 $ 755 803 $ 204,026
Investment Income
Bond Proceeds 0 0 4,648 23,927
Miscellaneous revenue 874,233
Total Revenue 785,000 785,000 392,500 760 451 1,102,186

Expenditures
Debt service interest & fees 76,100 76,100 38,050 38,250 38,050
Administrative expenses 37,420 37,420 18 710 18,720 26,460
Professional services 46,200 134,615 23100 99,309 208,089
Capital outlays 2,171,421 1,149,691 1,573,895
Development incentive & obligation payments
Encumbrances (850,413) (1,617,837)
Total Expenditures 187,000 2 446,837 93,500 469,176 243,657

Revenue over (under) expenditures 598,000 (1,661,837) 299,000 291,275 858,529

Fund balance, beginning of year (1,902,977) (1,902,977) (1,902,977) (1,902,977) (1,276,608)

Fund balance, end of period $ (1,304,977) $ (3,564,813) $ (1603,977) $ (1,611,702) $ (418,079)



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #9 - Carma Labs

Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2024

Assets 2024 2023
Cash & investments $ 32 656 $
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Total Assets $ 32,656 $

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ $
Accrued Liabilities
lnterfund Advance from Development Fund
Due to other funds - Interfund Advance 50 000
Advances from Other Funds
Deferred Inflow
Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities 50,000

Assigned fund balance (17,344)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 32,656 $

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ $ $ $ $
Payment in Lieu of Tax
State Exempt Aid
Special assessments
Investment Income
Bond Proceeds 0 0
Miscellaneous revenue
Total Revenue

Expenditures
Debt service principal
Debt service interest & fees
Administrative expenses
Culture, recreation and education
Professional services 17,344
Capital outlays
Development incentive & obligation payments
Encumbrances
Total Expenditures 17 344

Revenue over (under) expenditures (17,344)

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of per1od $ $ $ $ (17,344) $



Assets
Cash and investments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Encumbrance
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
American Rescue Plan

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
$ 2,744,851 $ 3,760,032

$ 2,744,851 $ 3,760,032

$ $
2,705,828 $ 3,748,350

39,023 11,682
$ 2,744,851 $ 3,760,032

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Intergovernmental $ 1,918,000 $ 1,918,000 $ 959,000 $ $
Investment Income 7,200 7,200 3,600 3,665

Total Revenue 1,925,200 1,925,200 962,600 3,665

Expenditures:
Non Personnel Services $ $ $ $ $
Audrtor Services 5,600 5,600 2,800
Legal Services
Investment Expenses $ $ $ $ $
Transfer to Capital Outlay 7,000 7,000
Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund 1,918,000 1,918,000 959,000
Encumbrances

Total Expenditures 1,923,600 1,930,600 961,800 7,000

Revenue over (under) expenditures 1,600 (5,400) 800 (7,000) 3,665

Fund balance, beginning of year 46,023 46,023 46,023 8,017

Fund balance, end of period $ 47,623 $ 40,623 $ 39,023 $ 11,682

8/22/2024 F \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2024\Monthly\Amercan Recovery ACT June 24



Assets
Cash and investments
Tax Receivables
Accrued Receivables

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries & wages
Unearned Revenue
Restricted fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
Solid Waste Collection Fund

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024
$ 1,661,201

46
450

$ 1,661,697

$
53

(801)
1,662,445

$ 1,661,697

2023
$ 3,084,426
(1,614,114)

32,921
$ 1,503,232

$ 180,974
48

(801)
1,323,012

$ 1,503,232

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2023
Original YTD Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Actual Actual
Grants $ 69,000 $ 69,000 $ 68,718 $ 68,645
User Fees 1,854,600 182,392 1,855,503 1,617,406
Landfill Operations-tippage 390,000 166,047 179,188 191,183
Investment Income 17,900 9,523 47,318 38,733
Sale of Recyclables 6,030 1,668

Total Revenue 2,331,500 426,962 2,156,757 1,917,635

Expenditures:
Personnel Services 17,620 8,810 890 4,504
Refuse Collection 845,000 423,408 348,359 399,664
Recycling Collection 822,000 410,897 344,458 E 392,982
Leaf & Brush Pickups 69,000 17,752 17,340 16,674
Tippage Fees 556,000 216,779 214,497 201,933
Miscellaneous 2,625 1,574 726 706
Printing 1,000 500
Refunded User Fees
Encumbrances (1.,600)
Total Expenditures 2,313,245 1,079,720 924,671 1,016,464

Revenue over (under) expenditures 18,255 (652,758) 1,232,087 901,171

Fund balance, beginning of year 430,358 430,358 421,841

Fund balance, end of period $ 448,613 $ 1,662,445 $ 1,323,012

8/22/2024 Fmndata Qtrrpt Solid Waste June24



Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts Receivables

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
Capital Outlay Fund

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
$ 1,624,469 $ 1,612,246

11,804 125,166
$ 1,636,273 $ 1,737,412

$ $
1,636,273 1,737,412

$ 1,636,273 $ 1,737,412

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Property Taxes $ $ $ $ $
Grants 63,000 113,000 31,500 6,750
Landfill Siting 965,000 965,000 472,340 418,182 436,016
Investment Income 28,000 28,000 14,000 24,589 19,925
Miscellaneous Revenue 2,000 32,000 575 43,088 41,200
Transfers from Other Funds 7,000
Transfers from Fund Balance
Notes Proceeds 1,905

Total Revenue 1,058,000 1,138,000 518,414 492,859 505,796

Expenditures:
General Government 408,067 508,631 159,479 131,576 33,112
Public Safety 464,266 967,669 303,785 806,982 E 302,193
Public Works 145,125 227,756 14,083 171,007 E 39,455
Health and Human Serces 17,796 58,014 9,376 40,218
Culture and Recreation 143,250 7,408
Conservation and Development 9,872 291,479 4,936 48,366 E 91,276
Contingency 10,000 10,000
Encumbrances (725,256) (123,514)

Total Expenditures 1,055,126 2,206,798 491,659 480,302 342,521

Revenue over (under) expenditures 2,874 (1,068,798) 26,755 12,557 163,275

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,623,716 1,623,716 1,623,716 1,574,137

Fund balance, end of period $ 1,626,590 $ 554,917 $ 1,636,273 $ 1,737,412

8/22/2024 Findata Qtrrpt Capital Outlay June 24



Assets
Cash and investments
Taxes recervable
Accounts Recervable

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Encumbrance
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
Equipment Replacement Fund

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
$ 2,168,755 $ 875,545

53,990
$ 2,168,755 $ 929,535

$ $

2,168,755 929,535
$ 2,168,755 $ 929,535

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Landfill $ 480,000 $ 480,000 $ 221,107 $ 214,740 $ 165,080
Investment Income 34,000 34,000 17,000 29,155 22,313
Grants
Property Sales 20,000 20,000 6,560 13,175 51,977
Refunds/Reimbursements
Miscellaneous Revenue-Close out TID #
Transfers From Fund Balance 650,000
Miscellaneous Income

Total Revenue 534,000 534,000 244,667 907,070 239,370
Expenditures:
General Government 32,000 32,000 16,000 26,476 77,358
Public Safety 125,000 855,452 75,000 641,272 E 278,513
Public Works 460,000 460,000 284,754 445,400 E 230,998
Encumbrances (500,627) (278,513)

Total Expenditures 617,000 1,347,452 375,754 612,521 308,356

Revenue over (under) expenditures (83,000) (813,452) (131,088) 294,549 (68,986)

Fund balance, beginning ofyear 1,874,207 1,874,207 1,874,207 998,521

Fund balance, end of perod $ 1,791,207 $ 1,060,755 $ 2,168,755 $ 929,535

8/22/2024
F \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2024\Monthly\Equip Replacement\June24



Assets
Cash and investments
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivables (accrd landfill)

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Contracts Payable - Retainages
Unearned revenue
Encumbrances
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
Street Improvement Fund

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024
$ 2,480,138

$ 2,480,138

$ 15,720
55,122

2,409,296
$ 2,480,138

2023
$ 2,044,214

18,000
$ 2,062,214

$

2,062,214
$ 2,062,214

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Totals Totals
Property Taxes $ 291,700 $ 291,700 $ 291,700 $
Landfill Siting $ 520,000 $ 520,000 $ 237,360 $ 240,200
Investment Income 34,000 34,000 35,898 20,560
Transfers from Other Funds 106,704
Intergovernmental Resources 1,395,000 1,395,000 697,233 609,560

Total Revenue 2,240,700 2,240,700 1,368,896 870,320

Expenditures:
Street Reconstruction Program - Current Year 2,347,800 2,423,513 1,977,600 E 380,082
Encumbrances (1,761,751) (355,766)

Total Expenditures 2,347,800 2,423,513 215,849 24,316

Revenue over (under) expenditures (107,100) (182,813) 1,153,046 846,004

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,256,250 1,256,250 1,256,250 1,216,210

Fund balance, end of period $ 1,149,150 $ 1,073,437 $ 2,409,296 $ 2,062,214

8/22/2024 Findata Qtrrpt Street Improvement June 2024



City of Franklin
Capital Improvement Fund

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2024 and 2023

Assets 2024 2023
Cash and investments $ 6,346,212 $ 1,349,760
Due from State of Wisconsin
Accounts receivables 847 6,847

Total Assets $ 6,347,059 $ 1,356,607

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 104,717 $ 4,209
Contracts Payable 39,064
Assigned fund balance 6,242,342 1,307,333

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 6,347,059 $ 1,350,607

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Totals Totals
Block Grants $ $ $ $ $
Other Grants
DPW Charges
Landfill Siting 120,000 120,000 51,601 56,510 167,600
Transfers from Other Funds 1,968,000 2,053,000 684,871 629,627
Transfers from General Funds
Transfers from Impact Fees 606,819 719,381 100,928 62,182 47,654
Transfers from Connection Fees 900,000 900,000
Transfers from Special Assessments
Bond Proceeds 129,496 5,139
Notes Proceeds
Bond & Notes Premium
Donations 50,000 50,000
Refunds, Reimbursements & Miscellaneous 254,613
Investment Income 2,125 2,125 1,063 57,746 6,722

Total Revenue 3,646,944 4,099,119 838,463 305,934 856,742

Expenditures:
General Government 350,000 1,048,448 175,000 489,406 E 35,294
Public Safety 160,557
Public Works 455,000 3,828,317 227,500 844,749 E 343,386
Health and Human Services
Culture and Recreation (Lib/Parks) 1,427,934 4,655,661 713,967 2,041,344 E 322,519
Conservation and Development
Sewer & Water 900,000 900,884 450,000 718,356 E 25,457
Contingency 150,000 150,000 103,416 119,797
Bond/Note Issuance Cost
Transfers to Other Funds
Encumbrances (3,509,824) (500,097)

Total Expenditures 3,282,934 10,583,309 1,669,883 584,030 506,913

Revenue over (under) expenditures 364,010 (6,484,190) (831,420) (278,096) 349,829

Fund balance, beginning of year 6,520,438 6,520,438 6,520,438 957,504

Fund balance, end of penod $ 6,884,448 $ 36,248 $ 6,242,342 $ 1,307,333

8/22/2024 Findata Qtrrpt Capital Improvement June 2024



City of Franklin
Development Fund

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2024 and 2023

Assets 2024 2023
Cash and Investments $ 13,658,006 $ 11,559,522
Other accounts recervable 3,265 3,265
Due From TID's 1,500,000

Total Assets $ 13,661,271 $ 13,062,787

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accrued Liabilities $ 38,444 $ 101,870
Accounts Payable
Assigned fund balance 13,622,828 12,960,918

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 13,661,271 13,062,787

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Impact Fees
Parks $ 175,000 $ 175,000 $ 79,140 $ 77,093 $ 311,547
Southwest Sewer Service Area 50,000 50,000 19,240 160,746 15,144
Administration 15,000 15,000 5,828 2,764 10,641
Water 750,000 750,000 272,427 273,426 683,614
Transportation 150,000 150,000 46,499 36,396 107,924
FIre Protection 100,000 100,000 36,316 24,993 73,729
Law Enforcement 100,000 100,000 38,059 28,534 84,558
Library 30,000 30,000 14,253 13,588 54,780
Total Impact Fees 1,370,000 1,370,000 511,762 617,540 1,341,936

Miscellaneous Revenue

Investment Income 255,000 255,000 127,500 335,871 247,036
Investment Gamns/Losses
lnterfund Interest Income 26,250 26,250 13,125 13,125

Total Revenue 1,651,250 1,651,250 652,387 953,411 1,602,097

Expenditures:
Other Professional Services 25,000 27,970 13,274 4,806 E
Transfer to Debt Service
Law Enforcement 125,600 125,600 89,639 125,600
Fire 43,008 43,008 20,888 43,008 41,840
Transportation 65,700 65,700 38,992 65,700 67,022
Library
Encumbrances
Total Transfers to Debt Serice 234,308 234,308 149,518 234,308 108,862

Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund
Park 466,819 466,819 78,801 155,182 E 140,654
Water
Total Transfers to Capital
Improvement Fund 466,819 466,819 78,801 155,182 E 140,654

Reimb to Developers & Others 128,768
Transfer to Other Funds 140,000 140,000 70,000
Capital Improvements
Sewer Fees
Water Fees 4,192,430 4,192,430 2,096,215

Encumbrances (95,970) (93,000)

Total Expenditures 5,058,557 5,190,295 2,407,808 298,326 156,516

Revenue over (under) expenditures (3,407,307) (3,539,045) (1,755,422) 655,085 1,445,581

Fund balance, beginning of year 12,967,743 12,967,743 12,967,743 11,515,337

Fund balance, end of period $ 9,560,436 $ 9,428,698 $ 13,622,828 $ 12,960,918

8/22/2024 F \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2024\Monthly\Development Fund June 2024



City of Franklin
Utility Development Fund

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2024 and 2023

Assets 2024 2023
Cash and Investments - Water $ 1,353,455 $ 1,214,029
Cash and Investments - Sewer 1,752,983 1,550,335
Taxes recervable (40,746)
Special Assessment - Water Current 153,065 78,136
Special Assessment - Water Deferred 14,175 20,071
Special Assessment - Sewer Current 11,058 29,311

Total Assets $ 3,284,736 $ 2,851,136

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Unearned Revenue $ 178,298 $ 127,518

Total Fund Balance 3,106,438 2,723,618
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 3,284,736 $ 2,851,136

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2024 2024 2023
Original Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Actual Actual
Special Assessments
Water $ 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 18,501 $
Sewer 25,000 25,000 1,377 7,062

Connection Fees
Water
Sewer 10,000 10,000 91,560 6,000

Total Assessments & Connection Fees 55,000 55,000 111,439 13,062

Special Assessment Interest 8,200 8,200 206 72
Investment Income 106,250 106,250 70,452 61,342
Total Revenue 169,450 169,450 182,096 74,475

Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund
Water 400,000 400,000
Sewer 500,000 500,000

Total Transfers to Caprtal Improvement Fund 900,000 900,000

Revenue over (under) expenditures (730,550) (730,550) 182,096 74,475

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,924,342 2,924,342 2,924,342 2,649,143

Fund balance, end of period $ 2,193,792 $ 2,193,792 $ 3,106,438 $ 2,723,618

8/22/2024 Fmndata Qtrrpt Utility Development June 24



City of Franklin
Self Insurance Fund -Actives

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2024 and 2023

Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Interfund advance receivable
Prepaid expenses

Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable
Claims payable
Special deposits
Unrestricted net assets

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2024 2023
$ 2,795,438 $ 3,237,050

324 648

$ 2,795,762 $ 3,237,698

$ 26,516 $ 151,178
210,000 210,000

2,559,246 2,876,520
$ 2,795,762 $ 3,237,698

City of Franklin Self Insurance Fund - Actives
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Revenue
Medical Premiums-City
Medical Premiums-Employee
Other - Invest Income, Rebates
Medical Revenue
Dental Premiums-City
Dental Premiums-Retirees
Dental Premiums-Employee
Dental Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenditures:
Medical
Medical clamms
Prescription drug clamms
Refunds-Stop Loss Coverage
Total Claims

Medical Clamm Fees
Stop Loss Premiums
Other - Miscellaneous
HSA Contributions
Plan Administration
Total Medical Costs

Dental
Active Employees & COBRA
Retiree

Total Dental Costs

Clamms contingency

Total Expenditures

Revenue over (under) expenditures
Net assets, beginning ofyear

Net assets, end of penod

2024
Original
Budget

$ 3,285,140
537,805
193,000

4,015,945
145,000

3,000
70,000

218,000
4,233,945

4,736,677
(502,732)

2,343,151

$ 1,840,419

2024
Year-to-Date

Budget
$ 1,657,328

269,330
96,500

2,023,158
73,889
2,288

35,767
111,944

2,135,102

2,360,228
$ (225,126)

2024
Year-to-Date

Actual
$ 1,464,341

244,936
147,019

1,856,296
48,177

558
23,872
72,607

1,928,903

1,712,808
216,095

2,343,151

$ 2,559,246

2023
Year-to-Date

Actual
$ 1,150,951

215,749
145,841

1,512,542
49,598

3,129
26,673
79,399

1,591,940

1,993,331
(401,391)

3,277,911

$ 2,876,520

3,032,000 1,501,482 1,031,456 1,287,751
490,000 245,000 234,954 188,148

(139,450) (83,820)
3,522,000 1,746,482 1,126,960 1,392,079

147,000 77,070 94,314 98,020
643,000 327,082 282,995 296,742

2,700 1,350 13,348 21,480
177,000 88,500 78,125 74,438
48,515 24,257 24,270 23,550

4,540,215 2,264,741 1,620,012 1,906,307

196,462 95,487 92,539 85,845
257 1,179

196,462 95,487 92,796 87,024

8/22/2024 Fmndata Qtrrpt Self Insurance June24



City of Franklin
City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2024 and 2023

Assets 2024 2023
Cash and investments $ (582,439) $ (390,354)
Investments held mn trust - Fed Inc 3,448,660 2,951,194
Investments held mn trust - Equities 6,392,178 5,570,987
Accounts receivable 62,656 38,645

Total Assets $ 9,321,055 $ 8,170,472

Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable $ 1,993 $ 48,248
Clamms payable 60,000 60,000
Net assets held mn trust for post emp 9,259,062 8,062,224

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 9,321,055 $ 8,170,472

City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue Actual Actual
ARC Medical Charges - City $ 214,515 $ 231,892
Medical Charges - Retirees 204,485 132,932

Medical Revenue 419,000 364,824

Expenditures:
Retirees-Medical
Medical clamms 199,008 246,597
Prescription drug clamms 81,277 105,493
Refunds-Stop Loss Coverage (4,325) (7,598)
Total Clamms-Retirees 275,960 344,492

Medical Claim Fees 19,677 22,459
Stop Loss Premiums 57,058 69,029
Miscellaneous Expense 13,721 478
Total Medical Costs-Retirees 366,416 436,458

Revenue over (under) expenditures 52,584 (71,634)

Annual Required Contribution-Net (8,277) (148,672)
Other - Investment Income, etc. 845,154 751,205
Total Revenues 836,877 602,533

Net Revenues (Expenditures) 889,461 530,899

Net assets, begmrnng of year 8,369,601 7,531,325

Net assets, end of penod $ 9,259,062 $ 8,062,224

8/22/2024 Fmndata Qtrrpt Retiree Health Fund June 2024



APPROVAL

LICENSES AND

PERMITS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES

MEETING DATE
10/01/2024

ITEM 02/NUMBER

H.

See attached License Committee Meeting Minutes from the License Committee Meeting of
October 1, 2024.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Approval of the Minutes of the License Committee Meeting of October 1, 2024.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE



License Committee Agenda*
Franklin City Alderman Room

9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, WI
October 1, 2024- 5:30 p.m.

1. Call to Order & Roll Call Time:
2. Applicant Interviews & Decisions

Recommendations
Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny

Extraordinary Fireworks for Private Event at
Crystal Ridge LodgeEntertainment &

Special Event Person in Charge: Riley May
Location: 7011 S Ballpark Dr, Franklin WI5:30 p.m. Date of Event: October 20, 2024

Operator Jennifer Drzewiecki
2024-2025 St Martin of Tours
New

Operator Holly Pesch
2024-2025 The Rock Sports Complex
New

Operator Samuel Tretow
2024-2025 The Rock Sports Complex
New

3. Adjournment Time:
*Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over which they have
decision-making responsibility . This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, even

though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting.



APPROVAL

Bills

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE

10/1/2024

ITEM NUMBER

I

Attached are vouchers dated September 13, 2024 through September 26, 2024, Nos. 199421 through Nos.
199574 in the amount of$ 1,321,201.93. Also included in this listing are EFT Nos. 5822 through EFT Nos.
5835, Library vouchers totaling$ 56,760.86 and Water Utility vouchers totaling$ 30,589.94. Voided checks
in the amount of$ ( 239.98) are separately listed.

Early release disbursements dated September 13, 2024 through September 25, 2024 in the amount of
$ 834,590.76 are provided on a separate listing and are also included in the complete disbursement listing.
These payments have been released as authorized under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834.

The net payroll dated September 20, 2024 is$ 480,990.51, previously estimated at$ 492,000. Payroll
deductions dated September 20, 2024 are$ 507,769.42, previously estimated at$ 519,000.

The estimated payroll for October 4, 2024 is$ 483,000 with estimated deductions and matching payments of
$ 255,000.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date of September 26, 2024 in the amount of$ 1,321,201.93

• Payroll dated September 20, 2024 in the amount of$ 480,990.51 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $ 507,769.42 plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated October 4, 2024 in the amount of $ 483,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $ 255,000, plus City matching payments.

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Fmance Dept - SB


